
 
 

16 November 2021 
 
 

Worthing Planning Committee 
 

Date: 
 

24 November 2021 

Time: 
 

6.30 pm 

Venue: 
 

Council Chamber, Worthing Town Hall 

 
 

Committee Membership: Councillors Noel Atkins (Chairman), Karen Harman (Vice-
Chairman), Dan Coxhill, Jim Deen, Martin McCabe, Helen Silman, John Turley and 
Steve Wills 

 
NOTE: 
Anyone wishing to speak at this meeting on a planning application before the Committee 
should register by telephone (01903 221006) or e-mail democratic.services@adur-
worthing.gov.uk  before noon on Tuesday 23 November 2021.        
 
 
 

Agenda 
Part A 
 
1. Substitute Members   
 
 Any substitute members should declare their substitution. 

 
2. Declarations of Interest   
 
 Members and Officers must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests in 

relation to any business on the agenda.  Declarations should also be made at any 
stage such as interest becomes apparent during the meeting. 
 
If in doubt contact the Legal or Democratic Services representative for this 
meeting. 
 
Members and Officers may seek advice upon any relevant interest from the 
Monitoring Officer prior to the meeting. 
 

Public Document Pack

mailto:heather.kingston@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:heather.kingston@adur-worthing.gov.uk


3. Public Question Time   
 
 So as to provide the best opportunity for the Committee to provide the public with 

the fullest answer, questions from the public should be submitted by midday on 
Monday 22 November 2021. 
 
Where relevant notice of a question has not been given, the person presiding 
may either choose to give a response at the meeting or respond by undertaking 
to provide a written response within three working days. 
 
Questions should be submitted to Democratic Services – 
democratic.services@adur-worthing.gov.uk 
 
(Note:  Public Question Time will last for a maximum of 30 minutes)  
 

4. Confirmation of Minutes   
 
 To approve the minutes of the Planning Committee meetings of the Committee 

held on Wednesday 20 October 2021, which have been emailed to Members. 
 

5. Items Raised Under Urgency Provisions   
 
 To consider any items the Chair of the meeting considers urgent.  

 
6. Planning Applications  (Pages 1 - 108) 
 
 To consider the reports by the Director for the Economy, attached as Item 6. 

 
7. Planning Appeals   
 
 None 

 

Part B - Not for publication - Exempt Information Reports 
 
None 
 
 
 

Recording of this meeting  
Please note that this meeting is being live streamed and a recording of the meeting will 
be available to view on the Council’s website. This meeting will be available to view on 
our website for one year and will be deleted after that period.  The Council will not be 
recording any discussions in Part B of the agenda (where the press and public have 
been excluded). 

 
 

For Democratic Services enquiries relating 
to this meeting please contact: 

For Legal Services enquiries relating to this 
meeting please contact: 

Katy McMullan 
Democratic Services Officer 
01903 221006 
katy.mcmullan@adur-worthing.gov.uk 

Solomon Agutu 
Senior Lawyer & Deputy Monitoring Officer 
01903 221045 
solomon.agutu@adur-worthing.gov.uk 

mailto:democratic.services@adur-worthing.gov.uk


 
Duration of the Meeting:  Four hours after the commencement of the meeting the 
Chairperson will adjourn the meeting to consider if it wishes to continue.  A vote will be 
taken and a simple majority in favour will be necessary for the meeting to continue. 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



‌ 
‌ 

Planning‌ ‌Committee‌ ‌ 
24‌ ‌November‌ ‌2021‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Agenda‌ ‌Item‌ ‌6‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Ward:‌ ‌‌ALL‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Key‌ ‌Decision:‌ ‌‌Yes‌‌ ‌/‌ ‌No‌ ‌ 

‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

Report‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌ ‌Director‌ ‌for‌ ‌Economy‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Planning‌ ‌Applications‌ ‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

1‌ ‌ 
Application‌ ‌Number‌ ‌:‌  ‌AWDM/0550/21‌ Recommendation‌ ‌-‌ ‌APPROVE‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Site:‌ Garage‌ ‌Site‌ ‌South‌ ‌Of‌ ‌Heene‌ ‌C‌ ‌Of‌ ‌E‌ ‌Primary‌ ‌School‌‌ 

Norfolk‌ ‌Street,‌ ‌Worthing‌
‌ ‌  

Proposal:‌ Demolition‌ ‌of‌ ‌existing‌ ‌storage‌ ‌buildings.‌ ‌Construction‌‌ 
of‌ ‌replacement‌ ‌building‌ ‌comprising‌ ‌4no.‌ ‌one-bedroom‌‌ 
flats‌ ‌and‌ ‌2no.‌ ‌two-bedroom‌ ‌flats,‌ ‌bin‌ ‌and‌ ‌bike‌ ‌storage‌‌ 
and‌ ‌associated‌ ‌landscaping.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
‌ 

2‌ ‌ 
Application‌ ‌Number‌ ‌:‌  ‌AWDM/1875/21‌ Recommendation‌ ‌-‌ ‌REFUSE‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Site:‌‌  Kingswood‌ ‌Home,‌ ‌140‌ ‌Heene‌ ‌Road‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Proposal:‌ Conversion‌ ‌of‌ ‌existing‌ ‌care‌ ‌home‌ ‌to‌ ‌provide‌ ‌7no.‌‌ 

residential‌ ‌apartments‌ ‌involving‌ ‌demolition‌ ‌of‌ ‌attached‌‌ 
conservatory;‌ ‌development‌ ‌of‌ ‌a‌ ‌detached‌ ‌2-bedroom‌‌ 
bungalow‌ ‌to‌ ‌south‌ ‌side‌ ‌and‌ ‌adaptation‌ ‌and‌ ‌enlargement‌‌ 
of‌ ‌original‌ ‌coach‌ ‌house‌ ‌to‌ ‌provide‌ ‌a‌ ‌3-bedroom‌ ‌dwelling‌‌ 
(9no.‌ ‌dwellings‌ ‌in‌ ‌total)‌ ‌plus‌ ‌7no.‌ ‌parking‌ ‌spaces‌ ‌ 
(resubmission‌ ‌of‌ ‌planning‌ ‌application‌ ‌AWDM/0601/21).‌

‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

1

Agenda Item 6



‌ 
‌ 

3‌ ‌ 
Application‌ ‌Number‌ ‌:‌  ‌AWDM/1102/21‌ Recommendation‌ ‌-‌ ‌APPROVE‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Site:‌ Land‌ ‌Between‌ ‌Station‌ ‌Car‌ ‌Park‌ ‌and‌ ‌Footbridge,‌ ‌Tarring‌‌ 

Road,‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Proposal:‌ Proposed‌ ‌detached‌ ‌2-storey‌ ‌3-bedroom‌ ‌flat-roofed‌‌ 
house‌ ‌with‌ ‌south-facing‌ ‌first-floor‌ ‌balcony,‌ ‌parking,‌‌ 
driveway‌ ‌and‌ ‌landscaping‌‌ ‌  

‌ 
‌ 

4‌ ‌ 
Application‌ ‌Number‌ ‌:‌  ‌AWDM/1591/21‌ Recommendation‌ ‌-‌ ‌APPROVE‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Site:‌ 42‌ ‌Alfriston‌ ‌Road,‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Proposal:‌ Construction‌ ‌of‌ ‌rear‌ ‌Workshop‌ ‌/‌ ‌Store‌ ‌Outbuilding‌ ‌(part‌‌ 

retrospective).‌ ‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

5‌ ‌ 
Application‌ ‌Number‌ ‌:‌  ‌AWDM/1422/21‌ Recommendation‌ ‌-‌ ‌Temporary‌‌ 

Approval‌ ‌-‌ ‌12‌ ‌months‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Site:‌ 24‌ ‌Vale‌ ‌Drive,‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Proposal:‌ Use‌ ‌of‌ ‌part‌ ‌of‌ ‌front‌ ‌driveway/hardstanding‌ ‌to‌ ‌station‌ ‌a‌‌ 
non-static‌ ‌vehicle‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌sale‌ ‌of‌ ‌refreshments‌‌ 
(specification‌ ‌not‌ ‌exceeding‌ ‌4m‌ ‌in‌ ‌length,‌ ‌2m‌ ‌width‌ ‌and‌‌ 
2.5m‌ ‌high).‌ ‌ 

‌ 
‌ 

6‌ ‌ 
Application‌ ‌Number‌ ‌:‌  ‌AWDM/1746/21‌ Recommendation‌ ‌-‌ ‌APPROVE‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Site:‌ Central‌ ‌Pavilion,‌ ‌Beach‌ ‌House‌ ‌Park,‌ ‌Lyndhurst‌ ‌Road,‌‌ 

Worthing‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Proposal:‌ Change‌ ‌of‌ ‌use‌ ‌from‌ ‌clubhouse‌ ‌to‌ ‌restaurant/cafe‌ ‌(Use‌‌ 
Class‌ ‌A3)‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌ground‌ ‌floor‌ ‌with‌ ‌associated‌ ‌function‌‌ 
space‌ ‌at‌ ‌first‌ ‌floor‌ ‌(application‌ ‌to‌ ‌Vary‌ ‌Condition‌ ‌4‌ ‌of‌‌ 
previously‌ ‌approved‌ ‌AWDM/0624/15‌ ‌to‌ ‌allow‌ ‌occasional‌‌ 
wedding‌ ‌ceremonies).‌ ‌ 

‌ 

2



‌ 
‌ 

7‌ ‌ 
Application‌ ‌Number‌ ‌:‌  ‌AWDM/1843/21‌ Recommendation‌ ‌-‌ ‌APPROVE‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Site:‌ Brooklands‌ ‌Pleasure‌ ‌Park,‌ ‌Brighton‌ ‌Road,‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Proposal:‌ Demolition‌ ‌of‌ ‌existing‌ ‌toilet‌ ‌block‌ ‌and‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌new‌‌ 

cafe‌ ‌and‌ ‌public‌ ‌toilets,‌ ‌plant‌ ‌and‌ ‌refuse‌ ‌room,‌‌ 
accessible‌ ‌play‌ ‌area,‌ ‌with‌ ‌associated‌ ‌landscaping‌ ‌and‌‌ 
bike‌ ‌storage‌‌  ‌‌(application‌ ‌to‌ ‌vary‌ ‌condition‌ ‌No.‌ ‌1‌  ‌of‌‌ 
previous‌ ‌approval‌‌ ‌‌AWDM/0266/20‌‌ ‌‌-‌  ‌amending‌ ‌the‌‌ 
approved‌ ‌plans‌ ‌relating‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌design‌ ‌and‌ ‌size‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌ 
approved‌ ‌cafe‌ ‌and‌ ‌toilet‌ ‌building).‌ ‌ 

‌ 
‌ 

8‌ ‌ 
Application‌ ‌Number‌ ‌:‌  ‌AWDM/1806/21‌ Recommendation‌ ‌-‌ ‌APPROVE‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Site:‌ Portland‌ ‌House,‌ ‌44‌ ‌Richmond‌ ‌Road,‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Proposal:‌ Replacement‌ ‌of‌ ‌white‌ ‌UPVC‌ ‌windows‌ ‌and‌ ‌doors‌ ‌to‌‌ 

composite‌ ‌white‌ ‌polyester‌ ‌powder‌ ‌coated‌‌ 
aluminium/timber‌ ‌framed‌ ‌triple‌ ‌glazed‌ ‌windows‌ ‌and‌‌ 
doors.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

3

https://planning.adur-worthing.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?keyVal=Q5NB6UCB05900&activeTab=summary
https://planning.adur-worthing.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?keyVal=Q5NB6UCB05900&activeTab=summary
https://planning.adur-worthing.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?keyVal=Q5NB6UCB05900&activeTab=summary
https://planning.adur-worthing.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?keyVal=Q5NB6UCB05900&activeTab=summary
https://planning.adur-worthing.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?keyVal=Q5NB6UCB05900&activeTab=summary
https://planning.adur-worthing.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?keyVal=Q5NB6UCB05900&activeTab=summary


‌ 
‌ 

1‌ ‌ 
‌ 

‌ 

‌ 
Not‌ ‌to‌ ‌Scale‌ ‌ ‌   

Reproduced‌ ‌from‌ ‌OS‌ ‌Mapping‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌permission‌ ‌of‌ ‌HMSO‌ ‌©‌ ‌Crown‌ ‌Copyright‌ ‌Licence‌ ‌number‌ ‌LA100024321‌ ‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

Application‌ ‌Number:‌ ‌  AWDM/0550/21‌ ‌  Recommendation‌ ‌-‌ ‌APPROVE‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Site:‌ ‌  Garage‌ ‌Site‌ ‌South‌ ‌Of‌ ‌Heene‌ ‌C‌ ‌Of‌ ‌E‌ ‌Primary‌ ‌School‌‌ 
Norfolk‌ ‌Street,‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Proposal:‌ ‌  Demolition‌ ‌of‌‌existing‌‌storage‌‌buildings.‌‌Construction‌           

of‌‌replacement‌‌building‌‌comprising‌‌4no.‌‌one-bedroom‌           
flats‌ ‌and‌‌2no.‌‌two-bedroom‌‌flats,‌‌bin‌‌and‌‌bike‌‌storage‌                 
and‌ ‌associated‌ ‌landscaping.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Applicant:‌ ‌  BR7‌ ‌Ltd‌ ‌  Ward:‌ ‌Central‌ ‌ 
Agent:‌ ‌  Mr‌ ‌Huw‌ ‌James‌ ‌ECE‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Ltd‌ ‌ 
Case‌ ‌Officer:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Jackie‌ ‌Fox‌ ‌ 

4



‌ 
‌ 

Background‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

This‌‌application‌‌was‌‌deferred‌‌at‌‌the‌‌last‌‌Planning‌‌Committee‌‌meeting,‌‌specifically‌‌to‌‌                       
enable‌ ‌further‌ ‌discussions‌ ‌between‌ ‌the‌‌applicant‌‌and‌‌objectors‌‌to‌‌the‌‌development‌‌                     
in‌ ‌relation‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌scope‌ ‌of‌ ‌any‌ ‌improvement‌ ‌works‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌unadopted‌ ‌access‌ ‌track‌‌                           
serving‌ ‌the‌ ‌site.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Your‌ ‌Officers‌ ‌facilitated‌ ‌a‌ ‌meeting‌ ‌between‌ ‌the‌ ‌adjoining‌ ‌residents‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌‌                     
developers‌‌on‌‌the‌‌28th‌‌October‌‌2021.‌ ‌The‌‌meeting‌‌considered‌‌the‌‌concerns‌‌of‌‌local‌‌                         
residents‌ ‌about‌ ‌the‌ ‌lack‌ ‌of‌ ‌turning‌ ‌facilities‌ ‌for‌ ‌larger‌ ‌vehicles‌ ‌(which‌‌currently‌‌use‌‌                         
the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌site)‌ ‌and‌ ‌improvements‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌unadopted‌ ‌road‌ ‌that‌ ‌would‌ ‌lead‌ ‌to‌‌                         
increased‌ ‌vehicular‌ ‌traffic.‌ ‌Related‌ ‌matters‌ ‌included‌ ‌concerns‌ ‌about‌ ‌the‌ ‌safety‌ ‌of‌‌                     
pedestrians‌ ‌using‌ ‌the‌ ‌access‌ ‌(particularly‌ ‌at‌ ‌night),‌ ‌ongoing‌ ‌maintenance‌‌                 
responsibilities‌ ‌and‌ ‌refuse‌ ‌arrangements‌ ‌previously‌ ‌agreed‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌Council.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

At‌ ‌the‌ ‌meeting‌ ‌it‌ ‌was‌ ‌agreed‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌developers‌ ‌would‌ ‌consider‌ ‌the‌ ‌residents‌‌                         
concerns‌ ‌and‌ ‌committed‌ ‌to:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

i)‌ ‌Investigate‌ ‌the‌ ‌scope‌ ‌to‌ ‌amend‌ ‌the‌ ‌current‌ ‌scheme‌ ‌to‌ ‌incorporate‌ ‌a‌ ‌turning‌‌                         
space‌ ‌for‌ ‌users‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Lane‌ ‌so‌ ‌that‌ ‌larger‌ ‌vehicles‌ ‌could‌ ‌access‌ ‌onto‌ ‌Clifton‌‌                           
Road‌ ‌(which‌ ‌has‌ ‌greater‌ ‌width‌ ‌and‌ ‌better‌ ‌visibility).‌ ‌ 

‌ 
ii)‌   ‌Make‌ ‌provision‌ ‌for‌ ‌residents'‌ ‌bins‌ ‌along‌ ‌the‌ ‌frontage‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌site.‌ 
‌ 

iii)‌ ‌Consider‌ ‌the‌‌scope‌‌for‌‌more‌‌minor‌‌improvements‌‌for‌‌surfacing‌‌and‌‌consider‌‌the‌‌                         
scope‌ ‌for‌ ‌new‌ ‌residents‌‌of‌‌the‌‌development‌‌contributing‌‌to‌‌a‌‌maintenance‌‌fund‌‌                       
for‌ ‌future‌ ‌repairs.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
iv)‌ ‌Investigate‌ ‌the‌ ‌scope‌ ‌for‌ ‌signage‌ ‌and‌ ‌possibly‌ ‌some‌ ‌bollards‌ ‌to‌ ‌give‌ ‌the‌‌                         

impression‌ ‌of‌ ‌restricted‌ ‌width‌ ‌to‌ ‌discourage‌ ‌vehicles‌ ‌using‌‌the‌‌access‌‌as‌‌a‌‌cut‌‌                         
through‌ ‌to‌ ‌Norfolk‌ ‌Street.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
v)‌ ‌Aim‌‌to‌‌have‌‌a‌‌joint‌‌statement‌‌prepared‌‌by‌‌the‌‌Developer‌‌and‌‌the‌‌residents‌‌to‌‌be‌‌                               

presented‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Committee.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌previous‌ ‌Committee‌ ‌report‌ ‌is‌ ‌attached‌ ‌for‌ ‌Members‌ ‌information.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Current‌ ‌Position‌ ‌ ‌     
‌ 

The‌‌meeting‌‌was‌‌positive‌‌with‌‌representatives‌‌of‌‌the‌‌local‌‌residents‌‌although‌‌it‌‌is‌‌fair‌‌                           
to‌ ‌say‌ ‌that‌ ‌many‌ ‌felt‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌continued‌ ‌commercial‌ ‌use‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌‌                             
preferable‌ ‌and‌ ‌there‌ ‌were‌ ‌considerable‌‌concerns‌‌that‌‌the‌‌development‌‌would‌‌have‌‌                     
an‌ ‌adverse‌ ‌impact‌ ‌on‌ ‌their‌ ‌properties‌ ‌with‌ ‌greater‌ ‌vehicular‌ ‌traffic‌ ‌than‌ ‌there‌ ‌is‌‌                         
currently.‌ ‌However,‌ ‌it‌ ‌was‌ ‌also‌ ‌acknowledged‌ ‌that‌ ‌there‌ ‌are‌ ‌only‌ ‌a‌ ‌few‌ ‌units‌‌                         
occupied‌ ‌at‌ ‌the‌ ‌present‌ ‌time‌ ‌and‌ ‌if‌ ‌retained‌ ‌and‌ ‌fully‌ ‌let‌ ‌for‌ ‌commercial‌ ‌use‌ ‌the‌‌                             
traffic‌ ‌could‌ ‌increase‌ ‌significantly.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌residents‌ ‌have‌ ‌been‌ ‌sent‌ ‌a‌ ‌suggested‌ ‌amended‌ ‌plan‌ ‌which‌ ‌is‌ ‌set‌ ‌out‌ ‌below‌‌                           
suggesting‌‌a‌‌turning‌‌space‌‌could‌‌be‌‌incorporated‌‌and‌‌a‌‌revised‌‌bin‌‌arrangement‌‌to‌‌                         
accommodate‌ ‌existing‌ ‌bins‌ ‌stored‌ ‌along‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌ ‌frontage‌ ‌(see‌ ‌below):‌ ‌ 

5



‌ 
‌ 

‌ 

‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

Additional‌ ‌Representations‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

The‌ ‌applicants‌ ‌are‌ ‌still‌ ‌discussing‌ ‌a‌ ‌possible‌‌joint‌‌statement‌‌but‌‌having‌‌considered‌‌                       
the‌ ‌above‌ ‌amended‌ ‌plan‌ ‌and‌ ‌had‌ ‌further‌ ‌discussions‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌wider‌ ‌residents‌‌                       
association‌ ‌the‌ ‌following‌ ‌statement‌ ‌has‌ ‌been‌ ‌sent‌‌to‌‌the‌‌applicants‌‌by‌‌the‌‌Cobden‌‌                         
Road‌ ‌and‌ ‌Norfolk‌ ‌Street‌ ‌Residents‌ ‌Association‌ ‌setting‌ ‌out‌ ‌its‌ ‌continued‌ ‌concerns‌‌                     
with‌ ‌the‌ ‌development:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

1)‌ ‌Disappointment‌‌that‌‌no‌‌alternative‌‌to‌‌the‌‌block‌‌of‌‌flats‌‌can‌‌be‌‌considered;‌‌ie:‌‌the‌‌                             
smaller‌ ‌residential‌ ‌layout,‌ ‌2‌ ‌x‌ ‌2‌ ‌bed‌ ‌flats‌ ‌and‌ ‌lx‌ ‌2‌ ‌bed‌ ‌house,‌ ‌with‌ ‌electric‌ ‌car‌‌                               
spaces‌‌and‌‌turning‌‌area‌‌which‌‌would‌‌have‌‌alleviated‌‌the‌‌need‌‌for‌‌improving‌‌the‌‌                         
access‌ ‌roadway‌ ‌at‌ ‌all.‌ 

‌ 
2)‌ ‌The‌ ‌outlined‌ ‌plan‌ ‌you‌ ‌submitted‌ ‌showing‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌space‌ ‌for‌ ‌a‌ ‌car‌ ‌'turn‌‌                           

point',‌ ‌unfortunately‌ ‌does‌ ‌not‌ ‌solve‌ ‌the‌ ‌problem‌ ‌of‌ ‌turning‌ ‌for‌ ‌'transit'‌ ‌type‌‌                       
vehicles,‌‌as‌‌the‌‌space‌‌indicated‌‌is‌‌far‌‌too‌‌small.‌‌It‌‌is‌‌not‌‌cars‌‌that‌‌can't‌‌get‌‌out‌‌of‌‌                                   
both‌ ‌ends,‌ ‌it's‌ ‌the‌ ‌'transit'‌ ‌type‌ ‌vehicles.‌ ‌Also‌ ‌this‌ ‌would‌ ‌still‌ ‌require‌ ‌an‌‌                         
improvement‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌roadway.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
3)‌ ‌The‌‌placement‌‌of‌‌an‌‌'Aco‌‌type'‌‌centre‌‌path‌‌along‌‌the‌‌roadway‌‌was‌‌discussed,‌‌it‌‌                             

was‌‌agreed‌‌that‌‌to‌‌implement‌‌this‌‌type‌‌of‌‌product‌‌would‌‌entail‌‌a‌‌large‌‌amount‌‌of‌‌                             
preparation‌ ‌work‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌roadway‌ ‌before‌ ‌laying‌ ‌it,‌ ‌which‌ ‌many‌‌felt‌‌would‌‌not‌‌be‌‌                           
possible.‌ ‌It‌ ‌was‌ ‌also‌ ‌considered‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌roadway‌ ‌could‌ ‌well‌ ‌be‌ ‌worse‌ ‌off‌‌with‌‌                           

6



‌ 
‌ 

vehicle‌ ‌wheels‌ ‌carving‌ ‌deep‌ ‌furrows‌ ‌each‌ ‌side,‌ ‌making‌ ‌it‌ ‌much‌ ‌more‌ ‌uneven‌‌                       
and‌ ‌more‌ ‌prone‌ ‌to‌ ‌puddling‌ ‌on‌ ‌a‌ ‌regular‌ ‌basis,‌ ‌this‌ ‌would‌ ‌involve‌ ‌increasing‌‌                         
maintenance‌ ‌frequency‌ ‌and‌ ‌costs,‌ ‌which‌ ‌nobody‌ ‌was‌ ‌in‌ ‌agreement‌ ‌with.‌ ‌ 

Some‌‌said‌‌we‌‌would‌‌just‌‌be‌‌paying‌‌maintenance‌‌for‌‌something‌‌that‌‌would‌‌be‌‌                         
of‌ ‌no‌ ‌benefit‌ ‌to‌ ‌us‌ ‌and‌ ‌would‌ ‌likely‌ ‌make‌ ‌our‌ ‌roadway‌ ‌worse‌ ‌anyway.‌‌                         
Removing‌ ‌trees,‌ ‌cutting‌ ‌what‌ ‌little‌ ‌is‌ ‌left‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌roadways‌ ‌greenery‌ ‌has‌ ‌also‌‌                         
been‌ ‌rejected‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌ ‌majority‌ ‌of‌ ‌residents.‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌idea‌ ‌of‌ ‌forming‌ ‌an‌ ‌official‌ ‌residents‌ ‌maintenance‌ ‌fund‌ ‌was‌ ‌discussed,‌‌                     
residents‌ ‌agreed‌ ‌that‌ ‌it‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌ineffectual,‌ ‌as‌ ‌it‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌impossible‌ ‌to‌‌                         
enforce‌‌without‌‌legal‌‌commitment.‌‌This‌‌led‌‌to‌‌concerns‌‌being‌‌voiced‌‌regarding‌‌                     
legal‌ ‌costs‌ ‌of‌ ‌having‌‌everyone's‌‌deeds‌‌updated‌‌with‌‌new‌‌schedules‌‌outlining‌‌                     
the‌‌commitments‌‌of‌‌burden,‌‌that‌‌would‌‌be‌‌necessary‌‌if‌‌everyone‌‌agreed‌‌in‌‌the‌‌                         
first‌ ‌place,‌ ‌which‌ ‌in‌ ‌fact‌ ‌they‌ ‌did‌ ‌not‌‌agree.‌‌Also‌‌a‌‌number‌‌of‌‌residents‌‌were‌‌                             
asking‌ ‌if‌ ‌these‌ ‌flats‌ ‌were‌ ‌going‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌sold‌ ‌as‌ ‌freehold‌ ‌or‌ ‌leasehold.‌ ‌ 

4)‌ ‌Incorporating‌‌our‌‌existing‌‌bin‌‌storage‌‌within‌‌your‌‌new‌‌bin‌‌area‌‌(as‌‌detailed‌‌on‌‌                           
your‌ ‌application‌ ‌plans)‌ ‌which‌ ‌(according‌ ‌to‌ ‌our‌ ‌surveyor)‌ ‌will‌ ‌be‌ ‌an‌‌                     
encroachment‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌12‌ ‌foot‌ ‌width‌ ‌roadway,‌ ‌as‌ ‌measured‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌north‌‌                       
boundary‌‌walls‌‌of‌‌the‌‌Cobden‌‌Road‌‌residents.‌‌Which‌‌is‌‌stated‌‌on‌‌the‌‌most‌‌up‌‌                           
to‌‌date‌‌deeds‌‌available.‌‌So‌‌this‌‌proposal‌‌for‌‌the‌‌incorporation‌‌of‌‌the‌‌bins,‌‌has‌‌                           
not‌ ‌been‌ ‌accepted‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌ ‌residents‌ ‌concerned.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
CONCLUSION:‌‌ ‌  

‌ 
After‌ ‌discussing‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposals‌ ‌and‌ ‌suggestions‌ ‌that‌ ‌you‌ ‌emailed,‌ ‌the‌ ‌residents‌‌                     
have‌‌been‌‌unable‌‌to‌‌agree‌‌on‌‌a‌‌satisfactory‌‌way‌‌forward.‌‌It‌‌is‌‌impossible‌‌to‌‌find‌‌a‌‌                               
solution‌ ‌that‌ ‌will‌‌be‌‌right‌‌for‌‌everyone's‌‌individual‌‌needs‌‌and‌‌impossible‌‌to‌‌force‌‌                         
everyone‌‌to‌‌agree‌‌on‌‌a‌‌compromise.‌‌As‌‌the‌‌roadway‌‌is‌‌now‌‌and‌‌has‌‌been‌‌for‌‌the‌‌                               
past‌ ‌30‌ ‌years,‌ ‌a‌ ‌greenish‌ ‌type‌ ‌corridor,‌ ‌it‌ ‌serves‌ ‌its‌ ‌purpose‌ ‌as‌ ‌access‌ ‌for‌ ‌all‌‌                             
those‌‌who‌‌have‌‌access‌‌rights‌‌onto‌‌it‌‌at‌‌this‌‌time.‌‌It‌‌was‌‌originally‌‌never‌‌meant‌‌to‌‌                               
be‌ ‌the‌ ‌only‌ ‌pedestrian/cycle‌ ‌access‌ ‌route‌ ‌for‌ ‌a‌ ‌residential‌ ‌site.‌ ‌The‌ ‌roadways‌‌                       
NEW‌ ‌USE,‌ ‌as‌ ‌an‌ ‌adequate‌ ‌and‌ ‌safe‌ ‌pedestrian‌ ‌access‌ ‌route‌ ‌to‌ ‌residential‌‌                       
homes‌‌was‌‌never‌‌investigated‌‌or‌‌thought‌‌about‌‌in‌‌the‌‌beginning,‌‌it‌‌was‌‌just‌‌one‌‌                           
bad‌ ‌assumption‌ ‌after‌ ‌another,‌ ‌the‌ ‌logistics‌ ‌and‌ ‌implications‌ ‌were‌ ‌never‌‌                   
considered‌ ‌before‌ ‌the‌ ‌plans‌ ‌went‌ ‌ahead,‌ ‌after‌ ‌all‌ ‌what‌ ‌do‌ ‌they‌ ‌say‌ ‌'never‌‌                         
assume'‌ ‌and‌ ‌'the‌ ‌devil‌ ‌is‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌details'.‌ ‌ 

Even‌‌though‌‌this‌‌has‌‌nothing‌‌directly‌‌to‌‌do‌‌with‌‌the‌‌planning‌‌application‌‌itself,‌‌the‌‌                           
majority‌ ‌of‌ ‌residents‌ ‌have‌ ‌continued‌ ‌to‌ ‌express‌ ‌their‌ ‌great‌ ‌concern‌ ‌over‌ ‌any‌‌                       
demolition‌‌or‌‌construction‌‌work‌‌happening‌‌on‌‌this‌‌site.‌‌Also‌‌the‌‌land‌‌contamination‌‌                       
by‌‌oil‌‌and‌‌maybe‌‌sewerage.‌‌Noise,‌‌dust,‌‌access,‌‌all‌‌of‌‌these‌‌are‌‌going‌‌to‌‌be‌‌very‌‌                               
contentious‌ ‌issues.‌ ‌ 

7



‌ 
‌ 

Upgrading‌‌the‌‌roadway‌‌in‌‌any‌‌way‌‌is‌‌not‌‌something‌‌the‌‌residents‌‌are‌‌willing‌‌to‌‌                           
accept‌ ‌or‌ ‌compromise‌ ‌on.‌ ‌So‌ ‌that‌ ‌seems‌ ‌to‌ ‌leave‌ ‌the‌ ‌following‌ ‌options,‌ ‌all‌‌of‌‌                           
which‌ ‌require‌ ‌no‌ ‌improvement‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌roadway:‌ ‌ 

1‌ ‌New‌ ‌plans‌ ‌incorporating‌ ‌a‌ ‌smaller‌‌development,‌‌including‌‌car‌‌spaces‌‌                   
and‌ ‌turning‌ ‌facility.‌ ‌ 

2‌  ‌Converting‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌site‌ ‌as‌ ‌a‌ ‌permitted‌ ‌development.‌ ‌ 

3‌  ‌Keeping‌ ‌it‌ ‌as‌ ‌it‌ ‌is‌ ‌now,‌ ‌a‌ ‌light‌ ‌commercial‌ ‌site‌ ‌and‌ ‌upgrading‌ ‌it‌ ‌in‌ ‌some‌ ‌way.‌ ‌ 

On‌ ‌a‌ ‌positive‌ ‌note,‌ ‌all‌ ‌these‌ ‌discussions‌ ‌and‌ ‌extra‌ ‌meetings‌ ‌have‌ ‌made‌ ‌us‌‌                         
aware‌‌of‌‌important‌‌concerns,‌‌from‌‌not‌‌only‌‌the‌‌Clifton‌‌Road‌‌Residents,‌‌who‌‌have‌‌                         
front‌ ‌doors‌ ‌opening‌ ‌onto‌ ‌the‌ ‌roadway,‌ ‌but‌ ‌also‌ ‌at‌‌the‌‌Norfolk‌‌Street‌‌end‌‌and‌‌in‌‌                             
general‌ ‌about‌ ‌the‌ ‌weight,‌ ‌width‌ ‌and‌ ‌speed‌ ‌restrictions‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌roadway‌ ‌as‌ ‌a‌‌                         
whole.‌ ‌We‌ ‌are‌ ‌already‌ ‌preparing‌ ‌for‌ ‌appropriate‌ ‌signage‌ ‌etc.‌ ‌to‌ ‌alleviate‌ ‌these‌‌                       
concerns.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Planning‌ ‌Assessment‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

At‌ ‌the‌ ‌last‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Committee‌ ‌Members‌ ‌considered‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌development‌ ‌was‌‌                     
acceptable‌ ‌in‌ ‌principle‌ ‌but‌ ‌determination‌ ‌should‌ ‌be‌ ‌delayed‌ ‌to‌ ‌enable‌ ‌residents‌ ‌to‌‌                       
discuss‌ ‌their‌ ‌concerns‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌developer‌ ‌about‌‌the‌‌proposed‌‌improvements‌‌to‌‌the‌‌                       
unadopted‌ ‌track‌ ‌serving‌ ‌the‌ ‌site.‌ ‌It‌ ‌is‌ ‌clear‌ ‌from‌ ‌this‌ ‌meeting‌ ‌that‌ ‌residents‌ ‌are‌‌                           
extremely‌ ‌worried‌ ‌about‌ ‌any‌ ‌significant‌ ‌improvements‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌track‌ ‌as‌ ‌it‌ ‌may‌‌                       
encourage‌ ‌greater‌ ‌use.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌‌revised‌‌plan‌‌does‌‌not‌‌incorporate‌‌some‌‌limited‌‌turn‌‌on‌‌site‌‌facilities,‌‌although‌‌as‌‌                           
pointed‌ ‌out‌ ‌for‌‌the‌‌residents‌‌this‌‌is‌‌primarily‌‌for‌‌cars‌‌not‌‌delivery‌‌vehicles.‌ ‌Whilst‌‌it‌‌                             
would‌ ‌incorporate‌ ‌turning‌ ‌for‌ ‌small‌ ‌commercial‌ ‌vehicles,‌ ‌larger‌ ‌vehicles‌ ‌such‌ ‌as‌                     
supermarket‌ ‌delivery‌ ‌lorries‌ ‌would‌ ‌need‌ ‌a‌ ‌larger‌ ‌area‌ ‌and‌ ‌would‌ ‌compromise‌‌                     
amenity‌ ‌space‌ ‌for‌ ‌residents.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Having‌ ‌reviewed‌‌the‌‌surfacing‌‌of‌‌the‌‌unadopted‌‌track‌‌and‌‌having‌‌had‌‌regard‌‌to‌‌the‌‌                           
representations‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌residents,‌ ‌your‌ ‌Officers‌ ‌have‌ ‌some‌ ‌sympathy‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌local‌‌                       
residents‌ ‌particularly‌ ‌those‌ ‌that‌ ‌have‌ ‌pedestrian‌ ‌access‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌track.‌ ‌The‌ ‌track‌ ‌is‌‌                         
well‌ ‌compacted‌ ‌and‌ ‌generally‌ ‌flat‌ ‌and‌ ‌easy‌ ‌to‌ ‌walk‌ ‌over.‌ ‌The‌ ‌provision‌ ‌of‌ ‌a‌‌                           
tarmacked‌‌surface‌‌would‌‌encourage‌‌greater‌‌use‌‌which‌‌potentially‌‌affects‌‌pedestrian‌‌                   
safety‌ ‌use‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌access‌‌as‌‌a‌‌cut‌‌through‌‌to‌‌Norfolk‌‌Street.‌ ‌Given‌‌that‌‌the‌‌fallback‌‌                               
position‌ ‌is‌ ‌a‌ ‌conversion‌ ‌scheme‌ ‌under‌ ‌permitted‌ ‌development‌ ‌for‌ ‌3‌ ‌dwellings‌ ‌with‌‌                       
continued‌ ‌commercial‌ ‌use,‌ ‌on‌ ‌balance,‌ ‌your‌ ‌Officers‌ ‌feel‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌development‌ ‌is‌‌                       
acceptable‌ ‌without‌ ‌further‌ ‌improvements‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌access‌ ‌other‌ ‌than‌ ‌repairs‌ ‌to‌ ‌any‌‌                       
damage‌ ‌undertaken‌ ‌during‌ ‌construction‌ ‌work.‌ ‌It‌‌would‌‌be‌‌important‌‌to‌‌ensure‌‌that‌‌                       
the‌ ‌turning‌ ‌area‌ ‌is‌ ‌retained‌ ‌for‌ ‌such‌ ‌purpose‌ ‌to‌ ‌support‌ ‌the‌‌intention‌‌for‌‌a‌‌car‌‌free‌‌                               
development.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

8



‌ 
‌ 

The‌‌discussion‌‌with‌‌the‌‌residents‌‌has‌‌been‌‌beneficial‌‌albeit‌‌no‌‌agreement‌‌reached,‌‌                       
the‌ ‌amended‌ ‌plan‌ ‌has‌ ‌at‌ ‌least‌ ‌provided‌ ‌some‌ ‌limited‌ ‌turn‌ ‌on‌ ‌site‌ ‌facilities‌ ‌and‌‌                           
agreement‌‌has‌‌been‌‌reached‌‌to‌‌provide‌‌an‌‌area‌‌for‌‌existing‌‌bins.‌ ‌The‌‌commitment‌‌                         
to‌‌offer‌‌new‌‌residents‌‌to‌‌contribute‌‌to‌‌any‌‌future‌‌maintenance‌‌of‌‌the‌‌track‌‌has‌‌been‌‌                             
made‌‌by‌‌the‌‌applicants‌‌but‌‌this‌‌would‌‌need‌‌to‌‌be‌‌covered‌‌in‌‌future‌‌leases‌‌and‌‌would‌‌                               
have‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌an‌ ‌agreement‌ ‌outside‌ ‌the‌ ‌planning‌ ‌process.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

Recommendation‌ ‌ 
‌ 

APPROVE‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

subject‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌following‌ ‌conditions‌ ‌:-‌ ‌ 
‌ ‌   

1. Approved‌ ‌Plans‌ ‌ 
2. Full‌ ‌permission‌ ‌ 
3. Submission‌ ‌of‌ ‌details‌ ‌of‌ ‌materials‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌building,‌ ‌external‌ ‌areas‌ ‌and‌ ‌gates‌ ‌ 
4. cycle‌ ‌building‌ ‌provided‌‌ ‌  
5. Construction‌ ‌method‌ ‌statement‌ ‌ 
6. Hours‌ ‌of‌ ‌construction‌ ‌work‌ ‌ 
7. Sprinkler‌ ‌system‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌provided‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with‌ ‌standards‌ ‌ 
8. Surface‌ ‌water‌ ‌drainage‌ ‌details‌ ‌submitted‌ ‌ 
9. Maintenance‌ ‌of‌ ‌surface‌ ‌water‌ ‌drainage‌ ‌system‌ ‌ 
10. Submission‌ ‌of‌ ‌details‌ ‌of‌ ‌risks‌ ‌from‌ ‌contaminates‌ ‌on‌ ‌site‌ ‌ 
11. Refuse‌ ‌and‌ ‌waste‌ ‌facilities‌ ‌provided‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌plans‌ ‌ 
12. Details‌‌of‌‌the‌‌landscaping‌‌of‌‌the‌‌communal‌‌amenity‌‌area‌‌and‌‌the‌‌green‌‌roof‌‌on‌‌                           

the‌ ‌cycle‌ ‌store‌ ‌including‌ ‌maintenance.‌ ‌ 
13. Details‌ ‌of‌ ‌measures‌ ‌of‌ ‌sustainability‌ ‌including‌ ‌use‌ ‌of‌ ‌renewable‌ ‌energy‌ ‌ 
14. A‌‌condition‌‌survey‌‌of‌‌the‌‌access‌‌road‌‌serving‌‌the‌‌site‌‌shall‌‌be‌‌undertaken‌‌and‌‌                           

prior‌ ‌to‌ ‌occupation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌dwellings‌‌hereby‌‌approved‌‌any‌‌damage‌‌undertaken‌‌                     
to‌ ‌the‌ ‌track‌ ‌during‌ ‌construction‌ ‌shall‌ ‌be‌ ‌undertaken‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with‌ ‌a‌‌                       
schedule‌ ‌submitted‌ ‌to‌ ‌and‌ ‌approved‌ ‌in‌ ‌writing‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌LPA.‌ ‌ 

15. The‌‌turning‌‌head‌‌indicated‌‌on‌‌the‌‌submitted‌‌plans‌‌shall‌‌be‌‌retained‌‌at‌‌all‌‌times‌‌                           
and‌ ‌this‌ ‌area‌ ‌shall‌ ‌not‌ ‌be‌ ‌used‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌parking‌ ‌of‌ ‌vehicles.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

‌ 
‌ 

‌ 

‌ 

‌ 

‌   

9



‌ 
‌ 

  ‌‌Appendix‌ ‌-‌ ‌Report‌ ‌from‌ ‌20‌ ‌October‌ ‌2021‌ ‌ 
‌ 

‌ 

‌ 
Not‌ ‌to‌ ‌Scale‌ ‌ ‌   

Reproduced‌ ‌from‌ ‌OS‌ ‌Mapping‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌permission‌ ‌of‌ ‌HMSO‌ ‌©‌ ‌Crown‌ ‌Copyright‌ ‌Licence‌ ‌number‌ ‌LA100024321‌ ‌ 
‌   

Application‌ ‌Number:‌ ‌  AWDM/0550/21‌ ‌  Recommendation‌ ‌-‌ ‌APPROVE‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Site:‌ ‌  Garage‌ ‌Site‌ ‌South‌ ‌Of‌ ‌Heene‌ ‌C‌ ‌Of‌ ‌E‌ ‌Primary‌ ‌School‌‌ 
Norfolk‌ ‌Street,‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌ 

‌ 

Proposal:‌ ‌  Demolition‌ ‌of‌‌existing‌‌storage‌‌buildings.‌‌Construction‌           
of‌‌replacement‌‌building‌‌comprising‌‌4no.‌‌one-bedroom‌           
flats‌ ‌and‌‌2no.‌‌two-bedroom‌‌flats,‌‌bin‌‌and‌‌bike‌‌storage‌                 
and‌ ‌associated‌ ‌landscaping.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Applicant:‌ ‌  BR7‌ ‌Ltd‌ ‌  Ward:‌ ‌Central‌ ‌ 
Agent:‌ ‌  Mr‌ ‌Huw‌ ‌James‌ ‌ECE‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Ltd‌ ‌ 
Case‌ ‌Officer:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Jackie‌ ‌Fox‌ ‌ 

10



‌ 
‌ 

Further‌ ‌Update‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Members‌ ‌will‌ ‌recall‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌application‌ ‌came‌ ‌before‌ ‌the‌ ‌Committee‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌22nd‌‌                         
September‌‌where‌‌it‌‌was‌‌agreed‌‌to‌‌delegate‌‌the‌‌decision‌‌to‌‌Officers‌‌to‌‌await‌‌expiry‌‌of‌‌                             
the‌ ‌consultation‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌revised‌ ‌Certificate‌ ‌and‌ ‌notice‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌newspaper.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

Since‌ ‌the‌‌publication‌‌of‌‌the‌‌notice‌‌a‌‌number‌‌of‌‌representations‌‌have‌‌been‌‌received‌‌                         
including‌‌details‌‌of‌‌rights‌‌of‌‌access/ownership‌‌over‌‌the‌‌access‌‌road.‌ ‌These‌‌are‌‌set‌‌                         
out‌‌in‌‌the‌‌Representation‌‌Section‌‌of‌‌the‌‌report.‌ ‌Given‌‌the‌‌additional‌‌representations‌‌                       
received‌ ‌since‌ ‌the‌ ‌report‌ ‌was‌ ‌considered‌ ‌by‌ ‌Members‌ ‌(during‌ ‌the‌ ‌consultation‌‌                     
period‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌revised‌ ‌Certificate)‌ ‌it‌ ‌has‌ ‌been‌ ‌decided‌ ‌to‌ ‌report‌ ‌the‌ ‌matter‌ ‌back‌ ‌to‌‌                             
Committee.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌application‌ ‌originally‌ ‌came‌ ‌before‌ ‌the‌ ‌Committee‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌25th‌ ‌August.‌ ‌The‌‌                       
application‌ ‌was‌ ‌deferred‌ ‌‌‘to‌ ‌further‌ ‌consider‌ ‌accessibility‌ ‌issues‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌ ‌with‌ ‌a‌‌                         
view‌ ‌to‌ ‌upgrading‌ ‌the‌ ‌private‌ ‌track‌ ‌to‌ ‌ensure‌ ‌it‌ ‌is‌ ‌adequate‌ ‌to‌ ‌serve‌ ‌future‌ ‌users‌‌                             
including‌ ‌wheelchair‌ ‌users.’‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Since‌ ‌the‌ ‌deferral‌ ‌the‌ ‌applicants‌ ‌through‌ ‌their‌ ‌agents‌ ‌have‌ ‌provided‌ ‌a‌ ‌further‌‌                       
supporting‌ ‌statement,‌ ‌served‌ ‌certificate‌ ‌D‌ ‌and‌ ‌placed‌ ‌an‌ ‌advertisement‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌‌                     
newspaper‌ ‌and‌ ‌provided‌ ‌a‌ ‌letter‌ ‌of‌ ‌intent‌  ‌to‌ ‌carry‌ ‌out‌ ‌work.‌ ‌  
‌ 

Supporting‌ ‌Statement‌.‌ ‌ ‌   
‌ 

The‌‌full‌‌statement‌‌is‌‌attached‌‌below.‌‌It‌‌sets‌‌out‌‌that‌‌every‌‌effort‌‌to‌‌try‌‌and‌‌identify‌‌the‌‌                                 
owner‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌access‌ ‌has‌ ‌been‌ ‌pursued‌ ‌and‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌land‌ ‌would‌ ‌consist‌ ‌of‌ ‌private‌‌                             
land.‌ ‌They‌‌will‌‌continue‌‌to‌‌try‌‌and‌‌identify‌‌the‌‌owner.‌‌They‌‌reiterate‌‌that‌‌the‌‌access‌‌                             
road‌ ‌would‌ ‌only‌ ‌be‌ ‌used‌ ‌by‌ ‌pedestrians‌ ‌and‌ ‌cyclists‌ ‌associated‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌‌                       
development‌ ‌and‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌car‌ ‌free‌ ‌and‌ ‌meets‌ ‌strategic‌ ‌objective‌ ‌7‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Core‌‌                           
Strategy.‌ ‌They‌ ‌indicate‌ ‌that‌ ‌there‌ ‌are‌ ‌no‌ ‌planning‌ ‌requirements‌ ‌for‌ ‌wheelchair‌‌                     
accessible‌ ‌housing,‌ ‌particularly‌‌on‌‌this‌‌scale‌‌of‌‌development.‌‌They‌‌confirm‌‌that‌‌the‌‌                       
development‌ ‌would‌ ‌meet‌ ‌with‌ ‌building‌ ‌regulations‌ ‌M4(2)‌ ‌category‌ ‌1‌ ‌visitable‌‌                   
dwellings‌ ‌standard‌ ‌.‌ ‌They‌ ‌point‌ ‌out‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌access‌ ‌is‌ ‌currently‌ ‌well‌ ‌used‌ ‌by‌‌                           
pedestrians‌ ‌and‌ ‌cyclists‌ ‌and‌ ‌WSCC‌ ‌highways‌ ‌have‌ ‌not‌ ‌raised‌ ‌any‌ ‌objections.‌‌                     
Having‌ ‌taken‌ ‌legal‌ ‌advice‌ ‌they‌‌indicate‌‌that‌‌the‌‌owner‌‌of‌‌the‌‌land‌‌will‌‌ultimately‌‌be‌‌                             
responsible‌ ‌for‌ ‌maintaining‌ ‌a‌ ‌safe‌ ‌route‌ ‌along‌ ‌the‌ ‌access‌ ‌road.‌ ‌They‌ ‌indicate‌ ‌that‌‌                         
the‌ ‌applicant‌ ‌has‌ ‌already‌ ‌been‌ ‌carrying‌ ‌out‌ ‌informal‌ ‌maintenance‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌‌                       
access‌ ‌including‌ ‌clearing‌ ‌overgrown‌ ‌bushes.‌ ‌It‌ ‌is‌ ‌stated‌ ‌that‌ ‌to‌ ‌attach‌ ‌a‌ ‌grampian‌‌                         
style‌ ‌planning‌ ‌condition‌ ‌to‌ ‌secure‌ ‌works‌ ‌to‌‌the‌‌access‌‌would‌‌not‌‌meet‌‌the‌‌relevant‌‌                           
tests‌ ‌due‌ ‌the‌ ‌ownership‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌land.‌‌ ‌  

‌ 
Certificate‌ ‌of‌ ‌Ownership‌ ‌ 

‌ 
An‌ ‌amended‌ ‌certificate‌ ‌of‌ ‌ownership‌ ‌has‌ ‌been‌ ‌received‌ ‌(Certificate‌ ‌D)‌ ‌to‌ ‌indicate‌‌                       
that‌‌the‌‌applicant‌‌does‌‌not‌‌own‌‌all‌‌the‌‌land‌‌to‌‌which‌‌the‌‌application‌‌relates‌‌and‌‌does‌‌                               
not‌‌know‌‌the‌‌names‌‌and‌‌addresses‌‌of‌‌any‌‌of‌‌the‌‌owners.‌‌Certificate‌‌D‌‌requires‌‌the‌‌                             
applicant‌ ‌to‌ ‌publish‌ ‌in‌ ‌a‌ ‌local‌ ‌newspaper.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

The‌ ‌notice‌ ‌was‌ ‌published‌‌in‌‌the‌‌Worthing‌‌Herald‌‌on‌‌the‌‌9th‌‌September.‌‌The‌‌notice‌‌                           
expired‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌30th‌ ‌September.‌‌ ‌  

11



‌ 
‌ 

‌ 
Letter‌ ‌of‌ ‌Intent‌ ‌ 

‌ 
A‌ ‌letter‌ ‌of‌ ‌intent‌ ‌that‌ ‌indicates‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌applicants‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌willing‌ ‌to‌ ‌ensure‌ ‌that‌‌                             
remedial‌‌repairs‌‌required‌‌due‌‌to‌‌the‌‌development‌‌would‌‌be‌‌carried‌‌out‌‌by‌‌applicants‌‌                         
and‌ ‌the‌ ‌road‌ ‌surface‌ ‌improved‌ ‌to‌ ‌make‌ ‌access‌ ‌easier‌ ‌for‌ ‌all‌.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Access‌ ‌Group‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Following‌‌discussion‌‌with‌‌the‌‌Head‌‌of‌ ‌Building‌‌Control,‌‌it‌‌has‌‌been‌‌established‌‌that‌‌                         
there‌‌is‌‌not‌‌currently‌‌an‌‌access‌‌group‌‌in‌‌existence‌‌for‌‌Worthing‌‌that‌‌can‌‌look‌‌at‌‌the‌‌                               
access‌ ‌track‌ ‌and‌ ‌provide‌ ‌advice‌ ‌from‌ ‌a‌ ‌disabled‌ ‌user's‌ ‌point‌ ‌of‌ ‌view.‌‌ ‌  

‌ 
Site‌ ‌and‌ ‌Surroundings‌ ‌ ‌   

Norfolk‌‌Street‌‌Garages‌‌comprise‌‌a‌‌U-shaped‌‌group‌‌of‌‌buildings‌‌on‌‌a‌‌site‌‌located‌‌to‌‌                           
the‌ ‌east‌ ‌of‌ ‌Norfolk‌ ‌Street,‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌west‌ ‌of‌ ‌Clifton‌ ‌Road‌ ‌and‌ ‌north‌ ‌of‌ ‌properties‌ ‌off‌‌                               
Cobden‌ ‌Road.‌ ‌To‌ ‌the‌ ‌north‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌ ‌is‌ ‌Heene‌ ‌Primary‌ ‌School.‌ ‌ 

The‌‌site‌‌is‌‌accessed‌‌via‌‌a‌‌private‌‌unmade‌‌road‌‌which‌‌links‌‌Norfolk‌‌Street‌‌and‌‌Clifton‌‌                             
Road.‌‌ ‌  

The‌ ‌buildings‌ ‌comprise‌ ‌two‌ ‌storey‌ ‌at‌‌either‌‌end‌‌of‌‌the‌‌U-shape‌‌with‌‌flat‌‌roof‌‌linked‌‌                             
by‌ ‌single‌ ‌storey‌ ‌flat‌ ‌roof‌ ‌buildings.‌ ‌The‌ ‌buildings‌ ‌are‌ ‌partly‌ ‌rendered‌ ‌and‌ ‌partly‌‌                         
boarded.‌‌The‌‌buildings‌‌are‌‌characterised‌‌by‌‌garage‌‌doors‌‌at‌‌ground‌‌floor‌‌facing‌‌into‌‌                         
the‌ ‌site‌ ‌and‌ ‌windows‌ ‌at‌ ‌first‌ ‌floor.‌ ‌There‌ ‌is‌ ‌an‌ ‌external‌ ‌staircase‌ ‌to‌‌the‌‌side‌‌of‌‌the‌‌                                 
eastern‌ ‌two‌ ‌storey‌ ‌element‌ ‌giving‌ ‌access‌ ‌to‌ ‌part‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌first‌ ‌floor.‌ ‌ 

Units‌ ‌1,‌ ‌2,‌ ‌3,‌ ‌4,‌ ‌9‌ ‌and‌ ‌14‌ ‌have‌ ‌historically‌ ‌been‌ ‌used‌ ‌as‌ ‌single‌ ‌lock-up‌ ‌garages.‌‌                               
Units‌ ‌5‌ ‌-7‌ ‌and‌ ‌13‌ ‌were‌ ‌used‌ ‌as‌ ‌workshops.‌ ‌Unit‌ ‌8‌ ‌as‌ ‌an‌ ‌office‌‌and‌‌unit‌‌10,‌‌11-12‌‌                                   
and‌ ‌15-16‌ ‌were‌ ‌used‌ ‌for‌ ‌storage.‌ ‌The‌ ‌first‌ ‌floor‌‌units‌‌above‌‌1-4‌‌were‌‌in‌‌use‌‌as‌‌an‌‌                                 
office‌ ‌and‌ ‌store‌ ‌room.‌‌ ‌  

The‌ ‌applicant's‌ ‌agent‌ ‌indicates‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌buildings‌ ‌are‌ ‌in‌ ‌a‌ ‌poor‌ ‌state‌ ‌of‌ ‌repair.‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌site‌ ‌is‌‌within‌‌a‌‌primarily‌‌residential‌‌area‌‌characterised‌‌by‌‌terraced‌‌housing‌‌and‌‌                         
flats.‌ ‌Cobden‌ ‌Road‌ ‌immediately‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌south‌‌is‌‌characterised‌‌at‌‌its‌‌western‌‌end‌‌by‌‌                           
two‌ ‌and‌ ‌three‌ ‌storey‌ ‌terraced‌ ‌houses‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌back‌ ‌edge‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌pavement.‌ ‌The‌‌                           
properties‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌south‌ ‌comprise‌ ‌terraced‌ ‌houses‌ ‌off‌ ‌Cobden‌ ‌Road,‌ ‌they‌ ‌have‌‌                       
relatively‌ ‌short‌ ‌rear‌ ‌gardens‌ ‌which‌ ‌are‌ ‌enclosed‌ ‌by‌ ‌fence/wall‌ ‌along‌ ‌the‌ ‌boundary‌‌                       
with‌ ‌the‌ ‌access‌ ‌road.‌ ‌Some‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌properties‌ ‌have‌ ‌first‌ ‌floor‌ ‌outside‌ ‌space‌ ‌ 
‌ 

On‌ ‌its‌ ‌western‌ ‌boundary‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌built‌ ‌form‌ ‌abuts‌ ‌directly‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌rear‌ ‌access‌‌                           
and‌ ‌gardens‌ ‌of‌ ‌1‌ ‌–‌ ‌5‌ ‌Norfolk‌ ‌Street.‌ ‌The‌ ‌existing‌ ‌buildings‌ ‌present‌ ‌a‌ ‌number‌ ‌of‌‌                             
original‌ ‌wall‌ ‌openings‌ ‌at‌ ‌ground‌ ‌floor‌ ‌level‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌boundary‌ ‌facing‌ ‌west.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

On‌ ‌its‌‌northern‌‌boundary‌‌the‌‌site‌‌and‌‌existing‌‌built‌‌form‌‌abuts‌‌directly‌‌with‌‌a‌‌raised‌‌                             
area‌‌of‌‌the‌‌School‌‌Campus‌‌grounds‌‌in‌‌the‌‌form‌‌of‌‌retained‌‌ground‌‌adjacent‌‌the‌‌site‌‌                             
and‌ ‌next‌ ‌to‌ ‌a‌ ‌lower‌ ‌open‌ ‌activity‌ ‌area‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌school.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

12



‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌existing‌ ‌buildings‌ ‌present‌ ‌a‌ ‌number‌ ‌of‌ ‌original‌ ‌wall‌ ‌openings‌ ‌at‌ ‌ground‌ ‌floor‌‌                         
level‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌boundary‌ ‌facing‌ ‌north.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

On‌ ‌its‌ ‌eastern‌ ‌boundary‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌ ‌and‌ ‌existing‌‌built‌‌form‌‌abuts‌‌directly‌‌with‌‌a‌‌raised‌‌                             
area‌‌of‌‌the‌‌School‌‌Campus‌‌grounds‌‌in‌‌the‌‌form‌‌of‌‌ground‌‌retained‌‌adjacent‌‌the‌‌site‌‌                             
by‌ ‌a‌ ‌lower-level‌ ‌classroom‌ ‌building‌ ‌towards‌ ‌the‌ ‌northern‌ ‌end‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌boundary.‌ ‌A‌‌                         
higher-level‌ ‌electrical‌ ‌substation‌ ‌enclosure‌ ‌and‌ ‌its‌ ‌hardstanding‌ ‌access‌ ‌onto‌ ‌the‌‌                   
service‌ ‌road‌ ‌towards‌ ‌the‌ ‌southern‌ ‌end‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌boundary.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Victoria‌ ‌Park‌ ‌lies‌ ‌just‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌west‌ ‌with‌ ‌a‌ ‌large‌ ‌open‌ ‌public‌ ‌amenity‌ ‌space‌ ‌and‌‌                             
children’s‌ ‌play‌ ‌facility‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Proposal‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

The‌ ‌application,‌ ‌which‌ ‌has‌ ‌been‌ ‌amended‌ ‌since‌ ‌originally‌‌submitted,‌‌proposes‌‌the‌‌                     
demolition‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌buildings‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌erection‌ ‌of‌ ‌a‌ ‌replacement‌ ‌building‌‌                       
comprising‌ ‌4‌ ‌one‌ ‌bedroom‌ ‌flats‌ ‌and‌ ‌2‌ ‌two‌ ‌bedroom‌ ‌flats.‌ ‌The‌ ‌one‌ ‌bedroom‌ ‌flats‌‌                           
would‌ ‌be‌ ‌50sqm‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌two‌ ‌bedroom‌ ‌flats‌ ‌70sqm.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌replacement‌ ‌building‌ ‌uses‌ ‌primarily‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌footprint‌ ‌and‌ ‌proposes‌ ‌a‌ ‌new‌‌                       
building‌ ‌as‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌buildings‌ ‌are‌ ‌in‌ ‌a‌ ‌poor‌ ‌state‌ ‌of‌ ‌repair.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

In‌ ‌terms‌ ‌of‌ ‌materials,‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌building‌ ‌would‌ ‌incorporate‌ ‌a‌ ‌sandfaced‌ ‌yellow‌‌                       
multi‌ ‌coloured‌ ‌stock,‌ ‌sandfaced‌ ‌grey‌ ‌multicoloured‌ ‌stock‌ ‌with‌ ‌dark‌ ‌grey‌ ‌smooth‌‌                     
detail‌ ‌brick.‌‌ ‌  
In‌ ‌terms‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌roof‌ ‌and‌ ‌windows,‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌building‌ ‌would‌ ‌consist‌ ‌of‌ ‌a‌ ‌grey‌‌                             
single‌ ‌ply‌ ‌high‌ ‌performance‌ ‌PVC‌ ‌flat‌ ‌roof‌ ‌membrane‌ ‌and‌ ‌grey‌ ‌aluminium‌ ‌faced‌‌                       
timber‌ ‌composite‌ ‌windows.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌new‌ ‌building‌ ‌would‌ ‌incorporate‌ ‌ventilating‌ ‌rooflights‌ ‌to‌ ‌maximise‌ ‌light‌ ‌and‌‌                     
provide‌ ‌ventilation.‌ 
‌ 

The‌‌Applicant‌‌has‌‌confirmed‌‌that‌‌they‌‌would‌‌be‌‌happy‌‌to‌‌offer‌‌a‌‌full‌‌sprinkler‌‌system‌‌                             
for‌ ‌each‌ ‌residential‌ ‌unit.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

There‌‌is‌‌no‌‌car‌‌parking‌‌on‌‌site.‌‌The‌‌scheme‌‌provides‌‌for‌‌covered‌‌cycle‌‌parking‌‌in‌‌a‌‌                               
separate‌‌building‌‌in‌‌the‌‌centre‌‌of‌‌the‌‌site‌‌which‌‌would‌‌be‌‌wooden‌‌clad‌‌with‌‌a‌‌sedum‌‌                               
roof.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

There‌‌would‌‌be‌‌a‌‌central‌‌courtyard‌‌which‌‌all‌‌properties‌‌would‌‌face‌‌into‌‌enclosed‌‌with‌‌                           
railing‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌access‌ ‌road.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

The‌ ‌bin‌ ‌stores‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌located‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌southern‌ ‌elevation‌‌adjacent‌‌to‌‌the‌‌access‌‌                           
road.‌ ‌ 

‌   

13



‌ 
‌ 

‌ 
‌ 

‌ 
‌ 

Relevant‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌History‌‌ ‌  

NOTICE/0007/19‌ ‌-‌ ‌Application‌ ‌for‌ ‌permitted‌ ‌development‌ ‌for‌ ‌prior‌ ‌approval‌ ‌for‌‌                   
change‌ ‌of‌ ‌use‌ ‌of‌ ‌storage‌ ‌units‌ ‌1,‌ ‌2,‌ ‌3,‌ ‌4,‌ ‌9,‌ ‌10,‌ ‌11‌ ‌and‌‌12‌‌(B‌‌8‌‌use‌‌class)‌‌to‌‌2no.‌‌                                         
residential‌ ‌units‌ ‌-‌ ‌Prior‌ ‌Approval‌ ‌Required‌ ‌and‌ ‌Granted‌ ‌ ‌   

14



‌ 
‌ 

NOTICE/0016/20‌ ‌-‌ ‌Application‌ ‌for‌ ‌Prior‌ ‌Approval‌ ‌of‌‌Proposed‌‌Change‌‌of‌‌use‌‌of‌‌an‌‌                         
Office‌‌(Use‌‌Class‌‌B1a)‌‌to‌‌form‌‌1no,‌‌residential‌‌unit‌‌(Use‌‌Class‌‌C3)‌‌at‌‌first‌‌floor‌‌level‌‌                               
-‌ ‌Prior‌ ‌Approval‌ ‌Required‌ ‌and‌ ‌Granted.‌ ‌ 

Consultations‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

West‌ ‌Sussex‌ ‌County‌ ‌Council:‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

Access‌ ‌and‌ ‌Visibility‌ ‌ 
No‌ ‌vehicular‌ ‌access‌ ‌is‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌replacement‌ ‌building.‌ ‌Access‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌‌                       
maintained‌ ‌highway‌ ‌network‌ ‌can‌ ‌be‌ ‌via‌ ‌existing‌ ‌accesses‌ ‌on‌ ‌Norfolk‌ ‌Street‌ ‌or‌‌                       
Clifton‌ ‌Road,‌ ‌both‌ ‌unclassified‌ ‌roads‌ ‌subject‌ ‌to‌ ‌a‌ ‌speed‌ ‌restriction‌ ‌of‌ ‌30‌ ‌mph.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

From‌ ‌inspection‌ ‌of‌ ‌local‌ ‌mapping,‌ ‌there‌ ‌are‌ ‌no‌ ‌apparent‌ ‌visibility‌ ‌issues‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌‌                         
existing‌ ‌points‌ ‌of‌ ‌access‌ ‌onto‌ ‌Norfolk‌ ‌Street‌ ‌or‌ ‌Clifton‌ ‌Road.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

An‌‌inspection‌‌of‌‌collision‌‌data‌‌provided‌‌to‌‌WSCC‌‌by‌‌Sussex‌‌Police‌‌from‌‌a‌‌period‌‌of‌‌                             
the‌ ‌last‌ ‌five‌ ‌years‌ ‌reveals‌ ‌no‌ ‌recorded‌ ‌injury‌ ‌accidents‌ ‌attributed‌ ‌to‌ ‌road‌ ‌layout‌‌                         
within‌‌the‌‌vicinity‌‌of‌‌the‌‌site.‌‌Therefore,‌‌there‌‌is‌‌no‌‌evidence‌‌to‌‌suggest‌‌the‌‌existing‌‌                             
accesses‌ ‌are‌ ‌operating‌ ‌unsafely,‌ ‌or‌‌that‌‌the‌‌proposal‌‌would‌‌exacerbate‌‌an‌‌existing‌‌                       
safety‌ ‌concern.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Servicing‌ ‌ 
The‌‌applicant‌‌should‌‌be‌‌aware‌‌that‌‌safe‌‌and‌‌suitable‌‌access‌‌for‌‌a‌‌fire‌‌appliance‌‌may‌‌                             
need‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌demonstrated‌ ‌in‌ ‌order‌‌to‌‌meet‌‌building‌‌regulations.‌‌The‌‌minimum‌‌width‌‌                         
for‌ ‌sufficient‌ ‌access‌ ‌for‌ ‌fire‌ ‌appliances‌ ‌is‌ ‌3.7m,‌ ‌although‌ ‌this‌ ‌can‌ ‌be‌ ‌reduced‌ ‌to‌‌                           
2.75m‌ ‌over‌ ‌short‌ ‌distances‌ ‌as‌ ‌long‌ ‌as‌‌the‌‌3.7m‌‌can‌‌be‌‌provided‌‌within‌‌45m‌‌of‌‌the‌‌                               
property.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Additionally,‌ ‌Manual‌ ‌for‌ ‌Streets‌‌states‌‌that‌‌waste‌‌collection‌‌vehicles‌‌should‌‌be‌‌able‌‌                       
to‌ ‌access‌ ‌within‌ ‌25m‌‌of‌‌the‌‌bin‌‌storage‌‌point‌‌and‌‌that‌‌residents‌‌should‌‌not‌‌have‌‌to‌‌                               
carry‌ ‌bins‌ ‌more‌ ‌than‌ ‌30m‌ ‌where‌ ‌at‌ ‌all‌ ‌practical,‌ ‌although‌ ‌this‌ ‌is‌ ‌an‌ ‌amenity‌ ‌issue.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Whilst‌ ‌servicing‌ ‌arrangements‌ ‌are‌ ‌not‌ ‌strictly‌ ‌speaking‌ ‌a‌ ‌material‌ ‌planning‌‌                   
consideration,‌ ‌the‌ ‌applicant‌ ‌is‌ ‌encouraged‌ ‌to‌ ‌consider‌ ‌servicing‌ ‌and‌ ‌emergency‌‌                   
access‌ ‌arrangements‌ ‌at‌ ‌the‌ ‌planning‌ ‌stage.‌ 
‌ 

Parking‌ ‌ 
The‌‌applicant‌‌proposes‌‌a‌‌nil‌‌car‌‌parking‌‌provision‌‌for‌‌this‌‌development.‌‌The‌‌WSCC‌‌                         
Car‌ ‌Parking‌ ‌Demand‌ ‌Calculator‌ ‌indicates‌ ‌that‌ ‌a‌ ‌development‌ ‌of‌ ‌this‌ ‌size‌ ‌in‌ ‌this‌‌                         
location‌ ‌would‌ ‌require‌ ‌at‌ ‌least‌ ‌six‌ ‌car‌ ‌parking‌ ‌spaces.‌‌Therefore,‌‌vehicular‌‌parking‌‌                       
would‌ ‌have‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌accommodated‌ ‌on-street.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Whilst‌ ‌on-street‌ ‌parking‌ ‌is‌ ‌limited‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌area,‌ ‌there‌ ‌are‌ ‌comprehensive‌ ‌parking‌‌                       
restrictions‌ ‌in‌ ‌place‌ ‌prohibiting‌ ‌vehicles‌ ‌from‌ ‌parking‌ ‌in‌ ‌places‌ ‌that‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌a‌‌                         
detriment‌ ‌to‌ ‌highway‌ ‌safety.‌ ‌The‌ ‌LHA‌ ‌does‌ ‌not‌ ‌anticipate‌‌that‌‌the‌‌proposed‌‌nil‌‌car‌‌                           
parking‌ ‌provision‌ ‌would‌ ‌result‌ ‌in‌ ‌a‌ ‌severe‌ ‌highway‌ ‌safety‌ ‌concern.‌ ‌However,‌ ‌the‌‌                       
LHA‌ ‌advises‌ ‌the‌ ‌LPA‌ ‌to‌ ‌consider‌ ‌the‌ ‌potential‌ ‌impacts‌ ‌of‌ ‌a‌ ‌small‌ ‌increase‌ ‌in‌‌                           
on-street‌ ‌parking‌‌demand‌‌from‌‌an‌‌amenity‌‌point‌‌of‌‌view.‌‌Weight‌‌is‌‌given‌‌to‌‌the‌‌fact‌‌                             
the‌ ‌site‌ ‌is‌ ‌situated‌ ‌in‌ ‌a‌ ‌sustainable‌ ‌location.‌ ‌ 

15



‌ 
‌ 

‌ 
The‌‌applicant‌‌has‌‌demonstrated‌‌a‌‌cycle‌‌parking‌‌store,‌‌with‌‌provision‌‌for‌‌ten‌‌cycles.‌‌                         
Cycling‌ ‌is‌ ‌a‌‌viable‌‌option‌‌in‌‌the‌‌area‌‌and‌‌the‌‌inclusion‌‌of‌‌secure‌‌and‌‌covered‌‌cycle‌‌                               
storage‌ ‌will‌ ‌help‌ ‌promote‌ ‌the‌ ‌use‌ ‌of‌ ‌sustainable‌ ‌transport‌ ‌methods.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Sustainability‌ ‌ 
The‌‌site‌‌is‌‌located‌‌in‌‌a‌‌sustainable‌‌location‌‌within‌‌walking/cycle‌‌distance‌‌of‌‌schools,‌‌                         
shops‌ ‌and‌ ‌other‌ ‌amenities‌ ‌and‌ ‌services.‌ ‌The‌ ‌site‌ ‌is‌ ‌also‌ ‌well‌ ‌connected‌ ‌by‌ ‌public‌‌                           
transport.‌‌Worthing‌‌Train‌‌Station‌‌is‌‌located‌‌approximately‌‌600m‌‌northeast‌‌of‌‌the‌‌site.‌‌                       
Regular‌ ‌bus‌ ‌connections‌ ‌can‌ ‌be‌ ‌caught‌ ‌from‌ ‌nearby‌ ‌roads‌ ‌also‌ ‌(A259‌ ‌and‌ ‌A2031).‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Conclusion‌ ‌ 
The‌‌LHA‌‌does‌‌not‌‌consider‌‌that‌‌this‌‌proposal‌‌would‌‌have‌‌an‌‌unacceptable‌‌impact‌‌on‌‌                           
highway‌ ‌safety‌ ‌or‌ ‌result‌ ‌in‌ ‌‘severe’‌ ‌cumulative‌ ‌impacts‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌operation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌                         
highway‌ ‌network,‌ ‌therefore‌ ‌is‌ ‌not‌ ‌contrary‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌National‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Policy‌‌                     
Framework‌ ‌(paragraph‌ ‌109),‌ ‌and‌ ‌that‌ ‌there‌ ‌are‌ ‌no‌ ‌transport‌ ‌grounds‌ ‌to‌ ‌resist‌ ‌the‌‌                         
proposal.‌ ‌ 
If‌ ‌the‌ ‌LPA‌ ‌are‌ ‌minded‌ ‌to‌ ‌approve‌ ‌the‌‌application,‌‌the‌‌following‌‌condition‌‌should‌‌be‌‌                           
applied:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Cycle‌ ‌parking‌ ‌ 
No‌ ‌part‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌development‌ ‌shall‌ ‌be‌ ‌first‌ ‌occupied‌ ‌until‌ ‌covered‌ ‌and‌ ‌secure‌ ‌cycle‌‌                           
parking‌ ‌spaces‌ ‌have‌ ‌been‌ ‌provided‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with‌ ‌plans‌ ‌and‌ ‌details‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌‌                         
submitted‌ ‌to‌ ‌and‌ ‌approved‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Authority.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Reason:‌‌To‌‌provide‌‌alternative‌‌travel‌‌options‌‌to‌‌the‌‌use‌‌of‌‌the‌‌car‌‌in‌‌accordance‌‌with‌‌                             
current‌ ‌sustainable‌ ‌transport‌ ‌policies.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Adur‌ ‌&‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌Councils:‌ ‌ ‌   
‌ 

The‌ ‌‌Environmental‌ ‌Health‌‌ ‌officer‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Public‌ ‌Health‌ ‌ 
‌ 

I‌‌would‌‌recommend‌‌the‌‌precautionary‌‌contaminated‌‌land‌‌condition‌‌in‌‌case‌‌they‌‌have‌‌                       
to‌ ‌break‌ ‌ground‌ ‌to‌ ‌lay‌ ‌drainage.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

PSH‌ ‌may‌‌have‌‌something‌‌to‌‌say‌‌about‌‌the‌‌position‌‌of‌‌the‌‌first‌‌floor‌‌flat's‌‌bedrooms‌‌                             
to‌ ‌the‌ ‌kitchen,‌ ‌with‌ ‌regards‌ ‌to‌ ‌means‌ ‌of‌ ‌escape‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌event‌ ‌of‌ ‌a‌ ‌fire.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Private‌ ‌Sector‌ ‌Housing‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌Private‌ ‌Sector‌ ‌Housing‌ ‌team‌ ‌of‌ ‌Adur‌ ‌&‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌Councils‌ ‌have‌‌identified‌‌that‌‌                         
some‌‌aspects‌‌of‌‌the‌‌development‌‌may‌‌result‌‌in‌‌hazards‌‌that‌‌require‌‌action‌‌under‌‌the‌‌                           
Housing‌‌Act‌‌2004.‌‌Typical‌‌hazards‌‌can‌‌include‌‌‘inner’‌‌rooms‌‌(where‌‌the‌‌only‌‌means‌‌                         
of‌ ‌escape‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌case‌ ‌of‌ ‌fire‌ ‌is‌ ‌through‌ ‌another‌ ‌risk‌ ‌room‌ ‌i.e.‌ ‌bedroom,‌ ‌living‌‌                             
room,kitchen,‌‌etc.)‌‌or‌‌where‌‌there‌‌are‌‌inadequate‌‌windows‌‌or‌‌outlook‌‌from‌‌habitable‌‌                       
rooms.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

16



‌ 
‌ 

In‌‌this‌‌case,‌‌all‌‌the‌‌bedrooms‌‌in‌‌the‌‌southern‌‌flats‌‌are‌‌inner‌‌rooms.‌‌Whilst‌‌the‌‌hazard‌‌                               
can‌ ‌be‌ ‌mitigated‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌ground‌ ‌floor‌ ‌through‌ ‌the‌ ‌use‌ ‌of‌ ‌fire‌ ‌escape‌ ‌windows,‌ ‌the‌‌                             
PSH‌ ‌team‌ ‌do‌ ‌not‌ ‌accept‌ ‌fire‌ ‌escape‌ ‌windows‌ ‌at‌ ‌first‌ ‌floor‌ ‌level‌ ‌as‌ ‌meeting‌ ‌the‌‌                             
Housing‌‌Act2004‌‌and‌‌the‌‌layout‌‌does‌‌not‌‌appear‌‌to‌‌meet‌‌the‌‌basic‌‌requirements‌‌to‌‌                           
allow‌ ‌the‌ ‌use‌ ‌of‌ ‌fire‌ ‌suppression.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Compliance‌ ‌with‌ ‌Building‌ ‌Regulations‌ ‌will‌ ‌not‌ ‌necessarily‌ ‌address‌ ‌the‌ ‌hazards‌‌                   
identified‌‌and‌‌you‌‌should‌‌contact‌‌the‌‌Private‌‌Sector‌‌Housing‌‌team‌‌to‌‌confirm‌‌that‌‌the‌‌                           
layout‌‌of‌‌the‌‌property‌‌is‌‌acceptable‌‌prior‌‌to‌‌commencing‌‌the‌‌development‌‌in‌‌order‌‌to‌‌                           
avoid‌ ‌the‌ ‌need‌ ‌for‌ ‌any‌ ‌formal‌ ‌intervention‌ ‌or‌ ‌the‌ ‌requirement‌ ‌of‌ ‌retrospective‌ ‌works‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌‌Waste‌ ‌Services‌‌ ‌‌Officer‌ ‌(provided‌ ‌as‌ ‌a‌ ‌response‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌agent)‌ ‌ 
‌ 

After‌‌having‌‌seen‌‌the‌‌proposed‌‌plans‌‌and‌‌assessed‌‌the‌‌area‌‌along‌‌with‌‌the‌‌fact‌‌that‌‌                             
each‌‌property‌‌will‌‌be‌‌issued‌‌their‌‌own‌‌set‌‌of‌‌bins‌‌this‌‌plan‌‌is‌‌acceptable‌‌to‌‌the‌‌waste‌‌                                 
and‌ ‌cleansing‌ ‌department.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Please‌ ‌note:‌ ‌The‌ ‌space‌ ‌allocated‌ ‌to‌ ‌housing/storing‌ ‌the‌ ‌bins‌ ‌may‌ ‌need‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌‌                         
enlarged‌ ‌slightly‌ ‌so‌ ‌as‌ ‌to‌ ‌fit‌ ‌the‌ ‌required‌ ‌number‌ ‌and‌ ‌size‌ ‌of‌ ‌bins‌ ‌per‌ ‌property.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Each‌‌flat‌‌will‌‌be‌‌issued:‌‌1‌‌x‌‌140‌‌litre‌‌refuse‌‌bin‌‌(1054mm‌‌H,‌‌480mm‌‌W,‌‌560mm‌‌D)‌‌&‌‌                                   
1‌ ‌x‌ ‌240‌ ‌litre‌ ‌recycling‌ ‌bin‌ ‌(1070mm‌ ‌H,‌ ‌580mm‌ ‌W,‌ ‌740mm‌ ‌D)‌ ‌so‌ ‌long‌ ‌as‌ ‌space‌‌                               
allows‌ ‌the‌ ‌size‌ ‌of‌ ‌bins‌ ‌indicated‌ ‌this‌ ‌should‌ ‌be‌ ‌fine.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Also‌‌the‌‌residents‌‌will‌‌not‌‌be‌‌required‌‌to‌‌present‌‌the‌‌bins‌‌for‌‌collection,‌‌our‌‌crews‌‌will‌‌                               
access‌ ‌and‌ ‌service‌ ‌the‌ ‌bins‌ ‌via‌ ‌Norfolk‌ ‌street.‌ ‌This‌ ‌is‌ ‌a‌ ‌change‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌previous‌‌                             
instruction.‌ ‌This‌ ‌is‌ ‌due‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌limited‌ ‌space‌ ‌located‌ ‌at‌ ‌the‌ ‌entrance‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌service‌‌                             
road‌ ‌and‌‌would‌‌result‌‌in‌‌either‌‌blocking‌‌the‌‌service‌‌road‌‌with‌‌bins‌‌on‌‌collection‌‌day‌‌                             
or‌‌has‌‌the‌‌potential‌‌to‌‌upset‌‌existing‌‌residents‌‌in‌‌the‌‌location,‌‌having‌‌many‌‌bins‌‌out‌‌                             
at‌ ‌one‌ ‌point‌ ‌for‌ ‌collection‌ ‌infront‌ ‌or‌ ‌near‌ ‌their‌ ‌property.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌Drainage‌ ‌Engineer‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Original‌ ‌comments:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Flood‌ ‌risk-‌‌the‌‌proposed‌‌site‌‌lies‌‌within‌‌flood‌‌zone‌‌1,‌‌and‌‌is‌‌not‌‌shown‌‌to‌‌be‌‌at‌‌risk‌‌                                   
from‌ ‌surface‌ ‌water‌ ‌flooding.‌ ‌We‌ ‌therefore‌ ‌have‌ ‌no‌ ‌objections‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposals‌ ‌on‌‌                         
flood‌ ‌risk‌ ‌grounds.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Surface‌ ‌water‌ ‌drainage-‌ ‌the‌ ‌application‌ ‌form‌ ‌indicates‌ ‌that‌ ‌it‌ ‌is‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌to‌‌                       
discharge‌ ‌surface‌ ‌water‌ ‌to‌ ‌sewer.‌ ‌Infiltration‌ ‌must‌ ‌first‌ ‌be‌ ‌fully‌ ‌investigated.‌ ‌There‌‌                       
are‌ ‌no‌ ‌surface‌ ‌water‌ ‌sewers‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌immediate‌ ‌vicinity‌ ‌of‌‌this‌‌site,‌‌discharge‌‌to‌‌foul‌‌                             
sewer‌‌is‌‌not‌‌acceptable.‌‌Given‌‌the‌‌relatively‌‌dense‌‌development‌‌proposals‌‌we‌‌wish‌‌                       
to‌‌raise‌‌a‌‌holding‌‌objection.‌‌It‌‌must‌‌be‌‌evidenced‌‌that‌‌there‌‌is‌‌room‌‌for‌‌surface‌‌water‌‌                               
drainage‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌layout.‌ ‌If‌ ‌this‌ ‌information‌ ‌is‌ ‌not‌ ‌provided‌ ‌prior‌ ‌to‌‌                         
determination‌ ‌it‌ ‌is‌ ‌likely‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌layout‌ ‌proposals‌ ‌will‌ ‌unduly‌ ‌bias‌ ‌the‌ ‌design‌ ‌of‌‌                           
surface‌ ‌water‌ ‌drainage‌ ‌and‌ ‌could‌ ‌result‌ ‌in‌ ‌flooding‌ ‌being‌ ‌increased‌ ‌elsewhere.‌ ‌ 
We‌ ‌therefore‌ ‌wish‌ ‌to‌ ‌raise‌ ‌a‌ ‌holding‌ ‌objection.‌ ‌ 
‌ ‌  

17



‌ 
‌ 

Following‌ ‌discussion‌‌and‌‌submission‌‌of‌‌further‌‌information‌‌the‌‌following‌‌conditions‌‌                   
and‌ ‌informative‌ ‌are‌ ‌suggested.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Development‌‌shall‌‌not‌‌commence,‌‌other‌‌than‌‌works‌‌of‌‌site‌‌survey‌‌and‌‌investigation,‌‌                       
until‌‌full‌‌details‌‌of‌‌the‌‌proposed‌‌surface‌‌water‌‌drainage‌‌scheme‌‌have‌‌been‌‌submitted‌‌                         
to‌‌and‌‌approved‌‌in‌‌writing‌‌by‌‌the‌‌Local‌‌Planning‌‌Authority.‌‌The‌‌design‌‌should‌‌follow‌‌                           
the‌ ‌hierarchy‌ ‌of‌ ‌preference‌ ‌for‌ ‌different‌ ‌types‌ ‌of‌ ‌surface‌ ‌water‌ ‌drainage‌ ‌disposal‌‌                       
systems‌ ‌as‌ ‌set‌ ‌out‌ ‌in‌ ‌Approved‌ ‌Document‌ ‌H‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Building‌ ‌Regulations,‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌‌                           
recommendations‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌SuDS‌ ‌Manual‌ ‌produced‌ ‌by‌ ‌CIRIA.‌ ‌Winter‌ ‌groundwater‌‌                   
monitoring‌ ‌to‌ ‌establish‌ ‌highest‌ ‌annual‌ ‌ground‌ ‌water‌ ‌levels‌ ‌and‌ ‌winter‌ ‌infiltration‌‌                     
testing‌‌to‌‌BRE‌‌DG365,‌‌or‌‌similar‌‌approved,‌‌will‌‌be‌‌required‌‌to‌‌support‌‌the‌‌design‌‌of‌‌                             
any‌ ‌Infiltration‌ ‌drainage.‌ ‌No‌ ‌building‌ ‌/‌ ‌No‌ ‌part‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌extended‌ ‌building‌ ‌shall‌ ‌be‌‌                           
occupied‌‌until‌‌the‌‌complete‌‌surface‌‌water‌‌drainage‌‌system‌‌serving‌‌the‌‌property‌‌has‌‌                       
been‌ ‌implemented‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌‌agreed‌‌details‌‌and‌‌the‌‌details‌‌so‌‌agreed‌‌                         
shall‌ ‌be‌ ‌maintained‌ ‌in‌ ‌good‌ ‌working‌ ‌order‌ ‌in‌ ‌perpetuity.”‌ ‌ 
‌ 

“Development‌ ‌shall‌ ‌not‌ ‌commence‌ ‌until‌ ‌full‌ ‌details‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌maintenance‌ ‌and‌‌                     
management‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌surface‌ ‌water‌ ‌drainage‌ ‌system‌ ‌is‌ ‌set‌ ‌out‌ ‌in‌ ‌a‌ ‌site-specific‌‌                         
maintenance‌ ‌manual‌ ‌and‌ ‌submitted‌ ‌to,‌ ‌and‌ ‌approved‌ ‌in‌ ‌writing,‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌ ‌Local‌‌                       
Planning‌ ‌Authority.‌ ‌The‌ ‌manual‌ ‌is‌ ‌to‌ ‌include‌ ‌details‌ ‌of‌ ‌financial‌ ‌management‌ ‌and‌‌                       
arrangements‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌replacement‌ ‌of‌ ‌major‌ ‌components‌ ‌at‌ ‌the‌ ‌end‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌                       
manufacturer's‌ ‌recommended‌ ‌design‌ ‌life.‌ ‌Upon‌ ‌completed‌ ‌construction‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌                 
surface‌ ‌water‌ ‌drainage‌ ‌system,‌ ‌the‌ ‌owner‌ ‌or‌ ‌management‌ ‌company‌ ‌shall‌ ‌strictly‌‌                     
adhere‌ ‌to‌ ‌and‌ ‌implement‌ ‌the‌ ‌recommendations‌ ‌contained‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌manual.”‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

and‌ ‌the‌ ‌accompanying‌ ‌informative:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

“Infiltration‌ ‌rates‌ ‌for‌ ‌soakage‌ ‌structures‌ ‌are‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌based‌ ‌on‌ ‌percolation‌ ‌tests‌‌                       
undertaken‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌winter‌ ‌period‌ ‌and‌ ‌at‌ ‌the‌ ‌location‌ ‌and‌ ‌depth‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌‌                           
structures.‌ ‌The‌ ‌percolation‌ ‌tests‌ ‌must‌ ‌be‌ ‌carried‌ ‌out‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with‌ ‌BRE‌‌                       
DG365,‌ ‌CIRIA‌ ‌R156‌ ‌or‌ ‌a‌ ‌similar‌ ‌approved‌ ‌method‌ ‌and‌ ‌cater‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌1‌ ‌in‌ ‌10‌ ‌year‌‌                               
storm‌ ‌between‌ ‌the‌ ‌invert‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌entry‌ ‌pipe‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌soakaway,‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌base‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌                               
structure.‌‌It‌‌must‌‌also‌‌have‌‌provision‌‌to‌‌ensure‌‌that‌‌there‌‌is‌‌capacity‌‌in‌‌the‌‌system‌‌to‌‌                               
contain‌‌below‌‌ground‌‌level‌‌the‌‌1‌‌in‌‌100‌‌year‌‌event‌‌plus‌‌40%‌‌on‌‌stored‌‌volumes,‌‌as‌‌                               
an‌‌allowance‌‌for‌‌climate‌‌change.‌‌Adequate‌‌freeboard‌‌must‌‌be‌‌provided‌‌between‌‌the‌‌                       
base‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌soakaway‌ ‌structure‌‌and‌‌the‌‌highest‌‌recorded‌‌annual‌‌groundwater‌‌level‌‌                       
identified‌ ‌in‌ ‌that‌ ‌location.‌ ‌Any‌ ‌SuDS‌ ‌or‌ ‌soakaway‌ ‌design‌ ‌must‌ ‌include‌ ‌adequate‌                       
groundwater‌ ‌monitoring‌ ‌data‌ ‌to‌ ‌determine‌ ‌the‌ ‌highest‌ ‌winter‌ ‌groundwater‌ ‌table‌ ‌in‌‌                     
support‌‌of‌‌the‌‌design.‌‌The‌‌applicant‌‌is‌‌advised‌‌to‌‌discuss‌‌the‌‌extent‌‌of‌‌groundwater‌‌                           
monitoring‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌Council's‌ ‌Engineers.‌ ‌Further‌ ‌detail‌ ‌regarding‌ ‌our‌ ‌requirements‌‌                   
are‌ ‌available‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌following‌ ‌webpage‌ ‌ 
https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/planning/applications/submit-fees-forms.‌ ‌A‌ ‌surface‌‌     
water‌ ‌drainage‌ ‌checklist‌ ‌is‌ ‌available‌ ‌on‌ ‌this‌ ‌webpage.‌ ‌This‌ ‌clearly‌ ‌sets‌ ‌out‌ ‌our‌‌                         
requirements‌ ‌for‌ ‌avoiding‌ ‌pre-commencement‌ ‌conditions,‌ ‌or‌ ‌to‌ ‌discharge‌ ‌conditions"‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Southern‌ ‌Water:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Southern‌ ‌Water‌‌requires‌‌a‌‌formal‌‌application‌‌for‌‌a‌‌connection‌‌to‌‌the‌‌public‌‌foul‌‌and‌‌                           
surface‌ ‌water‌ ‌sewer‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌made‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌ ‌applicant‌ ‌or‌ ‌developer‌ ‌ 

‌   

18



‌ 
‌ 

‌ 
Representations‌ ‌ 
‌ 
❖ Cobden‌ ‌Road‌ ‌North‌ ‌Residents‌ ‌(15‌ ‌signatures)‌ ‌ 
‌ 

● Loss‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌courtyard‌ ‌turning‌ ‌point‌ ‌causing‌ ‌a‌ ‌safety‌ ‌impact‌ ‌on‌ ‌residents‌ ‌and‌‌                         
general‌ ‌public‌ ‌ 

● The‌ ‌private‌ ‌road‌ ‌is‌ ‌not‌ ‌suitable‌ ‌for‌ ‌development‌ ‌off‌ ‌of‌ ‌it‌ ‌ 
‌ 
❖ Petition‌ ‌of‌ ‌35‌ ‌signatures‌ ‌stating‌ ‌that‌ ‌they‌ ‌object‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌development‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌‌                         

grounds‌ ‌that‌ ‌it‌ ‌will‌ ‌impact‌ ‌detrimentally‌ ‌on‌ ‌an‌ ‌already‌ ‌overburdened‌ ‌parking‌‌                     
and‌ ‌access‌ ‌situation.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
❖ Heene‌ ‌Church‌ ‌Of‌ ‌England‌ ‌Primary‌ ‌School‌ ‌ 
‌ 

● Do‌ ‌not‌ ‌object‌ ‌but‌ ‌raise‌ ‌concerns‌ ‌about‌ ‌pupil‌ ‌safeguarding‌ ‌and‌ ‌potential‌‌                     
disruption‌‌during‌‌construction‌‌to‌‌two‌‌classrooms‌‌and‌‌would‌‌wish‌‌to‌‌discuss‌‌this‌‌                       
with‌ ‌the‌ ‌developer.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
❖  ‌6‌ ‌Cobden‌ ‌Road‌ ‌ 
‌ 

● The‌ ‌foundations‌ ‌and‌ ‌construction‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌private‌ ‌road‌ ‌was‌ ‌not‌ ‌built‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌‌                         
weight‌ ‌or‌ ‌traffic‌ ‌existing‌ ‌or‌ ‌proposed.‌ ‌ 

● Inadequate‌ ‌drainage‌ ‌ 
● It‌ ‌is‌ ‌a‌ ‌private‌ ‌road/footpath‌ ‌for‌ ‌residents‌ ‌and‌ ‌service‌ ‌vehicles‌ ‌access‌ ‌only‌ ‌ 
● The‌ ‌development‌ ‌would‌ ‌have‌ ‌no‌ ‌access‌ ‌or‌ ‌parking‌ ‌ 
● The‌ ‌development‌ ‌would‌ ‌cause‌ ‌damage‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌access‌ ‌road‌ ‌ 
● Impact‌ ‌to‌ ‌residents‌ ‌during‌ ‌construction.‌ ‌ 
‌ 
❖ 10‌ ‌Cobden‌ ‌Road‌ ‌ 
‌ 

● Poor‌ ‌access‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌site,‌ ‌unlit‌ ‌and‌ ‌uneven‌ ‌ 
● The‌ ‌refuse‌ ‌storage‌‌is‌‌over‌‌40m‌‌from‌‌the‌‌main‌‌road‌‌contrary‌‌to‌‌the‌‌manual‌‌for‌‌                             

street‌ ‌recommendations‌ ‌ 
● overlooking‌ ‌of‌ ‌properties‌ ‌in‌ ‌Cobden‌ ‌Road‌ ‌ 
● Lack‌ ‌of‌ ‌drainage‌ ‌connection‌ ‌ 
● contamination‌ ‌ 
● No‌ ‌access‌ ‌for‌ ‌fire‌ ‌engines‌ ‌ 
● No‌ ‌provision‌ ‌for‌ ‌electric‌ ‌vehicles‌ ‌or‌ ‌charging‌ ‌ 
● Encroachment‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌alleyway‌ ‌ 
● Loss‌‌of‌‌use‌‌of‌‌the‌‌alleyway,‌‌the‌‌alley‌‌is‌‌jointly‌‌owned‌‌by‌‌the‌‌freeholders‌‌on‌‌the‌‌                               

north‌ ‌side‌ ‌of‌ ‌Cobden‌ ‌Road.‌ ‌The‌ ‌construction‌ ‌will‌ ‌disrupt‌ ‌residents.‌ ‌ 
● The‌ ‌alley‌ ‌is‌ ‌unsuitable‌ ‌for‌ ‌large‌ ‌vehicles‌ ‌and‌ ‌damage‌ ‌will‌ ‌occur‌ ‌ 
● Contrary‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌NPPF‌ ‌para‌ ‌127‌ ‌ 
‌ 
❖ 12‌ ‌Cobden‌ ‌Road‌ ‌ 
‌ 

● The‌‌access‌‌road‌‌is‌‌not‌‌suitable‌‌for‌‌heavy‌‌vehicles‌‌for‌‌demolition,‌‌construction,‌‌                       
emergency‌ ‌vehicles‌ ‌and‌ ‌household‌ ‌waste‌ ‌vehicles‌ ‌ 

● Impact‌ ‌on‌ ‌services‌ ‌under‌ ‌the‌ ‌track‌ ‌ 

19



‌ 
‌ 

● The‌ ‌development‌ ‌would‌ ‌overlook‌ ‌a‌ ‌school‌ ‌and‌ ‌near‌ ‌neighbours‌ ‌ 
‌ 
❖ No‌ ‌address‌ ‌and‌ ‌Cobden‌ ‌Road‌ ‌resident‌ ‌ 
‌ 

● The‌ ‌road‌ ‌is‌ ‌too‌ ‌narrow‌ ‌and‌ ‌old‌ ‌to‌ ‌take‌ ‌the‌ ‌traffic‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌development‌ ‌ 
● Fire‌ ‌hazard‌ ‌ 
● contamination‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌ ‌ 
● Create‌ ‌parking‌ ‌problems‌ ‌ 
‌ 
❖ 20A‌ ‌Cobden‌ ‌Road‌ ‌ 
‌ 

● Impact‌ ‌on‌ ‌aging‌ ‌water,‌ ‌drainage‌ ‌and‌ ‌soil‌ ‌pipes‌ ‌ 
● Health‌ ‌and‌ ‌safety‌ ‌issues‌ ‌including‌ ‌asbestos,‌ ‌contaminated‌ ‌land‌ ‌and‌ ‌how‌‌                   

emergency‌ ‌vehicles‌ ‌will‌ ‌access‌ ‌the‌ ‌site.‌ ‌ 
● Inadequate‌ ‌parking‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌area.‌ ‌ 
● Increased‌ ‌traffic‌ ‌ 
● Loss‌ ‌of‌ ‌privacy‌ ‌ 
● Increased‌ ‌noise‌ ‌ 
● More‌ ‌suitable‌ ‌for‌ ‌commercial‌ ‌premises‌ ‌ 
‌ 
❖ 24‌ ‌Cobden‌ ‌Road‌ ‌ 
‌ 

● overlooking‌ ‌of‌ ‌first‌ ‌floor‌ ‌windows‌ ‌ 
● increased‌ ‌noise‌ ‌on‌ ‌amenity‌ ‌space‌ ‌ 
● Asbestos‌ ‌on‌ ‌site‌ ‌ 
● flooding‌ ‌ 
● contamination‌ ‌ 
● public‌ ‌safety‌ ‌ 
● Loss‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌turning‌ ‌circle‌ ‌ 
● poor‌ ‌access‌ ‌ 
● Overdevelopment‌ ‌ 
● No‌ ‌official‌ ‌right‌ ‌of‌ ‌way‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌public‌ ‌ 
● Asbestos‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌ ‌ 
● The‌ ‌site‌ ‌floods‌ ‌ 
● Overlooking‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌school‌ ‌ 
‌ 
❖ 26‌ ‌Cobden‌ ‌Road‌ ‌ 
‌ 

● Inadequate‌ ‌parking‌ ‌ 
● The‌ ‌access‌ ‌not‌ ‌suitable‌ ‌for‌ ‌removal‌ ‌lorries,‌ ‌delivery‌ ‌vans‌ ‌etc‌ ‌ 
● Loss‌ ‌of‌ ‌important‌ ‌garages‌ ‌and‌ ‌storage‌ ‌units‌ ‌important‌ ‌to‌ ‌local‌ ‌residents‌ ‌and‌‌                       

businesses‌ ‌ 
● The‌ ‌private‌ ‌road‌ ‌is‌ ‌not‌ ‌safe‌ ‌or‌ ‌adequate‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌development‌ ‌with‌ ‌residential‌ ‌ 
● High‌ ‌level‌ ‌windows‌ ‌will‌ ‌impinge‌ ‌on‌ ‌privacy‌ ‌ 
● Encroachment‌ ‌onto‌ ‌a‌ ‌private‌ ‌road‌ ‌ 
● Increased‌ ‌noise‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌‘u’‌ ‌shaped‌ ‌building‌ ‌ 
● Loss‌ ‌of‌ ‌privacy‌ ‌ 
● The‌‌private‌‌access‌‌road‌‌is‌‌not‌‌suitable‌‌for‌‌safe‌‌pedestrian‌‌access,‌‌cycle‌‌use‌‌or‌‌                           

wheelchairs‌ ‌ 
● Inadequate‌ ‌refuse‌ ‌collection‌‌ ‌  

20



‌ 
‌ 

● Inadequate‌ ‌for‌ ‌emergency‌ ‌vehicles‌ ‌particularly‌ ‌fire‌ ‌engines‌ ‌ 
● Contaminated‌ ‌land‌ ‌ 
‌ 
❖ 28‌ ‌Cobden‌ ‌Road‌ ‌ 
‌ 

● Inadequate‌ ‌access‌ ‌particularly‌ ‌for‌ ‌large‌ ‌vehicles‌ ‌ 
● private‌ ‌road‌ ‌which‌ ‌would‌ ‌get‌ ‌blocked‌ ‌ 
● Overlooking‌ ‌ 
● overdevelopment‌ ‌ 
● Local‌ ‌infrastructure‌ ‌is‌ ‌insufficient‌ ‌ 
‌ 
❖ 32‌ ‌Cobden‌ ‌Road‌ ‌ 
‌ 

● Damage‌ ‌to‌ ‌boundary‌ ‌wall‌ ‌from‌ ‌vehicles‌ ‌required‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌demolition‌ ‌and‌‌                     
construction‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌development‌ ‌ 

● The‌ ‌alley‌ ‌is‌ ‌too‌ ‌narrow‌ ‌for‌ ‌large‌ ‌vehicles‌ ‌and‌ ‌fire‌ ‌engines‌ ‌ 
● Potential‌ ‌for‌ ‌fire‌ ‌hazard‌ ‌ 
● Inadequate‌ ‌parking‌ ‌ 
● Noise,‌ ‌dust‌ ‌and‌ ‌inconvenience‌ ‌ 
● Need‌ ‌for‌ ‌small‌ ‌commercial‌ ‌units,‌ ‌that‌ ‌this‌ ‌site‌ ‌could‌ ‌provide‌ ‌ 
‌ 
❖ 34‌ ‌Cobden‌ ‌Road‌ ‌ 
‌ 

● Lack‌ ‌of‌ ‌rainwater‌ ‌drainage‌ ‌ 
● Lack‌ ‌of‌ ‌parking‌ ‌ 
● Lack‌ ‌of‌ ‌easy‌ ‌access‌ ‌and‌ ‌turning‌ ‌for‌ ‌emergency‌ ‌vehicles‌ ‌ 
● Lack‌ ‌of‌ ‌privacy‌ ‌ 
● Damage‌ ‌to‌ ‌heritage‌ ‌walls‌ ‌ 
● Inadequate‌ ‌lighting‌ ‌ 
● Overstretched‌ ‌facilities‌ ‌ 
‌ 
❖ 38‌ ‌Cobden‌ ‌Road‌ ‌ 
‌ 

● The‌ ‌lack‌ ‌of‌ ‌rainwater‌ ‌drainage,‌‌ ‌  
● lack‌ ‌of‌ ‌available‌ ‌parking,‌‌ ‌  
● Lack‌‌of‌ ‌easy‌‌access‌‌and‌‌turning‌‌for‌‌emergency‌‌vehicles‌‌and‌‌privacy‌‌and‌‌light‌‌                         

for‌ ‌those‌ ‌properties‌ ‌that‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌opposite‌ 
● sustainable‌ ‌infrastructure‌ ‌would‌ ‌mean‌ ‌that‌ ‌they‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌better‌ ‌used‌ ‌for‌‌                     

storage,‌ ‌garages‌ ‌and‌ ‌workshops‌ ‌ 
‌ 
❖ 57‌ ‌Cobden‌ ‌Road‌ ‌ 
‌ 

● Insufficient‌ ‌parking‌ ‌for‌ ‌existing‌ ‌residents‌‌ ‌  
● Pressure‌ ‌on‌ ‌parking‌‌ ‌  
‌ 
❖ 4‌ ‌Norfolk‌ ‌Street‌ ‌ 
‌ 

● Inadequate‌ ‌parking,‌ ‌particularly‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌local‌ ‌schools‌ ‌ 
● Poor‌ ‌access‌ ‌ 
● Inadequate‌ ‌access‌ ‌for‌ ‌emergency‌ ‌vehicles‌ ‌ 

21



‌ 
‌ 

● The‌ ‌access‌ ‌is‌ ‌not‌ ‌suitable‌ ‌for‌ ‌large‌ ‌vehicles‌ ‌ 
● The‌ ‌access‌ ‌is‌ ‌in‌ ‌constant‌ ‌use‌ ‌as‌ ‌a‌ ‌right‌ ‌of‌ ‌access‌ ‌and‌ ‌should‌ ‌not‌ ‌be‌ ‌blocked‌ ‌ 
● No‌ ‌lighting‌ ‌along‌ ‌the‌ ‌access‌ ‌ 
● Loss‌ ‌of‌ ‌light‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌first‌ ‌floor‌ ‌extension‌ ‌to‌ ‌4-5‌ ‌Norfolk‌ ‌Street‌ ‌ 
● The‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌building‌ ‌is‌ ‌not‌ ‌in‌ ‌keeping‌ 
● Overdeveloped‌ ‌poor‌ ‌quality‌ ‌housing‌ ‌ 
‌ 
❖ 5a‌ ‌Clifton‌ ‌Road‌ ‌ 
‌ 

● Narrow‌ ‌road,‌ ‌poor‌ ‌access‌ ‌ 
● Potential‌ ‌damage‌ ‌to‌ ‌property‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌access‌ ‌road‌ ‌ 
● impact‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌safety‌ ‌of‌ ‌residents‌ ‌ 
● Inadequate‌ ‌lighting‌ ‌leading‌ ‌to‌ ‌poor‌ ‌unsafe‌ ‌access‌ ‌for‌ ‌future‌ ‌residents‌ ‌ 
● How‌ ‌will‌ ‌the‌ ‌buildings‌ ‌be‌ ‌demolished‌ ‌and‌ ‌constructed‌ ‌without‌ ‌impact‌ ‌on‌‌                     

residents‌ ‌ 
● Inadequate‌ ‌parking‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌area‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Additional‌ ‌Representations‌ ‌relating‌ ‌to‌ ‌Ownership‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Private‌ ‌Roadway‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Set‌ ‌out‌ ‌below‌ ‌is‌ ‌an‌ ‌extract‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌Cobden‌ ‌Road‌ ‌&‌ ‌Norfolk‌ ‌Street‌ ‌(South‌ ‌end)‌‌                             
Residents‌ ‌Group:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

“‌Regarding‌‌the‌‌ownership‌‌of‌‌the‌‌Private‌‌Roadway‌‌mentioned‌‌in‌‌planning‌‌application‌‌                     
AWDM/0550/21‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌Private‌ ‌Roadway‌ ‌running‌ ‌West‌ ‌to‌ ‌East,‌ ‌from‌ ‌Norfolk‌ ‌Street‌‌to‌‌Clifton‌‌Road,‌‌is‌‌                           
owned‌‌jointly‌‌in‌‌varying‌‌amounts‌‌by‌‌properties‌‌1-5‌‌Norfolk‌‌Street,‌‌Worthing‌‌and‌‌the‌‌                         
following‌ ‌properties‌ ‌in‌‌Cobden‌‌Road,‌‌42,‌‌40,‌‌38,‌‌36,‌‌34,‌‌32,‌‌30,‌‌28,‌‌26,‌‌24,‌‌22,‌‌20,‌‌                                 
20a,‌ ‌18,‌ ‌16,‌ ‌14,‌ ‌12,‌ ‌10,‌ ‌8,‌ ‌6,‌ ‌4,‌ ‌Richard‌ ‌Cobden‌ ‌Public‌ ‌House.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌‌Private‌‌Roadway,‌‌referred‌‌to‌‌as‌‌the‌‌‘blue‌‌road’‌‌in‌‌the‌‌properties‌‌title‌‌deeds‌‌and‌‌                             
conveyances,‌‌in‌‌part,‌‌is‌‌delineated‌‌below‌‌and‌‌clearly‌‌shows‌‌the‌‌twelve‌‌foot‌‌width‌‌of‌‌                           
this‌‌Private‌‌Roadway‌‌together‌‌with‌‌extracts‌‌from‌‌residents‌‌indenture‌‌which‌‌appertain‌‌                     
to‌ ‌its‌ ‌legal‌ ‌use:-‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Dated‌ ‌10th‌ ‌February‌ ‌1903‌ ‌ 
Conveyance‌ ‌of‌ ‌hereditament‌ ‌and‌ ‌premises‌ ‌in‌ ‌Cobden‌ ‌Road,‌ ‌Worthing,‌ ‌Sussex.”‌ ‌ 

‌ 

22



‌ 
‌ 

‌ 
‌ 

“TOGETHER‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌messages‌ ‌lately‌ ‌erected‌ ‌hereon‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌ ‌Vendors‌ ‌and‌‌                     
TOGETHER‌‌with‌‌a‌‌right‌‌for‌‌the‌‌purchaser‌‌his‌‌heirs‌‌and‌‌assigns‌‌owner‌‌or‌‌owners‌‌for‌‌                             
the‌ ‌time‌ ‌being‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌hereditaments‌ ‌hereby‌ ‌conveyed‌ ‌his‌ ‌and‌ ‌their‌ ‌tenants‌‌and‌‌all‌‌                           
persons‌ ‌authorised‌ ‌by‌ ‌him‌ ‌or‌ ‌them‌ ‌to‌ ‌use‌ ‌in‌ ‌all‌ ‌respects‌ ‌as‌ ‌public‌ ‌roads‌ ‌may‌ ‌be‌‌                               
used‌‌such‌‌part‌‌of‌‌Cobden‌‌Road‌‌as‌‌it‌‌is‌‌coloured‌‌brown‌‌on‌‌the‌‌said‌‌plan‌‌and‌‌also‌‌the‌‌                                   
private‌‌roadway‌‌on‌‌the‌‌North‌‌side‌‌of‌‌the‌‌hereditaments‌‌hereby‌‌conveyed‌‌and‌‌in‌‌part‌‌                           
coloured‌ ‌blue‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌said‌ ‌plan‌ ‌…”‌ ‌ 

‌ 
The‌ ‌representations‌ ‌received‌ ‌also‌ ‌include‌ ‌a‌ ‌number‌ ‌of‌ ‌individual‌ ‌property‌ ‌owners‌‌                     
who‌ ‌have‌ ‌provided‌ ‌concerns‌ ‌following‌ ‌the‌ ‌notice‌ ‌published‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌paper‌ ‌that‌ ‌due‌‌                         
diligence‌‌has‌‌not‌‌been‌‌carried‌‌out.‌‌They‌‌indicate‌‌that‌‌they‌‌have‌‌not‌‌been‌‌contacted‌‌                           
by‌ ‌the‌ ‌applicant/agent‌ ‌as‌ ‌owners‌ ‌and‌ ‌those‌ ‌that‌ ‌have‌ ‌access‌ ‌rights‌‌over‌‌the‌‌land.‌‌                           
Some‌‌property‌‌owners‌‌indicate‌‌that‌‌part‌‌of‌‌the‌‌land‌‌shown‌‌within‌‌the‌‌application‌‌site‌‌                           
is‌‌in‌‌fact‌‌used‌‌for‌‌storage‌‌and‌‌continual‌‌access‌‌rights‌‌for‌‌residents‌‌in‌‌Cobden‌‌Road‌‌                             
which‌ ‌would‌ ‌have‌ ‌an‌ ‌impact‌ ‌on‌ ‌any‌ ‌redevelopment‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌applicants‌‌                           
letter‌ ‌of‌ ‌intent.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

They‌‌are‌‌concerned‌‌that‌‌the‌‌‘notice‌‌of‌‌intent’‌‌to‌‌carry‌‌out‌‌works‌‌to‌‌the‌‌access‌‌is‌‌not‌‌                                 
feasible‌ ‌with‌ ‌many‌ ‌residents‌ ‌who‌ ‌have‌ ‌access‌ ‌rights‌ ‌being‌ ‌potentially‌ ‌opposed‌ ‌to‌‌                       
any‌ ‌works‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌development‌ ‌as‌ ‌a‌ ‌whole‌ ‌due‌ ‌to‌ ‌its‌ ‌restricted‌ ‌nature‌ ‌and‌ ‌poor‌‌                             
access.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Relevant‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Policies‌ ‌and‌ ‌Guidance‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Worthing‌ ‌Core‌ ‌Strategy‌ ‌2006-2026‌ ‌(WBC‌ ‌2011):‌ ‌3,‌ ‌4,‌ ‌7,‌ ‌8,‌ ‌16,‌ ‌19‌ ‌ 
Worthing‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Plan‌ ‌(WBC‌ ‌2003)‌ ‌(saved‌ ‌policies):‌ ‌RES7,‌ ‌RES9,‌ ‌H18,‌ ‌and‌ ‌TR9‌ ‌ 
Guide‌ ‌to‌ ‌Residential‌ ‌development‌ ‌SPD‌ ‌ 
Space‌ ‌Standards‌ ‌SPD‌ ‌ 
Worthing‌ ‌Community‌ ‌Infrastructure‌ ‌Levy‌ ‌(CIL)‌ ‌ 
National‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Policy‌ ‌Framework‌ ‌(HCLG‌ ‌2021)‌ ‌ 
National‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Policy‌ ‌Guidance‌ ‌ 
Submission‌ ‌Draft‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Plan‌ ‌2020-2036‌ ‌ 
SP1‌ ‌(Presumption‌ ‌in‌ ‌Favour‌ ‌of‌ ‌Sustainable‌ ‌Development)‌ ‌ 
SP2‌ ‌(Climate‌ ‌Change)‌ ‌ 
SP3‌ ‌(Healthy‌ ‌Communities)‌ ‌ 

23



‌ 
‌ 

DM1‌ ‌(Housing‌ ‌Mix)‌ ‌ 
DM2‌ ‌(Density)‌ ‌ 
DM5‌ ‌(Quality‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Built‌ ‌Environment)‌ ‌ 
DM16‌ ‌(Sustainable‌ ‌Design)‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Relevant‌ ‌Legislation‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌Committee‌ ‌should‌ ‌consider‌ ‌the‌ ‌planning‌ ‌application‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Section‌ ‌70‌‌of‌‌the‌‌Town‌‌and‌‌Country‌‌Planning‌‌Act‌‌1990‌‌(as‌‌amended)‌‌provides‌‌that‌‌                           
the‌ ‌application‌ ‌may‌ ‌be‌ ‌granted‌ ‌either‌ ‌unconditionally‌ ‌or‌ ‌subject‌ ‌to‌ ‌relevant‌‌                     
conditions,‌‌or‌‌refused.‌ ‌Regard‌‌shall‌‌be‌‌given‌‌to‌‌relevant‌‌development‌‌plan‌‌policies,‌‌                       
any‌ ‌relevant‌ ‌local‌ ‌finance‌ ‌considerations,‌ ‌and‌ ‌other‌ ‌material‌ ‌considerations‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Planning‌ ‌Assessment‌ ‌ 

Policy‌ ‌context‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌policy‌ ‌context‌ ‌comprises‌ ‌the‌ ‌NPPF‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌local‌ ‌development‌ ‌plan‌ ‌which‌‌                       
consists‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌saved‌ ‌policies‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Plan,‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌Core‌ ‌Strategy‌ ‌                         
and‌ ‌accompanying‌ ‌SPDs‌ ‌as‌ ‌well‌ ‌as‌ ‌the‌‌emerging‌‌submission‌‌draft‌‌Worthing‌‌Local‌‌                       
Plan.‌ ‌ 

Policy‌ ‌CS8‌ ‌seeks‌ ‌to‌ ‌deliver‌ ‌a‌ ‌wide‌ ‌choice‌ ‌of‌ ‌high‌ ‌quality‌ ‌homes‌ ‌to‌ ‌address‌ ‌the‌‌                             
needs‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌community‌ ‌with‌ ‌higher‌ ‌density‌ ‌housing‌ ‌(including‌ ‌homes‌ ‌suitable‌ ‌for‌‌                       
family‌ ‌occupation)‌ ‌in‌ ‌and‌ ‌around‌ ‌the‌ ‌town‌ ‌centre‌‌with‌‌new‌‌development‌‌outside‌‌of‌‌                         
the‌ ‌town‌ ‌centre‌ ‌predominantly‌ ‌consisting‌ ‌of‌ ‌family‌ ‌housing.‌ ‌ 

National‌‌planning‌‌policy‌‌contained‌‌in‌‌the‌‌NPPF‌‌post-dates‌‌the‌‌adoption‌‌of‌‌the‌‌Core‌‌                         
Strategy.‌‌Paragraph‌‌10/11‌‌identifies‌‌at‌‌the‌‌heart‌‌of‌‌the‌‌NPPF‌‌a‌‌presumption‌‌in‌‌favour‌‌                           
of‌ ‌sustainable‌ ‌development.‌ ‌For‌ ‌decision‌ ‌making‌ ‌this‌ ‌means‌ ‌making‌ ‌plans‌ ‌which‌‌                     
positively‌ ‌seek‌ ‌opportunities‌ ‌for‌ ‌objectively‌ ‌assessed‌ ‌housing‌ ‌needs,‌ ‌approving‌‌                 
development‌ ‌proposals‌ ‌that‌ ‌accords‌ ‌with‌ ‌an‌ ‌up-to-date‌ ‌development‌ ‌plan‌ ‌without‌‌                   
delay‌ ‌and‌ ‌where‌ ‌there‌ ‌are‌ ‌no‌ ‌relevant‌ ‌policies‌ ‌or‌ ‌the‌ ‌policies‌ ‌which‌ ‌are‌ ‌most‌‌                           
important‌‌for‌‌determining‌‌the‌‌application‌‌are‌‌out-of-date,‌‌granting‌‌permission‌‌unless‌‌                   
policies‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌framework‌ ‌that‌ ‌protect‌ ‌areas‌ ‌or‌ ‌assets‌ ‌of‌ ‌particular‌ ‌importance‌‌                       
provides‌‌a‌‌clear‌‌reason‌‌for‌‌refusing‌‌the‌‌proposal‌‌or‌‌any‌‌adverse‌‌impacts‌‌of‌‌doing‌‌so‌‌                             
would‌ ‌significantly‌ ‌and‌ ‌demonstrably‌ ‌outweigh‌ ‌the‌‌benefits‌‌when‌‌assessed‌‌against‌‌                   
the‌ ‌policies‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Framework‌ ‌as‌ ‌a‌ ‌whole.‌‌ ‌  

It‌ ‌is‌ ‌acknowledged‌ ‌that‌ ‌in‌ ‌response‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌requirements‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Framework‌ ‌and‌‌                         
informed‌ ‌by‌ ‌local‌ ‌evidence‌ ‌a‌ ‌5‌ ‌year‌ ‌supply‌ ‌of‌ ‌housing‌ ‌in‌ ‌relation‌ ‌to‌ ‌Objectively‌‌                           
Assessed‌ ‌Needs‌ ‌(OAN)‌ ‌cannot‌ ‌currently‌ ‌be‌ ‌demonstrated.‌ ‌A‌ ‌housing‌ ‌study‌ ‌has‌‌                     
been‌‌undertaken‌‌to‌‌address‌‌this‌‌requirement‌‌and‌‌to‌‌inform‌‌the‌‌forthcoming‌‌Worthing‌‌                       
Local‌ ‌Plan.‌ ‌ ‌   

Within‌ ‌this‌ ‌context‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌dwellings‌ ‌would‌ ‌make‌ ‌a‌ ‌contribution‌ ‌–‌‌albeit‌‌very‌‌                         
small‌ ‌–‌ ‌to‌ ‌meeting‌ ‌housing‌ ‌needs‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌Borough.‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌‘Guide‌ ‌for‌ ‌Residential‌ ‌Development’‌ ‌(SPD)‌ ‌indicates‌ ‌that‌‌all‌‌new‌‌development‌‌                     
will‌‌be‌‌expected‌‌to‌‌demonstrate‌‌good‌‌quality‌‌architectural‌‌and‌‌landscape‌‌design‌‌and‌‌                       

24



‌ 
‌ 

use‌ ‌of‌ ‌materials.‌ ‌In‌ ‌particular,‌ ‌new‌ ‌development‌ ‌should‌ ‌display‌ ‌a‌ ‌good‌ ‌quality‌ ‌of‌‌                         
architectural‌ ‌composition‌ ‌and‌ ‌detailing‌ ‌as‌ ‌well‌ ‌as‌ ‌responding‌ ‌positively‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌‌                     
important‌ ‌aspects‌ ‌of‌ ‌local‌ ‌character,‌ ‌exploiting‌ ‌all‌ ‌reason‌ ‌opportunities‌ ‌for‌‌                   
enhancement.‌‌Where‌‌appropriate,‌‌innovative‌‌and‌‌contemporary‌‌design‌‌solutions‌‌will‌‌                 
be‌ ‌encouraged.‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌key‌‌considerations‌‌are‌‌the‌‌loss‌‌of‌‌the‌‌commercial‌‌site,‌‌effects‌‌on‌‌the‌‌character‌‌                           
visual‌ ‌amenity‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌area,‌ ‌the‌ ‌suitability‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌dwellings,‌ ‌residential‌ ‌amenities‌ ‌for‌‌                         
existing‌ ‌and‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌residents,‌ ‌access‌ ‌and‌ ‌car‌ ‌parking‌‌ ‌  

Loss‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌commercial‌ ‌site‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Policy‌ ‌4‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌Core‌ ‌Strategy‌ ‌(WCS)‌ ‌seeks‌ ‌to‌ ‌protect‌ ‌employment‌‌                       
opportunities‌ ‌and‌ ‌seeks‌ ‌to‌ ‌resist‌ ‌the‌‌conversion‌‌or‌‌redevelopment‌‌of‌‌land‌‌currently‌‌                       
in‌ ‌use‌ ‌or‌ ‌last‌ ‌used‌ ‌for‌ ‌employment‌ ‌purpose‌ ‌unless‌ ‌it‌ ‌can‌ ‌be‌ ‌satisfactorily‌‌                         
demonstrated‌‌that‌‌the‌‌site,‌‌or‌‌part‌‌of‌‌the‌‌site,‌‌is‌‌genuinely‌‌redundant‌‌and‌‌is‌‌unlikely‌‌                             
to‌ ‌be‌ ‌re-used‌ ‌for‌ ‌industrial‌ ‌or‌ ‌commercial‌ ‌use‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌Plan‌ ‌period.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌‌applicant's‌‌agent‌‌has‌‌indicated‌‌that‌‌there‌‌is‌‌no‌‌employment‌‌use‌‌on‌‌the‌‌site.‌‌The‌ ‌                             
units‌‌are‌‌partly‌‌vacant,‌‌used‌‌informally‌‌and‌‌temporarily‌‌as‌‌lock-up‌‌storage‌‌units.‌‌The‌‌                         
use‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌units‌ ‌helps‌ ‌to‌ ‌ensure‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌ ‌is‌ ‌secure‌ ‌from‌ ‌crime‌ ‌and‌ ‌vandalism.‌‌                               
The‌ ‌units‌ ‌are‌ ‌not‌ ‌used‌ ‌as‌ ‌employment‌ ‌or‌ ‌commercial‌ ‌floorspace.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌principle‌ ‌of‌ ‌residential‌ ‌development‌ ‌has‌ ‌already‌ ‌been‌ ‌established‌ ‌and‌‌                   
considered‌ ‌acceptable‌ ‌under‌ ‌NOTICE/0007/19‌ ‌and‌ ‌NOTICE/0016/20.‌ ‌These‌‌             
applications‌ ‌established‌ ‌the‌ ‌principle‌ ‌for‌ ‌3no.‌ ‌residential‌ ‌units‌ ‌across‌‌Units‌‌1-4‌‌(on‌‌                       
the‌ ‌ground‌ ‌and‌ ‌first‌ ‌floors)‌ ‌and‌ ‌Units‌ ‌9-12.‌ ‌The‌ ‌remaining‌ ‌floorspace‌ ‌of‌‌                       
approximately‌ ‌169.7sqm‌ ‌is‌ ‌currently‌ ‌occupied‌ ‌by‌ ‌Units‌ ‌5-8,‌ ‌Unit‌ ‌13‌ ‌(currently‌‌                     
vacant)‌ ‌and‌ ‌Units‌ ‌15-16‌ ‌which‌ ‌are‌ ‌all‌ ‌used‌ ‌as‌ ‌storage‌ ‌units‌ ‌or‌ ‌vacant.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

The‌ ‌applicant's‌ ‌agent‌ ‌has‌ ‌indicated‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌units‌ ‌are‌ ‌in‌ ‌a‌ ‌poor‌ ‌state‌‌of‌‌repair‌‌and‌‌                               
poor,‌ ‌dilapidated‌‌condition‌‌and‌‌refurbishing‌‌or‌‌redeveloping‌‌the‌‌site‌‌for‌‌employment‌‌                     
use‌‌would‌‌be‌‌greater‌‌than‌‌the‌‌return‌‌that‌‌could‌‌be‌‌anticipated‌‌(in‌‌line‌‌with‌‌Policy‌‌4‌‌of‌‌                                 
the‌ ‌WCS).‌ ‌The‌ ‌site‌ ‌in‌ ‌its‌ ‌current‌ ‌state‌ ‌would‌‌not‌‌be‌‌capable‌‌of‌‌accommodating‌‌an‌‌                             
acceptable‌ ‌employment‌ ‌development.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

It‌ ‌is‌ ‌agreed‌‌that‌‌these‌‌units‌‌are‌‌in‌‌a‌‌poor‌‌state‌‌of‌‌disrepair‌‌and‌‌have‌‌generally‌‌only‌‌                                 
been‌ ‌used‌ ‌for‌ ‌storage‌ ‌in‌ ‌recent‌ ‌years,‌ ‌the‌ ‌principal‌ ‌has‌ ‌been‌ ‌established‌ ‌for‌‌                         
residential‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌site.‌ ‌A‌ ‌more‌ ‌intensive‌ ‌commercial‌ ‌use‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌‌                           
inappropriate‌ ‌with‌ ‌regards‌ ‌to‌ ‌location,‌ ‌access‌ ‌and‌‌residential‌‌amenity.‌‌Furthermore‌‌                   
the‌ ‌site‌ ‌would‌ ‌provide‌ ‌for‌ ‌much‌‌needed‌‌housing.‌‌It‌‌is‌‌not‌‌therefore‌‌considered‌‌that‌‌                           
the‌ ‌application‌ ‌could‌ ‌be‌ ‌refused‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌loss‌ ‌of‌ ‌an‌ ‌employment‌ ‌site.‌ ‌ ‌   
‌ 

Density,‌ ‌character‌ ‌and‌ ‌appearance‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌NPPF‌ ‌and‌ ‌policies‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌Core‌ ‌Strategy‌ ‌attach‌ ‌great‌ ‌weight‌ ‌to‌‌                         
sustainable‌ ‌development‌ ‌and‌ ‌that‌ ‌good‌ ‌design‌ ‌is‌ ‌a‌ ‌key‌ ‌aspect‌ ‌of‌ ‌sustainable‌‌                       
development.‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌‘Guide‌ ‌for‌ ‌Residential‌ ‌Development’‌ ‌(SPD)‌ ‌indicates‌ ‌that‌‌all‌‌new‌‌development‌‌                     
will‌‌be‌‌expected‌‌to‌‌demonstrate‌‌good‌‌quality‌‌architectural‌‌and‌‌landscape‌‌design‌‌and‌‌                       

25



‌ 
‌ 

use‌ ‌of‌ ‌materials.‌ ‌In‌ ‌particular,‌ ‌new‌ ‌development‌ ‌should‌ ‌display‌ ‌a‌ ‌good‌ ‌quality‌ ‌of‌‌                         
architectural‌ ‌composition‌ ‌and‌ ‌detailing‌ ‌as‌ ‌well‌ ‌as‌ ‌responding‌ ‌positively‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌‌                     
important‌ ‌aspects‌ ‌of‌ ‌local‌ ‌character,‌ ‌exploiting‌ ‌all‌ ‌reason‌ ‌opportunities‌ ‌for‌‌                   
enhancement.‌‌Where‌‌appropriate,‌‌innovative‌‌and‌‌contemporary‌‌design‌‌solutions‌‌will‌‌                 
be‌ ‌encouraged.‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌design‌ ‌is‌ ‌contemporary‌ ‌and‌ ‌seeks‌ ‌to‌ ‌reflect‌ ‌the‌ ‌former‌ ‌commercial‌ ‌use,‌ ‌                       
footprint‌‌and‌‌scale‌‌of‌‌the‌‌existing‌‌buildings.‌‌The‌‌building‌‌is‌‌utilitarian‌‌with‌‌parapeted‌‌                         
form‌ ‌with‌ ‌layered‌ ‌facing‌ ‌brick‌ ‌and‌ ‌detail‌ ‌providing‌ ‌a‌ ‌mews‌ ‌development‌ ‌with‌ ‌a‌‌                         
central‌ ‌inward‌ ‌facing‌ ‌courtyard.‌ ‌The‌ ‌site‌ ‌is‌ ‌enclosed‌ ‌by‌ ‌railing‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌access‌ ‌road‌‌                           
and‌ ‌a‌ ‌covered‌ ‌cycle‌ ‌store‌ ‌sits‌ ‌centrally‌ ‌at‌ ‌the‌ ‌front.‌ ‌A‌ ‌private‌ ‌communal‌ ‌amenity‌‌                           
space‌ ‌is‌ ‌provided‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌courtyard.‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌proposal‌ ‌is‌ ‌of‌ ‌a‌ ‌similar‌ ‌shape‌ ‌and‌ ‌form‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌development‌ ‌and‌ ‌sits‌‌                             
comfortably‌‌on‌‌the‌‌site‌‌with‌‌a‌‌similar‌‌relationship‌‌to‌‌the‌‌neighbouring‌‌uses.‌‌Although‌‌                         
concerns‌ ‌were‌ ‌raised‌ ‌by‌ ‌officers‌ ‌in‌ ‌relation‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌cycle‌ ‌store‌ ‌which‌ ‌is‌ ‌relatively‌‌                           
dominant‌‌on‌‌the‌‌frontage‌‌this‌‌has‌‌been‌‌amended‌‌and‌‌the‌‌use‌‌of‌‌materials‌‌and‌‌green‌‌                             
roof‌ ‌would‌ ‌soften‌ ‌the‌ ‌form.‌‌ ‌  

‌  The‌ ‌existing‌ ‌gross‌ ‌internal‌ ‌area‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌building‌‌equals‌‌374.9sqm‌‌and‌‌the‌‌proposed‌‌                         
building‌ ‌equals‌ ‌381.04sqm.‌ ‌The‌ ‌net‌ ‌additional‌ ‌floorspace‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌provided‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌‌                       
development‌‌is‌‌therefore‌ ‌6.14sqm.‌‌The‌‌provision‌‌of‌‌6‌‌dwellings‌‌on‌‌a‌‌net‌‌site‌‌area‌‌of‌‌                             
0.0536‌ ‌Ha‌ ‌provides‌ ‌a‌ ‌density‌ ‌of‌ ‌approximately‌ ‌112‌ ‌dwellings‌ ‌per‌ ‌hectare‌‌                     
comparable‌‌with‌‌the‌‌density‌‌of‌‌the‌‌existing‌‌terraced‌‌housing‌‌and‌‌flats‌‌to‌‌the‌‌east‌‌of‌‌                             
the‌ ‌site.‌ ‌ ‌   

The‌‌proposed‌‌form‌‌and‌‌design‌‌of‌‌the‌‌development‌‌is‌‌considered‌‌appropriate‌‌for‌‌the‌‌                         
location‌‌and‌‌the‌‌density‌‌is‌‌considered‌‌to‌‌be‌‌appropriate‌‌and‌‌the‌‌proposal‌‌would‌‌not‌‌                           
be‌ ‌an‌ ‌overdevelopment‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌site.‌ ‌ ‌   

Residential‌ ‌amenity‌‌ ‌  

Core‌‌Strategy‌‌policies‌‌16‌‌Built‌‌Environment‌‌and‌‌Design‌‌and‌‌Policy‌‌8‌‌Mix‌‌of‌‌Homes.‌‌                           
Paragraph‌ ‌7.13‌ ‌refers‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌adaptability‌ ‌enabled‌ ‌by‌ ‌Lifetime‌ ‌Homes‌ ‌and‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌‌                         
internal‌‌size‌‌and‌‌layout‌‌of‌‌homes‌‌which‌‌are‌‌both‌‌essential‌‌factors‌‌to‌‌consider‌‌if‌‌new‌‌                             
homes‌ ‌are‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌built‌ ‌to‌ ‌a‌ ‌standard‌ ‌which‌ ‌enables‌ ‌people‌ ‌to‌ ‌have‌ ‌a‌ ‌reasonable‌‌                             
standard‌ ‌of‌ ‌living‌ ‌accommodation.‌ ‌ 

Future‌ ‌occupant‌ ‌amenit‌y‌‌ ‌  

The‌ ‌proposal‌ ‌involves‌ ‌partly‌ ‌two‌ ‌storey‌ ‌and‌ ‌partly‌ ‌single‌ ‌storey‌ ‌single‌ ‌aspect‌‌                       
development‌‌it‌‌is‌‌therefore‌‌very‌‌important‌‌that‌‌the‌‌arrangement‌‌of‌‌development‌‌does‌‌                       
not‌ ‌cause‌ ‌detrimental‌ ‌inter-looking‌ ‌between‌ ‌the‌ ‌properties‌ ‌and‌ ‌they‌ ‌have‌ ‌an‌‌                     
acceptable‌ ‌level‌ ‌of‌ ‌privacy,‌ ‌light,‌ ‌safety‌ ‌and‌ ‌space.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

The‌‌proposal‌‌involves‌‌one‌‌bedroom‌‌flats‌‌at‌‌50sqm‌‌and‌‌two‌‌bedroom‌‌flats‌‌at‌‌70sqm.‌‌                           
The‌ ‌size‌ ‌complies‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌National‌ ‌Space‌ ‌Standards.‌ ‌The‌ ‌minimum‌ ‌distance‌‌                     
between‌‌the‌‌front‌‌of‌‌the‌‌properties‌‌is‌‌approx‌‌11m,‌‌which‌‌is‌‌not‌‌dissimilar‌‌and‌‌greater‌‌                             
than‌ ‌the‌ ‌distance‌ ‌between‌ ‌properties‌ ‌in‌ ‌Cobden‌ ‌Road.‌ ‌The‌ ‌development‌ ‌is‌ ‌‘u’‌‌                       
shaped‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌open‌ ‌aspect‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌front‌ ‌south‌ ‌elevation.‌ ‌The‌ ‌development‌ ‌will‌‌                         
provide‌ ‌a‌ ‌degree‌ ‌of‌ ‌natural‌ ‌light‌ ‌for‌ ‌all‌ ‌properties.‌‌ ‌  

26



‌ 
‌ 

‌ 
The‌ ‌layout‌ ‌indicates‌ ‌that‌ ‌all‌ ‌habitable‌ ‌rooms‌ ‌would‌ ‌have‌ ‌external‌ ‌windows‌‌looking‌‌                       
over‌‌an‌‌amenity‌‌space.‌‌The‌‌Environmental‌‌Health‌‌officers‌‌have‌‌raised‌‌concerns‌‌that‌‌                       
the‌‌bedrooms‌‌in‌‌the‌‌southern‌‌flats‌ ‌are‌‌inner‌‌rooms‌‌and‌‌that‌‌for‌‌escape‌‌purposes‌‌the‌‌                             
layout‌‌does‌‌not‌‌appear‌‌to‌‌meet‌‌the‌‌requirements‌‌to‌‌allow‌‌the‌‌use‌‌of‌‌fire‌‌suppression‌‌                             
particularly‌  ‌at‌ ‌first‌ ‌floor.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌concern‌ ‌of‌ ‌fire‌ ‌services‌‌reaching‌‌the‌‌site‌‌has‌‌also‌‌been‌‌raised‌‌by‌‌a‌‌number‌‌of‌‌                               
residents‌ ‌in‌ ‌response‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌neighbour‌ ‌consultation.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌applicants‌ ‌have‌ ‌taken‌ ‌on‌ ‌board‌‌the‌‌concerns‌‌of‌‌Environmental‌‌Health‌‌Officers‌‌                       
and‌ ‌neighbours‌ ‌and‌ ‌sought‌ ‌independent‌ ‌advice‌ ‌regarding‌ ‌West‌ ‌Sussex‌ ‌Fire‌ ‌and‌‌                     
Rescue‌ ‌Services‌ ‌requirements.‌ ‌WSFRS‌ ‌have‌ ‌indicated‌ ‌that‌ ‌with‌ ‌a‌ ‌full‌ ‌sprinkler‌‌                     
system‌ ‌that‌ ‌units‌ ‌can‌ ‌be‌ ‌a‌ ‌maximum‌ ‌of‌ ‌90m‌ ‌from‌ ‌an‌ ‌appliance.‌ ‌The‌ ‌applicant's‌‌                           
agent‌‌has‌‌measured‌‌the‌‌furthest‌‌corner‌‌of‌‌the‌‌site‌‌(which‌‌is‌‌anticipated‌‌to‌‌be‌‌ground‌‌                             
floor,‌ ‌Unit‌ ‌4)‌ ‌and‌ ‌this‌ ‌equals‌ ‌approximately‌ ‌72m‌ ‌when‌ ‌measured‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌kerb‌ ‌of‌‌                           
Norfolk‌ ‌Street.‌ ‌This‌ ‌measurement‌ ‌would‌ ‌appear‌ ‌to‌ ‌comply‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌guidance‌ ‌and‌‌                       
details‌‌would‌‌be‌‌secured‌‌by‌‌Building‌‌Control.‌‌The‌‌Applicant‌‌have‌‌also‌‌confirmed‌‌that‌‌                         
they‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌willing‌ ‌to‌ ‌offer‌ ‌a‌ ‌full‌ ‌sprinkler‌ ‌system‌ ‌for‌ ‌each‌ ‌residential‌ ‌unit.‌ ‌This‌‌                             
could‌ ‌be‌ ‌dealt‌ ‌with‌ ‌by‌ ‌condition.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

With‌‌regards‌‌to‌‌open‌‌space‌‌the‌‌Space‌‌Standards‌‌SPD‌‌indicates‌‌that‌ ‌a‌‌minimum‌‌of‌‌                           
20sqm‌ ‌per‌ ‌flat‌ ‌should‌ ‌be‌ ‌provided.‌ ‌This‌ ‌would‌ ‌equate‌ ‌to‌ ‌120sqm‌ ‌(6no.‌ ‌residential‌‌                         
units‌ ‌x‌ ‌20sqm).‌ ‌The‌ ‌applicant's‌ ‌agent‌ ‌has‌ ‌confirmed‌ ‌that‌ ‌125sqm‌ ‌of‌ ‌communal‌‌                       
amenity‌ ‌area‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌provided‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌‌central‌‌section‌‌of‌‌the‌‌site.‌‌The‌‌proposal‌‌                           
would‌ ‌therefore‌ ‌be‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with‌ ‌The‌ ‌Space‌ ‌Standards‌ ‌SPD.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

A‌‌number‌‌of‌‌local‌‌residents‌‌have‌‌raised‌‌concerns‌‌in‌‌relation‌‌to‌‌the‌‌access‌‌to‌‌the‌‌site‌‌                               
along‌ ‌a‌ ‌private,‌ ‌unmade‌ ‌road‌ ‌with‌ ‌no‌ ‌lighting.‌ ‌It‌ ‌is‌ ‌acknowledged‌ ‌that‌ ‌this‌ ‌is‌ ‌not‌‌                             
ideal‌ ‌for‌ ‌future‌ ‌residents‌ ‌however‌ ‌it‌ ‌is‌ ‌a‌ ‌material‌ ‌consideration‌‌that‌‌the‌‌principle‌‌of‌‌                           
residential‌‌development‌‌has‌‌been‌‌accepted‌‌on‌‌the‌‌site‌‌from‌‌the‌ ‌conversion‌‌of‌‌many‌                         
of‌‌the‌‌existing‌‌storage‌‌units.‌‌It‌‌is‌‌not‌‌therefore‌‌considered‌‌that‌‌the‌‌application‌‌could‌‌                           
be‌ ‌refused‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌basis‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌access‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌ ‌is‌ ‌inappropriate.‌ ‌ 

Neighbour‌ ‌amenity‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌‘Guide‌ ‌to‌ ‌Residential‌ ‌Development’‌ ‌SPD‌ ‌also‌ ‌provides‌ ‌guidance‌‌on‌‌siting‌‌and‌‌                       
relationship‌ ‌of‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌development‌ ‌on‌ ‌neighbouring‌ ‌properties.‌ ‌  ‌ 

The‌‌proposed‌‌development‌‌is‌‌on‌‌a‌‌backland‌‌site‌‌with‌‌residential‌‌development‌‌to‌‌the‌‌                         
south‌‌and‌‌west‌‌and‌‌a‌‌school‌‌to‌‌the‌‌north‌‌and‌‌partly‌‌to‌‌the‌‌east.‌‌The‌‌access‌‌would‌‌be‌‌                                   
to‌‌the‌‌rear‌‌and‌‌between‌‌properties‌‌on‌‌Cobden‌‌Road‌ ‌and‌‌Norfolk‌‌Street‌‌via‌‌a‌‌private‌‌                             
access‌ ‌way‌ ‌which‌ ‌local‌ ‌residents‌ ‌have‌ ‌indicated‌ ‌is‌ ‌for‌ ‌residents‌ ‌who‌ ‌have‌ ‌rights‌‌                         
over‌ ‌it‌ ‌only,‌ ‌although‌ ‌it‌ ‌is‌ ‌used‌ ‌for‌ ‌passage‌ ‌particularly‌ ‌for‌ ‌pedestrians‌ ‌between‌‌                         
Norfolk‌ ‌Street‌ ‌and‌ ‌Clifton‌ ‌Road.‌‌There‌‌are‌‌properties‌‌which‌‌have‌‌frontage‌‌onto‌‌the‌‌                         
track‌ ‌although‌ ‌the‌ ‌majority‌ ‌of‌ ‌properties‌ ‌off‌ ‌Cobden‌ ‌Road(north)‌ ‌side‌ ‌have‌ ‌a‌ ‌rear‌‌                         
boundary‌ ‌and‌ ‌gardens‌ ‌facing‌ ‌the‌ ‌access‌ ‌road.‌‌ ‌  

The‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌development‌ ‌would‌ ‌have‌ ‌no‌ ‌vehicle‌ ‌parking‌ ‌on‌ ‌site‌ ‌with‌ ‌future‌‌                       
residents‌ ‌accessing‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌ ‌on‌ ‌foot‌ ‌or‌ ‌by‌ ‌cycle.‌ ‌It‌ ‌is‌ ‌acknowledged‌‌that‌‌there‌‌will‌‌                             

27



‌ 
‌ 

however‌‌also‌‌be‌‌the‌‌need‌‌for‌‌the‌‌proposed‌‌properties‌‌to‌‌be‌‌serviced‌‌by‌‌vehicles‌‌for‌‌                             
potential‌ ‌drop‌ ‌off,‌  ‌and‌ ‌deliveries‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌flats.‌‌ ‌  

The‌‌proposed‌‌dwellings‌‌are‌‌primarily‌‌single‌‌aspect‌‌facing‌‌into‌‌the‌‌site‌‌with‌‌high‌‌level‌‌                           
windows‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌southern‌ ‌elevation‌ ‌to‌ ‌four‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌flats.‌ ‌ 

Local‌ ‌residents‌ ‌have‌ ‌raised‌ ‌a‌ ‌number‌ ‌of‌ ‌concerns‌ ‌as‌ ‌highlighted‌ ‌above,‌ ‌these‌‌                       
include‌ ‌additional‌ ‌impact,‌ ‌noise‌‌and‌‌disturbance‌‌from‌‌the‌‌new‌‌development‌‌as‌‌well‌‌                       
as‌‌the‌‌use‌‌of‌‌the‌‌access‌‌track,‌‌overlooking,‌‌loss‌‌of‌‌privacy,‌‌contamination,‌‌flooding,‌‌                         
encroachment‌ ‌onto‌ ‌the‌ ‌road.‌ ‌Access,‌ ‌turning‌ ‌and‌ ‌parking‌ ‌will‌ ‌be‌ ‌dealt‌ ‌with‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌‌                           
section‌ ‌below.‌‌ ‌  

The‌‌proposed‌‌development‌‌would‌‌introduce‌‌6‌‌flats‌‌onto‌‌the‌‌site‌‌however‌‌this‌‌should‌‌                         
be‌‌weighed‌‌up‌‌against‌‌the‌‌previous‌‌prior‌‌approval‌‌for‌‌residential‌‌on‌‌this‌‌site‌‌as‌‌well‌‌                             
as‌ ‌any‌ ‌potential‌ ‌impacts‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌uses‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌site.‌‌ ‌  

It‌ ‌is‌ ‌appreciated‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposal‌ ‌has‌ ‌potential‌ ‌for‌ ‌increased‌ ‌activity‌ ‌for‌ ‌existing‌‌                         
residents‌ ‌through‌ ‌access‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌servicing‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌properties‌ ‌but‌ ‌as‌‌                           
highlighted‌ ‌above‌ ‌the‌ ‌use‌ ‌for‌ ‌residential‌ ‌has‌ ‌been‌ ‌established,‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌use‌‌                       
would‌‌increase‌‌the‌‌number‌‌of‌‌units‌‌previously‌‌approved‌‌from‌‌3‌‌to‌‌6‌‌but‌‌this‌‌allowed‌‌                             
for‌ ‌the‌ ‌retention‌ ‌of‌ ‌some‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌storage‌ ‌and‌ ‌workshop‌ ‌space.‌‌ ‌  

The‌‌use‌‌of‌‌the‌‌site‌‌also‌‌needs‌‌to‌‌be‌‌weighed‌‌up‌‌against‌‌the‌‌existing‌‌commercial‌‌use‌‌                               
of‌ ‌the‌ ‌site,‌ ‌although‌ ‌a‌ ‌low‌ ‌key‌ ‌operation‌ ‌as‌ ‌existing,‌ ‌it‌ ‌has‌ ‌potential‌ ‌for‌ ‌a‌ ‌more‌‌                               
intensive‌ ‌use‌ ‌which‌ ‌could‌ ‌have‌ ‌greater‌ ‌impact‌ ‌on‌ ‌surrounding‌ ‌residential‌ ‌properties.‌ ‌ 

It‌ ‌is‌ ‌considered‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌current‌ ‌proposal‌ ‌would‌ ‌provide‌ ‌a‌ ‌scheme‌ ‌which‌ ‌improves‌‌                         
the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌environment‌ ‌for‌ ‌existing‌ ‌and‌ ‌future‌ ‌residents‌ ‌with‌ ‌an‌ ‌appropriately‌‌                     
designed‌ ‌building‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌site.‌‌ ‌  

In‌ ‌terms‌ ‌of‌ ‌direct‌ ‌impact‌ ‌on‌ ‌residential‌ ‌amenity‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌development‌‌                     
predominantly‌ ‌faces‌‌into‌‌the‌‌courtyard‌‌with‌‌the‌‌only‌‌external‌‌facing‌‌windows‌‌on‌‌the‌‌                         
southern‌‌side‌‌which‌‌are‌‌high‌‌level.‌‌It‌‌is‌‌not‌‌considered‌‌that‌‌the‌‌proposal‌‌would‌‌cause‌‌                             
direct‌ ‌detrimental‌ ‌overlooking‌ ‌taking‌ ‌into‌ ‌account‌ ‌the‌ ‌siting‌ ‌and‌ ‌distance‌ ‌from‌‌                     
neighbouring‌‌properties.‌‌The‌‌proposed‌‌building‌‌would‌‌be‌‌on‌‌a‌‌similar‌‌footprint‌‌to‌‌the‌‌                         
existing‌ ‌development‌ ‌and‌ ‌of‌ ‌a‌ ‌similar‌ ‌height.‌ ‌Although‌ ‌there‌ ‌is‌ ‌a‌ ‌slight‌‌increase‌‌in‌‌                           
footprint‌‌at‌‌first‌‌floor,‌‌this‌‌is‌‌not‌‌considered‌‌to‌‌have‌‌a‌‌detrimental‌‌impact,‌‌loss‌‌of‌‌light‌‌                               
or‌‌visual‌‌impact‌‌on‌‌neighbouring‌‌properties‌‌in‌‌Cobden‌‌Road‌‌and‌‌Norfolk‌‌Terrace‌‌or‌‌                         
the‌‌school‌‌to‌‌the‌‌north.‌‌There‌‌is‌‌no‌‌indication‌‌that‌‌the‌‌proposal‌‌encroaches‌‌onto‌‌the‌‌                             
access‌ ‌track‌ ‌and‌ ‌notice‌ ‌No‌ ‌1‌ ‌has‌ ‌not‌ ‌been‌ ‌served.‌‌ ‌  

There‌ ‌are‌ ‌some‌ ‌residences‌ ‌which‌‌face‌‌onto‌‌the‌‌road‌‌and‌‌concern‌‌has‌‌been‌‌raised‌‌                           
about‌‌safety‌‌and‌‌the‌‌potential‌‌damage‌‌to‌‌the‌‌existing‌‌wall‌‌on‌‌the‌‌southern‌‌boundary‌‌                           
of‌‌the‌‌access‌‌road.‌‌As‌‌indicated‌‌above‌‌there‌‌would‌‌be‌‌no‌‌significant‌‌increase‌‌in‌‌use‌‌                             
than‌ ‌has‌ ‌previously‌ ‌been‌‌permitted,‌‌it‌‌is‌‌not‌‌envisaged‌‌that‌‌the‌‌development‌‌would‌‌                         
impact‌ ‌further‌ ‌on‌ ‌residents‌ ‌facing‌ ‌the‌ ‌access‌ ‌track‌ ‌or‌ ‌be‌ ‌more‌ ‌likely‌ ‌to‌ ‌cause‌‌                           
damage‌ ‌to‌ ‌walls‌ ‌or‌ ‌other‌ ‌structures‌ ‌along‌ ‌the‌ ‌track.‌ ‌ 

Concerns‌ ‌raised‌ ‌in‌ ‌relation‌ ‌to‌ ‌contamination‌ ‌and‌ ‌drainage‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌dealt‌ ‌with‌ ‌by‌‌                         
condition.‌‌ ‌  

28



‌ 
‌ 

Accessibility‌ ‌and‌ ‌parking‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌site‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌accessed‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌unmade‌ ‌private‌ ‌track‌ ‌which‌ ‌runs‌ ‌between‌‌                         
Norfolk‌ ‌Street‌ ‌and‌ ‌Clifton‌ ‌Road.‌ ‌The‌ ‌development‌ ‌would‌ ‌have‌ ‌no‌ ‌parking‌ ‌on‌ ‌site‌‌                         
and‌ ‌there‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌no‌ ‌turning‌ ‌or‌ ‌drop‌ ‌off.‌ ‌The‌ ‌site‌ ‌would‌ ‌have‌ ‌a‌ ‌covered‌ ‌cycle‌‌                               
building.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Local‌‌residents‌‌have‌‌raised‌‌concerns‌‌about‌‌the‌‌loss‌‌of‌‌turning‌‌area,‌‌the‌‌suitability‌‌of‌‌                           
the‌ ‌private‌ ‌access‌ ‌track‌ ‌for‌ ‌additional‌ ‌vehicles‌ ‌and‌ ‌particularly‌ ‌large‌ ‌vehicles‌ ‌and‌‌                       
parking.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

WSCC‌ ‌highways‌ ‌department‌ ‌has‌ ‌not‌ ‌raised‌ ‌any‌ ‌objection‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposal,‌ ‌they‌‌                       
indicate‌ ‌that‌ ‌existing‌ ‌accesses‌ ‌are‌ ‌operating‌ ‌safely‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposal‌ ‌would‌ ‌not‌‌                       
exacerbate‌ ‌an‌ ‌existing‌ ‌safety‌ ‌concern.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌turning‌ ‌area‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌application‌ ‌site‌ ‌exists‌ ‌due‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌nature‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌‌                             
development,‌‌it‌‌is‌‌not‌‌a‌‌formal‌‌turning‌‌area‌‌and‌‌its‌‌retention‌‌could‌‌not‌‌be‌‌insisted‌‌on‌‌                               
in‌ ‌connection‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌application.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌access‌ ‌track‌ ‌is‌ ‌in‌ ‌a‌ ‌poor‌ ‌condition‌ ‌and‌ ‌this‌ ‌is‌ ‌acknowledged‌‌and‌‌as‌‌indicated‌‌                             
earlier‌ ‌is‌ ‌not‌ ‌ideal‌ ‌to‌ ‌serve‌‌the‌‌proposed‌‌residential‌‌development.‌ ‌The‌‌applicant‌‌is‌‌                         
reluctant‌ ‌to‌ ‌agree‌ ‌to‌ ‌a‌ ‌grampian‌ ‌style‌ ‌condition‌ ‌requiring‌ ‌the‌ ‌track‌ ‌to‌‌be‌‌upgraded‌‌                           
and‌‌relies‌‌on‌‌the‌‌fact‌‌that‌‌permission‌‌has‌‌already‌‌been‌‌granted‌‌for‌‌the‌‌conversion‌‌of‌‌                             
the‌ ‌buildings‌ ‌to‌ ‌residential‌ ‌use‌ ‌under‌ ‌permitted‌ ‌developments‌ ‌without‌ ‌any‌ ‌road‌‌                     
improvements.‌ ‌Whilst,‌ ‌the‌ ‌previous‌ ‌prior‌ ‌approval‌ ‌for‌ ‌residential‌ ‌conversion‌ ‌is‌ ‌a‌‌                     
material‌ ‌consideration‌ ‌access‌ ‌was‌ ‌not‌ ‌a‌ ‌relevant‌ ‌consideration‌‌under‌‌this‌‌process.‌ ‌                     
However,‌‌this‌‌planning‌‌application‌‌does‌‌require‌‌a‌‌wider‌‌analysis‌‌and‌‌Members‌‌have‌‌                       
expressed‌‌concern‌‌about‌‌the‌‌adequacy‌‌of‌‌the‌‌access‌‌to‌‌meet‌‌the‌‌needs‌‌of‌‌all‌‌future‌‌                             
occupants‌ ‌(including‌ ‌those‌ ‌less‌ ‌able).‌ ‌In‌ ‌the‌ ‌circumstances‌ ‌and‌ ‌given‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌‌                       
applicant‌‌has‌‌not‌‌been‌‌able‌‌to‌‌identify‌‌the‌‌owner,‌‌a‌‌condition‌‌requiring‌‌improvements‌‌                         
prior‌ ‌to‌ ‌occupation‌ ‌does‌ ‌seem‌ ‌reasonable‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌circumstances.‌ ‌ ‌   
‌ 

Unfortunately‌ ‌the‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌and‌ ‌Access‌ ‌Mobility‌‌Group‌‌does‌‌not‌‌currently‌‌exist‌‌and‌‌                       
therefore‌‌it‌‌has‌‌not‌‌been‌‌possible‌‌to‌‌seek‌‌guidance.‌ ‌However,‌‌national‌‌guidance‌‌on‌‌                         
inclusive‌ ‌mobility‌ ‌is‌ ‌clear‌ ‌that,‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Uneven‌‌surfaces,‌‌gaps‌‌between‌‌paving‌‌slabs‌‌etc‌‌whether‌‌within‌‌or‌‌outside‌‌buildings‌‌                       
can‌ ‌cause‌ ‌problems‌ ‌for‌ ‌people‌ ‌using‌ ‌sticks‌ ‌and‌ ‌crutches,‌ ‌visually‌ ‌impaired‌ ‌cane‌‌                       
users‌‌and‌‌wheelchair‌‌users.‌‌Joints‌‌between‌‌flags‌‌and‌‌pavers‌‌should‌‌not‌‌be‌‌less‌‌than‌‌                           
2mm‌ ‌and‌ ‌not‌‌more‌‌than‌‌5mm‌‌wide.‌‌For‌‌pedestrian-only‌‌footways,‌‌flags‌‌can‌‌be‌‌laid‌‌                           
with‌ ‌wider‌ ‌joints‌ ‌(6-10mm)‌ ‌filled‌ ‌with‌ ‌compacted‌ ‌mortar.‌ ‌Maximum‌ ‌deviation‌‌of‌‌the‌‌                       
footway‌ ‌surface‌ ‌under‌ ‌a‌ ‌1‌ ‌metre‌ ‌straight‌ ‌edge‌ ‌should‌ ‌not‌ ‌exceed‌ ‌3mm.‌ ‌New‌‌                         
cobbled‌ ‌surfaces‌ ‌are‌ ‌unlikely‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌appropriate‌ ‌and,‌‌even‌‌in‌‌historic‌‌environments,‌‌                       
alternatives‌ ‌should‌ ‌be‌ ‌sought.‌ ‌ek‌ ‌guidance‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌acceptability‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌current‌‌                       
proposal.‌ ‌ ‌   
‌ 

Whilst,‌ ‌Part‌ ‌M‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Building‌ ‌Regulations‌ ‌also‌ ‌talks‌ ‌about‌ ‌level‌ ‌access‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌‌                           
disabled‌‌it‌‌often‌‌does‌‌not‌‌apply‌‌beyond‌‌the‌‌development‌‌site.‌ ‌However,‌‌the‌‌general‌‌                         
guidance‌ ‌does‌ ‌say‌ ‌for‌ ‌all‌ ‌approach‌ ‌roads‌ ‌to‌ ‌dwellings‌ ‌should‌ ‌have‌ ‌appropriate‌‌                       
surfacing.‌ ‌ 

29



‌ 
‌ 

‌ 
Given‌ ‌the‌ ‌above‌ ‌guidance‌ ‌it‌ ‌is‌‌considered‌‌reasonable‌‌to‌‌require‌‌an‌‌upgrade‌‌to‌‌the‌‌                           
surface‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌track‌ ‌and‌ ‌this‌ ‌can‌ ‌be‌ ‌secured‌ ‌by‌ ‌way‌ ‌of‌ ‌a‌ ‌suitably‌ ‌worded‌‌                               
condition.‌ ‌The‌ ‌ownership‌ ‌of‌‌the‌‌Lane‌‌is‌‌in‌‌some‌‌dispute‌‌as‌‌Members‌‌heard‌‌at‌‌the‌‌                             
last‌ ‌meeting‌ ‌and‌ ‌many‌ ‌residents‌ ‌have‌ ‌indicated‌ ‌that‌ ‌they‌ ‌would‌ ‌resist‌ ‌any‌‌                       
improvements‌ ‌which‌ ‌might‌ ‌encourage‌‌additional‌‌vehicle‌‌movements.‌ ‌Your‌‌Officers‌‌                 
have‌‌seen‌‌conveyances‌‌that‌‌suggest‌‌that‌‌all‌‌properties‌‌have‌‌a‌‌right‌‌of‌‌way‌‌over‌‌the‌‌                             
Lane‌ ‌(which‌ ‌would‌ ‌normally‌ ‌be‌ ‌the‌ ‌case).‌ ‌However,‌ ‌the‌ ‌Cobden‌ ‌Road‌ ‌Residents‌‌                       
Assoc.‌ ‌suggest‌ ‌that‌ ‌a‌ ‌number‌ ‌of‌ ‌properties‌ ‌actually‌ ‌own‌ ‌the‌ ‌road‌ ‌and‌ ‌would‌‌                         
therefore‌‌be‌‌able‌‌to‌‌resist‌‌any‌‌improvements.‌ ‌The‌‌applicant‌‌has‌‌been‌‌requested‌‌to‌                         
comment‌‌on‌‌these‌‌claims‌‌but‌‌at‌‌the‌‌present‌ ‌stage‌‌the‌‌applicants‌‌agents‌‌maintains‌‌                         
that:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

‘From‌‌a‌‌review‌‌of‌‌the‌‌letters‌‌sent‌‌into‌‌the‌‌Council‌‌since‌‌the‌‌Planning‌‌Committee,‌‌as‌‌                             
noted‌‌below‌‌we‌‌do‌‌not‌‌consider‌‌that‌‌these‌‌raise‌‌any‌‌further‌‌issues‌‌than‌‌those‌‌known‌‌                             
about‌‌on‌‌the‌‌evening.‌‌The‌‌most‌‌recent‌‌letters‌‌from‌‌residents‌‌claim‌‌part‌‌ownership‌‌of‌‌                           
the‌‌lane‌‌but‌‌there‌‌has‌‌been‌‌no‌‌evidence‌‌produced‌‌to‌‌substantiate‌‌this‌‌by‌‌residents.‌‌                           
Register‌‌plans/title‌‌information‌‌shows‌‌that‌‌the‌‌resident‌‌domains‌‌fall‌‌at‌‌their‌‌rear‌‌walls‌‌                         
and‌‌do‌‌not‌‌include‌‌any‌‌of‌‌the‌‌lane‌‌(albeit‌‌they‌‌all‌‌have‌‌access,‌‌as‌‌do‌‌the‌‌applicants‌‌                                 
and‌ ‌public).‌ ‌The‌ ‌‘burden’‌ ‌referred‌ ‌to‌ ‌is‌ ‌a‌ ‌covenant‌ ‌that‌ ‌seeks‌ ‌that‌ ‌residents‌‌pay‌‌a‌‌                             
‘fair‌‌portion‌‌‘‌‌to‌‌the‌‌upkeep‌‌and‌‌maintenance‌‌of‌‌the‌‌road‌‌which‌‌clearly‌‌does‌‌not‌‌take‌‌                               
place.‌ ‌ 
‌ ‌  
There‌ ‌could‌ ‌not‌ ‌be‌ ‌any‌ ‌rights‌ ‌of‌ ‌adverse‌ ‌possession‌ ‌granted‌ ‌as‌ ‌no‌ ‌one‌ ‌has‌‌                           
exclusive‌‌use‌‌of‌‌the‌‌lane.‌ ‌Therefore,‌‌the‌‌applicants‌‌are‌‌able‌‌to‌‌repair‌‌and‌‌maintain‌‌                           
the‌ ‌lane‌ ‌as‌ ‌required‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌ ‌Council‌ ‌and‌ ‌have‌ ‌undertaken‌ ‌to‌ ‌consult‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌‌                           
residents‌‌before‌‌doing‌‌so.‌‌On‌‌this‌‌basis‌‌we‌‌don’t‌‌see‌‌any‌‌need‌‌to‌‌report‌‌back‌‌to‌‌the‌‌                                 
Planning‌ ‌Committee‌ ‌and‌ ‌request‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌decision‌ ‌notice‌ ‌is‌ ‌issued.’‌ ‌ 
‌ ‌  

In‌‌the‌‌circumstances,‌‌your‌‌Officers‌‌consider‌‌that‌‌there‌‌is‌‌a‌‌reasonable‌‌prospect‌‌that‌‌                         
the‌‌applicant‌‌can‌‌secure‌‌some‌‌improvements‌‌to‌‌the‌‌Lane.‌ ‌The‌‌applicant‌‌has‌‌in‌‌this‌‌                           
respect‌ ‌still‌‌committed‌‌to‌‌engage‌‌with‌‌the‌‌owners‌‌(if‌‌ownership‌‌can‌‌be‌‌proven)‌‌and‌‌                           
given‌ ‌the‌ ‌comments‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌local‌ ‌Residents‌ ‌Association‌ ‌an‌ ‌early‌ ‌meeting‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌‌                         
residents‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌beneficial.‌ ‌ 
‌ ‌  
In‌‌terms‌‌of‌‌parking‌‌WSCC‌‌have‌‌not‌‌raised‌‌any‌‌concerns‌‌to‌‌the‌‌nil‌‌parking‌‌provision‌‌                             
indicating‌ ‌that‌ ‌they‌ ‌can‌ ‌be‌ ‌accommodated‌ ‌on-street.‌ ‌They‌ ‌acknowledge‌ ‌that‌‌                   
on-street‌ ‌parking‌ ‌is‌ ‌limited‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌area‌ ‌but‌ ‌indicate‌ ‌that‌ ‌there‌ ‌are‌ ‌comprehensive‌‌                         
parking‌‌restrictions‌‌in‌‌place‌‌prohibiting‌‌vehicles‌‌from‌‌parking‌‌in‌‌places‌‌that‌‌would‌‌be‌‌                         
a‌‌detriment‌‌to‌‌highway‌‌safety.‌‌The‌‌LHA‌‌does‌‌not‌‌anticipate‌‌that‌‌the‌‌proposed‌‌nil‌‌car‌‌                             
parking‌ ‌provision‌ ‌would‌ ‌result‌ ‌in‌ ‌a‌ ‌severe‌ ‌highway‌ ‌safety‌ ‌concern.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

The‌ ‌applicant‌ ‌has‌ ‌provided‌ ‌a‌ ‌cycle‌ ‌parking‌ ‌store‌ ‌for‌‌ten‌‌cycles.‌‌Cycling‌‌is‌‌a‌‌viable‌‌                             
option‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌area‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌inclusion‌ ‌of‌ ‌secure‌ ‌and‌ ‌covered‌ ‌cycle‌ ‌storage‌ ‌will‌ ‌help‌‌                             
promote‌ ‌the‌ ‌use‌ ‌of‌ ‌sustainable‌ ‌transport‌ ‌methods.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌site‌ ‌is‌ ‌in‌ ‌a‌ ‌sustainable‌ ‌location‌ ‌within‌ ‌walking‌ ‌distance‌ ‌of‌ ‌buses‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌‌train‌‌                             
station‌‌and‌‌is‌‌within‌‌close‌‌proximity‌‌of‌‌the‌‌town‌‌centre‌‌and‌‌other‌‌local‌‌facilities.‌‌It‌‌is‌‌                               
not‌ ‌therefore‌‌considered‌‌that‌‌the‌‌application‌‌could‌‌be‌‌refused‌‌on‌‌lack‌‌of‌‌parking‌‌on‌‌                           
site.‌ ‌ 

30



‌ 
‌ 

‌ 
Sustainability‌‌ ‌  

‌ 
Policy‌ ‌17‌ ‌is‌ ‌concerned‌ ‌about‌ ‌Sustainable‌ ‌Construction‌ ‌and‌ ‌states‌ ‌that‌ ‌‘all‌ ‌new‌‌                       
development‌‌will‌‌contribute‌‌to‌‌making‌‌Worthing‌‌a‌‌more‌‌sustainable‌‌place‌‌to‌‌live‌‌and‌                         
work‌ ‌by‌ ‌reducing‌ ‌its‌ ‌contribution‌‌to‌‌carbon‌‌emissions‌‌and‌‌ensuring‌‌that‌‌the‌‌town‌‌is‌‌                           
resilient‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌local‌ ‌impacts‌ ‌of‌ ‌climate‌ ‌change’.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

In‌ ‌terms‌ ‌of‌ ‌residential‌ ‌development,‌ ‌Policy‌ ‌17‌ ‌goes‌ ‌on‌ ‌to‌ ‌state‌ ‌that‌ ‌“All‌ ‌new‌‌                           
residential‌ ‌development‌ ‌must‌ ‌achieve‌ ‌as‌ ‌a‌ ‌minimum‌ ‌the‌ ‌national/regional/local‌‌                 
targets‌ ‌and‌ ‌standards‌ ‌for‌ ‌sustainable‌ ‌construction‌ ‌with‌ ‌a‌ ‌particular‌ ‌emphasis‌ ‌on‌‌                     
water‌ ‌efficiency.”‌ ‌  
‌ 

The‌ ‌applicant‌ ‌has‌ ‌indicated‌ ‌that‌ ‌sustainability‌ ‌has‌ ‌been‌ ‌fully‌ ‌considered‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌‌                       
preparation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposals.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Included‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposal:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

● Modern‌ ‌Methods‌ ‌of‌ ‌Construction‌ ‌ 
● Efficient‌ ‌low‌ ‌carbon‌ ‌energy‌ ‌sources‌ ‌ 
● Insulation‌ ‌and‌ ‌air‌ ‌changes‌ ‌designed‌ ‌to‌ ‌ensure‌ ‌space‌ ‌heating‌ ‌load‌ ‌will‌ ‌be‌‌                       

reduced.‌ ‌ 
● A‌ ‌high‌ ‌level‌ ‌of‌ ‌air‌ ‌tightness‌ ‌ 
● Good‌ ‌natural‌ ‌lighting‌ ‌ 
● Low‌ ‌energy‌ ‌lighting‌ ‌more‌ ‌than‌ ‌building‌ ‌regulation‌ ‌requirements‌ ‌ 
● Appliances‌ ‌rated‌ ‌A‌ ‌or‌ ‌A+‌ ‌for‌ ‌energy‌ ‌and‌ ‌water‌ ‌consumption‌ ‌ 
● The‌‌use‌‌of‌‌water‌‌efficient‌‌goods‌‌and‌‌fittings‌‌such‌‌as‌‌aerated‌‌taps‌‌and‌‌low‌‌flow‌‌                             

showers.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

As‌ ‌reported‌ ‌at‌ ‌the‌ ‌last‌ ‌meeting‌ ‌the‌ ‌applicant‌ ‌is‌ ‌willing‌ ‌to‌ ‌meet‌ ‌the‌ ‌new‌ ‌Part‌ ‌L‌‌                               
Building‌ ‌Regulations‌ ‌which‌ ‌come‌ ‌into‌ ‌force‌ ‌next‌ ‌June‌ ‌and‌ ‌this‌ ‌will‌ ‌ensure‌‌that‌‌the‌‌                           
improved‌ ‌energy‌ ‌efficiency‌ ‌and‌ ‌renewable‌ ‌energy‌ ‌targets‌ ‌set‌ ‌out‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌Councils‌‌                       
Sustainability‌ ‌Code‌ ‌will‌ ‌be‌ ‌met‌ ‌and‌ ‌this‌ ‌can‌ ‌be‌ ‌secured‌ ‌by‌ ‌condition.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Recommendation‌ ‌ 
‌ 

APPROVE‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

subject‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌following‌ ‌conditions‌ ‌:-‌ ‌ 
‌ ‌   

1. Approved‌ ‌Plans‌ ‌ 
2. Full‌ ‌permission‌ ‌ 
3. Submission‌ ‌of‌ ‌details‌ ‌of‌ ‌materials‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌building,‌ ‌external‌ ‌areas‌ ‌and‌ ‌gates‌ ‌ 
4. cycle‌ ‌building‌ ‌provided‌‌ ‌  
5. Construction‌ ‌method‌ ‌statement‌ ‌ 
6. Hours‌ ‌of‌ ‌construction‌ ‌work‌ ‌ 
7. Sprinkler‌ ‌system‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌provided‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with‌ ‌standards‌ ‌ 
8. Surface‌ ‌water‌ ‌drainage‌ ‌details‌ ‌submitted‌ ‌ 
9. Maintenance‌ ‌of‌ ‌surface‌ ‌water‌ ‌drainage‌ ‌system‌ ‌ 
10. Submission‌ ‌of‌ ‌details‌ ‌of‌ ‌risks‌ ‌from‌ ‌contaminates‌ ‌on‌ ‌site‌ ‌ 

31



‌ 
‌ 

11. Refuse‌ ‌and‌ ‌waste‌ ‌facilities‌ ‌provided‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌plans‌ ‌ 
12. Details‌‌of‌‌the‌‌landscaping‌‌of‌‌the‌‌communal‌‌amenity‌‌area‌‌and‌‌the‌‌green‌‌roof‌‌on‌‌                           

the‌ ‌cycle‌ ‌store‌ ‌including‌ ‌maintenance.‌ ‌ 
13. Details‌ ‌of‌ ‌measures‌ ‌of‌ ‌sustainability‌ ‌including‌ ‌use‌ ‌of‌ ‌renewable‌ ‌energy‌ ‌ 
14. Prior‌ ‌to‌ ‌occupation‌ ‌of‌‌the‌‌dwellings‌‌hereby‌‌approved‌‌the‌‌access‌‌track‌‌serving‌‌                       

the‌‌development‌‌shall‌‌be‌‌improved‌‌in‌‌accordance‌‌with‌‌details‌‌first‌‌submitted‌‌to‌‌                       
and‌ ‌approved‌ ‌in‌ ‌writing‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌LPA.‌‌  

‌ 
‌ 

‌   

32



‌ 
‌ 

APPENDIX‌ ‌I‌ ‌ 

‌ 

33



‌ 
‌ 

‌ 
‌ 

34



‌ 
‌ 

‌ 
‌ 

35



‌ 
‌ 

‌ 
‌ 

36



‌ 
‌ 

‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

20‌ ‌October‌ ‌2021‌ ‌ 

37



‌ 
‌ 

‌ 
‌ 

Local‌ ‌Government‌ ‌Act‌ ‌1972‌‌ ‌  
Background‌ ‌Papers:‌ ‌ 

‌ 
As‌ ‌referred‌ ‌to‌ ‌in‌ ‌individual‌ ‌application‌ ‌reports‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Contact‌ ‌Officers:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

James‌ ‌Appleton‌ ‌ 
Head‌ ‌of‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌&‌ ‌Development‌ ‌ 
Portland‌ ‌House‌ ‌ 
01903‌ ‌221333‌ ‌ 
james.appleton@adur-worthing.gov.uk‌ ‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

Jackie‌ ‌Fox‌ ‌ 
Senior‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Officer‌ ‌ 
Portland‌ ‌House‌ ‌ 
01903‌ ‌221312‌ ‌ 
jacqueline.fox@adur-worthing.gov.uk‌ ‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

‌   

38

mailto:james.appleton@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:jacqueline.fox@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:peter.barnett@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:peter.barnett@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:peter.barnett@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:peter.barnett@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:peter.barnett@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:peter.barnett@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:peter.barnett@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:peter.barnett@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:peter.barnett@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:peter.barnett@adur-worthing.gov.uk


‌ 
‌ 

2‌ ‌ 
‌ 

‌ 
‌ 

‌ 
‌ 

Reproduced‌ ‌from‌ ‌OS‌ ‌Mapping‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌permission‌ ‌of‌ ‌HMSO‌ ‌©‌ ‌Crown‌ ‌Copyright‌ ‌Licence‌ ‌number‌ ‌LA100024321‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Application‌ ‌Number:‌ ‌  AWDM/1875/21‌ ‌  Recommendation‌ ‌-‌ ‌REFUSE‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Site:‌ ‌  Kingswood‌ ‌Home,‌ ‌140‌ ‌Heene‌ ‌Road‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Proposal:‌ ‌  Conversion‌ ‌of‌ ‌existing‌ ‌care‌ ‌home‌ ‌to‌ ‌provide‌ ‌7no.‌‌ 
residential‌ ‌apartments‌ ‌involving‌ ‌demolition‌ ‌of‌‌ 
attached‌ ‌conservatory;‌ ‌development‌ ‌of‌ ‌a‌ ‌detached‌‌ 
2-bedroom‌ ‌bungalow‌ ‌to‌ ‌south‌ ‌side‌ ‌and‌ ‌adaptation‌ ‌and‌‌ 
enlargement‌ ‌of‌ ‌original‌ ‌coach‌ ‌house‌ ‌to‌ ‌provide‌ ‌a‌‌ 
3-bedroom‌ ‌dwelling‌ ‌(9no.‌ ‌dwellings‌ ‌in‌ ‌total)‌ ‌plus‌ ‌7no.‌‌ 
parking‌ ‌spaces‌  ‌(resubmission‌ ‌of‌ ‌planning‌ ‌application‌‌ 
AWDM/0601/21).‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Applicant:‌ ‌  Mr‌ ‌Mika‌ ‌Ramful‌ ‌  Ward:‌ ‌Heene‌ ‌ 
Agent:‌ ‌  James‌ ‌Breckell‌ ‌Architects‌ ‌ 
Case‌ ‌Officer:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Ms‌ ‌Jo‌ ‌Morin‌ ‌ 

39



‌ 
‌ 

Site‌ ‌and‌ ‌Surroundings‌ ‌  

The‌ ‌application‌ ‌relates‌ ‌to‌ ‌a‌ ‌grand‌ ‌Edwardian‌ ‌villa‌ ‌occupying‌ ‌a‌ ‌corner‌ ‌plot‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌‌                           
south‌ ‌east‌ ‌side‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌junction‌ ‌of‌ ‌Heene‌ ‌Road‌ ‌with‌ ‌Manor‌ ‌Road.‌ ‌The‌ ‌property‌‌                           
consists‌ ‌of‌ ‌accommodation‌ ‌over‌ ‌3‌ ‌floors‌ ‌including‌ ‌rooms‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌roof.‌ ‌It‌ ‌has‌ ‌been‌‌                           
enlarged‌ ‌by‌ ‌a‌ ‌2-storey‌ ‌rear‌ ‌extension‌ ‌and‌ ‌large‌ ‌UPVC‌ ‌conservatory‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌south‌‌                         
side.‌ ‌An‌ ‌original‌ ‌‘coach‌ ‌house’‌ ‌(or‌ ‌garage‌ ‌building)‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌east‌‌side‌‌boundary‌‌has‌‌                           
been‌‌enlarged‌‌incrementally‌‌by‌‌single-storey‌‌additions‌‌and‌‌is‌‌now‌‌linked‌‌to‌‌the‌‌rear‌‌                         
corner‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌main‌ ‌villa‌ ‌and‌ ‌also‌‌a‌‌former‌‌outbuilding‌‌in‌‌the‌‌far‌‌southeast‌‌corner‌‌of‌‌                               
the‌ ‌grounds.‌ ‌The‌ ‌latter‌ ‌is‌ ‌also‌ ‌attached‌ ‌to‌ ‌an‌ ‌outbuilding‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌neighbouring‌‌                         
property‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌south‌ ‌(No.138‌ ‌Heene‌ ‌Road).‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌application‌ ‌property‌ ‌is‌ ‌currently‌ ‌vacant‌ ‌but‌ ‌had‌ ‌previously‌ ‌been‌ ‌used‌ ‌as‌ ‌a‌‌                         
residential‌‌care‌‌home‌‌(Class‌‌C2)‌‌since‌‌1990.‌‌Prior‌‌to‌‌1990‌‌the‌‌property‌‌was‌‌a‌‌hotel.‌‌                             
The‌ ‌property‌ ‌is‌ ‌identified‌ ‌as‌ ‌a‌ ‌‘Local‌ ‌Interest‌ ‌Building’‌ ‌and‌ ‌makes‌ ‌a‌ ‌positive‌‌                         
contribution‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌character‌ ‌and‌ ‌appearance‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Heene‌ ‌Conservation‌ ‌Area‌ ‌in‌‌                       
which‌ ‌it‌ ‌is‌‌located.‌‌The‌‌building‌‌exhibits‌‌a‌‌wealth‌‌of‌‌character‌‌features,‌‌constructed‌‌                         
in‌‌red/orange‌‌brick‌‌with‌‌tile-hung‌‌and‌‌part-timbered‌‌feature‌‌panels,‌‌a‌‌plain‌‌clay-tiled‌‌                       
roof‌‌with‌‌finials,‌‌chimneys‌‌and‌‌open-rafter‌‌feet.‌‌It‌‌incorporates‌‌a‌‌mix‌‌of‌‌bay,‌‌oriel‌‌and‌‌                             
‘jettied’‌ ‌windows‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌roadside‌ ‌elevation‌ ‌and‌ ‌represents‌‌a‌‌fine‌‌example‌‌of‌‌grand‌                         
Edwardian‌ ‌domestic‌ ‌architecture.‌ ‌ 

An‌‌L-shaped‌‌area‌‌of‌‌tarmac‌‌hardstanding‌‌on‌‌the‌‌north‌‌side‌‌of‌‌the‌‌building‌‌is‌‌served‌‌                             
by‌‌vehicle‌‌accesses‌‌off‌‌Heene‌‌Road‌‌and‌‌Manor‌‌Road.‌‌The‌‌northern‌‌site‌‌boundary‌‌is‌‌                           
defined‌‌by‌‌a‌‌distinctive‌‌flint‌‌and‌‌brick-dressed‌‌wall‌‌which‌‌is‌‌a‌‌characteristic‌‌feature‌‌of‌‌                           
the‌ ‌Conservation‌ ‌Area.‌ ‌The‌ ‌wall‌ ‌fronting‌ ‌Heene‌ ‌Road‌ ‌is‌ ‌not‌ ‌flint-faced‌ ‌but‌ ‌is‌‌                         
characterful‌‌nonetheless‌‌having‌‌imposing‌‌‘rusticated’‌‌piers.‌‌Hedging‌‌and‌‌mature‌‌soft‌‌                   
planting‌‌within‌‌the‌‌garden‌‌to‌‌the‌‌south‌‌and‌‌south-west‌‌of‌‌the‌‌building‌‌and‌‌around‌‌the‌‌                             
site‌ ‌perimeter‌ ‌also‌ ‌contributes‌ ‌positively‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌setting‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌building‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌‌                         
attractive‌ ‌character‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Conservation‌ ‌Area.‌ ‌ 

Adjoining‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌south,‌ ‌No.138‌ ‌comprises‌ ‌a‌ ‌detached,‌ ‌2-storey‌ ‌early‌ ‌to‌ ‌mid‌ ‌20th‌‌                         
Century‌‌house‌‌with‌‌garaging‌‌at‌‌the‌‌rear‌‌attached‌‌to‌‌the‌‌above-mentioned‌‌outbuilding‌‌                       
within‌ ‌the‌ ‌application‌ ‌site.‌‌ ‌  

Adjoining‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌east‌ ‌lies‌ ‌a‌ ‌detached‌ ‌Edwardian‌ ‌villa‌ ‌of‌ ‌a‌ ‌similar‌ ‌grand‌ ‌scale‌ ‌and‌‌                             
architectural‌ ‌style‌ ‌as‌ ‌the‌ ‌application‌ ‌property,‌ ‌currently‌ ‌in‌ ‌use‌ ‌as‌ ‌Holiday‌ ‌Flatlets‌‌                       
(Torrington‌ ‌Residential‌ ‌Houses‌ ‌&‌ ‌Flats,‌ ‌60‌ ‌Manor‌ ‌Road).‌ ‌ ‌   

Proposal‌ ‌ ‌   

The‌‌application‌‌seeks‌‌full‌‌permission‌‌to‌‌convert‌‌and‌‌alter‌‌the‌‌existing‌‌villa‌‌to‌‌provide‌‌                           
7no‌ ‌residential‌ ‌flats;‌ ‌adapt,‌ ‌alter‌ ‌and‌ ‌enlarge‌ ‌the‌ ‌former‌ ‌‘coach‌ ‌house’‌ ‌or‌ ‌garage‌‌                         
building‌‌to‌‌create‌‌a‌‌detached‌‌3-bedroom‌‌dwelling;‌‌and‌‌erect‌‌a‌‌detached‌‌2-bedroom‌‌                       
bungalow‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌south‌ ‌side‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌villa.‌‌ ‌  

The‌ ‌converted‌ ‌main‌ ‌villa‌ ‌building‌ ‌would‌ ‌consist‌ ‌of‌ ‌3no‌ ‌flats‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌ground-floor‌‌                         
involving‌ ‌the‌‌removal‌‌of‌‌an‌‌existing‌‌large‌‌UPVC‌‌conservatory‌‌attached‌‌to‌‌the‌‌south‌‌                         
side,‌ ‌and‌ ‌a‌ ‌single-storey‌ ‌addition‌ ‌currently‌ ‌linking‌ ‌the‌ ‌villa‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌‘coach‌ ‌house’‌‌                         
building.‌ ‌It‌ ‌is‌ ‌also‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌to‌ ‌remove‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌external‌ ‌stairs‌ ‌located‌ ‌towards‌‌                         
the‌ ‌rear‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌south‌ ‌side‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌villa‌ ‌which‌ ‌currently‌ ‌provide‌ ‌fire‌ ‌escape‌ ‌from‌‌the‌‌                               

40



‌ 
‌ 

accommodation‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌second-floor.‌ ‌The‌ ‌first-floor‌ ‌would‌ ‌consist‌ ‌of‌ ‌a‌ ‌further‌ ‌3no‌‌                       
flats‌‌plus‌‌1no‌‌flat‌‌formed‌‌on‌‌the‌‌second-floor‌‌within‌‌the‌‌roof.‌‌The‌‌latter‌‌would‌‌involve‌‌                             
the‌ ‌formation‌ ‌of‌ ‌an‌ ‌additional‌ ‌pitched-roof‌ ‌dormer‌ ‌window‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌southern‌ ‌roof‌‌                       
slope.‌ ‌ 

Although‌‌described‌‌on‌‌the‌‌application‌‌form‌‌as‌‌a‌‌proposed‌‌conversion‌‌of‌‌the‌‌existing‌‌                         
’coach‌‌house’,‌‌the‌‌submitted‌‌drawings‌‌indicate‌‌that‌‌little‌‌would‌‌remain‌‌of‌‌the‌‌original‌‌                         
building‌ ‌which‌ ‌has‌ ‌already‌ ‌been‌ ‌extensively‌ ‌altered‌ ‌by‌ ‌a‌ ‌series‌ ‌of‌ ‌incremental‌‌                       
additions‌ ‌and‌ ‌alterations.‌ ‌In‌ ‌essence‌ ‌it‌‌is‌‌proposed‌‌to‌‌remodel‌‌the‌‌existing‌‌building‌‌                         
with‌ ‌an‌ ‌altered‌ ‌footprint‌ ‌and‌ ‌a‌ ‌new‌ ‌raised‌ ‌roof‌ ‌to‌ ‌create‌ ‌a‌ ‌detached‌ ‌3-bedroom‌‌                           
‘coach‌ ‌house’‌ ‌style‌ ‌dwelling‌ ‌over‌ ‌2‌ ‌floors‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌first-floor‌ ‌accommodation‌‌                     
contained‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌roof.‌ ‌The‌ ‌southernmost‌ ‌part‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌building‌ ‌which‌‌                       
currently‌‌adjoins‌‌the‌‌garage‌‌at‌‌No.138‌‌Heene‌‌Road‌‌would‌‌be‌‌demolished‌‌to‌‌provide‌‌                         
the‌ ‌new‌ ‌dwelling‌ ‌with‌ ‌a‌ ‌small‌ ‌private‌ ‌garden‌ ‌on‌ ‌its‌ ‌south‌ ‌side.‌ ‌  

In‌‌addition‌‌it‌‌is‌‌proposed‌‌to‌‌erect‌‌a‌‌detached‌‌2-bedroom‌‌bungalow‌‌to‌‌the‌‌south‌‌side‌‌                             
of‌ ‌the‌ ‌main‌ ‌villa‌ ‌building,‌ ‌partly‌ ‌in‌ ‌place‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌removed‌ ‌UPVC‌ ‌conservatory,‌ ‌and‌‌                           
extending‌ ‌rearwards‌ ‌(east)‌ ‌towards‌ ‌the‌ ‌adapted‌ ‌and‌ ‌enlarged‌ ‌‘coach‌ ‌house’‌‌                   
dwelling.‌ ‌ ‌   

Alterations‌‌to‌‌the‌‌external‌‌area‌‌involve‌‌enlarging‌‌the‌‌existing‌‌hard-surfaced‌‌areas‌‌in‌‌                       
front‌ ‌(west)‌ ‌and‌ ‌north‌ ‌side‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌main‌ ‌villa‌‌to‌‌provide‌‌4‌‌car‌‌parking‌‌spaces‌‌on‌‌the‌‌                                 
frontage‌‌with‌‌a‌‌further‌‌3‌‌car‌‌parking‌‌spaces‌‌formed‌‌alongside‌‌the‌‌inside‌‌of‌‌the‌‌north‌‌                             
boundary‌ ‌wall.‌ ‌The‌ ‌existing‌ ‌tarmac‌ ‌areas‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌rear‌ ‌(east)‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌main‌‌villa‌‌would‌‌                             
largely‌‌be‌‌replaced‌‌with‌‌soft‌‌landscaping‌‌other‌‌than‌‌a‌‌narrow‌‌pedestrian‌‌access‌‌path‌‌                         
running‌‌parallel‌‌to‌‌the‌‌eastern‌‌site‌‌boundary‌‌leading‌‌to‌‌the‌‌front‌‌of‌‌the‌‌‘coach‌‌house’‌‌                             
dwelling.‌‌ ‌  

The‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌conversion‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌main‌ ‌villa‌ ‌to‌ ‌provide‌ ‌7no‌ ‌dwelling‌ ‌units,‌ ‌the‌‌                         
alterations‌ ‌and‌ ‌enlargements‌ ‌to‌ ‌create‌ ‌the‌ ‌‘coach‌ ‌house’‌ ‌dwelling‌ ‌with‌ ‌its‌ ‌small‌‌                       
private‌ ‌garden‌ ‌and‌ ‌access‌ ‌path,‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌layout‌ ‌and‌ ‌arrangement‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌‌                         
parking‌‌spaces‌‌are‌‌as‌‌approved‌‌under‌‌AWDM/0601/21.‌‌The‌‌main‌‌difference‌‌relating‌‌                     
to‌ ‌the‌ ‌current‌ ‌application‌ ‌is‌‌the‌‌proposed‌‌development‌‌of‌‌the‌‌detached,‌‌2-bedroom‌‌                       
bungalow‌‌on‌‌the‌‌south‌‌side‌‌of‌‌the‌‌villa‌‌within‌‌an‌‌area‌‌shown‌‌on‌‌the‌‌layout‌‌approved‌‌                               
under‌ ‌AWDM/0601/21‌ ‌as‌ ‌comprising‌ ‌a‌ ‌communal‌ ‌garden.‌‌ ‌  

Relevant‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌History‌‌ ‌  

WB/92/0510/FULL‌ ‌&‌ ‌WB/92/0511/CAC‌ ‌Conservation‌ ‌Area‌ ‌Consent‌ ‌to‌ ‌demolish‌‌               
garage‌ ‌and‌ ‌outbuildings‌ ‌and‌ ‌erection‌ ‌of‌ ‌2-storey‌ ‌extension.‌ ‌Refused‌ ‌and‌ ‌Appeal‌‌                     
Dismissed.‌ ‌ 

WB/94/0204/FULL‌ ‌Alterations‌ ‌and‌ ‌Extensions‌ ‌to‌ ‌South‌ ‌and‌ ‌East‌ ‌Elevations‌‌                 
Permitted‌ ‌28.03.1994.‌ ‌Implemented.‌ ‌ 

AWDM/1241/14‌ ‌Replacement‌ ‌porch‌‌and‌‌associated‌‌access‌‌ramp‌‌to‌‌north‌‌elevation‌‌                   
and‌ ‌conservatory‌ ‌to‌ ‌south‌ ‌elevation‌ ‌Permitted‌ ‌31.10.2014.‌ ‌Not‌ ‌implemented.‌ ‌ 

AWDM/0280/15‌ ‌Proposed‌ ‌ground‌ ‌floor‌ ‌single‌‌storey‌‌extension‌‌in‌‌south‌‌east‌‌corner‌‌                     
with‌ ‌alterations‌ ‌to‌ ‌second‌ ‌floor‌ ‌including‌ ‌new‌ ‌dormer‌ ‌window‌ ‌to‌ ‌south‌ ‌elevation.‌‌                       
Permitted‌ ‌27.04.2015.‌ ‌Partially‌ ‌implemented‌ ‌-‌ ‌except‌ ‌the‌ ‌dormer.‌ ‌ 

41



‌ 
‌ 

AWDM/0984/15‌‌Resubmission‌‌of‌‌AWDM/1241/14‌‌for‌‌revisions‌‌to‌‌replacement‌‌porch‌‌                 
and‌ ‌ramp.‌ ‌Permitted‌ ‌27.08.2015.‌ ‌Not‌ ‌implemented.‌ ‌ 

AWDM/1675/15‌ ‌Retention‌ ‌of‌ ‌replacement‌ ‌uPVC‌ ‌windows‌ ‌to‌ ‌north‌ ‌and‌ ‌west‌‌                   
elevations.‌ ‌Refused‌ ‌29.02.2016.‌ ‌Unauthorised‌ ‌UPVC‌ ‌windows‌ ‌to‌ ‌north‌ ‌and‌ ‌west‌‌                   
elevations‌ ‌were‌ ‌replaced‌ ‌in‌ ‌timber‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌requirements‌ ‌of‌ ‌an‌‌                       
Enforcement‌ ‌Notice‌ ‌served‌ ‌Jan‌ ‌2017‌ ‌(AWEN/0194/15).‌ ‌ ‌   

AWDM/0601/21‌ ‌Conversion‌ ‌and‌ ‌alteration‌ ‌of‌ ‌existing‌ ‌care‌ ‌home‌ ‌to‌ ‌create‌ ‌8no‌‌                     
residential‌‌units‌‌(including‌‌alterations‌‌to‌‌original‌‌coach‌‌house‌‌create‌‌a‌‌detached‌‌two‌‌                       
storey‌ ‌3no.‌ ‌bedroom‌ ‌dwelling)‌ ‌with‌ ‌provision‌ ‌of‌ ‌7no‌ ‌car‌ ‌parking‌‌spaces.‌‌Permitted‌‌                       
30.07.2021.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Consultations‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

West‌ ‌Sussex‌ ‌County‌ ‌Council:‌ ‌‌The‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Highway‌ ‌Authority‌ ‌(LHA)‌ ‌has‌‌raised‌‌no‌‌                       
objection‌ ‌on‌ ‌highway‌ ‌safety‌ ‌grounds‌ ‌commenting:-‌ ‌ 
‌ 

“The‌‌site‌‌benefits‌‌from‌‌planning‌‌permission‌‌granted‌‌by‌‌the‌‌LPA‌‌on‌‌30th‌‌July‌‌2021‌‌for‌‌                             
8‌‌residential‌‌units‌‌and‌‌7‌‌parking‌‌spaces.‌‌This‌‌revised‌‌application‌‌is‌‌for‌‌an‌‌additional‌‌                           
bungalow‌ ‌on‌‌the‌‌site‌‌taking‌‌the‌‌number‌‌of‌‌residential‌‌units‌‌to‌‌9.‌‌There‌‌are‌‌no‌‌other‌‌                               
changes‌ ‌to‌‌access‌‌or‌‌parking.‌‌As‌‌such,‌‌the‌‌LHA‌‌comments‌‌remain‌‌as‌‌stated‌‌in‌‌our‌‌                             
response‌‌to‌‌the‌‌previous‌‌planning‌‌application.‌ ‌The‌‌extra‌‌bungalow‌‌will‌‌not‌‌alter‌‌trip‌‌                         
generation‌ ‌to/from‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌ ‌to‌ ‌any‌ ‌level‌ ‌that‌ ‌may‌ ‌be‌ ‌unacceptable..‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

As‌‌previously‌‌mentioned,‌‌in‌‌terms‌‌of‌‌parking‌‌the‌‌site‌‌is‌‌located‌‌in‌‌the‌‌Heene‌‌ward‌‌of‌‌                               
Worthing,‌‌this‌‌ward‌‌relates‌‌to‌‌parking‌‌behaviour‌‌zone‌‌5‌‌under‌‌the‌‌WSCC‌‌Guidance‌‌                         
on‌ ‌Parking‌ ‌at‌ ‌New‌ ‌Developments‌ ‌(2020).‌ ‌The‌ ‌following‌ ‌parking‌ ‌standard‌ ‌for‌ ‌this‌‌                       
ward‌ ‌apply:-‌ ‌ 
‌ 

1‌ ‌bed‌ ‌units‌ ‌(0.6.per‌ ‌unit)‌ ‌=‌ ‌2‌ ‌=‌ ‌1.2‌ ‌spaces‌ ‌ 
2‌ ‌bed‌ ‌units‌ ‌(1.1‌ ‌per‌ ‌unit)‌ ‌=‌ ‌6‌ ‌=‌ ‌6.6‌ ‌spaces‌ ‌ 
3-bed‌ ‌units‌ ‌(1.6‌ ‌per‌ ‌unit)‌ ‌=‌ ‌1‌ ‌-‌ ‌1.6‌ ‌spaces‌ ‌ 
TOTAL‌ ‌residential‌ ‌only‌ ‌demand‌ ‌=‌ ‌9.4‌ ‌spaces‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Guidance‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌Parking‌ ‌Standards‌ ‌also‌ ‌needs‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌considered‌ ‌with‌ ‌reference‌ ‌to‌‌                         
visitor‌ ‌parking,‌ ‌disabled‌ ‌parking‌ ‌and‌ ‌cycle‌ ‌parking.‌ ‌It‌ ‌is‌ ‌understood‌ ‌that‌ ‌electric‌‌                       
vehicle‌ ‌charging‌ ‌will‌ ‌be‌ ‌provided‌ ‌for‌ ‌each‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌parking‌ ‌spaces‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌‌                           
site.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

There‌ ‌is‌ ‌no‌ ‌reference‌ ‌to‌ ‌visitor‌ ‌parking‌ ‌or‌ ‌parking‌ ‌for‌ ‌any‌ ‌unit‌ ‌with‌ ‌more‌‌than‌‌one‌‌                               
vehicle.‌ ‌Although‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌ ‌is‌‌in‌‌a‌‌sustainable‌‌location‌‌so‌‌there‌‌are‌‌other‌‌methods‌‌of‌‌                             
travel‌ ‌available.‌ ‌There‌ ‌is‌ ‌also‌ ‌unrestricted‌ ‌parking‌ ‌available‌ ‌on‌ ‌Manor‌ ‌Road‌ ‌and‌‌                       
Heene‌ ‌Road‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌junction‌ ‌protected‌ ‌by‌ ‌double‌ ‌yellow‌ ‌lines,‌ ‌so‌ ‌any‌ ‌overspill‌‌                         
parking‌ ‌is‌ ‌not‌ ‌expected‌ ‌to‌ ‌cause‌ ‌a‌ ‌highway‌ ‌safety‌ ‌issue,‌ ‌the‌ ‌LPA‌ ‌may‌ ‌wish‌ ‌to‌‌                             
consider‌ ‌overspill‌ ‌parking‌ ‌from‌ ‌an‌ ‌amenity‌ ‌issue.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌LHA‌ ‌does‌ ‌not‌ ‌consider‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposal‌ ‌would‌ ‌have‌ ‌an‌ ‌unacceptable‌ ‌impact‌ ‌on‌‌                         
highway‌ ‌safety‌ ‌or‌ ‌result‌ ‌in‌ ‌‘severe’‌ ‌cumulative‌ ‌impacts‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌operation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌                         

42



‌ 
‌ 

highway‌ ‌network,‌ ‌therefore‌ ‌is‌ ‌not‌ ‌contrary‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌NPPF‌ ‌(paragraph‌ ‌111)‌ ‌and‌ ‌that‌                         
there‌ ‌are‌ ‌no‌ ‌transport‌ ‌grounds‌ ‌to‌ ‌resist‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposal.”‌ ‌ ‌   
‌ 

Adur‌ ‌&‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌Councils:‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

The‌ ‌‌Conservation‌ ‌and‌ ‌Design‌ ‌Architect‌ ‌‌comments‌ ‌as‌ ‌follows:-‌ ‌ 

“The‌‌statutory‌‌definition‌‌of‌‌a‌‌conservation‌‌area‌‌is‌‌"an‌‌area‌‌of‌‌special‌‌architectural‌‌or‌‌                           
historic‌ ‌interest,‌ ‌the‌ ‌character‌ ‌or‌ ‌appearance‌ ‌of‌‌which‌‌it‌‌is‌‌desirable‌‌to‌‌preserve‌‌or‌‌                           
enhance".‌ ‌When‌ ‌considering‌ ‌any‌ ‌application,‌‌the‌‌Council‌‌has‌‌a‌‌duty‌‌to‌‌pay‌‌special‌‌                         
attention‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌desirability‌ ‌of‌ ‌preserving‌‌or‌‌enhancing‌‌the‌‌character‌‌or‌‌appearance‌‌                       
of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Conservation‌ ‌Area.‌ ‌As‌ ‌heritage‌ ‌assets‌ ‌are‌ ‌irreplaceable,‌ ‌any‌ ‌harm‌ ‌or‌ ‌loss‌‌                         
requires‌ ‌clear‌ ‌and‌ ‌convincing‌ ‌justification.‌ ‌ 

This‌ ‌application‌ ‌site‌ ‌occupies‌ ‌a‌ ‌prominent‌ ‌site‌ ‌at‌ ‌the‌ ‌junction‌ ‌of‌ ‌Heene‌ ‌Road‌ ‌and‌‌                           
Manor‌ ‌Road‌ ‌within‌‌the‌‌Heene‌‌Road‌‌Conservation‌‌Area.‌‌The‌‌area‌‌was‌‌laid‌‌out‌‌with‌‌                           
grand‌ ‌Victorian‌ ‌and‌ ‌Edwardian‌ ‌houses‌ ‌in‌ ‌spacious‌ ‌plots‌ ‌behind‌ ‌brick‌ ‌and‌ ‌flint‌‌                       
boundary‌ ‌walls,‌ ‌the‌ ‌majority‌ ‌of‌ ‌which‌ ‌are‌ ‌still‌ ‌in‌ ‌existence.‌ ‌This‌ ‌distinctly‌‌spacious‌‌                         
suburban‌ ‌character‌ ‌is‌‌an‌‌important‌‌characteristic‌‌of‌‌the‌‌significance‌‌of‌‌this‌‌heritage‌‌                       
asset,‌ ‌and‌ ‌reflects‌ ‌an‌ ‌important‌ ‌stage‌ ‌of‌ ‌growth‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌expanding‌ ‌town.‌ ‌ 

140‌ ‌Heene‌ ‌Road,‌ ‌constructed‌ ‌in‌ ‌1906,‌ ‌has‌ ‌been‌ ‌designated‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌ ‌Council‌ ‌as‌ ‌a‌‌                           
Local‌‌Interest‌‌Building‌‌and‌‌a‌‌positive‌‌contributor‌‌to‌‌the‌‌character‌‌of‌‌the‌‌Conservation‌‌                         
Area.‌ ‌The‌ ‌building‌ ‌was‌ ‌in‌ ‌use‌ ‌as‌ ‌a‌ ‌hotel‌‌prior‌‌to‌‌a‌‌change‌‌of‌‌use,‌‌circa‌‌1990,‌‌to‌‌a‌‌                                     
care‌ ‌home.‌ ‌138‌ ‌&‌ ‌136‌ ‌Heene‌ ‌Road‌ ‌were‌ ‌built‌ ‌during‌ ‌the‌ ‌first‌ ‌half‌‌of‌‌the‌‌twentieth‌‌                               
century,‌‌to‌‌the‌‌south‌‌on‌‌land‌‌likely‌‌to‌‌have‌‌been‌‌a‌‌garden‌‌to‌‌140.‌‌The‌‌coach‌‌house‌‌                                 
building‌‌set‌‌back‌‌in‌‌the‌‌south-eastern‌‌corner‌‌of‌‌the‌‌site‌‌is‌‌contemporaneous‌‌with‌‌the‌‌                           
main‌‌house,‌‌although‌‌later‌‌extended‌‌to‌‌the‌‌rear.‌‌Street‌‌views‌‌of‌‌the‌‌coach‌‌house‌‌are‌‌                             
limited‌‌due‌‌to‌‌a‌‌large‌‌extension‌‌added‌‌to‌‌the‌‌eastern‌‌end‌‌of‌‌the‌‌main‌‌building‌‌in‌‌the‌‌                                 
early‌ ‌1990s.‌ ‌ 

The‌‌characterless,‌‌modern‌‌sunroom‌‌[attached‌‌to‌‌the‌‌south‌‌side]‌‌would‌‌be‌‌expensive‌‌                       
to‌ ‌upgrade‌ ‌and‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌demolished‌ ‌as‌ ‌part‌ ‌of‌ ‌this‌ ‌application.‌‌ ‌  

The‌ ‌application‌ ‌site‌ ‌is‌ ‌one‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌‌three‌ ‌original‌ ‌residential‌ ‌buildings‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌Heene‌‌                           
Road/Manor‌‌Road‌‌junction‌‌that‌‌survive,‌‌each‌‌still‌‌set‌‌within‌‌their‌‌own‌‌fairly‌‌spacious‌‌                         
plot.‌ ‌ 

Heritage‌ ‌assets‌ ‌may‌ ‌be‌ ‌affected‌ ‌by‌ ‌direct‌ ‌physical‌ ‌change‌ ‌or‌ ‌by‌ ‌change‌ ‌in‌ ‌their‌‌                           
setting.‌ ‌Being‌ ‌able‌ ‌to‌ ‌properly‌ ‌assess‌ ‌the‌ ‌nature,‌ ‌extent‌ ‌and‌ ‌importance‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌                         
significance‌ ‌of‌ ‌a‌ ‌heritage‌‌asset,‌‌and‌‌the‌‌contribution‌‌of‌‌its‌‌setting,‌‌is‌‌very‌‌important‌‌                           
to‌ ‌understanding‌ ‌the‌ ‌potential‌ ‌impact‌ ‌and‌ ‌acceptability‌ ‌of‌ ‌development‌ ‌proposals.‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌current‌ ‌proposals‌‌include‌‌the‌‌construction‌‌of‌‌a‌‌2‌‌bedroom,‌‌detached‌‌bungalow‌‌                       
inserted‌ ‌between‌ ‌the‌ ‌southern‌‌flank‌‌of‌‌140‌‌Heene‌‌Road‌‌and‌‌the‌‌adjoining‌‌property‌‌                         
to‌ ‌the‌ ‌south.‌ ‌This‌ ‌bungalow‌ ‌would‌ ‌occupy‌ ‌a‌ ‌deep‌ ‌footprint‌ ‌into‌ ‌the‌ ‌site,‌ ‌whilst‌‌the‌‌                             
main‌‌street‌‌facing‌‌wall‌‌would‌‌project‌‌forward‌‌of‌‌the‌‌adjacent‌‌main‌‌wall‌‌of‌‌the‌‌existing‌‌                             
building.‌ ‌This‌ ‌forward‌ ‌projection‌ ‌together‌ ‌with‌ ‌a‌ ‌notably‌ ‌taller‌ ‌roof‌ ‌height‌ ‌than‌ ‌the‌‌                         
current‌ ‌sunroom,‌ ‌would‌ ‌draw‌ ‌undue‌ ‌attention‌ ‌to‌ ‌this‌ ‌new‌ ‌building.‌ ‌ 

43



‌ 
‌ 

Add‌ ‌to‌ ‌this‌ ‌the‌ ‌close‌ ‌proximity‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌bungalow‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌building‌‌                           
shoe-horned‌ ‌into‌ ‌the‌ ‌site,‌ ‌and‌‌as‌‌a‌‌result‌‌not‌‌only‌‌would‌‌the‌‌setting‌‌of‌‌the‌‌heritage‌‌                               
asset‌‌be‌‌harmed,‌‌but‌‌the‌‌character‌‌and‌‌appearance‌‌of‌‌the‌‌Heene‌‌Conservation‌‌Area‌‌                         
would‌ ‌also‌ ‌be‌ ‌harmed.‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌National‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Policy‌ ‌Framework‌ ‌(the‌ ‌Framework)‌ ‌sets‌ ‌out‌ ‌policy‌ ‌for‌‌                     
‘conserving‌ ‌and‌ ‌enhancing‌ ‌the‌ ‌historic‌ ‌environment’.‌ ‌It‌ ‌advises‌ ‌that‌ ‌great‌ ‌weight‌‌                     
should‌ ‌be‌ ‌given‌ ‌to‌ ‌an‌ ‌asset’s‌ ‌conservation‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌more‌ ‌important‌ ‌the‌ ‌asset‌ ‌the‌‌                           
greater‌‌the‌‌weight‌‌should‌‌be.‌‌It‌‌further‌‌states‌‌that‌‌such‌‌assets‌‌are‌‌irreplaceable‌‌and‌‌                           
any‌‌harm‌‌or‌‌loss‌‌should‌‌require‌‌clear‌‌and‌‌convincing‌‌justification.‌‌‌In‌‌my‌‌opinion,‌‌the‌‌                           
case‌ ‌forwarded‌ ‌to‌ ‌support‌ ‌the‌ ‌new‌ ‌bungalow‌ ‌fails‌ ‌to‌ ‌offer‌ ‌any‌ ‌clear‌ ‌or‌ ‌convincing‌‌                           
justification‌ ‌to‌ ‌mitigate‌ ‌the‌ ‌harm‌ ‌caused‌ ‌to‌ ‌setting.‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌overarching‌ ‌duty‌ ‌imposed‌ ‌by‌ ‌S66‌ ‌and‌ ‌S72‌ ‌applies‌ ‌even‌ ‌where‌ ‌the‌ ‌harm‌‌to‌‌a‌‌                             
heritage‌‌asset‌‌is‌‌found‌‌to‌‌be‌‌‘less‌‌than‌‌substantial’.‌‌This‌‌was‌‌set‌‌out‌‌in‌‌the‌‌Court‌‌of‌‌                                 
Appeal‌ ‌decision‌ ‌-‌ ‌Barnwell‌ ‌Manor‌ ‌Wind‌ ‌Energy‌ ‌Ltd‌ ‌v‌ ‌East‌ ‌Northants‌ ‌DC,‌ ‌English‌‌                         
Heritage,‌ ‌National‌ ‌Trust‌ ‌and‌ ‌SSCLG‌ ‌[2014]‌ ‌EWCA‌ ‌Civ‌ ‌137‌ ‌(paragraph‌ ‌29‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌                         
judgment‌‌makes‌‌that‌‌clear).‌‌It‌‌stated‌‌that‌‌the‌‌decision‌‌maker‌‌must‌‌be‌‌careful‌‌not‌‌to‌‌                             
equate‌ ‌‘less‌ ‌than‌ ‌substantial‌ ‌harm’‌ ‌with‌ ‌a‌ ‌less‌ ‌than‌ ‌substantial‌ ‌planning‌‌objection.‌‌                       
The‌ ‌need,‌ ‌if‌ ‌harm‌ ‌is‌ ‌identified,‌ ‌to‌ ‌give‌ ‌considerable‌‌weight‌‌to‌‌the‌‌presumption‌‌that‌‌                           
preservation‌ ‌is‌ ‌desirable‌ ‌should‌ ‌be‌ ‌expressly‌ ‌acknowledged‌ ‌in‌ ‌carrying‌ ‌out‌ ‌the‌‌                     
balancing‌ ‌exercise.‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌Council’s‌ ‌in-house‌ ‌Conservation‌ ‌Architects‌ ‌have‌ ‌managed‌ ‌to‌ ‌preserve‌ ‌and‌‌                   
enhance‌ ‌the‌ ‌character‌ ‌and‌ ‌appearance‌ ‌of‌ ‌Heene‌ ‌Conservation‌ ‌Area‌ ‌since‌ ‌it‌ ‌was‌‌                       
first‌‌designated‌‌in‌‌the‌‌1980s.‌‌The‌‌approval‌‌of‌‌this‌‌application‌‌or‌‌a‌‌similar‌‌one‌‌would‌‌                             
put‌ ‌this‌ ‌particular‌ ‌spacious‌ ‌conservation‌ ‌area‌ ‌at‌ ‌potential‌ ‌risk‌ ‌where‌ ‌other‌ ‌similar‌‌                       
sites‌ ‌would‌ ‌become‌ ‌more‌ ‌difficult‌ ‌to‌ ‌defend‌ ‌from‌ ‌development‌ ‌proposals.”‌ ‌ ‌   

The‌ ‌‌Environmental‌ ‌Health‌‌ ‌‌Officer‌ ‌‌has‌ ‌no‌ ‌adverse‌ ‌comment.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌‌Engineer‌ ‌‌has‌ ‌raised‌ ‌a‌ ‌holding‌ ‌objection,‌ ‌commenting:-‌ ‌ 

“Flood‌‌Risk:‌‌The‌‌site‌‌is‌‌within‌‌Flood‌‌Zone‌‌1,‌‌the‌‌site‌‌is‌‌not‌‌shown‌‌to‌‌be‌‌at‌‌risk‌‌from‌‌                                     
surface‌ ‌water‌ ‌flooding.‌ ‌ 

Surface‌ ‌Water‌ ‌Drainage:‌ ‌The‌ ‌submitted‌ ‌form‌ ‌indicates‌ ‌it‌ ‌is‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌to‌ ‌discharge‌‌                       
surface‌ ‌water‌ ‌to‌ ‌soakaway.‌ ‌This‌ ‌is‌ ‌acceptable‌ ‌in‌ ‌principle‌ ‌but‌ ‌it‌ ‌does‌ ‌ont‌ ‌appear‌‌                           
there‌ ‌is‌ ‌sufficient‌ ‌space‌ ‌for‌ ‌this‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposals.‌ ‌Infiltrating‌ ‌features‌ ‌must‌ ‌be‌‌                         
located‌ ‌5m‌ ‌from‌ ‌buildings‌ ‌and‌ ‌2.5m‌ ‌from‌ ‌property‌ ‌boundaries.‌ ‌It‌ ‌is‌ ‌essential‌ ‌to‌‌                         
establish‌‌if‌‌there‌‌is‌‌adequate‌‌space‌‌for‌‌surface‌‌water‌‌drainage‌‌prior‌‌to‌‌agreement‌‌of‌‌                           
the‌‌site‌‌layout.‌‌Drainage‌‌should‌‌be‌‌a‌‌fundamental‌‌consideration‌‌in‌‌design.‌‌Failure‌‌to‌‌                         
secure‌‌a‌‌robustly‌‌evidenced‌‌implementable‌‌drainage‌‌strategy‌‌at‌‌this‌‌stage‌‌will‌‌likely‌‌                       
unduly‌ ‌prejudice‌ ‌the‌ ‌drainage‌ ‌design‌ ‌and‌ ‌result‌ ‌in‌ ‌proposals‌ ‌failing‌ ‌to‌ ‌meet‌ ‌policy‌‌                         
objectives.‌ ‌To‌ ‌overcome‌ ‌this‌ ‌objection‌ ‌the‌ ‌applicant‌ ‌should‌ ‌submit:‌ ‌ 

1. A‌ ‌rough‌ ‌plan‌ ‌indicating‌ ‌the‌ ‌locations‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌soakaways‌ ‌taking‌‌                     
account‌ ‌of‌ ‌required‌ ‌clearance‌ ‌from‌ ‌buildings,‌ ‌highways‌ ‌and‌ ‌boundaries;‌ ‌ 

2. Details‌ ‌of‌ ‌how‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌dwelling‌ ‌is‌ ‌drained;‌ ‌ 
3. An‌ ‌alternative‌ ‌attenuated‌ ‌discharge‌ ‌solution‌ ‌with‌ ‌discharge‌ ‌restricted‌ ‌to‌ ‌2l/s‌‌                   

and‌ ‌discharge‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌surface‌ ‌water‌ ‌sewer;‌ ‌ 

44



‌ 
‌ 

4. gbit‌‌is‌‌queried‌‌whether‌‌it‌‌will‌‌be‌‌possible‌‌in‌‌practice‌‌given‌‌the‌‌limited‌‌space‌‌on‌‌                             
the‌ ‌site.‌ ‌ 

If‌‌this‌‌information‌‌is‌‌satisfactorily‌‌submitted‌‌detailed‌‌drainage‌‌design‌‌can‌‌be‌‌left‌‌to‌‌a‌‌                           
pre‌ ‌commencement‌ ‌condition.”‌‌ ‌  

The‌Private‌ ‌Sector‌ ‌Housing‌ ‌‌team‌ ‌has‌ ‌referred‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌comments‌ ‌made‌ ‌under‌‌the‌‌                         
previous‌ ‌application‌ ‌as‌ ‌follows:-‌ ‌ 

“The‌ ‌Private‌ ‌Sector‌ ‌Housing‌ ‌team‌ ‌has‌ ‌identified‌ ‌that‌ ‌some‌ ‌aspects‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌                       
development‌ ‌may‌‌result‌‌in‌‌hazards‌‌that‌‌require‌‌action‌‌under‌‌the‌‌Housing‌‌Act‌‌2004.‌‌                         
Typical‌ ‌hazards‌ ‌can‌ ‌include‌ ‌‘inner’‌ ‌rooms‌ ‌(where‌ ‌the‌ ‌only‌ ‌means‌ ‌of‌ ‌escape‌‌in‌‌the‌‌                           
case‌ ‌of‌ ‌fire‌ ‌is‌ ‌through‌ ‌another‌ ‌risk‌‌room‌‌(i.e.‌‌bedroom,‌‌living‌‌room,‌‌kitchen‌‌etc.)‌‌or‌‌                             
where‌‌there‌‌are‌‌inadequate‌‌windows‌‌or‌‌outlook‌‌from‌‌habitable‌‌rooms.‌ ‌In‌‌this‌‌case‌‌it‌‌                           
is‌‌noted‌‌that‌‌the‌‌Applicant‌‌recognises‌‌Units‌‌4‌‌and‌‌6‌‌fall‌‌below‌‌the‌‌national‌‌technical‌‌                             
space‌‌standards‌‌for‌‌new‌‌dwellings.‌‌The‌‌Private‌‌Sector‌‌Housing‌‌team‌‌comments‌‌that‌‌                       
this‌ ‌is‌ ‌no‌ ‌mitigation‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌occupant‌ ‌of‌ ‌a‌ ‌flat‌ ‌that‌ ‌is‌ ‌too‌ ‌small‌ ‌to‌ ‌know‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌‌                                   
neighbouring‌ ‌flats‌ ‌exceed‌ ‌the‌ ‌space‌ ‌standards.‌‌ ‌  

Although‌ ‌Units‌ ‌8‌ ‌and‌ ‌9‌ ‌will‌ ‌meet‌ ‌the‌ ‌3-bed/4‌ ‌person‌ ‌space‌ ‌standard,‌ ‌they‌ ‌do‌ ‌not‌‌                             
meet‌‌the‌‌3-bed/5‌‌person‌‌standard‌‌even‌‌though‌‌the‌‌plans‌‌clearly‌‌show‌‌2‌‌double‌‌beds‌‌                           
and‌ ‌a‌ ‌single‌ ‌bed‌ ‌in‌ ‌each‌ ‌unit.‌ ‌ 

The‌‌first-floor‌‌bedroom‌‌of‌‌Unit‌‌8‌‌can‌‌only‌‌be‌‌accessed‌‌through‌‌the‌‌high‌‌risk‌‌kitchen‌‌                             
/living‌‌room‌‌and‌‌so‌‌is‌‌an‌‌inner‌‌room.‌‌Fire‌‌escape‌‌windows‌‌from‌‌the‌‌first‌‌floor‌‌are‌‌not‌‌                                 
acceptable‌ ‌under‌ ‌the‌ ‌Housing‌ ‌Act‌ ‌2004.‌ ‌ 

Compliance‌ ‌with‌ ‌Building‌ ‌Regulations‌ ‌may‌ ‌not‌ ‌necessarily‌ ‌address‌ ‌the‌ ‌hazards‌‌                   
identified‌‌and‌‌the‌‌Applicant‌‌is‌‌advised‌‌to‌‌contact‌‌the‌‌Private‌‌Sector‌‌Housing‌‌team‌‌to‌‌                           
confirm‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌layout‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌property‌ ‌is‌ ‌acceptable‌ ‌prior‌ ‌to‌ ‌commencing‌‌                       
development‌ ‌in‌ ‌order‌ ‌to‌ ‌avoid‌ ‌the‌ ‌need‌ ‌for‌ ‌any‌ ‌formal‌ ‌intervention‌ ‌or‌ ‌the‌‌                         
requirement‌ ‌of‌ ‌respective‌ ‌works.”‌ ‌ ‌   

Southern‌ ‌Water:‌ ‌‌Southern‌‌Water‌‌requires‌‌a‌‌formal‌‌application‌‌for‌‌a‌‌connection‌‌to‌‌                       
the‌ ‌public‌ ‌foul‌ ‌sewer‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌made‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌ ‌applicant‌ ‌or‌ ‌developer.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌‌Council’s‌‌Building‌‌Control‌‌officers‌‌or‌‌technical‌‌staff‌‌should‌‌be‌‌asked‌‌to‌‌comment‌‌                         
on‌ ‌the‌ ‌adequacy‌ ‌of‌ ‌soakaways‌ ‌to‌ ‌dispose‌ ‌of‌ ‌surface‌ ‌water‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌‌                         
development.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

It‌ ‌is‌ ‌possible‌ ‌that‌ ‌a‌ ‌sewer‌ ‌now‌ ‌deemed‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌public‌ ‌could‌ ‌be‌ ‌crossing‌ ‌the‌‌                             
development‌ ‌site.‌‌Therefore,‌‌should‌‌any‌‌sewer‌‌be‌‌found‌‌during‌‌construction‌‌works,‌‌                     
an‌ ‌investigation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌sewer‌ ‌will‌ ‌be‌ ‌required‌ ‌to‌‌ascertain‌‌its‌‌ownership‌‌before‌‌any‌‌                           
further‌ ‌works‌ ‌commence‌ ‌on‌ ‌site.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Worthing‌ ‌Conservation‌ ‌Area‌ ‌Advisory‌ ‌Committee:‌ ‌‌Not‌ ‌convening‌ ‌at‌ ‌present.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

Representations‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

One‌‌representation‌‌has‌‌been‌‌received‌‌from‌‌the‌‌occupier‌‌of‌‌the‌‌adjoining‌‌dwelling‌‌to‌‌                         
the‌ ‌south‌ ‌(No.138)‌ ‌commenting‌ ‌as‌ ‌follows:-‌ ‌ 

45



‌ 
‌ 

● My‌ ‌family‌ ‌have‌ ‌lived‌ ‌in‌ ‌this‌ ‌property‌ ‌since‌ ‌1996‌ ‌and‌ ‌hae‌ ‌been‌ ‌involved‌ ‌in‌‌                           
previous‌ ‌planning‌ ‌applications;‌ ‌ 

● Generally‌ ‌we‌ ‌think‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌development‌ ‌is‌ ‌in‌ ‌keeping‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌character‌ ‌of‌‌                         
the‌ ‌property‌ ‌and‌ ‌situation‌ ‌in‌ ‌a‌ ‌conservation‌ ‌area‌ ‌with‌ ‌thought‌ ‌gone‌ ‌into‌‌                       
refurbishing‌ ‌the‌ ‌building‌ ‌in‌ ‌a‌ ‌sympathetic‌ ‌manner‌ ‌and‌ ‌style.‌ ‌Our‌ ‌main‌‌                     
reservation‌ ‌is‌ ‌the‌ ‌building‌ ‌of‌ ‌a‌ ‌new‌ ‌separate‌ ‌dwelling‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌garden‌ ‌as‌ ‌this‌‌                           
represents‌ ‌a‌ ‌significant‌ ‌extension‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌current‌ ‌building‌ ‌footprint‌ ‌and‌‌                   
additional‌ ‌height‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌new‌ ‌roof.‌ ‌You‌ ‌may‌ ‌recall‌ ‌we‌ ‌thought‌ ‌there‌ ‌was‌ ‌a‌‌                           
previous‌‌application‌‌to‌‌increase‌‌the‌‌building‌‌height‌‌about‌‌10‌‌years‌‌ago‌‌which‌‌                       
was‌ ‌turned‌ ‌down‌ ‌by‌‌the‌‌secretary‌‌of‌‌State‌‌,‌‌but‌‌you‌‌may‌‌wish‌‌to‌‌check‌‌your‌‌                               
records.‌ ‌ 

● The‌ ‌new‌ ‌bungalow,‌ ‌although‌ ‌sympathetically‌ ‌designed‌ ‌and‌ ‌an‌ ‌improvement‌‌                 
on‌ ‌the‌ ‌last‌ ‌plan,‌ ‌is‌ ‌still‌ ‌very‌ ‌close‌ ‌to‌ ‌our‌ ‌property‌ ‌and‌ ‌has‌ ‌the‌ ‌potential‌ ‌to‌‌                               
impact‌ ‌on‌ ‌us‌ ‌with‌ ‌regards‌ ‌to‌ ‌noise,‌ ‌some‌ ‌loss‌ ‌of‌ ‌light‌ ‌and‌ ‌privacy.‌‌ ‌  

● We‌ ‌have‌ ‌no‌ ‌objection‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌alterations‌ ‌to‌ ‌our‌ ‌existing‌ ‌garage‌ ‌which‌ ‌will‌ ‌in‌‌                           
effect‌ ‌make‌ ‌it‌ ‌detached‌ ‌one‌ ‌the‌ ‌works‌ ‌are‌ ‌completed,‌ ‌we‌ ‌of‌ ‌course‌ ‌require‌‌                         
right‌ ‌of‌ ‌access‌ ‌to‌ ‌maintain‌ ‌the‌ ‌new‌ ‌structure‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌shared‌‌                       
boundary‌ ‌fence‌ ‌which‌ ‌was‌ ‌recently‌ ‌jointly‌ ‌replaced.‌‌ ‌  

● There‌ ‌is‌ ‌a‌ ‌small‌ ‌section‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌western‌ ‌boundary‌ ‌wall‌ ‌which‌ ‌runs‌ ‌into‌ ‌our‌‌                           
property‌ ‌in‌ ‌Heene‌ ‌Road,‌‌the‌‌top‌‌is‌‌quite‌‌damaged‌‌and‌‌needs‌‌attention‌‌once‌‌                         
any‌ ‌work‌ ‌is‌ ‌started.‌ ‌It‌ ‌makes‌ ‌sense‌ ‌for‌ ‌this‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌repaired‌ ‌as‌ ‌part‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌                               
refurbishment‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌boundary‌ ‌wall‌ ‌and‌ ‌we‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌happy‌ ‌to‌ ‌contribute‌ ‌to‌‌                         
the‌ ‌cost‌ ‌to‌ ‌ensure‌ ‌continuity‌ ‌rather‌ ‌than‌ ‌doing‌ ‌ad‌ ‌hoc‌ ‌repairs.‌‌ ‌  

● The‌ ‌new‌ ‌rose‌ ‌garden‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌SW‌ ‌corner‌ ‌is‌ ‌a‌ ‌welcome‌ ‌feature.‌ ‌ 
● We‌ ‌seek‌ ‌reassurance‌ ‌about‌ ‌overall‌ ‌compliance‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌necessary‌‌                 

regulations‌ ‌and‌ ‌planning‌ ‌controls‌ ‌once‌ ‌any‌ ‌plans‌ ‌are‌ ‌agreed.‌ ‌ 
● We‌ ‌were‌ ‌grateful‌‌to‌‌have‌‌had‌‌the‌‌opportunity‌‌for‌‌a‌‌constructive‌‌meeting‌‌with‌‌                         

the‌ ‌architect‌ ‌James‌ ‌Breckell‌ ‌to‌ ‌discuss‌ ‌in‌ ‌more‌ ‌detail‌ ‌the‌ ‌potential‌‌                     
implications‌ ‌and‌ ‌impact‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌original‌ ‌plans.‌ ‌ ‌   

‌ 
Relevant‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Policies‌ ‌and‌ ‌Guidance‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Worthing‌ ‌Core‌ ‌Strategy‌ ‌(2011):‌ ‌ 
Policy‌ ‌7‌ ‌Meeting‌ ‌Housing‌ ‌Need‌ ‌ 
Policy‌ ‌8‌ ‌Getting‌ ‌the‌ ‌Right‌ ‌Mix‌ ‌of‌ ‌Homes‌‌ ‌  
Policy‌ ‌13‌ ‌The‌ ‌Natural‌ ‌Environment‌ ‌and‌ ‌Landscape‌ ‌Character‌ ‌ 
Policy‌ ‌15‌ ‌Flood‌ ‌Risk‌ ‌and‌ ‌Sustainable‌ ‌Water‌ ‌Management‌ ‌ 
Policy‌ ‌16‌ ‌Built‌ ‌Environment‌ ‌and‌ ‌Design‌ ‌ 
Policy‌ ‌17‌ ‌Sustainable‌ ‌Construction‌ ‌ 
Policy‌ ‌19‌ ‌Sustainable‌ ‌Travel‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

Worthing‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Plan‌ ‌(WBC‌ ‌2003)‌ ‌(saved‌ ‌policies‌ ‌H18,‌ ‌RES7,‌ ‌TR9t)‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Supplementary‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Document‌ ‌‘Space‌ ‌Standards’‌ ‌(WBC‌ ‌2012)‌ ‌ 
Supplementary‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Document‌ ‌‘A‌ ‌Guide‌ ‌to‌ ‌Residential‌ ‌Development’‌ ‌(WBC,‌‌                 
2013)‌ ‌ 
Community‌ ‌Infrastructure‌ ‌Levy‌ ‌Revised‌ ‌Charging‌ ‌Schedule‌ ‌(WBC‌ ‌2021)‌ ‌ 
WSCC‌ ‌Guidance‌ ‌on‌ ‌Parking‌ ‌at‌ ‌New‌ ‌Developments‌ ‌(WSCC‌ ‌2020)‌ ‌ 
Revised‌ ‌National‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Policy‌ ‌Framework‌ ‌(HCLG‌ ‌2021)‌ ‌ 
National‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Practice‌ ‌Guidance‌ ‌(HCLG)‌ ‌ 

46



‌ 
‌ 

‌ 
Submission‌ ‌Draft‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Plan‌ ‌(2021):‌ ‌ 
Policy‌ ‌SP1‌ ‌Presumption‌ ‌in‌ ‌Favour‌ ‌of‌ ‌Sustainable‌ ‌Development‌ ‌ 
Policy‌ ‌DM1‌ ‌Housing‌ ‌Mix‌ ‌ 
Policy‌ ‌DM2‌ ‌Density‌ ‌ 
Policy‌ ‌DM5‌ ‌Quality‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Built‌ ‌Environment‌ ‌ 
Policy‌ ‌DM6‌ ‌Public‌ ‌Realm‌ ‌ 
Policy‌ ‌DM15‌ ‌Sustainable‌ ‌Travel‌ ‌and‌ ‌Active‌ ‌Travel‌ ‌ 
Policy‌ ‌DM16‌ ‌Sustainable‌ ‌Design‌ ‌ 
Policy‌ ‌DM20‌ ‌Flood‌ ‌Risk‌ ‌and‌ ‌Sustainable‌ ‌Drainage‌ 
Policy‌ ‌DM24‌ ‌The‌ ‌Historic‌ ‌Environment‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Relevant‌ ‌Legislation‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌Committee‌ ‌should‌ ‌consider‌ ‌the‌ ‌planning‌ ‌application‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Section‌‌70‌‌of‌‌the‌‌Town‌‌and‌‌Country‌‌Planning‌‌Act‌‌1990‌‌(as‌‌amended)‌‌which‌‌provides‌‌                           
that‌ ‌the‌ ‌application‌ ‌may‌ ‌be‌ ‌granted‌ ‌either‌ ‌unconditionally‌ ‌or‌ ‌subject‌ ‌to‌ ‌relevant‌‌                       
conditions,‌‌or‌‌refused.‌ ‌Regard‌‌shall‌‌be‌‌given‌‌to‌‌relevant‌‌development‌‌plan‌‌policies,‌‌                       
any‌ ‌relevant‌ ‌local‌ ‌finance‌ ‌considerations,‌ ‌and‌ ‌other‌ ‌material‌ ‌considerations.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

Section‌‌72‌‌Planning‌‌(Listed‌‌Building‌‌&‌‌Conservation‌‌Areas)‌‌Act‌‌1990‌‌which‌‌requires‌‌                       
the‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Authority‌ ‌(LPA)‌ ‌to‌ ‌pay‌ ‌special‌ ‌attention‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌desirability‌ ‌of‌‌                         
preserving‌ ‌or‌ ‌enhancing‌ ‌the‌ ‌appearance‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Conservation‌ ‌Area.‌ ‌ ‌   
‌ 

Section‌ ‌38(6)‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌and‌ ‌Compulsory‌ ‌Purchase‌ ‌Act‌ ‌2004‌ ‌that‌ ‌requires‌ ‌the‌‌                     
decision‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌made‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌development‌ ‌plan‌ ‌unless‌ ‌material‌‌                       
considerations‌ ‌indicate‌ ‌otherwise.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Planning‌ ‌Assessment‌ ‌ 

Policy‌ ‌Background‌ ‌and‌ ‌Principle‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌policy‌ ‌context‌ ‌comprises‌ ‌the‌ ‌National‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Policy‌ ‌Framework‌‌(NPPF)‌‌and‌‌                     
the‌ ‌local‌ ‌development‌ ‌plan‌ ‌which‌ ‌consists‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌saved‌ ‌policies‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Worthing‌‌                         
Local‌ ‌Plan,‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌Core‌ ‌Strategy‌ ‌and‌ ‌accompanying‌ ‌Supplementary‌ ‌Planning‌‌                 
Documents‌ ‌(SPDs).‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌NPPF‌ ‌has‌ ‌considerable‌‌status‌‌as‌‌a‌‌material‌‌consideration‌‌which‌‌can‌‌outweigh‌‌                       
development‌‌plan‌‌provisions‌‌if‌‌policies‌‌are‌‌out‌‌of‌‌date‌‌or‌‌silent‌‌on‌‌a‌‌relevant‌‌matter.‌‌                             
In‌‌such‌‌circumstances‌‌paragraph‌‌11‌‌of‌‌the‌‌NPPF‌‌states‌‌that‌‌development‌‌should‌‌be‌‌                         
approved‌ ‌unless‌ ‌it‌ ‌would‌ ‌cause‌ ‌adverse‌ ‌impacts‌ ‌which‌ ‌significantly‌ ‌and‌‌                   
demonstrably‌ ‌outweigh‌ ‌benefits‌ ‌when‌ ‌assessed‌ ‌against‌ ‌the‌ ‌NPPF‌ ‌policies‌ ‌overall,‌‌                   
or‌ ‌if‌ ‌the‌ ‌NPPF‌ ‌affords‌ ‌particular‌ ‌protection‌ ‌to‌ ‌assets‌ ‌or‌ ‌areas‌ ‌of‌ ‌importance.‌ ‌ 

Worthing‌ ‌Core‌ ‌Strategy‌ ‌Policy‌ ‌7‌ ‌aims‌ ‌to‌ ‌ensure‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌right‌ ‌mix‌ ‌and‌ ‌type‌ ‌of‌‌                             
housing‌ ‌is‌ ‌delivered‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌right‌ ‌places‌ ‌to‌ ‌meet‌ ‌identified‌ ‌demand‌ ‌and‌ ‌that‌‌                         
appropriate‌ ‌infrastructure‌ ‌is‌ ‌delivered.‌ ‌ 

Worthing‌‌Core‌‌Strategy‌‌Policy‌‌8‌‌seeks‌‌to‌‌deliver‌‌a‌‌wide‌‌choice‌‌of‌‌high‌‌quality‌‌homes‌‌                             
to‌‌address‌‌the‌‌needs‌‌of‌‌the‌‌community‌‌with‌‌higher‌‌density‌‌housing‌‌(including‌‌homes‌‌                         

47



‌ 
‌ 

suitable‌ ‌for‌ ‌family‌ ‌occupation)‌ ‌in‌ ‌and‌ ‌around‌ ‌the‌ ‌town‌ ‌centre‌ ‌and‌ ‌within‌ ‌suburban‌‌                         
areas‌ ‌outside‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌town,‌ ‌only‌ ‌limited‌ ‌infilling‌ ‌which‌ ‌will‌ ‌predominantly‌ ‌consist‌ ‌of‌‌                         
family‌ ‌housing.‌ ‌The‌ ‌approach‌ ‌is‌ ‌one‌ ‌that‌ ‌seeks‌ ‌to‌ ‌increase‌ ‌the‌ ‌stock‌ ‌of‌ ‌family‌‌                           
homes‌ ‌through‌ ‌new‌ ‌development‌ ‌and‌ ‌to‌ ‌protect‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌stock.‌ ‌ 

A‌‌key‌‌objective‌‌of‌‌the‌‌Core‌‌Strategy‌‌is‌‌to‌‌ensure‌‌that‌‌the‌‌right‌‌mix‌‌and‌‌type‌‌of‌‌homes‌‌                                   
are‌‌delivered‌‌in‌‌the‌‌right‌‌places‌‌to‌‌meet‌‌the‌‌identified‌‌local‌‌need.‌‌Good‌‌design‌‌is‌‌vital‌‌                               
to‌ ‌ensure‌ ‌that‌ ‌Worthing’s‌ ‌built‌ ‌environment‌ ‌is‌ ‌not‌ ‌compromised.‌ ‌The‌ ‌‘Guide‌ ‌for‌‌                       
residential‌ ‌Development’‌ ‌SPD‌ ‌October‌ ‌2013‌ ‌seeks‌ ‌to‌ ‌outline‌ ‌the‌ ‌key‌ ‌elements‌ ‌for‌‌                       
achieving‌ ‌these‌ ‌objectives‌ ‌when‌ ‌considering‌ ‌all‌ ‌new‌ ‌residential‌ ‌developments‌ ‌in‌‌                   
Worthing.‌ ‌The‌‌aim‌‌of‌‌this‌‌SPD‌‌is‌‌to‌‌interpret‌‌policy‌‌as‌‌well‌‌as‌‌to‌‌provide‌‌design-led‌‌                               
good‌ ‌practice‌ ‌guidance.‌ ‌ 

A‌ ‌new‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Plan,‌ ‌the‌ ‌Submission‌ ‌Draft‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Plan‌ ‌(SDWLP)‌ ‌has‌ ‌‌been‌‌                         
submitted‌‌to‌‌the‌‌Secretary‌‌of‌‌State‌‌for‌‌Housing‌‌Communities‌‌and‌‌Local‌‌Government‌‌                       
and‌ ‌is‌ ‌currently‌ ‌undergoing‌ ‌‌examination.‌ ‌The‌ ‌relevant‌ ‌policies‌ ‌set‌ ‌out‌ ‌above‌ ‌have‌‌                       
some‌ ‌materiality‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌determination‌ ‌of‌ ‌planning‌ ‌applications.‌‌ ‌  

Paragraph‌‌74‌‌of‌‌the‌‌revised‌‌NPPF‌‌requires‌‌local‌‌planning‌‌authorities‌‌to‌‌identify‌‌and‌‌                         
update‌‌annually‌‌a‌‌supply‌‌of‌‌specific‌‌deliverable‌‌sites‌‌sufficient‌‌to‌‌provide‌‌a‌‌minimum‌‌                         
5‌ ‌years’‌ ‌worth‌ ‌of‌ ‌housing‌ ‌against‌ ‌their‌ ‌housing‌ ‌requirement‌ ‌set‌ ‌out‌ ‌in‌ ‌adopted‌‌                         
strategic‌ ‌policies,‌ ‌or‌ ‌against‌ ‌objectively‌ ‌assessed‌ ‌local‌ ‌housing‌ ‌need‌ ‌where‌ ‌the‌‌                     
strategic‌ ‌policies‌ ‌are‌ ‌more‌ ‌than‌ ‌five‌ ‌years‌ ‌old.‌ ‌It‌ ‌is‌ ‌acknowledged‌ ‌that‌ ‌a‌ ‌5‌ ‌year‌‌                             
supply‌‌of‌‌housing‌‌in‌‌relation‌‌to‌‌such‌‌need‌‌cannot‌‌currently‌‌be‌‌demonstrated,‌‌but‌‌this‌                           
has‌ ‌been‌ ‌addressed‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌new‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Plan‌ ‌by‌ ‌a‌ ‌robust‌ ‌assessment‌ ‌of‌ ‌all‌‌                           
potential‌ ‌opportunities‌ ‌to‌ ‌deliver‌ ‌new‌ ‌homes.‌‌ ‌  

With‌ ‌regards‌ ‌Para‌ ‌11(d)‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌NPPF‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌so-called‌ ‌‘tilted‌ ‌balance’,‌ ‌the‌ ‌recent‌‌                           
Court‌ ‌of‌ ‌Appeal‌ ‌case‌ ‌(‌Gladman‌ ‌Developments‌ ‌Limited‌ ‌v‌ ‌Secretary‌ ‌of‌ ‌State‌ ‌for‌‌                       
Housing,‌ ‌Communities‌ ‌and‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Government‌ ‌&‌ ‌Ors.‌ ‌Case‌ ‌Number:‌‌                 
C1/2020/0542/QBACF)‌‌‌found‌‌that‌‌the‌‌NPPF‌‌presumption‌‌is‌‌“‌policy,‌‌not‌‌statute‌”‌‌and‌‌                     
“‌does‌ ‌not‌ ‌change‌ ‌the‌ ‌status‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌development‌ ‌plan‌ ‌as‌ ‌the‌ ‌starting‌ ‌point‌ ‌for‌‌                           
decision‌ ‌making‌”.‌‌ ‌  

There‌ ‌are‌ ‌no‌ ‌specific‌ ‌Core‌ ‌Strategy,‌ ‌or‌ ‌SDWLP‌ ‌policies‌ ‌which‌ ‌seek‌ ‌to‌ ‌safeguard‌‌                         
care‌ ‌home‌ ‌accommodation‌ ‌above‌ ‌other‌ ‌types‌ ‌of‌ ‌residential‌ ‌use.‌ ‌The‌ ‌site‌ ‌is‌‌                       
sustainably‌‌located‌‌within‌‌an‌‌established‌‌residential‌‌area‌‌within‌‌the‌‌designated‌‌built‌‌                     
up‌ ‌area‌ ‌and‌ ‌within‌ ‌walking‌ ‌distance‌ ‌of‌ ‌local‌ ‌schools,‌ ‌shops‌ ‌and‌ ‌services‌ ‌and‌ ‌is‌‌                           
accessible‌‌by‌‌different‌‌modes‌‌of‌‌public‌‌transport.‌‌There‌‌is‌‌no‌‌objection‌‌in‌‌principle‌‌to‌‌                           
a‌‌Class‌‌C3‌‌residential‌‌development‌‌that‌‌would‌‌make‌‌a‌‌more‌‌efficient‌‌use‌‌of‌‌existing‌‌                           
buildings‌ ‌and‌ ‌land.‌‌ ‌  

Having‌‌regard‌‌to‌‌the‌‌recently‌‌approved‌‌development‌‌under‌‌AWDM/0601/21‌‌the‌‌key‌‌                     
consideration‌‌here‌‌is‌‌the‌‌effect‌‌of‌‌the‌‌additional‌‌infill‌‌dwelling‌‌on‌‌visual‌‌amenity‌‌and‌‌                           
on‌ ‌the‌ ‌character‌ ‌and‌‌appearance‌‌of‌‌the‌‌Heene‌‌Road‌‌Conservation‌‌Area,‌‌the‌‌effect‌‌                         
on‌ ‌the‌ ‌residential‌ ‌amenities‌ ‌neighbouring‌ ‌occupiers‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌living‌ ‌conditions‌ ‌of‌‌                     
future‌ ‌occupiers,‌ ‌and‌ ‌parking‌ ‌and‌ ‌highway‌ ‌safety‌ ‌matters,‌ ‌which‌ ‌are‌ ‌considered‌‌                     
below.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
‌ 

48



‌ 
‌ 

Visual‌ ‌Amenity‌ ‌and‌ ‌Effect‌ ‌on‌ ‌Historic‌ ‌Character‌ ‌and‌ ‌Appearance‌‌ ‌  

Chapter‌ ‌12‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌revised‌ ‌NPPF‌ ‌sets‌ ‌out‌ ‌the‌ ‌policies‌ ‌to‌ ‌achieve‌ ‌well-designed‌‌                         
buildings‌‌and‌‌places.‌‌Paragraph‌‌130‌‌(b)‌‌requires‌‌that‌‌developments‌‌(amongst‌‌other‌‌                     
things)‌‌are‌‌visually‌‌attractive‌‌as‌‌a‌‌result‌‌of‌‌good‌‌architecture,‌‌layout‌‌and‌‌appropriate‌‌                         
and‌ ‌effective‌ ‌landscaping;‌ ‌and‌ ‌(c)‌ ‌are‌ ‌sympathetic‌ ‌to‌ ‌local‌ ‌character‌ ‌and‌ ‌history,‌‌                       
including‌ ‌the‌ ‌surrounding‌ ‌built‌ ‌environment‌ ‌and‌ ‌landscape‌ ‌setting,‌ ‌(d)‌ ‌establish‌ ‌or‌‌                     
maintain‌ ‌a‌ ‌strong‌ ‌sense‌ ‌of‌ ‌place‌ ‌creating‌ ‌attractive,‌ ‌welcoming‌ ‌and‌ ‌distinctive‌‌                     
places‌‌to‌‌live,‌‌and‌‌(f)‌‌create‌‌places‌‌that‌‌are‌‌safe,‌‌inclusive‌‌and‌‌accessible‌‌and‌‌which‌‌                             
promote‌ ‌health‌ ‌and‌ ‌well-being,‌ ‌with‌ ‌a‌ ‌high‌ ‌standard‌ ‌of‌ ‌amenity‌ ‌for‌ ‌existing‌ ‌and‌‌                         
future‌ ‌users.‌ ‌ 

Worthing‌ ‌Core‌ ‌Strategy‌ ‌Policy‌ ‌16‌ ‌requires‌ ‌that‌ ‌all‌ ‌new‌ ‌development‌ ‌should‌‌                     
demonstrate‌ ‌good‌ ‌quality‌ ‌architectural‌ ‌and‌ ‌landscape‌ ‌design‌ ‌and‌ ‌use‌ ‌of‌ ‌materials‌‌                     
that‌‌take‌‌account‌‌of‌‌local‌‌physical,‌‌historical‌‌and‌‌environmental‌‌characteristics‌‌of‌‌the‌‌                       
area‌‌and‌‌should‌‌respond‌‌positively‌‌to‌‌the‌‌important‌‌aspects‌‌of‌‌local‌‌character.‌ ‌The‌‌                         
settlement‌ ‌structure,‌ ‌landscape‌ ‌features‌ ‌and‌ ‌buildings‌ ‌which‌ ‌represent‌ ‌the‌ ‌historic‌‌                   
character‌ ‌of‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌should‌ ‌be‌ ‌maintained;‌ ‌preserving‌ ‌and‌ ‌enhancing‌ ‌existing‌‌                   
assets.‌ ‌ 

Policy‌ ‌DM5‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌SDWLP‌ ‌requires‌ ‌all‌ ‌new‌‌development‌‌to‌‌(amongst‌‌other‌‌things)‌‌                         
be‌‌of‌‌a‌‌high‌‌architectural‌‌and‌‌design‌‌quality‌‌and‌‌respect‌‌and‌‌enhance‌‌the‌‌character‌‌                           
of‌‌the‌‌site‌‌and‌‌the‌‌prevailing‌‌character‌‌of‌‌the‌‌area;‌‌enhance‌‌the‌‌local‌‌environment‌‌by‌‌                             
way‌ ‌of‌ ‌its‌ ‌appearance‌ ‌and‌ ‌character‌ ‌with‌ ‌particular‌ ‌attention‌ ‌being‌ ‌paid‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌‌                         
architectural‌ ‌form,‌ ‌height,‌ ‌materials,‌ ‌density,‌ ‌scale,‌‌orientation,‌‌landscaping,‌‌impact‌‌                 
on‌‌street‌‌scene‌‌and‌‌the‌‌layout‌‌of‌‌the‌‌development;‌‌and‌‌make‌‌a‌‌positive‌‌contribution‌‌                           
to‌ ‌the‌ ‌sense‌ ‌of‌ ‌place,‌ ‌local‌ ‌character‌ ‌and‌ ‌distinctiveness‌ ‌of‌ ‌an‌ ‌area.‌ ‌ ‌   

The‌ ‌Council’s‌ ‌Supplementary‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Document‌ ‌‘A‌ ‌Guide‌ ‌to‌ ‌Residential‌‌                 
Development’‌ ‌expands‌ ‌upon‌ ‌the‌ ‌policy‌ ‌approach‌ ‌for‌ ‌new‌ ‌residential‌ ‌development.‌‌                   
Para‌‌3.3‌‌states‌‌‘A‌‌key‌‌element‌‌to‌‌the‌‌achievement‌‌of‌‌good‌‌design‌‌is‌‌an‌‌appreciation‌‌                             
of‌ ‌the‌ ‌context‌ ‌in‌ ‌which‌ ‌it‌ ‌is‌ ‌situated.‌ ‌During‌ ‌the‌ ‌design‌ ‌process‌ ‌of‌ ‌any‌ ‌new‌‌                             
development‌ ‌consideration‌‌will‌‌need‌‌to‌‌be‌‌given‌‌to‌‌its‌‌local‌‌setting,‌‌the‌‌surrounding‌‌                         
densities,‌‌local‌‌building‌‌heights‌‌and‌‌other‌‌local‌‌features.’‌ ‌Para‌‌4.33‌‌goes‌‌on‌‌to‌‌state‌‌                           
that‌ ‌infill‌ ‌development‌ ‌requires‌ ‌sensitive‌ ‌design‌ ‌and‌ ‌good‌ ‌landscaping‌ ‌if‌ ‌new‌‌                     
buildings‌‌are‌‌to‌‌be‌‌fitted‌‌successfully‌‌into‌‌small‌‌sites‌‌in‌‌established‌‌residential‌‌areas.‌‌                         
It‌ ‌states‌ ‌that‌ ‌insensitive‌ ‌infiling‌ ‌that‌ ‌will‌ ‌negatively‌ ‌impact‌ ‌on‌ ‌an‌ ‌area‌ ‌character‌ ‌or‌‌                           
amenity‌ ‌will‌ ‌be‌ ‌resisted.‌‌ ‌  

National‌ ‌planning‌ ‌policy‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌NPPF‌‌recognises‌‌that‌‌heritage‌‌assets,‌‌including‌‌                     
buildings‌ ‌of‌ ‌local‌ ‌historic‌ ‌value,‌ ‌as‌ ‌in‌ ‌this‌ ‌case,‌ ‌are‌ ‌an‌ ‌irreplaceable‌ ‌resource‌ ‌and‌‌                           
should‌ ‌be‌ ‌conserved‌ ‌in‌ ‌a‌ ‌manner‌ ‌appropriate‌ ‌to‌‌their‌‌significance‌‌so‌‌that‌‌they‌‌can‌‌                           
be‌ ‌enjoyed‌ ‌for‌ ‌their‌ ‌contribution‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌quality‌ ‌of‌ ‌life‌ ‌of‌ ‌existing‌ ‌and‌ ‌future‌‌                           
generations.‌ ‌ 

It‌ ‌requires‌‌that‌‌any‌‌harm‌‌or‌‌loss‌‌of‌‌significance‌‌of‌‌a‌‌designated‌‌heritage‌‌asset‌‌from‌‌                             
its‌‌alteration‌‌or‌‌destruction‌‌or‌‌from‌‌development‌‌within‌‌its‌‌setting‌‌should‌‌require‌‌clear‌‌                         
and‌ ‌convincing‌ ‌justification‌ ‌(paragraph‌ ‌200).‌‌  

Policy‌ ‌DM24‌‌within‌‌the‌‌SDWLP‌‌requires‌‌that‌‌development‌‌affecting‌‌any‌‌designated‌‌                     
or‌ ‌undesignated‌‌heritage‌‌asset‌‌must‌‌be‌‌of‌‌a‌‌high‌‌quality,‌‌respecting‌‌its‌‌context‌‌and‌                           

49



‌ 
‌ 

demonstrating‌‌a‌‌strong‌‌sense‌‌of‌‌place.‌‌Development‌‌within‌‌Conservation‌‌Areas‌‌will‌‌                     
be‌ ‌required‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌of‌ ‌a‌ ‌high‌ ‌standard‌ ‌of‌ ‌design‌ ‌and‌ ‌materials‌ ‌so‌ ‌as‌ ‌to‌ ‌respect,‌‌                               
preserve‌ ‌and‌ ‌enhance‌ ‌the‌ ‌character‌ ‌and‌ ‌appearance‌ ‌of‌ ‌that‌ ‌area,‌ ‌and‌ ‌preserve‌‌                       
important‌‌features.‌‌It‌‌states‌‌that‌‌the‌‌importance‌‌to‌‌the‌‌local‌‌area‌‌of‌‌Buildings‌‌of‌‌Local‌‌                             
Interest‌ ‌within‌ ‌Conservation‌ ‌Areas‌ ‌will‌ ‌be‌ ‌a‌ ‌material‌ ‌consideration‌‌in‌‌assessing‌‌an‌‌                       
application‌ ‌of‌ ‌their‌ ‌demolition‌ ‌or‌ ‌development.‌ ‌ ‌   

The‌‌character‌‌of‌‌this‌‌part‌‌of‌‌the‌‌Conservation‌‌Area‌‌is‌‌derived‌‌from‌‌large‌‌villas,‌‌each‌‌                             
with‌ ‌its‌ ‌own‌ ‌individuality,‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌clearly‌ ‌defined‌ ‌gaps‌ ‌which‌ ‌separate‌ ‌them‌ ‌and‌‌                         
provide‌ ‌their‌ ‌setting.‌‌ ‌  

The‌ ‌existing‌ ‌main‌ ‌villa‌ ‌building‌ ‌retains‌ ‌much‌‌of‌‌its‌‌original‌‌traditional‌‌character‌‌and‌‌                         
historic‌‌architectural‌‌interest.‌‌An‌‌earlier‌‌2-storey‌‌rear‌‌extension‌‌to‌‌the‌‌east‌‌elevation‌‌                       
is‌‌sympathetic‌‌to‌‌this‌‌character‌‌with‌‌its‌‌dual-ridged,‌‌gabled‌‌roof‌‌and‌‌use‌‌of‌‌traditional‌‌                           
materials‌ ‌and‌ ‌detailing.‌‌The‌‌large,‌‌somewhat‌‌ungainly‌‌conservatory‌‌attached‌‌to‌‌the‌‌                     
south‌ ‌side‌ ‌is‌ ‌less‌ ‌sympathetic,‌ ‌both‌ ‌in‌ ‌terms‌ ‌of‌ ‌its‌ ‌proportions‌ ‌and‌ ‌modern‌ ‌UPVC‌‌                           
framing.‌ ‌However,‌ ‌it‌ ‌does‌ ‌not‌ ‌project‌ ‌forward‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌main‌‌front‌‌wall‌‌of‌‌the‌‌villa‌‌and‌‌                               
the‌ ‌large‌ ‌areas‌ ‌of‌ ‌glazing‌ ‌and‌‌lightweight‌‌polycarbonate‌‌roof‌‌help‌‌it‌‌to‌‌appear‌‌as‌‌a‌‌                             
subsidiary‌ ‌addition,‌ ‌subordinate‌ ‌in‌ ‌scale‌ ‌and‌ ‌appearance‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌villa.‌ ‌The‌‌                     
introduction‌‌of‌‌replacement‌‌UPVC‌‌windows‌‌in‌‌the‌‌south‌‌side‌‌and‌‌east‌‌elevations‌‌has‌‌                         
similarly‌ ‌detracted‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌traditional‌ ‌character‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌villa.‌ ‌These‌ ‌windows‌ ‌were‌‌                       
installed‌ ‌without‌ ‌the‌ ‌benefit‌ ‌of‌ ‌planning‌ ‌permission‌ ‌along‌ ‌with‌ ‌UPVC‌ ‌windows‌‌                     
inserted‌‌in‌‌the‌‌north‌‌and‌‌west-facing‌‌elevations.‌‌The‌‌latter‌‌were‌‌replaced‌‌with‌‌timber‌‌                         
reinstatements‌ ‌detailed‌ ‌to‌ ‌match‌ ‌the‌ ‌originals‌ ‌as‌ ‌closely‌ ‌as‌ ‌possible‌ ‌following‌‌                     
enforcement‌ ‌action‌ ‌involving‌ ‌the‌ ‌serving‌ ‌of‌ ‌an‌ ‌Enforcement‌ ‌Notice‌ ‌(and‌ ‌a‌‌                     
subsequently‌ ‌dismissed‌ ‌appeal).‌ ‌However,‌‌given‌‌that‌‌public‌‌views‌‌of‌‌the‌‌south‌‌and‌‌                       
west‌ ‌elevations‌ ‌are‌ ‌less‌ ‌prominent‌ ‌it‌ ‌was‌ ‌not‌ ‌considered‌ ‌expedient‌ ‌at‌ ‌the‌ ‌time‌ ‌to‌‌                           
pursue‌ ‌enforcement‌ ‌action‌ ‌in‌ ‌relation‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌UPVC‌ ‌windows‌ ‌installed‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌south‌‌                         
and‌ ‌east‌ ‌elevations‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌villa‌ ‌(which‌ ‌have‌ ‌since‌ ‌assumed‌ ‌immunity‌ ‌from‌‌                       
enforcement‌ ‌action‌ ‌through‌ ‌the‌ ‌passage‌ ‌of‌ ‌time).‌ ‌ ‌   

The‌ ‌historic‌ ‌character‌ ‌and‌ ‌architectural‌ ‌integrity‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌villa‌ ‌would‌ ‌clearly‌ ‌be‌‌                       
enhanced‌‌by‌‌the‌‌removal‌‌of‌‌the‌‌large‌‌UPVC‌‌conservatory‌‌on‌‌the‌‌south‌‌side‌‌and‌‌the‌‌                             
external‌‌fire‌‌escape.‌‌The‌‌submitted‌‌Design‌‌and‌‌Access‌‌Statement‌‌confirms‌‌that‌‌the‌‌                       
existing‌ ‌brickwork‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌villa‌ ‌will‌ ‌be‌ ‌repaired‌ ‌and‌ ‌restored‌ ‌and‌ ‌windows‌ ‌where‌‌                         
replaced‌ ‌will‌ ‌be‌ ‌carried‌ ‌out‌ ‌in‌ ‌timber.‌ ‌The‌ ‌residential‌ ‌conversion‌ ‌works‌ ‌involve‌‌the‌‌                         
insertion‌ ‌of‌ ‌new‌ ‌window‌ ‌openings‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌south‌ ‌elevation‌‌of‌‌the‌‌later‌‌rear‌‌off-shoot‌‌                           
and‌ ‌adaptation‌ ‌of‌ ‌some‌ ‌existing‌ ‌openings‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌east‌ ‌elevation‌ ‌(including‌ ‌the‌‌                       
existing‌ ‌door‌ ‌leading‌ ‌onto‌ ‌the‌ ‌fire‌ ‌escape)‌ ‌but‌ ‌there‌ ‌is‌ ‌no‌ ‌intention‌ ‌to‌ ‌replace‌ ‌the‌‌                             
majority‌ ‌of‌ ‌existing‌ ‌UPVC‌ ‌windows‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌south‌ ‌and‌ ‌east‌ ‌elevations‌ ‌in‌ ‌timber.‌‌                         
Chimneys‌ ‌are‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌repaired‌ ‌and‌ ‌made‌ ‌safe.‌ ‌   

The‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌bungalow‌ ‌building‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌13‌ ‌metres‌ ‌deep‌ ‌and‌ ‌a‌ ‌maximum‌ ‌7.75‌‌                         
metres‌‌wide,‌‌sited‌‌a‌‌minimum‌‌1.2‌‌metres‌‌from‌‌the‌‌expressed‌‌chimney‌‌breast‌‌on‌‌the‌‌                           
south‌ ‌side‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌villa‌ ‌and‌ ‌1.05‌ ‌metres‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌ ‌boundary‌ ‌with‌ ‌No.138‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌‌                               
south.‌‌The‌‌main‌‌front‌‌wall‌‌of‌‌the‌‌bungalow‌‌would‌‌project‌‌slightly‌‌forward‌‌of‌‌the‌‌main‌‌                             
front‌‌elevation‌‌of‌‌the‌‌villa,‌‌but‌‌not‌‌forward‌‌of‌‌the‌‌large‌‌bay‌‌window‌‌in‌‌the‌‌front‌‌of‌‌the‌‌                                   
villa.‌ ‌It‌ ‌would‌ ‌have‌ ‌a‌ ‌hipped‌ ‌and‌ ‌ridged‌ ‌roof‌ ‌with‌ ‌its‌ ‌main‌ ‌ridge‌ ‌5.6‌ ‌metres‌ ‌high‌‌                               
running‌ ‌parallel‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌main‌ ‌roof‌ ‌ridge‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌villa‌ ‌for‌ ‌a‌ ‌depth‌ ‌of‌ ‌6.2‌ ‌metres.‌ ‌A‌‌                                 
hip-roofed‌ ‌projection‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌‌north‌‌side‌‌of‌‌the‌‌bungalow‌‌would‌‌sit‌‌slightly‌‌lower‌‌than‌‌                           
the‌ ‌main‌ ‌roof‌ ‌ridge‌ ‌at‌ ‌4.8‌ ‌metres‌ ‌high.‌ ‌The‌ ‌composition‌ ‌is‌ ‌traditional‌ ‌in‌ ‌style‌‌                           

50



‌ 
‌ 

consisting‌ ‌of‌ ‌brickwork‌ ‌elevations‌ ‌above‌ ‌a‌ ‌shallow‌ ‌rendered‌ ‌plinth‌ ‌and‌ ‌plain‌‌                     
clay-tiled‌‌roof.‌‌Whilst‌‌the‌‌front‌‌elevation‌‌is‌‌articulated‌‌by‌‌a‌‌squared‌‌bay‌‌window,‌‌with‌‌                           
glazing‌ ‌running‌ ‌up‌ ‌into‌ ‌a‌ ‌gabled‌‌roof,‌‌the‌‌remainder‌‌of‌‌the‌‌elevations‌‌are‌‌relatively‌‌                           
plain,‌ ‌including‌ ‌the‌ ‌window‌ ‌design,‌ ‌lacking‌ ‌the‌ ‌detail‌ ‌and‌ ‌decorative‌ ‌features‌                     
characteristic‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌villa.‌‌The‌‌drawings‌‌show‌‌the‌‌creation‌‌of‌‌a‌‌small‌‌private‌‌garden‌‌                           
to‌ ‌the‌ ‌rear‌ ‌(east)‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌bungalow‌ ‌(between‌ ‌the‌ ‌bungalow‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌‘coach‌ ‌house’‌‌                           
dwelling)‌ ‌plus‌ ‌a‌ ‌fenced/walled‌ ‌irregular-shaped‌ ‌area‌ ‌between‌ ‌the‌ ‌north‌ ‌side‌‌of‌‌the‌‌                       
bungalow‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌south‌ ‌side‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌villa,‌‌as‌‌a‌‌private‌‌amenity‌‌space‌‌for‌‌one‌‌of‌‌the‌‌                                 
units‌‌on‌‌the‌‌ground-floor‌‌of‌‌the‌‌converted‌‌villa.‌ ‌The‌‌soft‌‌landscaped‌‌area‌‌in‌‌front‌‌of‌‌                             
the‌‌bungalow‌‌up‌‌to‌‌the‌‌boundary‌‌wall‌‌fronting‌‌Heene‌‌Road‌‌is‌‌shown‌‌as‌‌a‌‌communal‌‌                             
space‌ ‌with‌ ‌a‌ ‌rose‌ ‌garden.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

The‌‌existing‌‌conservatory‌‌is‌‌4.1‌‌metres‌‌high‌‌and‌‌6.2‌‌metres‌‌wide,‌‌slightly‌‌raised‌‌off‌‌                           
the‌ ‌ground‌ ‌to‌ ‌allow‌ ‌a‌ ‌level‌ ‌threshold‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌ground-floor‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌villa‌ ‌(bearing‌ ‌in‌‌                             
mind‌ ‌its‌ ‌former‌ ‌care‌ ‌home‌ ‌use).‌ ‌It‌ ‌has‌ ‌an‌ ‌almost‌ ‌pyramidal‌ ‌roof‌ ‌with‌ ‌a‌ ‌very‌ ‌short‌‌                               
east-west‌‌ridge‌‌(not‌‌accurately‌‌shown‌‌on‌‌the‌‌submitted‌‌drawing).‌ ‌There‌‌is‌‌a‌‌gap‌‌of‌‌                           
almost‌ ‌5‌ ‌metres‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌south‌ ‌side‌ ‌boundary.‌‌ ‌  

‌ ‌   
Despite‌ ‌its‌‌single-storey‌‌scale,‌‌the‌‌proposed‌‌bungalow‌‌would‌‌have‌‌a‌‌visibly‌‌greater‌‌                       
prominence‌ ‌than‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌conservatory‌ ‌owing‌ ‌to‌ ‌its‌ ‌greater‌ ‌height,‌ ‌footprint,‌‌                     
massing‌ ‌and‌ ‌solid‌ ‌construction.‌ ‌It‌ ‌would‌ ‌appear‌ ‌as‌‌a‌‌separate‌‌dwelling‌‌and‌‌clearly‌‌                         
different‌‌to‌‌the‌‌subsidiary‌‌character‌‌of‌‌the‌‌existing‌‌conservatory,‌‌an‌‌ancillary‌‌addition‌‌                       
to‌ ‌the‌ ‌former‌ ‌care‌ ‌home.‌ ‌It’s‌ ‌more‌ ‌assertive‌ ‌physical‌ ‌presence‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌‌                       
compounded‌‌by‌‌its‌‌siting‌‌in‌‌relation‌‌to‌‌the‌‌villa,‌‌infilling‌‌the‌‌important‌‌space‌‌between‌‌                           
its‌‌south‌‌side‌‌and‌‌the‌‌south‌‌site‌‌boundary.‌‌It‌‌would‌‌in‌‌consequence‌‌appear‌‌crowded‌‌                           
both‌ ‌in‌ ‌relation‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌larger‌ ‌scale‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌villa‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌backdrop‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌enlarged‌‌                               
‘coach‌‌house’‌‌dwelling‌‌to‌‌the‌‌east‌‌which‌‌would‌‌also‌‌be‌‌raised‌‌in‌‌height‌‌compared‌‌to‌‌                             
the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌‘coach‌ ‌house’‌ ‌building.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

The‌‌siting,‌‌scale,‌‌massing‌‌and‌‌design‌‌of‌‌the‌‌proposed‌‌infill‌‌bungalow‌‌would‌‌not‌‌only‌‌                           
appear‌ ‌crammed‌ ‌and‌ ‌intrusive‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌street‌ ‌scene,‌ ‌the‌ ‌erosion‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌‌                         
space‌ ‌would‌ ‌irrevocably‌ ‌damage‌ ‌the‌ ‌setting‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌villa‌ ‌and‌ ‌seriously‌ ‌detract‌ ‌from‌‌                         
the‌ ‌important‌ ‌historic‌ ‌character‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Heene‌ ‌Conservation‌ ‌Area.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

Residential‌ ‌amenity‌ ‌–‌ ‌for‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌dwellings‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

The‌ ‌Gross‌ ‌Internal‌ ‌Area‌ ‌(GIA)‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌accommodation‌ ‌would‌ ‌consist‌ ‌of:-‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Unit‌ ‌1:‌ ‌2-bedroom‌ ‌flat‌ GIA‌ ‌63sqm‌ ‌ 
Unit‌ ‌2:‌ ‌2-bedroom‌ ‌flat‌ GIA‌ ‌61sqm‌ ‌ 
Unit‌ ‌3:‌ ‌1-bedroom‌ ‌flat‌ GIA‌ ‌50sqm‌ ‌ 
Unit‌ ‌4:‌ ‌2-bedroom‌ ‌flat‌ GIA‌ ‌55.5sqm‌ ‌ 
Unit‌ ‌5:‌ ‌1-bedroom‌ ‌flat‌ GIA‌ ‌48sqm‌ ‌ 
Unit‌ ‌6:‌ ‌2-bedroom‌ ‌flat‌ GIA‌ ‌60sqm‌ ‌ 
Unit‌ ‌7:‌ ‌2-bedroom‌ ‌flat‌ GIA‌ ‌80sqm‌ ‌ 
Unit‌ ‌8:‌ ‌3-bed‌ ‌house‌ GIA‌ ‌87sqm‌ ‌ 
Unit‌ ‌9:‌ ‌2-bed‌ ‌bungalow‌ GIA‌ ‌70sqm‌ ‌ ‌  

The‌‌GIA‌‌of‌‌Units‌‌4,‌‌5‌‌and‌‌6‌‌is‌‌below‌‌the‌‌Government’s‌‌so-called‌‌nationally‌‌described‌‌                             
minimum‌ ‌space‌ ‌standards,‌ ‌although‌ ‌Unit‌ ‌6‌ ‌only‌ ‌marginally‌ ‌so‌ ‌(by‌ ‌1sqm).‌ ‌The‌‌                       

51



‌ 
‌ 

comments‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Private‌ ‌Sector‌ ‌Housing‌ ‌team‌ ‌regarding‌ ‌the‌ ‌size‌ ‌of‌ ‌Units‌ ‌4‌ ‌and‌‌5‌‌                             
were‌ ‌taken‌ ‌into‌ ‌account‌ ‌in‌ ‌determining‌ ‌AWDM/0601/21‌ ‌which‌ ‌are‌ ‌respectively‌‌                   
5.1sqm‌ ‌and‌ ‌2sqm‌ ‌below‌ ‌standard.‌ ‌Unit‌ ‌5‌ ‌would‌ ‌have‌ ‌regular-shaped‌ ‌rooms‌ ‌and‌‌                       
good‌ ‌standards‌ ‌of‌ ‌daylight‌ ‌and‌ ‌outlook‌ ‌to‌ ‌all‌‌the‌‌habitable‌‌rooms.‌ ‌The‌‌main‌‌issue‌‌                           
with‌ ‌regard‌ ‌to‌ ‌Unit‌ ‌4‌ ‌relates‌ ‌to‌ ‌bedroom‌ ‌2‌ ‌which‌ ‌is‌ ‌below‌ ‌standard‌ ‌for‌ ‌a‌ ‌single‌‌                               
bedroom‌‌and‌‌would‌‌have‌ ‌an‌‌outlook‌‌partially‌‌obstructed‌‌by‌‌the‌‌enlarged‌‌roof‌‌of‌‌the‌‌                           
proposed‌ ‌‘coach‌ ‌house’‌ ‌dwelling‌ ‌(Unit‌ ‌8).‌ ‌It‌ ‌was‌ ‌suggested‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌Applicant’s‌‌                       
Architect‌ ‌as‌ ‌part‌ ‌of‌ ‌that‌ ‌application‌ ‌that‌ ‌Unit‌ ‌4‌ ‌should‌ ‌be‌ ‌reduced‌ ‌to‌ ‌a‌ ‌1-bedroom‌‌                             
unit‌ ‌in‌ ‌order‌ ‌to‌ ‌overcome‌ ‌these‌ ‌concerns.‌ ‌However,‌ ‌the‌ ‌Applicant‌ ‌was‌‌unwilling‌‌at‌‌                         
that‌ ‌time‌ ‌to‌ ‌do‌ ‌so‌ ‌citing‌ ‌concerns‌ ‌about‌ ‌the‌ ‌viability‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposals.‌ ‌As‌ ‌with‌ ‌any‌‌                               
re-use‌‌of‌‌a‌‌building,‌‌the‌‌proposed‌‌layout‌‌of‌‌the‌‌accommodation‌‌is‌‌largely‌‌dictated‌‌by‌‌                           
the‌‌configuration‌‌of‌‌the‌‌existing‌‌floor‌‌plan.‌‌On‌‌balance‌‌it‌‌was‌‌determined‌‌that‌‌whilst‌‌                           
the‌‌sub-standard‌‌unit‌‌sizes‌‌and‌‌layouts‌‌incorporating‌‌‘inner‌‌rooms’‌‌were‌‌not‌‌ideal‌‌the‌‌                         
quality‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌residential‌ ‌dwellings‌ ‌would‌ ‌not‌ ‌be‌ ‌so‌ ‌unsatisfactory‌ ‌as‌ ‌to‌‌                         
justify‌‌refusal‌‌on‌‌this‌‌ground‌‌particularly‌‌when‌‌weighed‌‌in‌‌relation‌‌to‌‌the‌‌sensitivity‌‌in‌‌                           
general‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌conversion‌ ‌works‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌historic‌ ‌character‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌villa.‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌GIA‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌bungalow‌ ‌(Unit‌ ‌9)‌ ‌meets‌ ‌the‌ ‌Government’s‌ ‌nationally‌‌                       
described‌‌minimum‌‌space‌‌standard‌‌for‌‌a‌‌2-bedroom,‌‌4-person‌‌dwelling‌‌(at‌‌1‌‌storey).‌‌                       
It‌‌would‌‌have‌‌a‌‌small‌‌private‌‌garden‌‌of‌‌56sqm‌‌which‌‌is‌‌below‌‌the‌‌Council’s‌‌minimum‌‌                             
external‌‌space‌‌standard‌‌of‌‌85sqm,‌‌but‌‌larger‌‌than‌‌the‌‌small‌‌private‌‌garden‌‌approved‌‌                         
for‌ ‌the‌ ‌‘coach‌ ‌house’‌ ‌dwelling‌ ‌under‌ ‌AWDM/0601/21.‌ ‌However,‌ ‌the‌ ‌siting‌ ‌and‌‌                     
layout‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌bungalow‌ ‌would‌ ‌severely‌ ‌curtail‌ ‌the‌ ‌amount‌ ‌of‌ ‌communal‌‌                       
garden‌ ‌available‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌converted‌ ‌flats‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌villa.‌ ‌In‌ ‌essence‌ ‌the‌ ‌communal‌‌                         
garden‌‌would‌‌be‌‌limited‌‌to‌‌the‌‌area‌‌directly‌‌in‌‌front‌‌(west)‌‌of‌‌the‌‌glazed‌‌bay‌‌window‌‌                               
of‌ ‌the‌ ‌bungalow,‌ ‌raising‌ ‌concerns‌ ‌about‌ ‌the‌ ‌practicality‌ ‌of‌ ‌its‌ ‌use‌ ‌as‌ ‌a‌ ‌communal‌‌                           
amenity‌ ‌space‌ ‌without‌ ‌severely‌ ‌impacting‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌privacy‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌future‌‌occupiers‌‌of‌‌                         
the‌ ‌bungalow.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌‌close‌‌siting‌‌of‌‌the‌‌bungalow‌‌(at‌‌a‌‌distance‌‌of‌‌between‌‌1‌‌and‌‌2.2‌‌metres)‌‌would‌‌                               
also‌ ‌severely‌ ‌impact‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌outlook‌ ‌from‌ ‌and‌ ‌receipt‌ ‌of‌ ‌daylight‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌southern‌‌                           
aspect‌‌of‌‌the‌‌living/dining/kitchen‌‌area‌‌of‌‌Unit‌‌3‌‌on‌‌the‌‌ground-floor‌‌of‌‌the‌‌converted‌‌                           
villa.‌‌Although‌‌seemingly‌‌compensated‌‌for‌‌by‌‌the‌‌creation‌‌of‌‌a‌‌small‌‌private‌‌garden‌‌                         
for‌ ‌this‌ ‌unit,‌ ‌this‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌of‌ ‌a‌ ‌narrow,‌ ‌irregular‌ ‌shape,‌ ‌in‌ ‌shadow‌ ‌for‌‌much‌‌of‌‌the‌‌                                 
day‌ ‌and‌ ‌not‌ ‌a‌ ‌particularly‌ ‌pleasant‌ ‌space.‌ ‌   
‌ 

Residential‌ ‌amenity‌ ‌–‌ ‌effect‌ ‌on‌ ‌existing‌ ‌dwellings‌ ‌ 

The‌‌most‌‌affected‌‌properties‌‌are‌‌those‌‌to‌‌the‌‌south,‌‌No.138‌‌Heene‌‌Road,‌‌and‌‌No.60‌‌                           
Manor‌ ‌Road‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌east.‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌bungalow‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌well-separated‌ ‌from‌ ‌No.60‌ ‌Manor‌‌Road,‌‌a‌‌large‌‌                       
Edwardian‌‌villa‌‌apparently‌‌in‌‌use‌‌as‌‌holiday‌‌accommodation.‌‌The‌‌current‌‌proposals‌‌                     
raise‌ ‌no‌ ‌additional‌ ‌impacts‌ ‌than‌ ‌were‌ ‌previously‌ ‌considered‌ ‌acceptable‌ ‌under‌‌                   
AWDM/0601/21,‌‌namely‌‌in‌‌relation‌‌to‌‌the‌‌raised‌‌and‌‌elongated‌‌ridge‌‌of‌‌the‌‌adapted‌‌                         
and‌ ‌enlarged‌ ‌‘coach‌ ‌house’‌ ‌dwelling.‌ ‌ ‌   

No.138‌ ‌Heene‌ ‌Road‌ ‌consists‌ ‌of‌ ‌a‌ ‌single‌ ‌dwellinghouse.‌ ‌A‌ ‌drive‌ ‌accessed‌ ‌from‌‌                       
Heene‌‌Road‌‌runs‌‌along‌‌the‌‌north‌‌side‌‌of‌‌the‌‌house‌‌serving‌‌a‌‌garage‌‌building‌‌in‌‌the‌                               
northeast‌ ‌corner‌ ‌which‌ ‌is‌ ‌conjoined‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌building‌ ‌linked‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌‘coach‌‌                         
house’‌ ‌at‌ ‌the‌ ‌application‌ ‌site.‌‌ ‌  

52



‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌bungalow‌ ‌would‌ ‌lie‌ ‌between‌ ‌the‌ ‌villa‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌ ‌boundary‌ ‌roughly‌‌                         
adjacent‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌north‌ ‌elevation‌ ‌of‌ ‌No.138.‌ ‌There‌ ‌are‌ ‌a‌ ‌number‌ ‌of‌ ‌windows‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌‌                             
north‌‌elevation‌‌of‌‌No.138.‌‌Those‌‌on‌‌the‌‌upper‌‌floor‌‌appear‌‌to‌‌serve‌‌a‌‌bathroom‌‌and‌‌                             
WC.‌‌Those‌‌on‌‌the‌‌ground-floor‌‌are‌‌largely‌‌screened‌‌from‌‌view‌‌from‌‌the‌‌garden‌‌area‌‌                           
to‌‌the‌‌side‌‌of‌‌the‌‌villa‌‌by‌‌a‌‌close-boarded‌‌fence‌‌on‌‌the‌‌common‌‌boundary.‌ ‌Given‌‌its‌‌                               
orientation‌‌to‌‌the‌‌north‌‌and‌‌single-storey‌‌scale‌‌with‌‌pitched‌‌roof‌‌sleeping‌‌away‌‌from‌‌                         
the‌ ‌common‌ ‌boundary,‌‌the‌‌scale‌‌and‌‌massing‌‌of‌‌the‌‌bungalow‌‌would‌‌not‌‌have‌‌any‌‌                           
significantly‌ ‌adverse‌ ‌impacts‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌amenities‌ ‌of‌ ‌No.138‌ ‌in‌ ‌terms‌ ‌of‌ ‌light‌ ‌and‌‌                         
outlook.‌‌The‌‌number‌‌of‌‌openings‌‌on‌‌the‌‌south‌‌side‌‌of‌‌the‌‌bungalow‌‌are‌‌limited‌‌to‌‌a‌‌                               
secondary‌‌window‌‌(to‌‌the‌‌main‌‌living‌‌area)‌‌and‌‌a‌‌door‌‌leading‌‌from‌‌the‌‌kitchen‌‌area‌‌                             
to‌ ‌the‌ ‌garden‌ ‌and‌ ‌would‌ ‌not‌ ‌give‌ ‌rise‌ ‌to‌ ‌any‌ ‌serious‌ ‌loss‌ ‌of‌ ‌privacy.‌‌ ‌  

The‌‌proposed‌‌‘coach‌‌house’‌‌dwelling‌‌(Unit‌‌8)‌‌would‌‌be‌‌sited‌‌to‌‌the‌‌north‌‌and‌‌east‌‌of‌‌                               
No.138‌ ‌and‌ ‌was‌ ‌determined‌ ‌under‌ ‌AWDM/0601/21‌ ‌not‌‌to‌‌have‌‌any‌‌serious‌‌impact‌‌                       
on‌ ‌the‌ ‌amenities‌ ‌of‌ ‌No.138‌ ‌having‌ ‌been‌‌designed‌‌to‌‌deliberately‌‌minimise‌‌the‌‌size‌‌                         
and‌ ‌number‌ ‌of‌ ‌openings‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌most‌ ‌sensitive‌ ‌south-facing‌ ‌elevation‌ ‌facing‌ ‌this‌‌                       
property.‌‌ ‌  

Accessibility‌ ‌and‌ ‌parking‌ ‌ 

The‌‌amended‌‌proposals‌‌would‌‌result‌‌in‌‌the‌‌provision‌‌of‌‌7‌‌parking‌‌spaces‌‌equating‌‌to‌                           
less‌ ‌than‌ ‌1‌ ‌space‌ ‌per‌ ‌unit.‌ ‌The‌ ‌parking‌ ‌layout‌ ‌would‌ ‌utilise‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌vehicle‌‌                           
accesses‌ ‌with‌ ‌a‌ ‌separate‌ ‌‘in’‌ ‌and‌ ‌‘out’‌ ‌arrangement.‌ ‌ ‌   

The‌‌local‌‌Highway‌‌Authority‌‌(LHA)‌‌has‌‌not‌‌raised‌‌any‌‌objection‌‌either‌‌to‌‌the‌‌shortfall‌‌                           
in‌ ‌the‌ ‌amount‌ ‌of‌ ‌parking‌ ‌provision‌ ‌in‌ ‌relation‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌WSCC‌ ‌parking‌ ‌demand‌‌                         
calculator,‌ ‌or‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌parking‌ ‌layout.‌‌ ‌  

The‌ ‌parking‌ ‌layout‌ ‌has‌ ‌not‌ ‌changed‌ ‌from‌ ‌that‌ ‌previously‌ ‌approved‌ ‌under‌‌                     
AWDM/0601/21.‌‌The‌‌shortfall‌‌in‌‌onsite‌‌provision‌‌will‌‌increase‌‌from‌‌1.3‌‌spaces‌‌to‌‌2.4‌‌                         
spaces.‌ ‌Although‌ ‌the‌ ‌LHA‌ ‌has‌ ‌not‌ ‌raised‌‌any‌‌objection‌‌on‌‌highway‌‌safety‌‌grounds‌‌                         
given‌ ‌the‌ ‌sustainable‌ ‌location‌ ‌and‌ ‌capacity‌ ‌for‌ ‌on-street‌ ‌parking‌ ‌on‌ ‌nearby‌‌                     
residential‌ ‌roads,‌ ‌the‌ ‌amount‌ ‌of‌ ‌on-site‌ ‌provision‌‌at‌‌less‌‌than‌‌1‌‌space‌‌per‌‌dwelling‌‌                           
unit‌ ‌is‌ ‌not‌‌ideal.‌‌The‌‌creation‌‌of‌‌additional‌‌parking‌‌spaces‌‌would‌‌be‌‌at‌‌the‌‌expense‌‌                             
of‌ ‌further‌ ‌eroding‌ ‌the‌ ‌soft‌ ‌landscaped‌ ‌areas‌ ‌around‌ ‌the‌ ‌main‌ ‌villa‌ ‌building,‌ ‌further‌‌                         
impacting‌ ‌upon‌ ‌its‌ ‌historic‌ ‌setting‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌amount‌ ‌of‌ ‌communal‌ ‌garden‌ ‌area.‌‌ ‌  

Sustainability‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

The‌ ‌scope‌ ‌for‌ ‌including‌ ‌sustainability‌ ‌features‌ ‌is‌ ‌limited‌ ‌in‌ ‌relation‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌reuse‌ ‌of‌‌                           
existing‌ ‌buildings‌‌and‌‌where‌‌sensitivities‌‌exist‌‌around‌‌ensuring‌‌new‌‌development‌‌is‌‌                     
sensitive‌ ‌to‌ ‌its‌ ‌historic‌ ‌context.‌ ‌However,‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposals‌ ‌do‌ ‌include‌ ‌EV‌ ‌charging‌‌                       
points‌ ‌to‌ ‌all‌ ‌7no‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌parking‌ ‌spaces.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

On‌ ‌the‌ ‌other‌ ‌hand,‌ ‌the‌ ‌Engineer‌ ‌has‌ ‌raised‌ ‌a‌ ‌holding‌ ‌objection‌ ‌in‌ ‌relation‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌‌                             
scope‌ ‌to‌ ‌utilise‌ ‌sustainable‌ ‌surface‌‌water‌‌drainage‌‌measures‌‌as‌‌suggested‌‌as‌‌part‌‌                       
of‌ ‌the‌ ‌submission,‌ ‌since‌ ‌the‌ ‌constraints‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌site,‌ ‌not‌ ‌least‌ ‌the‌ ‌siting‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌                             
proposed‌ ‌bungalow‌ ‌itself,‌ ‌will‌ ‌severely‌ ‌inhibit‌ ‌opportunities‌ ‌for‌ ‌infiltration‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌‌                     
siting‌ ‌of‌ ‌soakaways.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

53



‌ 
‌ 

A‌ ‌number‌ ‌of‌‌new‌‌trees‌‌are‌‌proposed‌‌to‌‌be‌‌planted‌‌adjacent‌‌to‌‌the‌‌site‌‌perimeter‌‌in‌‌                               
Heene‌‌Road‌‌and‌‌Manor‌‌Road,‌‌although‌‌it‌‌is‌‌understood‌‌a‌‌bay‌‌tree‌‌growing‌‌close‌‌to‌‌                             
the‌ ‌southern‌ ‌site‌ ‌boundary‌ ‌with‌ ‌No.138‌ ‌has‌ ‌already‌ ‌been‌ ‌removed‌ ‌(albeit‌ ‌not‌‌                       
considered‌ ‌worthy‌ ‌of‌ ‌a‌ ‌TPO).‌ ‌   
‌ 

CIL‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌‌proposals‌‌would‌‌result‌‌in‌‌a‌‌net‌‌increase‌‌of‌‌Gross‌‌Internal‌‌Floorspace‌‌on‌‌the‌‌site‌‌                             
which‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌chargeable‌ ‌under‌ ‌the‌ ‌new‌ ‌CIL‌ ‌rates.‌ ‌ ‌   
‌ 

Conclusion‌ 

It‌ ‌is‌ ‌considered‌ ‌the‌ ‌approved‌ ‌scheme‌ ‌under‌ ‌AWDM/0601/21‌ ‌struck‌ ‌a‌ ‌reasonable‌‌                     
balance‌ ‌between‌ ‌the‌ ‌competing‌ ‌demands‌ ‌of‌ ‌making‌ ‌a‌ ‌viable‌ ‌reuse‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌‌                         
vacant‌ ‌building‌ ‌without‌ ‌unacceptably‌ ‌impacting‌ ‌its‌ ‌historic‌ ‌significance‌ ‌or‌ ‌the‌‌                   
character‌ ‌and‌ ‌appearance‌‌of‌‌the‌‌Heene‌‌Conservation‌‌Area.‌‌Whilst,‌‌it‌‌is‌‌recognised‌‌                       
the‌‌inclusion‌‌of‌‌an‌‌additional‌‌2-bedroom‌‌dwelling‌‌as‌‌part‌‌of‌‌this‌‌latest‌‌proposal‌‌would‌‌                           
make‌ ‌a‌ ‌valuable‌ ‌contribution‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌housing‌ ‌stock,‌ ‌this‌ ‌does‌ ‌not‌ ‌outweigh‌ ‌the‌‌                         
unacceptable‌ ‌harm‌ ‌that‌ ‌would‌ ‌result‌ ‌to‌ ‌visual‌ ‌amenity‌ ‌and‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌character‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌                           
Heene‌‌Conservation‌‌Area.‌‌Moreover,‌‌the‌‌resulting‌‌congested‌‌layout‌‌would‌‌result‌‌in‌‌a‌‌                       
less‌ ‌than‌ ‌satisfactory‌ ‌standard‌ ‌of‌ ‌amenity‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌future‌ ‌occupiers‌ ‌of‌ ‌Unit‌ ‌3‌‌on‌‌the‌‌                             
ground-floor‌‌of‌‌the‌‌converted‌‌villa,‌‌and‌‌with‌‌limited‌‌usable‌‌external‌‌amenity‌‌space‌‌for‌‌                         
the‌ ‌occupiers‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌converted‌ ‌flat‌ ‌units‌ ‌in‌ ‌general.‌ ‌ ‌   

Recommendation‌ ‌ 
‌ 

To‌‌delegate‌‌to‌‌the‌‌Head‌‌of‌‌Planning‌‌&‌‌Development‌‌to‌‌‌REFUSE‌‌‌following‌‌the‌‌expiry‌‌                           
of‌ ‌the‌ ‌publicity‌ ‌period‌ ‌and‌ ‌subject‌ ‌to‌ ‌no‌ ‌additional‌ ‌issues‌ ‌being‌ ‌raised‌ ‌in‌ ‌any‌‌                           
representation‌ ‌received,‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌reason(s):-‌ ‌ 
‌ 

1. By‌ ‌reason‌ ‌of‌ ‌its‌ ‌siting,‌ ‌scale,‌ ‌layout,‌ ‌massing‌ ‌and‌ ‌design‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌‌                       
detached‌ ‌2-bedroom‌ ‌infill‌ ‌bungalow‌ ‌(Unit‌ ‌9)‌ ‌would‌ ‌appear‌ ‌‘crammed’‌ ‌and‌‌                   
intrusive‌‌within‌‌the‌‌street‌‌scene,‌‌and‌‌together‌‌with‌‌the‌‌erosion‌‌of‌‌the‌‌existing‌‌                         
space‌‌to‌‌the‌‌south‌‌side‌‌of‌‌the‌‌existing‌‌grand‌‌Edwardian‌‌villa‌‌would‌‌irrevocably‌‌                         
damage‌ ‌its‌ ‌setting‌ ‌and‌ ‌seriously‌ ‌detract‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌historic‌ ‌character‌ ‌and‌‌                     
appearance‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Heene‌ ‌Conservation‌ ‌Area.‌ ‌The‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌development‌‌                 
would‌‌therefore‌‌conflict‌‌with‌‌policy‌‌16‌‌of‌‌the‌‌adopted‌‌Worthing‌‌Core‌‌Strategy,‌‌                       
policies‌‌DM5‌‌and‌‌DM24‌‌of‌‌the‌‌Submission‌‌Draft‌‌Worthing‌‌Local‌‌Plan‌‌and‌‌the‌‌                         
relevant‌ ‌paragraphs‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌NPPF.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

2. Due‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌scale,‌ ‌layout‌ ‌and‌ ‌massing‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌proposed‌‌detached,‌‌2-bedroom‌‌                       
infill‌ ‌bungalow,‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌development‌ ‌would‌ ‌provide‌ ‌an‌ ‌unacceptably‌‌                 
poor‌ ‌standard‌ ‌of‌ ‌accommodation‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌future‌ ‌occupiers‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌converted‌‌                     
ground-floor‌‌flat‌‌(Unit‌‌3)‌‌and‌‌for‌‌the‌‌occupiers‌‌of‌‌the‌‌converted‌‌flats‌‌in‌‌general‌‌                           
(Units‌‌1-7)‌‌owing‌‌to‌‌the‌‌lack‌‌of‌‌usable,‌‌external‌‌amenity‌‌space.‌‌The‌‌proposed‌‌                         
development‌ ‌is‌ ‌therefore‌ ‌contrary‌ ‌to‌ ‌policy‌ ‌8‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌Worthing‌‌Core‌‌Strategy,‌‌                       
policies‌ ‌DM1‌ ‌and‌ ‌DM2‌ ‌of‌‌the‌‌Submission‌‌Draft‌‌Worthing‌‌Local‌‌Plan‌‌and‌‌the‌‌                         
relevant‌ ‌paragraphs‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌NPPF.2‌ ‌ 

‌ 
‌ 

54



‌ 
‌ 

‌ 
3‌ ‌ 

‌ 

‌ 

‌ 
‌ 

Not‌ ‌to‌ ‌Scale‌ ‌ ‌   
Reproduced‌ ‌from‌ ‌OS‌ ‌Mapping‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌permission‌ ‌of‌ ‌HMSO‌ ‌©‌ ‌Crown‌ ‌Copyright‌ ‌Licence‌ ‌number‌ ‌LA100024321‌ ‌ 

‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

Application‌ ‌Number:‌ ‌  AWDM/1102/21‌ ‌  Recommendation‌ ‌-‌ ‌APPROVE‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Site:‌ ‌  Land‌ ‌Between‌ ‌Station‌ ‌Car‌ ‌Park‌ ‌and‌ ‌Footbridge,‌‌ 
Tarring‌ ‌Road,‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Proposal:‌ ‌  Proposed‌ ‌detached‌ ‌2-storey‌ ‌3-bedroom‌ ‌flat-roofed‌‌ 

house‌ ‌with‌ ‌south-facing‌ ‌first-floor‌ ‌balcony,‌ ‌parking,‌‌ 
driveway‌ ‌and‌ ‌landscaping‌‌ ‌  

‌ 
Applicant:‌ ‌  Clarke‌ ‌Developments‌‌ 

(Tarring‌ ‌Rd)‌ ‌Ltd‌ ‌ 
Ward:‌ ‌Marine‌ ‌ 

Agent:‌ ‌  ECE‌ ‌Architecture‌ ‌Ltd‌ ‌ 
Case‌ ‌Officer:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Ms‌ ‌Jo‌ ‌Morin‌ ‌ 

55



‌ 
‌ 

Site‌ ‌and‌ ‌Surroundings‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌application‌ ‌relates‌‌to‌‌a‌‌tapering‌‌piece‌‌of‌‌unused‌‌land‌‌sandwiched‌‌between‌‌the‌‌                         
Brighton-Southampton‌ ‌railway‌ ‌line‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌north‌ ‌and‌ ‌highway‌ ‌land‌ ‌adjoining‌ ‌the‌‌                     
carriageway‌‌of‌‌Tarring‌‌Road‌‌to‌‌the‌‌south.‌‌The‌‌site‌‌is‌‌66.5‌‌metres‌‌wide‌‌and‌‌varies‌‌in‌‌                               
depth‌ ‌between‌ ‌4.3‌ ‌metres‌ ‌at‌ ‌the‌ ‌far‌ ‌western‌ ‌end‌ ‌and‌ ‌10.4‌ ‌metres‌ ‌at‌ ‌the‌ ‌eastern‌‌                             
end.‌‌The‌‌adjoining‌‌highway‌‌land‌‌is‌‌approximately‌‌2‌‌metres‌‌deep‌‌at‌‌the‌‌eastern‌‌end‌‌                           
of‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌ ‌widening‌ ‌to‌ ‌5‌ ‌metres‌ ‌deep‌ ‌at‌ ‌the‌‌western‌‌end.‌ ‌There‌‌is‌‌no‌‌footpath‌‌on‌‌                                 
the‌ ‌north‌ ‌side‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌carriageway‌ ‌of‌ ‌Tarring‌ ‌Road.‌ ‌The‌ ‌site‌ ‌is‌‌roughly‌‌opposite‌‌the‌‌                             
junction‌ ‌of‌ ‌Tarring‌ ‌Road‌ ‌with‌ ‌Ripley‌ ‌Road.‌ ‌ 

To‌ ‌the‌ ‌east,‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌ ‌adjoins‌ ‌a‌ ‌vacant‌ ‌piece‌ ‌of‌ ‌land‌ ‌for‌ ‌which‌ ‌there‌ ‌is‌ ‌an‌ ‌extant‌‌                                 
planning‌ ‌permission‌ ‌for‌ ‌a‌ ‌pair‌ ‌of‌ ‌semi-detached‌ ‌3-bedroom‌ ‌houses‌ ‌granted‌ ‌under‌‌                     
AWDM/0072/19‌ ‌(and‌ ‌a‌ ‌subsequent‌ ‌Non‌ ‌Material‌ ‌Amendment‌ ‌AWDM/1632/20).‌‌               
Beyond‌‌that‌‌further‌‌to‌‌the‌‌east‌‌are‌‌5‌‌new‌‌houses‌‌Nos:‌‌310‌‌to‌‌318‌‌Tarring‌‌Road.‌‌To‌‌                                 
the‌‌west‌‌the‌‌site‌‌adjoins‌‌the‌‌road‌‌margin‌‌informally‌‌landscaped‌‌with‌‌self-sown‌‌trees‌‌                         
and‌ ‌hedgerow.‌ ‌Development‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌opposite‌ ‌side‌ ‌of‌ ‌Tarring‌ ‌Road‌ ‌is‌ ‌primarily‌‌                       
residential‌ ‌in‌ ‌character,‌ ‌consisting‌ ‌of‌ ‌short‌ ‌terraced‌ ‌blocks‌ ‌dating‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌‌early‌‌to‌‌                         
mid‌ ‌20th‌ ‌Century.‌‌ ‌  

There‌‌are‌‌no‌‌trees‌‌on‌‌the‌‌site.‌‌There‌‌are‌‌4no‌‌trees‌‌growing‌‌within‌‌the‌‌highway‌‌land‌‌                               
adjoining‌‌the‌‌site‌‌to‌‌the‌‌south.‌‌Of‌‌these,‌‌1no‌‌(T01‌‌Elm)‌‌is‌‌included‌‌within‌‌Area‌‌TPO‌‌                               
53‌ ‌of‌ ‌1997,‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌other‌ ‌3no‌ ‌(T02‌ ‌Elm,‌ ‌T03‌ ‌Sycamore‌ ‌and‌ ‌T04‌ ‌Sycamore)‌ ‌are‌                             
included‌‌within‌‌Area‌‌TPO‌‌13‌‌of‌‌1987.‌‌A‌‌Horse‌‌Chestnut‌‌tree‌‌(T05‌‌on‌‌the‌‌submitted‌‌                             
plan)‌ ‌is‌ ‌sited‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌adjoining‌ ‌development‌ ‌site‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌east.‌‌ ‌  

Proposal‌ ‌ ‌   

Permission‌‌is‌‌sought‌‌for‌‌the‌‌construction‌‌of‌‌1no‌‌detached‌‌2-storey‌‌3-bedroom‌‌house‌‌                       
on‌ ‌the‌ ‌site.‌‌ ‌  

The‌‌proposed‌‌dwelling‌‌would‌‌be‌‌sited‌‌toward‌‌the‌‌centre‌‌on‌‌the‌‌wider‌‌eastern‌‌part‌‌of‌‌                             
this‌ ‌narrowing,‌ ‌linear‌ ‌plot‌ ‌each‌ ‌with‌ ‌2‌ ‌parking‌ ‌spaces‌ ‌served‌ ‌by‌ ‌new‌ ‌5.5m‌ ‌wide‌‌                           
accesses‌ ‌formed‌ ‌from‌ ‌Tarring‌ ‌Road‌ ‌at‌‌the‌‌far‌‌eastern‌‌end‌‌of‌‌the‌‌site.‌‌The‌‌dwelling‌‌                             
would‌ ‌have‌ ‌a‌ ‌largely‌ ‌rectangular‌ ‌footprint‌ ‌15.3‌ ‌metres‌ ‌wide‌ ‌by‌ ‌4.7‌ ‌metres‌ ‌deep‌‌                         
positioned‌‌0.8‌‌metres‌‌from‌‌the‌‌northern‌‌site‌‌boundary‌‌with‌‌the‌‌adjoining‌‌railway‌‌land‌‌                         
shown‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌on‌ ‌higher‌ ‌ground.‌ ‌ 

Notwithstanding‌‌the‌‌tapering‌‌shape‌‌of‌‌the‌‌site‌‌itself,‌‌the‌‌proposed‌‌dwelling‌‌would‌‌be‌‌                         
sited‌ ‌roughly‌ ‌parallel‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌road‌ ‌carriage‌ ‌a‌ ‌minimum‌ ‌5.9‌ ‌metres‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌back‌‌                           
edge‌ ‌of‌‌the‌‌carriageway‌‌and‌‌the‌‌front‌‌projecting‌‌elements‌‌(comprising‌‌the‌‌entrance‌‌                       
porch‌‌feature‌‌and‌‌bay‌‌window‌‌and‌‌balcony‌‌above)‌‌sited‌‌a‌‌minimum‌‌5.2‌‌metres‌‌from‌‌                           
the‌ ‌back‌ ‌edge‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌carriageway.‌‌ ‌  

The‌‌architectural‌‌language‌‌is‌‌contemporary‌‌with‌‌a‌‌parapet‌‌flat‌‌roof‌‌6.0‌‌metres‌‌high.‌‌                         
The‌ ‌front‌ ‌wall‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌first-floor‌ ‌element‌ ‌is‌ ‌shown‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌chamfered‌ ‌or‌ ‌angled‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌‌                               
style‌ ‌of‌ ‌a‌ ‌‘mansard‌ ‌roof’‌ ‌with‌ ‌framed‌ ‌dormer‌ ‌windows‌ ‌and‌ ‌a‌ ‌central‌ ‌2-storey‌‌                         
projecting‌ ‌element‌ ‌comprising‌ ‌an‌ ‌entrance‌ ‌feature.‌ ‌Other‌ ‌features‌ ‌include‌ ‌a‌‌                   
‘squared’‌ ‌bay‌ ‌window‌ ‌at‌ ‌ground-floor‌ ‌with‌ ‌frameless‌ ‌glass‌ ‌balcony‌ ‌above.‌ ‌The‌‌                     
dwelling‌‌would‌‌be‌‌constructed‌‌in‌‌brick‌‌with‌‌zinc‌‌cladding‌‌to‌‌the‌‌chamfered‌‌first-floor‌‌                         
and‌ ‌2-storey‌ ‌entrance‌ ‌feature.‌ ‌The‌ ‌parapeted‌ ‌flat‌ ‌roof‌ ‌would‌ ‌include‌ ‌a‌ ‌‘meadow‌‌                       

56



‌ 
‌ 

roof’.‌‌Windows‌‌would‌‌be‌‌in‌‌Anthracite‌‌grey‌‌UPVC‌‌with‌‌a‌‌timber‌‌composite‌‌front‌‌door‌‌                           
and‌ ‌aluminium‌ ‌rainwater‌ ‌goods.‌ ‌ ‌   

Amenity‌ ‌space‌ ‌areas‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌provided‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌east‌ ‌and‌ ‌west‌ ‌sides‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌dwelling.‌‌ ‌  

The‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌dwelling‌ ‌and‌ ‌side‌ ‌gardens‌ ‌are‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌excavated‌ ‌into‌ ‌the‌‌                         
embankment.‌ ‌The‌ ‌4no‌ ‌trees‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌highway‌ ‌land‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌south‌ ‌are‌ ‌shown‌ ‌as‌‌                           
retained.‌ ‌ 

As‌ ‌initially‌ ‌submitted‌ ‌the‌ ‌application‌ ‌was‌ ‌accompanied‌ ‌by‌ ‌a‌ ‌Design‌ ‌&‌ ‌Access‌‌                       
Statement,‌ ‌an‌ ‌Acoustic‌ ‌Statement‌ ‌and‌ ‌an‌ ‌Arboricultural‌ ‌Impact‌ ‌Assessment‌‌                 
(including‌ ‌a‌ ‌Schedule‌ ‌of‌ ‌Trees‌ ‌and‌ ‌Tree‌ ‌Constraints‌ ‌Plan),‌ ‌plus‌ ‌a‌ ‌Drainage‌ ‌Plan.‌‌ ‌  

Following‌ ‌discussion‌ ‌the‌ ‌supporting‌ ‌information‌ ‌has‌ ‌been‌ ‌supplemented‌ ‌by‌ ‌an‌‌                   
updated‌ ‌Transportation‌ ‌Noise‌ ‌Report,‌ ‌an‌ ‌Addendum‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌Arboricultural‌ ‌Impact‌‌                   
Assessment‌ ‌plus‌ ‌Tree‌ ‌Protection‌ ‌and‌ ‌Retention‌ ‌Plan,‌ ‌a‌ ‌Technical‌ ‌Transport‌ ‌Note,‌‌                     
updated‌ ‌Drainage‌ ‌Plan‌ ‌and‌ ‌details‌ ‌of‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌Root‌ ‌Barriers.‌ ‌ ‌   

Relevant‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌History‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

Planning‌ ‌permission‌ ‌for‌‌2no‌‌2-storey‌‌3-bedroom‌‌houses‌‌with‌‌south-facing‌‌first-floor‌‌                   
balconies,‌‌parking,‌‌driveways‌‌and‌‌landscaping‌‌was‌‌refused‌‌under‌‌AWDM/0106/21‌‌in‌‌                   
March‌ ‌this‌ ‌year‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌following‌ ‌grounds:-‌ ‌ 
‌ 

 ‌ ‌1.‌ Having‌‌regard‌‌to‌‌the‌‌significant‌‌constraints‌‌of‌‌this‌‌small‌‌site‌‌the‌‌siting,‌‌layout,‌‌                         
massing‌ ‌and‌ ‌design‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposals‌‌would‌‌represent‌‌a‌‌cramped‌‌overdevelopment‌‌                     
that‌‌would‌‌be‌‌out‌‌of‌‌keeping‌‌with‌‌the‌‌pattern‌‌and‌‌character‌‌of‌‌existing‌‌development‌‌                           
and‌ ‌harmful‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌streetscene‌ ‌contrary‌ ‌to‌ ‌policy‌ ‌16‌‌of‌‌the‌‌Worthing‌‌Core‌‌Strategy‌‌                           
and‌ ‌the‌ ‌NPPF.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

2.‌The‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Authority‌ ‌is‌ ‌not‌ ‌satisfied‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌siting‌ ‌and‌ ‌layout‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌                           
proposed‌ ‌development‌ ‌on‌ ‌this‌ ‌tightly‌ ‌constrained‌ ‌site,‌ ‌carried‌ ‌out‌ ‌in‌ ‌a‌ ‌piecemeal‌‌                       
fashion‌ ‌in‌ ‌isolation‌ ‌to‌ ‌development‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌adjoining‌ ‌vacant‌ ‌land‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌east,‌ ‌is‌‌                           
compatible‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌future‌ ‌well-being‌‌and‌‌retention‌‌of‌‌nearby‌‌trees‌‌on‌‌the‌‌adjoining‌‌                         
highway‌‌land,‌‌or‌‌the‌‌replacement‌‌tree‌‌planting‌‌necessary‌‌to‌‌mitigate‌‌the‌‌removal‌‌of‌‌                         
trees‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌wider‌‌development‌‌site‌‌and‌‌a‌‌requirement‌‌of‌‌the‌‌planning‌‌permissions‌‌                         
granted‌ ‌under‌ ‌AWDM/0728/18‌ ‌and‌ ‌AWDM/0072/19.‌ ‌As‌ ‌a‌ ‌result‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌‌                   
development‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌harmful‌ ‌to‌ ‌local‌ ‌character‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌environment‌ ‌contrary‌ ‌to‌‌                       
policies‌ ‌13‌ ‌and‌ ‌16‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌Core‌ ‌Strategy.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

3.‌The‌ ‌submitted‌ ‌layout‌ ‌fails‌ ‌to‌ ‌demonstrate‌ ‌that‌ ‌satisfactory‌ ‌visibility‌ ‌at‌ ‌the‌‌                     
proposed‌ ‌easternmost‌ ‌vehicle‌ ‌access‌ ‌to/from‌ ‌Tarring‌ ‌Road‌ ‌can‌ ‌be‌ ‌achieved‌ ‌and‌‌                     
would‌ ‌potentially‌ ‌represent‌ ‌a‌ ‌hazard‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌safe‌ ‌operation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌public‌ ‌highway‌‌                         
contrary‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌NPPF.‌ ‌ 

Planning‌‌permission‌‌was‌‌refused‌‌under‌‌AWDM/1149/19‌‌and‌‌an‌‌appeal‌‌subsequently‌‌                   
dismissed‌ ‌for‌ ‌a‌ ‌pair‌‌of‌‌three‌‌storey,‌‌three‌‌bedroom‌‌semi-detached‌‌dwellings‌‌on‌‌the‌‌                         
site‌‌with‌‌one‌‌parking‌‌space‌‌and‌‌garden‌‌per‌‌dwelling‌‌with‌‌access‌‌from‌‌Tarring‌‌Road‌‌                           
on‌ ‌the‌ ‌grounds:-‌ ‌ 

57



‌ 
‌ 

1.‌ The‌ ‌prominent‌ ‌siting‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌dwellings‌ ‌on‌ ‌this‌ ‌shallow‌ ‌tapering‌ ‌plot‌‌                       
would‌‌give‌‌rise‌‌to‌‌an‌‌unduly‌‌dominant‌‌and‌‌visually‌‌assertive‌‌form‌‌of‌‌development‌‌                         
that‌‌would‌‌be‌‌out‌‌of‌‌keeping‌‌with‌‌and‌‌harmful‌‌to‌‌the‌‌surrounding‌‌townscape‌‌and‌‌                           
local‌‌character.‌‌Moreover,‌‌the‌‌cumulative‌‌effects‌‌of‌‌the‌‌restricted‌‌size‌‌and‌‌shape‌‌                       
of‌ ‌the‌ ‌plot‌ ‌and‌ ‌its‌ ‌relationship‌ ‌to‌ ‌adjacent‌ ‌transport‌‌corridors‌‌would‌‌result‌‌in‌‌an‌‌                           
unsatisfactory‌‌layout‌‌and‌‌poor‌‌quality‌‌living‌‌environment‌‌for‌‌future‌‌residents.‌‌The‌‌                     
proposed‌ ‌development‌ ‌is‌ ‌therefore‌ ‌contrary‌ ‌to‌ ‌policy‌ ‌16‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌Core‌‌                       
Strategy‌‌and‌‌fails‌‌to‌‌meet‌‌the‌‌high‌‌standards‌‌of‌‌design‌‌and‌‌amenity‌‌required‌‌by‌‌                           
paragraph‌ ‌127‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌NPPF.‌ ‌ 

2.‌‌  The‌‌layout‌‌of‌‌the‌‌proposed‌‌development‌‌would‌‌be‌‌incompatible‌‌with‌‌tree‌‌planting‌‌                       
of‌ ‌the‌ ‌number‌ ‌and‌ ‌stature‌ ‌of‌ ‌specimens‌ ‌shown‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌submitted‌ ‌Landscaping‌‌                       
Plan‌ ‌necessary‌ ‌to‌ ‌effectively‌ ‌mitigate‌ ‌the‌ ‌loss‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌former‌ ‌protected‌ ‌trees‌ ‌on‌‌                         
this‌ ‌site‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌adjoining‌ ‌land‌ ‌under‌ ‌the‌ ‌Applicant's‌‌control‌‌as‌‌required‌‌by‌‌the‌‌                           
consent‌ ‌for‌ ‌tree‌ ‌works‌ ‌granted‌ ‌under‌ ‌AWDM/1358/17‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌subsequent‌‌                   
planning‌ ‌permissions‌ ‌granted‌ ‌under‌ ‌AWDM/0728/18‌ ‌and‌ ‌AWDM/0072/19,‌ ‌and‌‌               
owing‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌site‌ ‌access‌ ‌arrangements‌ ‌and‌ ‌close‌ ‌proximity‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌                       
proposed‌ ‌westernmost‌ ‌dwelling‌ ‌unit‌ ‌would‌ ‌likely‌ ‌result‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌loss‌ ‌of‌ ‌additional‌‌                       
trees‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌adjoining‌ ‌highway‌ ‌land.‌ ‌The‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌development‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌‌                     
therefore‌‌harmful‌‌to‌‌local‌‌character‌‌and‌‌the‌‌environment‌‌contrary‌‌to‌‌policy‌‌16‌‌of‌‌                         
the‌ ‌Core‌ ‌Strategy‌ ‌and‌ ‌paragraph‌ ‌127‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌NPPF.‌ ‌ 

Planning‌ ‌permission‌ ‌was‌ ‌granted‌ ‌in‌ ‌2018‌ ‌under‌ ‌AWDM/0667/17‌ ‌for‌ ‌a‌ ‌detached‌‌                     
three-storey,‌ ‌3-bedroom‌ ‌house‌ ‌and‌ ‌two‌ ‌car‌ ‌parking‌ ‌spaces‌ ‌on‌ ‌a‌ ‌wider‌ ‌site‌ ‌area‌‌                         
comprising‌ ‌the‌ ‌current‌ ‌application‌ ‌site‌ ‌AND‌ ‌the‌ ‌adjoining‌ ‌development‌ ‌site‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌‌                       
east.‌‌Permission‌‌was‌‌subsequently‌‌refused‌‌under‌‌AWDM/0728/18‌‌for‌‌the‌‌erection‌‌of‌‌                     
a‌‌pair‌‌of‌‌semi-detached‌‌three-storey‌‌2-bedroom‌‌houses‌‌and‌‌2‌‌car‌‌parking‌‌spaces‌‌(1‌‌                         
each)‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌same‌ ‌site,‌ ‌but‌ ‌was‌ ‌subsequently‌ ‌allowed‌ ‌on‌ ‌appeal.‌‌Permission‌‌was‌‌                         
granted‌ ‌under‌ ‌AWDM/0072/19‌ ‌for‌ ‌a‌ ‌pair‌ ‌of‌ ‌semi-detached‌ ‌three-storey‌ ‌dwellings‌‌                   
with‌ ‌a‌ ‌similar‌ ‌siting‌ ‌and‌ ‌detailed‌ ‌design,‌ ‌each‌ ‌with‌ ‌garden‌‌and‌‌1no‌‌parking‌‌space,‌‌                           
but‌‌with‌‌the‌‌application‌‌site‌‌area‌‌comprising‌‌only‌‌the‌‌eastern‌‌portion‌‌of‌‌the‌‌wider‌‌site‌‌                             
area.‌ ‌In‌ ‌that‌ ‌case,‌ ‌the‌ ‌remainder‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌land‌ ‌(i.e.‌ ‌the‌ ‌current‌ ‌application‌ ‌site)‌ ‌was‌‌                             
identified‌ ‌as‌ ‌being‌ ‌under‌ ‌the‌ ‌Applicant’s‌ ‌control‌ ‌and‌ ‌outlined‌ ‌in‌ ‌‘blue’‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌‌                         
approved‌ ‌site‌ ‌location‌ ‌plan.‌ ‌The‌ ‌permission‌‌granted‌‌under‌‌AWDM/0072/19‌‌has‌‌not‌‌                     
been‌‌implemented‌‌(although‌‌an‌‌application‌‌is‌‌currently‌‌pending‌‌consideration‌‌for‌‌the‌‌                     
approval‌ ‌of‌ ‌details‌ ‌reserved‌ ‌by‌ ‌conditions).‌ ‌ ‌   

Consultations‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

West‌‌Sussex‌‌County‌‌Council:‌ ‌‌The‌‌Local‌‌Highway‌‌Authority‌‌(LHA)‌‌commented‌‌as‌‌                     
follows‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌initially‌ ‌submitted‌ ‌plans:-‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

“This‌‌application‌‌is‌‌for‌‌the‌‌erection‌‌of‌‌1‌‌x‌‌3-bedroom‌‌dwelling.‌‌The‌‌site‌‌is‌‌located‌‌on‌‌                               
Tarring‌ ‌Road,‌ ‌a‌ ‌C-classified‌ ‌road‌ ‌subject‌ ‌to‌ ‌a‌ ‌speed‌ ‌limit‌ ‌of‌‌30mph.‌‌The‌‌LHA‌‌was‌‌                             
consulted‌ ‌on‌ ‌an‌ ‌application‌ ‌at‌ ‌this‌ ‌site‌ ‌for‌ ‌2‌ ‌dwellings‌ ‌under‌ ‌AWDM/0106/21‌ ‌and‌‌                         
prior‌ ‌to‌ ‌that,‌ ‌AWDM/1149/19.‌ ‌The‌ ‌LHA‌ ‌requested‌ ‌amendment‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌‌                     
footways‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌publicly‌ ‌maintained‌ ‌highway‌ ‌land.‌ ‌The‌ ‌LPA‌ ‌refused‌ ‌both‌‌                     
applications‌ ‌on‌ ‌separate‌ ‌grounds‌‌and‌‌AWDM/1149/19‌‌was‌‌subsequently‌‌dismissed‌‌                 
at‌ ‌appeal.‌ ‌The‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌plans‌ ‌demonstrate‌ ‌a‌ ‌single‌ ‌dwelling,‌ ‌with‌ ‌vehicular‌‌                     
crossover‌‌(VCO)‌‌to‌‌the‌‌east.‌‌The‌‌plans‌‌do‌‌not‌‌demonstrate‌‌visibility‌‌at‌‌the‌‌proposed‌‌                           

58



‌ 
‌ 

access‌‌onto‌‌Tarring‌‌Road,‌‌however‌‌from‌‌an‌‌inspection‌‌of‌‌the‌‌plans,‌‌visibility‌‌appears‌‌                         
sufficient‌ ‌in‌ ‌this‌ ‌location.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

The‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌plans‌ ‌demonstrate‌ ‌that‌ ‌two‌‌individual‌‌footways‌‌will‌‌be‌‌provided‌‌from‌‌                       
the‌ ‌dwelling,‌ ‌leading‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌carriageway‌ ‌edge‌ ‌to‌ ‌provide‌ ‌crossing‌ ‌points‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌‌                         
footway‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌southern‌ ‌side‌ ‌of‌ ‌Tarring‌ ‌Road.‌ ‌The‌ ‌LHA‌ ‌would‌‌have‌‌concerns‌‌with‌‌                           
the‌‌westernmost‌‌crossing‌‌point,‌‌this‌‌does‌‌not‌‌provide‌‌a‌‌safe‌‌crossing‌‌to‌‌the‌‌footway‌‌                           
on‌ ‌the‌ ‌opposing‌ ‌side‌ ‌of‌ ‌Tarring‌ ‌Road‌ ‌and‌ ‌pedestrians‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌crossing‌ ‌into‌ ‌the‌‌                           
junction‌ ‌of‌‌Ripley‌‌Road.‌‌The‌‌applicant‌‌is‌‌advised‌‌to‌‌modify‌‌the‌‌plans‌‌to‌‌remove‌‌the‌‌                             
westernmost‌ ‌crossing‌ ‌point.‌ ‌The‌ ‌LHA‌ ‌would‌‌also‌‌request‌‌that‌‌the‌‌proposed‌‌central‌‌                       
crossing‌ ‌point‌ ‌be‌ ‌provided‌ ‌with‌ ‌tactile‌ ‌paving‌ ‌on‌ ‌both‌ ‌sides‌ ‌of‌ ‌Tarring‌ ‌Road.‌ ‌The‌‌                           
internal‌ ‌pathway‌ ‌leading‌ ‌to‌ ‌this‌ ‌crossing‌ ‌point‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌dwelling‌ ‌should‌‌                       
also‌ ‌be‌ ‌orientated‌ ‌in‌ ‌such‌ ‌a‌ ‌way‌ ‌that‌ ‌pedestrians‌ ‌exiting‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌ ‌approach‌ ‌the‌‌                           
crossing‌ ‌point‌ ‌on‌ ‌Tarring‌ ‌Road‌ ‌facing‌ ‌oncoming‌ ‌traffic.‌ ‌This‌ ‌is‌ ‌to‌ ‌give‌ ‌a‌ ‌greater‌‌                           
sense‌ ‌of‌ ‌awareness‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌crossing‌ ‌point.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

The‌ ‌plans‌ ‌indicate‌ ‌that‌ ‌two‌ ‌parking‌ ‌spaces‌‌would‌‌be‌‌provided.‌‌The‌‌WSCC‌‌parking‌‌                         
demand‌ ‌calculator‌ ‌would‌ ‌anticipate‌ ‌a‌ ‌minimum‌ ‌of‌ ‌3‌ ‌parking‌ ‌spaces‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌‌                       
required‌ ‌for‌ ‌a‌ ‌dwelling‌ ‌of‌ ‌this‌ ‌size‌ ‌and‌ ‌location.‌ ‌However,‌ ‌the‌ ‌LHA‌ ‌acknowledges‌‌                         
that‌‌the‌‌third‌‌parking‌‌space‌‌would‌‌be‌‌primarily‌‌visitor‌‌parking‌‌provision,‌‌which‌‌could‌‌                         
be‌‌accommodated‌‌on-street‌‌in‌‌this‌‌location.‌‌The‌‌Local‌‌Planning‌‌Authority‌‌may‌‌wish‌‌                       
to‌ ‌consider‌ ‌the‌ ‌potential‌ ‌impacts‌ ‌of‌ ‌on-street‌ ‌parking‌ ‌from‌ ‌an‌ ‌amenity‌ ‌point‌ ‌of‌ ‌view.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

Please‌ ‌request‌ ‌the‌ ‌above‌ ‌modification‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌applicant‌ ‌and‌ ‌re-consult.”‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

Following‌ ‌re-consultation‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌Amended‌ ‌Plans‌ ‌and‌ ‌Transport‌ ‌Note‌ ‌the‌ ‌LHA‌ ‌has‌‌                       
commented‌ ‌further:-‌ ‌ 
‌ 

“‌The‌ ‌LHA‌‌has‌‌been‌‌re-consulted‌‌on‌‌this‌‌application‌‌following‌‌submission‌‌of‌‌revised‌‌                       
plans‌ ‌and‌ ‌a‌ ‌Transport‌ ‌Statement‌ ‌by‌ ‌Reeves‌ ‌Transport‌ ‌Planning.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

This‌‌application‌‌is‌‌for‌‌the‌‌erection‌‌of‌‌1‌‌x‌‌3-bedroom‌‌dwelling.‌‌The‌‌site‌‌is‌‌located‌‌on‌‌                               
Tarring‌ ‌Road,‌ ‌a‌ ‌C-classified‌ ‌road‌ ‌subject‌ ‌to‌ ‌a‌ ‌speed‌ ‌limit‌ ‌of‌ ‌30mph.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌‌proposed‌‌plans‌‌demonstrate‌‌a‌‌single‌‌dwelling‌‌with‌‌vehicular‌‌crossover‌‌(VCO)‌‌to‌‌                       
the‌‌east.‌‌The‌‌plans‌‌do‌‌not‌‌demonstrate‌‌visibility‌‌at‌‌the‌‌proposed‌‌access‌‌onto‌‌Tarring‌‌                           
Road,‌ ‌however‌ ‌from‌ ‌an‌ ‌inspection‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌plans‌ ‌and‌ ‌WSCC‌ ‌mapping‌ ‌visibility‌‌                       
appears‌ ‌sufficient‌ ‌in‌ ‌this‌ ‌location,‌ ‌exceeding‌ ‌the‌ ‌minimum‌ ‌required‌ ‌for‌ ‌a‌ ‌30mph‌‌                       
road.‌ ‌Tarring‌ ‌Road‌ ‌has‌ ‌good‌ ‌forward‌ ‌visibility‌‌in‌‌the‌‌location‌‌meaning‌‌that‌‌vehicles‌‌                         
travelling‌‌along‌‌Tarring‌‌Road‌‌will‌‌be‌‌able‌‌to‌‌see‌‌a‌‌vehicle‌‌waiting‌‌to‌‌emerge‌‌from‌‌the‌‌                               
access.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

The‌ ‌revised‌‌plans‌‌demonstrate‌‌that‌‌now‌‌only‌‌one‌‌footway‌‌will‌‌be‌‌provided‌‌from‌‌the‌‌                           
dwelling,‌‌leading‌‌to‌‌the‌‌carriageway‌‌edge‌‌to‌‌provide‌‌a‌‌crossing‌‌point‌‌to‌‌the‌‌footway‌‌                           
on‌ ‌the‌ ‌southern‌ ‌side‌ ‌of‌ ‌Tarring‌ ‌Road.‌ ‌The‌ ‌plans‌ ‌demonstrate‌ ‌tactile‌ ‌paving‌ ‌at‌ ‌the‌‌                           
proposed‌ ‌crossing‌ ‌point‌ ‌and‌ ‌also‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌tactile‌ ‌pacing‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌southern‌ ‌side‌ ‌of‌‌                         
Tarring‌ ‌Road,‌ ‌should‌ ‌this‌ ‌be‌ ‌required‌ ‌at‌ ‌Detailed‌ ‌Design‌ ‌Stage.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌plans‌ ‌indicate‌ ‌that‌ ‌2‌ ‌parking‌ ‌spaces‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌provided.‌ ‌The‌ ‌WSCC‌ ‌Parking‌‌                         
Demand‌ ‌Calculator‌ ‌would‌ ‌anticipate‌ ‌a‌ ‌minimum‌ ‌of‌ ‌3‌ ‌parking‌ ‌spaces‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌‌                       

59



‌ 
‌ 

required‌ ‌for‌ ‌a‌ ‌dwelling‌ ‌of‌ ‌this‌ ‌size‌ ‌and‌ ‌location.‌ ‌However,‌ ‌the‌ ‌LHA‌ ‌acknowledges‌‌                         
that‌ ‌the‌ ‌third‌ ‌parking‌‌space‌‌would‌‌be‌‌primarily‌‌visitor‌‌parking‌‌provision‌‌which‌‌could‌‌                         
be‌‌accommodated‌‌on‌‌the‌‌street‌‌in‌‌this‌‌location.‌ ‌The‌‌LPA‌‌may‌‌wish‌‌to‌‌consider‌‌the‌‌                             
potential‌ ‌impacts‌ ‌of‌ ‌on-street‌ ‌parking‌ ‌from‌ ‌an‌ ‌amenity‌ ‌point‌ ‌of‌ ‌view.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

The‌ ‌plans‌ ‌demonstrate‌ ‌that‌ ‌a‌ ‌shed‌ ‌will‌ ‌be‌ ‌provided‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌rear‌ ‌garden‌ ‌to‌ ‌provide‌‌                             
secure‌ ‌and‌ ‌covered‌ ‌cycle‌ ‌storage‌ ‌to‌ ‌promote‌ ‌sustainable‌ ‌transport‌ ‌options.‌ ‌The‌‌                     
LHA‌ ‌also‌ ‌notes‌ ‌the‌ ‌proximity‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌ ‌to‌ ‌bus‌ ‌stops‌ ‌and‌ ‌West‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌Train‌‌                             
Station.‌ ‌ ‌   
‌ 

In‌ ‌the‌ ‌interests‌ ‌of‌ ‌sustainability‌ ‌and‌ ‌as‌‌a‌‌result‌‌of‌‌the‌‌Government’s‌‌‘Road‌‌to‌‌Zero’‌‌                             
strategy‌‌for‌‌at‌‌least‌‌50%‌‌of‌‌new‌‌car‌‌sales‌‌to‌‌be‌‌ultra‌‌low‌‌emission‌‌by‌‌2030,‌‌electric‌‌                                 
vehicle‌ ‌(EV)‌ ‌charging‌ ‌points‌ ‌should‌ ‌be‌ ‌provided‌ ‌for‌ ‌all‌ ‌new‌ ‌homes.‌ ‌Active‌ ‌EV‌‌                         
charging‌ ‌points‌ ‌should‌ ‌be‌ ‌provided‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌development‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌                       
current‌ ‌EV‌ ‌sales‌ ‌rates‌ ‌within‌ ‌West‌ ‌Sussex‌ ‌(Appendix‌ ‌B‌ ‌of‌ ‌WSCC‌ ‌Guidance‌ ‌on‌‌                         
Parking‌‌at‌‌New‌‌Developments).‌‌Ducting‌‌should‌‌be‌‌provided‌‌to‌‌all‌‌remaining‌‌parking‌‌                       
spaces‌ ‌to‌ ‌provide‌ ‌‘passive’‌ ‌provision‌ ‌for‌ ‌these‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌upgraded‌ ‌in‌ ‌future.‌ ‌Details‌‌of‌‌                           
this‌ ‌can‌ ‌be‌ ‌secured‌ ‌via‌ ‌condition.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Conclusion‌ ‌ ‌   
The‌‌LHA‌‌does‌‌not‌‌consider‌‌that‌‌this‌‌proposal‌‌would‌‌have‌‌an‌‌unacceptable‌‌impact‌‌on‌‌                           
highway‌ ‌safety‌ ‌or‌ ‌result‌ ‌in‌ ‌’severe’‌ ‌cumulative‌ ‌impacts‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌operation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌                         
highway‌ ‌network,‌ ‌therefore‌ ‌is‌ ‌not‌ ‌contrary‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌NPPF‌ ‌(paragraph‌ ‌111)‌ ‌and‌ ‌that‌                         
there‌ ‌are‌ ‌no‌ ‌transport‌ ‌grounds‌ ‌to‌ ‌resist‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposal.‌”‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

Network‌ ‌Rail:‌ ‌‌Network‌ ‌Rail‌ ‌(NR)‌ ‌is‌ ‌the‌ ‌statutory‌ ‌undertaker‌ ‌for‌ ‌maintaining‌ ‌and‌‌                       
operating‌ ‌railway‌ ‌infrastructure‌ ‌of‌ ‌England,‌ ‌Scotland‌ ‌and‌ ‌Wales.‌ ‌As‌ ‌statutory‌‌                   
undertaker,‌ ‌NR‌ ‌is‌ ‌under‌ ‌license‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌Department‌ ‌for‌ ‌Transport‌ ‌(DfT)‌ ‌and‌‌                       
regulated‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌ ‌Office‌ ‌of‌ ‌Rail‌ ‌and‌ ‌Road‌ ‌(ORR)‌ ‌to‌ ‌maintain‌ ‌and‌ ‌enhance‌ ‌the‌‌                           
operational‌ ‌railway‌ ‌and‌ ‌its‌ ‌assets,‌ ‌ensuring‌ ‌the‌ ‌provision‌ ‌of‌ ‌a‌ ‌safe‌ ‌operational‌‌                       
railway.‌ ‌ 
‌ ‌  
Due‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌close‌ ‌proximity‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌works‌ ‌to‌ ‌Network‌ ‌Rail’s‌ ‌land‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌‌                             
operational‌‌railway,‌‌Network‌‌Rail‌‌requests‌‌the‌‌applicant/developer‌‌engages‌‌Network‌‌                 
Rail’s‌‌Asset‌‌Protection‌‌and‌‌Optimisation‌‌(ASPRO)‌‌team‌‌prior‌‌to‌‌works‌‌commencing.‌‌                     
This‌ ‌will‌ ‌allow‌ ‌the‌‌ASPRO‌‌team‌‌to‌‌review‌‌the‌‌details‌‌of‌‌the‌‌proposal‌‌to‌‌ensure‌‌that‌‌                               
the‌ ‌works‌ ‌can‌ ‌be‌ ‌completed‌ ‌without‌ ‌any‌ ‌risk‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌operational‌ ‌railway.‌ ‌ 
‌ ‌  
The‌ ‌applicant/developer‌ ‌may‌ ‌be‌ ‌required‌ ‌to‌ ‌enter‌ ‌into‌ ‌an‌ ‌Asset‌ ‌Protection‌‌                     
Agreement‌ ‌to‌ ‌get‌ ‌the‌ ‌required‌ ‌resource‌ ‌and‌‌expertise‌‌on-board‌‌to‌‌enable‌‌approval‌‌                       
of‌‌detailed‌‌works.‌‌The‌‌applicant/developer‌‌must‌‌also‌‌follow‌‌the‌‌NR‌‌Asset‌‌Protection‌‌                       
informatives‌ ‌which‌ ‌are‌ ‌issued‌ ‌to‌ ‌all‌ ‌proposals‌ ‌within‌ ‌close‌ ‌proximity‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌railway‌‌                         
(compliance‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌informatives‌ ‌does‌ ‌not‌ ‌remove‌ ‌the‌ ‌need‌ ‌to‌ ‌engage‌ ‌with‌ ‌our‌‌                         
ASPRO‌ ‌team).‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Southern‌ ‌Water:‌ ‌‌Southern‌ ‌Water‌ ‌records‌ ‌show‌ ‌the‌ ‌approximate‌ ‌position‌ ‌of‌ ‌an‌‌                     
existing‌ ‌surface‌ ‌water‌ ‌sewer‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌immediate‌ ‌vicinity‌‌of‌‌the‌‌development‌‌site.‌‌The‌‌                         
exact‌ ‌position‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌public‌ ‌asset‌ ‌must‌ ‌be‌ ‌determined‌ ‌on‌ ‌site‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌ ‌applicant‌ ‌in‌‌                             
consultation‌ ‌with‌ ‌Southern‌ ‌Water.‌ ‌It‌ ‌is‌ ‌advised‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌1050‌ ‌mm‌ ‌surface‌ ‌water‌‌                         
sewer‌ ‌will‌ ‌require‌ ‌a‌ ‌clearance‌ ‌of‌ ‌5‌ ‌metres‌ ‌on‌ ‌either‌ ‌side‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌public‌ ‌sewer‌ ‌to‌‌                               

60



‌ 
‌ 

protect‌ ‌it‌ ‌from‌ ‌construction‌ ‌works‌ ‌and‌ ‌to‌ ‌allow‌ ‌for‌ ‌future‌ ‌maintenance‌ ‌access.‌ ‌No‌                         
development‌ ‌or‌ ‌tree‌ ‌planting‌ ‌should‌ ‌be‌ ‌carried‌ ‌out‌ ‌within‌ ‌5‌ ‌metres‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌external‌‌                           
edge‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌public‌ ‌sewer‌ ‌without‌ ‌consent‌ ‌from‌ ‌Southern‌ ‌Water.‌ ‌No‌ ‌soakaways,‌‌                       
swales,‌ ‌ponds,‌ ‌watercourses‌ ‌or‌ ‌any‌ ‌other‌ ‌surface‌ ‌water‌ ‌retaining‌ ‌or‌ ‌conveying‌‌                     
features‌‌should‌‌be‌‌located‌‌within‌‌5‌‌metres‌‌of‌‌public‌‌or‌‌adoptable‌‌sewers.‌‌All‌‌existing‌‌                           
infrastructure‌ ‌should‌ ‌be‌ ‌protected‌ ‌during‌ ‌the‌ ‌course‌ ‌of‌ ‌construction‌ ‌works.‌ ‌The‌‌                     
Applicant‌‌is‌‌advised‌‌that‌‌the‌‌impact‌‌of‌‌any‌‌works‌‌within‌‌the‌‌highway/access‌‌road‌‌on‌‌                           
public‌ ‌apparatus‌ ‌shall‌ ‌be‌ ‌assessed‌ ‌and‌ ‌approved,‌ ‌in‌ ‌consultation‌ ‌with‌ ‌Southern‌‌                     
Water,‌ ‌under‌ ‌a‌ ‌NRSWA‌ ‌enquiry‌ ‌in‌ ‌order‌ ‌to‌ ‌protect‌ ‌public‌ ‌apparatus.‌‌ ‌  

‌ 
The‌ ‌Applicant‌ ‌is‌ ‌advised‌ ‌that‌ ‌SW‌ ‌has‌ ‌restrictions‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌tree‌ ‌planting‌‌                         
adjacent‌ ‌to‌ ‌Southern‌ ‌Water‌ ‌sewers,‌ ‌rising‌ ‌mains‌ ‌or‌ ‌water‌ ‌mains‌ ‌and‌ ‌any‌ ‌such‌‌                         
proposed‌ ‌assets‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌vicinity‌ ‌of‌ ‌existing‌ ‌planting.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

It‌ ‌is‌ ‌possible‌ ‌that‌ ‌a‌ ‌sewer‌ ‌now‌ ‌deemed‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌public‌ ‌could‌ ‌be‌ ‌crossing‌ ‌the‌‌                             
development‌ ‌site.‌‌Therefore,‌‌should‌‌any‌‌sewer‌‌be‌‌found‌‌during‌‌construction‌‌works,‌‌                     
an‌ ‌investigation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌sewer‌ ‌will‌ ‌be‌ ‌required‌ ‌to‌‌ascertain‌‌its‌‌ownership‌‌before‌‌any‌‌                           
further‌ ‌works‌ ‌commence‌ ‌on‌ ‌site.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

The‌‌Council’s‌‌Building‌‌Control‌‌officers‌‌or‌‌technical‌‌staff‌‌should‌‌be‌‌asked‌‌to‌‌comment‌‌                         
on‌ ‌the‌ ‌adequacy‌ ‌of‌ ‌soakaways‌ ‌to‌ ‌dispose‌ ‌of‌ ‌surface‌ ‌water‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌‌                         
development.‌ ‌From‌ ‌the‌‌submitted‌‌drainage‌‌plan‌‌(012)‌‌it‌‌appears‌‌that‌‌surface‌‌water‌‌                       
is‌ ‌being‌ ‌connected‌ ‌into‌ ‌a‌ ‌public‌ ‌foul‌ ‌sewer‌ ‌which‌ ‌would‌ ‌not‌ ‌be‌ ‌acceptable‌ ‌to‌‌                           
Southern‌ ‌Water.‌ ‌The‌ ‌surface‌ ‌water‌‌drainage‌‌for‌‌the‌‌site‌‌should‌‌be‌‌designed‌‌based‌‌                         
on‌ ‌the‌ ‌preferred‌ ‌order‌‌of‌‌hierarchy‌‌for‌‌surface‌‌water‌‌disposal‌‌as‌‌defined‌‌in‌‌Part‌‌H3‌‌                             
of‌ ‌the‌‌Building‌‌Regulations.‌‌No‌‌surface‌‌water‌‌should‌‌be‌‌permitted‌‌to‌‌be‌‌discharged‌‌                         
to‌ ‌the‌ ‌foul‌ ‌sewerage‌ ‌system,‌ ‌in‌ ‌order‌ ‌to‌ ‌protect‌ ‌properties‌ ‌downstream‌ ‌from‌‌                       
flooding.‌ ‌In‌ ‌situations‌ ‌where‌ ‌surface‌ ‌water‌ ‌is‌ ‌being‌‌considered‌‌for‌‌discharge‌‌to‌‌the‌‌                         
SW‌ ‌network,‌ ‌the‌ ‌hierarchy‌ ‌for‌ ‌surface‌ ‌water‌ ‌in‌ ‌part‌‌H3‌‌of‌‌the‌‌Building‌‌Regulations‌‌                           
should‌ ‌be‌ ‌followed.‌ ‌Whilst‌ ‌re-use‌ ‌does‌ ‌not‌ ‌strictly‌ ‌form‌ ‌part‌ ‌of‌ ‌this‌ ‌hierarchy,‌‌                         
Southern‌ ‌Water‌ ‌would‌ ‌encourage‌ ‌the‌ ‌consideration‌ ‌of‌ ‌re-use‌ ‌for‌ ‌new‌ ‌developments.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

The‌ ‌design‌ ‌of‌ ‌drainage‌ ‌should‌ ‌ensure‌ ‌that‌ ‌no‌ ‌groundwater‌ ‌or‌ ‌land‌ ‌drainage‌ ‌is‌ ‌to‌‌                           
enter‌ ‌public‌‌sewers.‌‌Should‌‌this‌‌planning‌‌application‌‌receive‌‌planning‌‌approval,‌‌the‌‌                     
following‌ ‌informative‌ ‌is‌ ‌attached‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌consent:‌ ‌Construction‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌development‌‌                     
shall‌ ‌not‌ ‌commence‌ ‌until‌ ‌details‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌means‌ ‌of‌ ‌foul‌ ‌sewerage‌ ‌and‌‌                         
surface‌‌water‌‌disposal‌‌have‌‌been‌‌submitted‌‌to,‌‌and‌‌approved‌‌in‌‌writing‌‌by,‌‌the‌‌Local‌‌                           
Planning‌ ‌Authority‌ ‌in‌ ‌consultation‌ ‌with‌ ‌Southern‌ ‌Water.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Southern‌ ‌Water‌ ‌requires‌ ‌a‌ ‌formal‌ ‌application‌ ‌for‌ ‌a‌ ‌connection‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌public‌ ‌foul‌‌                         
sewer‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌made‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌ ‌applicant‌ ‌or‌ ‌developer.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

Adur‌ ‌&‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌Councils:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌‌Environmental‌ ‌Health‌‌ ‌Officer‌ ‌initially‌ ‌commented:-‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌Transportation‌ ‌Noise‌ ‌Assessment‌ ‌(Residential‌ ‌Development)‌ ‌(Date:‌ ‌18th‌‌               
December‌ ‌2020‌ ‌–‌ ‌Issue‌ ‌1‌ ‌Project:‌ ‌J3076)‌ ‌has‌ ‌been‌ ‌submitted‌ ‌in‌ ‌support‌ ‌of‌ ‌this‌‌                           
application‌ ‌together‌ ‌with‌ ‌a‌ ‌response‌ ‌to‌ ‌comments‌ ‌previously‌ ‌made‌ ‌in‌ ‌relation‌ ‌to‌‌a‌‌                         
previous‌ ‌application‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌same‌ ‌site.‌ ‌This‌ ‌noise‌ ‌assessment‌ ‌is‌ ‌specific‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌‌                         

61



‌ 
‌ 

previous‌‌development,‌‌the‌‌assessment‌‌does‌‌not‌‌appear‌‌to‌‌have‌‌considered‌‌whether‌‌                     
the‌‌distance‌‌of‌‌the‌‌property‌‌to‌‌the‌‌road‌‌or‌‌rail‌‌has‌‌increased/decreased.‌‌This‌‌needs‌‌                           
to‌‌be‌‌considered‌‌as‌‌changes‌‌in‌‌distances‌‌from‌‌these‌‌noise‌‌sources‌‌could‌‌impact‌‌the‌‌                           
mitigation‌ ‌required‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌ ‌glazing.‌ ‌ 

The‌‌plans‌‌appear‌‌to‌‌show‌‌a‌‌weld‌‌mesh‌‌fence‌‌along‌‌the‌‌northern‌‌boundary.‌‌Section‌‌                           
7.6‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Acoustic‌ ‌Report‌ ‌specifies‌ ‌that‌ ‌an‌ ‌acoustic‌ ‌fence‌ ‌is‌ ‌required‌ ‌around‌ ‌the‌‌                           
gardens‌ ‌and‌ ‌amenity‌ ‌areas‌ ‌to‌ ‌reduce‌ ‌external‌ ‌noises‌ ‌in‌ ‌these‌ ‌areas‌ ‌to‌ ‌within‌‌                         
guidelines‌ ‌levels.‌ ‌ 

I‌ ‌still‌ ‌have‌ ‌concerns‌ ‌about‌ ‌the‌ ‌LAmax‌ ‌levels‌ ‌at‌ ‌this‌ ‌site.‌ ‌Table‌ ‌7‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌Noise‌‌                               
Assessment‌‌indicates‌‌external‌‌facade‌‌LAmax,‌‌with‌‌the‌‌external‌‌facade‌‌level‌‌of‌‌84dB‌‌                       
(typical)‌ ‌89dBdB‌ ‌(max)‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌East/West‌ ‌facade.‌ ‌The‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌glazing‌ ‌on‌ ‌these‌‌                       
facades‌ ‌will‌ ‌provide‌ ‌a‌ ‌sound‌ ‌reduction‌ ‌of‌ ‌29dB‌ ‌(Section‌ ‌7.3.3).‌ ‌This‌ ‌will‌ ‌result‌ ‌in‌‌                           
LAmax‌ ‌exceedings‌ ‌guideline‌ ‌levels‌ ‌on‌ ‌these‌ ‌facades.‌ ‌Clarification‌ ‌is‌ ‌required.‌ ‌ 

With‌ ‌reference‌ ‌to‌ ‌ventilation‌‌(Section‌‌7.5)‌‌the‌‌proposed‌‌attenuated‌‌ventilators‌‌fitted‌‌                     
through‌ ‌external‌ ‌walls‌ ‌together‌ ‌with‌ ‌a‌ ‌mechanical‌ ‌extraction‌ ‌system‌ ‌in‌ ‌habitable‌‌                     
rooms‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌an‌ ‌acceptable‌ ‌option.‌ ‌The‌ ‌mechanical‌ ‌extract‌ ‌ventilation‌ ‌should‌‌                     
have‌ ‌a‌ ‌boost‌ ‌function‌ ‌and‌ ‌internal‌ ‌noise‌ ‌levels‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌system‌ ‌when‌ ‌in‌ ‌operation‌‌                           
should‌‌not‌‌exceed‌‌guidelines‌‌levels‌‌specified‌‌in‌‌BS8233:2014.‌‌The‌‌applicant‌‌should‌‌                     
provide‌ ‌a‌ ‌plan‌ ‌showing‌ ‌the‌ ‌location‌‌of‌‌the‌‌ventilators‌‌and‌‌details‌‌of‌‌the‌‌mechanical‌‌                           
extraction‌ ‌ventilation‌ ‌once‌ ‌this‌ ‌has‌ ‌been‌ ‌confirmed.‌ ‌We‌ ‌would‌ ‌require‌ ‌a‌ ‌test‌ ‌to‌‌                         
demonstrate‌ ‌compliance‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌approved‌ ‌scheme‌ ‌once‌ ‌we‌ ‌are‌ ‌satisfied‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌‌                       
proposed‌ ‌scheme‌ ‌will‌ ‌protect‌ ‌amenity.‌ ‌ 

As‌‌with‌‌the‌‌previous‌‌schemes,‌‌as‌‌this‌‌site‌‌is‌‌situated‌‌adjacent‌‌to‌‌a‌‌railway‌‌line‌‌there‌‌                               
is‌ ‌potential‌ ‌for‌ ‌contaminated‌ ‌land,‌ ‌so‌ ‌we‌ ‌would‌ ‌require‌ ‌the‌ ‌following‌ ‌condition:‌ ‌ 

Contaminated‌ ‌Land‌ ‌ 

Prior‌‌to‌‌commencement‌‌of‌‌the‌‌development‌‌hereby‌‌approved‌‌(or‌‌such‌‌other‌‌date‌‌or‌‌                         
stage‌‌in‌‌development‌‌as‌‌may‌‌be‌‌agreed‌‌in‌‌writing‌‌with‌‌the‌‌Local‌‌Planning‌‌Authority),‌‌                           
the‌ ‌following‌ ‌components‌ ‌of‌ ‌a‌ ‌scheme‌ ‌to‌ ‌deal‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌risks‌ ‌associated‌ ‌with‌‌                         
contamination‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌ ‌shall‌ ‌each‌‌be‌‌submitted‌‌to‌‌and‌‌approved‌‌in‌‌writing‌‌by‌‌the‌‌                             
Local‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Authority:‌ ‌ 

(1)‌ ‌  A‌ ‌preliminary‌ ‌risk‌ ‌assessment‌ ‌which‌ ‌has‌ ‌identified:‌ ‌all‌ ‌previous‌ ‌uses;‌‌                   
potential‌ ‌contaminants‌ ‌associated‌ ‌with‌ ‌those‌ ‌uses;‌ ‌a‌ ‌conceptual‌ ‌model‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌‌                       
indicating‌ ‌sources,‌ ‌pathways‌ ‌and‌ ‌receptors;‌ ‌and‌ ‌potentially‌ ‌unacceptable‌ ‌risks‌‌                 
arising‌ ‌from‌ ‌contamination‌ ‌at‌ ‌the‌ ‌site.‌ ‌ 
(2)‌ ‌  A‌ ‌site‌ ‌investigation‌ ‌scheme,‌ ‌based‌ ‌on‌ ‌(1)‌‌above‌‌to‌‌provide‌‌information‌‌for‌‌a‌‌                         
detailed‌‌assessment‌‌of‌‌the‌‌risk‌‌to‌‌all‌‌receptors‌‌that‌‌may‌‌be‌‌affected,‌‌including‌‌those‌‌                           
off‌ ‌site.‌ ‌ 
(3)‌ ‌  The‌‌site‌‌investigation‌‌results‌‌and‌‌the‌‌detailed‌‌risk‌‌assessment‌‌(2)‌‌and,‌‌based‌‌                       
on‌ ‌these,‌ ‌an‌ ‌options‌ ‌appraisal‌ ‌and‌ ‌remediation‌ ‌strategy‌ ‌giving‌ ‌full‌ ‌details‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌                         
remediation‌ ‌measures‌ ‌required‌ ‌and‌ ‌how‌ ‌they‌ ‌are‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌undertaken.‌ ‌ 
(4)‌ ‌  A‌‌verification‌‌plan‌‌providing‌‌details‌‌of‌‌the‌‌data‌‌that‌‌will‌‌be‌‌collected‌‌in‌‌order‌‌to‌‌                             
demonstrate‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌works‌ ‌set‌ ‌out‌ ‌in‌ ‌(3)‌ ‌are‌ ‌complete‌ ‌and‌ ‌identifying‌ ‌any‌‌                         
requirements‌ ‌for‌ ‌longer-term‌ ‌monitoring‌ ‌of‌ ‌pollutant‌ ‌linkages,‌ ‌maintenance‌ ‌and‌‌                 

62



‌ 
‌ 

arrangements‌‌for‌‌contingency‌‌action.‌‌Any‌‌changes‌‌to‌‌these‌‌components‌‌require‌‌the‌‌                     
express‌ ‌consent‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Authority.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌‌scheme‌‌shall‌‌be‌‌implemented‌‌as‌‌approved‌‌above‌‌and,‌‌prior‌‌to‌‌commencement‌‌                       
of‌ ‌any‌ ‌construction‌ ‌work‌ ‌(or‌ ‌such‌ ‌other‌ ‌date‌ ‌or‌ ‌stage‌ ‌in‌ ‌development‌ ‌as‌ ‌may‌ ‌be‌‌                             
agreed‌ ‌in‌ ‌writing‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Authority),‌ ‌a‌ ‌Verification‌ ‌Report‌‌                     
demonstrating‌‌completion‌‌of‌‌the‌‌works‌‌set‌‌out‌‌in‌‌the‌‌approved‌‌remediation‌‌strategy‌‌                       
and‌ ‌the‌ ‌effectiveness‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌remediation‌ ‌shall‌ ‌be‌ ‌submitted‌ ‌to‌ ‌and‌ ‌approved‌ ‌in‌‌                         
writing‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Authority.‌ ‌The‌‌report‌‌shall‌‌include‌‌results‌‌of‌‌sampling‌‌                         
and‌ ‌monitoring‌ ‌carried‌ ‌out‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌approved‌ ‌verification‌ ‌plan‌ ‌to‌‌                       
demonstrate‌‌that‌‌the‌‌site‌‌remediation‌‌criteria‌‌have‌‌been‌‌met.‌‌It‌‌shall‌‌also‌‌include‌‌any‌‌                           
plan‌ ‌(a‌ ‌'long-term‌ ‌monitoring‌ ‌and‌ ‌maintenance‌ ‌plan')‌ ‌for‌ ‌longer-term‌ ‌monitoring‌ ‌of‌‌                     
pollutant‌ ‌linkages,‌ ‌maintenance‌ ‌and‌ ‌arrangements‌ ‌for‌ ‌contingency‌ ‌action,‌ ‌as‌‌                 
identified‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌verification‌ ‌plan,‌ ‌and‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌reporting‌ ‌of‌ ‌this‌‌to‌‌the‌‌Local‌‌Planning‌‌                             
Authority.‌ ‌ 

Given‌ ‌the‌ ‌proximity‌‌of‌‌this‌‌proposed‌‌development‌‌to‌‌existing‌‌dwellings‌‌I‌‌would‌‌also‌‌                         
recommend‌ ‌the‌ ‌following‌ ‌conditions:‌ ‌ 

Hours‌ ‌of‌ ‌construction‌ ‌ 

Works‌ ‌of‌ ‌construction‌ ‌or‌ ‌demolition,‌ ‌including‌ ‌the‌ ‌use‌ ‌of‌ ‌plant‌ ‌and‌ ‌machinery,‌‌                       
necessary‌ ‌for‌ ‌implementation‌ ‌of‌ ‌this‌‌consent‌‌shall‌‌be‌‌limited‌‌to‌‌the‌‌following‌‌times:‌‌                         
Monday‌ ‌-‌ ‌Friday‌ ‌08:00‌ ‌-‌ ‌18:00‌ ‌Hours;‌ ‌Saturdays‌ ‌09:00‌ ‌-‌ ‌13:00‌ ‌Hours;‌ ‌No‌ ‌work‌‌                           
permitted‌‌on‌‌Sundays‌‌and‌‌Bank‌‌Holidays.‌‌Any‌‌temporary‌‌exception‌‌to‌‌these‌‌working‌‌                       
hours‌‌shall‌‌be‌‌agreed‌‌in‌‌writing‌‌by‌‌the‌‌Local‌‌Planning‌‌Authority‌‌at‌‌least‌‌five‌‌days‌‌in‌‌                               
advance‌ ‌of‌ ‌works‌ ‌commencing.‌ ‌The‌ ‌contractor‌ ‌shall‌ ‌notify‌ ‌the‌ ‌local‌ ‌residents‌ ‌in‌‌                       
writing‌ ‌at‌ ‌least‌ ‌three‌ ‌days‌ ‌before‌ ‌any‌ ‌such‌ ‌works.‌‌ ‌  

Dust‌‌ ‌  

Construction‌ ‌work‌ ‌shall‌ ‌not‌ ‌commence‌ ‌until‌ ‌a‌ ‌scheme‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌protection‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌                         
existing‌ ‌neighbouring‌ ‌premises‌ ‌from‌ ‌dust‌ ‌has‌ ‌been‌ ‌submitted‌ ‌to‌ ‌and‌ ‌approved‌ ‌by‌‌                       
the‌ ‌local‌‌planning‌‌authority.‌‌The‌‌scheme‌‌as‌‌approved‌‌shall‌‌be‌‌operated‌‌at‌‌all‌‌times‌                           
during‌ ‌the‌ ‌demolition‌ ‌and‌ ‌construction‌ ‌phases‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌development.‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌Environmental‌ ‌Health‌ ‌Officer‌ ‌was‌ ‌subsequently‌ ‌re-consulted‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌‌                 
Transportation‌‌Noise‌‌Assessment‌‌(Residential‌‌Development)‌‌(Date:‌‌16‌‌August‌‌2021‌‌                 
–‌ ‌Issue‌ ‌2‌ ‌Project:‌ ‌J3076)‌ ‌along‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌further‌ ‌explanatory‌ ‌comments‌ ‌(dated‌‌                       
18.08.2021)‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌Applicant’s‌ ‌Acoustic‌ ‌Consultant.‌ ‌and‌ ‌has‌ ‌commented‌ ‌that‌‌                   
these‌ ‌documents‌ ‌have‌ ‌addressed‌ ‌her‌ ‌concerns‌ ‌and‌ ‌are‌ ‌considered‌ ‌acceptable.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

The‌ ‌following‌ ‌additional‌ ‌conditions‌ ‌are‌ ‌recommended:‌ ‌ 

Acoustic‌ ‌Attenuation‌‌ ‌  

The‌ ‌development‌ ‌hereby‌ ‌permitted‌ ‌shall‌ ‌be‌ ‌carried‌ ‌out‌ ‌in‌ ‌full‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌‌                         
recommendations‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌‌Transportation‌ ‌Noise‌ ‌Assessment‌ ‌(Residential‌‌             
Development)‌‌(Date:‌‌16‌‌August‌‌2021‌‌–‌‌Issue‌‌2‌‌Project:‌‌J3076)‌‌‌and‌‌all‌‌works‌‌which‌‌                           
form‌ ‌part‌‌of‌‌the‌‌approved‌‌scheme‌‌shall‌‌be‌‌completed‌‌before‌‌the‌‌permitted‌‌dwelling‌‌                         
is‌ ‌occupied.‌ ‌Following‌ ‌completion‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌scheme,‌ ‌a‌ ‌test‌ ‌shall‌ ‌be‌ ‌undertaken‌ ‌to‌‌                         

63



‌ 
‌ 

demonstrate‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌attenuation‌ ‌measures‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌scheme‌ ‌are‌ ‌effective‌‌                     
and‌ ‌protect‌ ‌the‌ ‌residential‌ ‌unit‌ ‌from‌ ‌noise.‌ ‌ 

No‌‌dwelling‌‌shall‌‌be‌‌occupied‌‌unless‌‌and‌‌until‌‌the‌‌acoustic‌‌fence‌‌specified‌‌in‌‌section‌‌                           
7.6‌‌of‌‌Transportation‌‌Noise‌‌Assessment‌‌(Residential‌‌Development)‌‌(Date:‌‌16‌‌August‌‌                   
2021‌ ‌–‌ ‌Issue‌ ‌2‌ ‌Project:‌ ‌J3076)‌ ‌is‌ ‌erected‌‌around‌‌the‌‌gardens‌‌and‌‌amenity‌‌area‌‌of‌‌                             
the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌development.‌ ‌ 

Construction‌ ‌work‌ ‌shall‌ ‌not‌ ‌commence‌ ‌until‌ ‌details‌ ‌(including‌ ‌a‌ ‌location‌ ‌plan‌ ‌of‌‌                       
ductwork‌ ‌and‌ ‌ventilators)‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌mechanical‌ ‌extract‌ ‌ventilation‌ ‌system‌ ‌and‌‌                   
attenuated‌ ‌through‌ ‌wall‌ ‌ventilators‌ ‌have‌ ‌been‌ ‌submitted‌ ‌and‌ ‌approved.‌ ‌The‌‌                   
mechanical‌ ‌extract‌ ‌ventilation‌ ‌should‌ ‌have‌ ‌a‌ ‌boost‌ ‌function,‌ ‌ductwork‌ ‌should‌ ‌be‌‌                     
fitted‌ ‌on‌ ‌anti-vibration‌ ‌mounts‌ ‌and‌ ‌internal‌ ‌noise‌ ‌levels‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌system‌ ‌when‌ ‌in‌‌                         
operation‌ ‌should‌ ‌not‌ ‌exceed‌ ‌guidelines‌ ‌levels‌ ‌specified‌ ‌in‌ ‌BS8233:2014.‌‌ ‌  

The‌ ‌‌Engineer‌ ‌‌initially‌ ‌commented:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Flood‌ ‌risk:‌ ‌The‌ ‌application‌‌is‌‌within‌‌flood‌‌zone‌‌1,‌‌the‌‌site‌‌is‌‌not‌‌shown‌‌to‌‌be‌‌at‌‌risk‌‌                                   
from‌‌surface‌‌water‌‌flooding.‌‌We‌‌have‌‌no‌‌objections‌‌to‌‌the‌‌proposals‌‌from‌‌a‌‌flood‌‌risk‌‌                             
perspective.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

Surface‌ ‌water‌ ‌drainage:‌ ‌The‌ ‌application‌ ‌form‌ ‌indicates‌ ‌it‌ ‌is‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌to‌ ‌discharge‌ ‌                       
surface‌‌water‌‌via‌‌infiltration.‌‌Network‌‌rail‌‌has‌‌strict‌‌controls‌‌over‌‌permitting‌‌infiltration‌‌                       
within‌ ‌certain‌ ‌distances‌ ‌of‌ ‌their‌ ‌assets.‌ ‌Network‌ ‌rail‌ ‌may‌ ‌also‌ ‌wish‌‌to‌‌comment‌‌on‌‌                           
the‌ ‌proposal‌ ‌for‌ ‌construction‌ ‌so‌ ‌close‌ ‌to‌ ‌its‌ ‌asset.‌ ‌We‌‌would‌‌recommend‌‌that‌‌they‌‌                           
are‌ ‌consulted.‌ ‌Given‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌ ‌size‌ ‌we‌ ‌believe‌ ‌it‌ ‌is‌ ‌unlikely‌ ‌that‌ ‌infiltration‌ ‌will‌ ‌be‌‌                             
allowed.‌ ‌There‌ ‌is‌ ‌a‌ ‌surface‌ ‌water‌ ‌sewer‌ ‌in‌ ‌Tarring‌ ‌Road.‌ ‌Attenuated‌ ‌discharge‌ ‌to‌‌                         
surface‌‌water‌‌sewer‌‌may‌‌be‌‌required.‌‌Given‌‌the‌‌tree‌‌root‌‌protection‌‌areas‌‌there‌‌may‌‌                           
be‌ ‌significant‌ ‌conflict‌ ‌on‌ ‌site.‌ ‌The‌ ‌applicant‌ ‌has‌ ‌submitted‌ ‌a‌ ‌plan‌ ‌showing‌ ‌the‌‌                         
indicative‌ ‌potential‌ ‌location‌ ‌of‌ ‌attenuation,‌ ‌although‌ ‌they‌ ‌have‌ ‌not‌ ‌submitted‌ ‌any‌‌                     
calculations‌ ‌or‌ ‌details‌ ‌of‌ ‌levels.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

In‌ ‌the‌ ‌event‌ ‌of‌ ‌approval‌ ‌the‌ ‌following‌ ‌condition‌ ‌is‌ ‌recommended‌ ‌to‌ ‌ensure‌ ‌it‌ ‌is‌‌                           
adequately‌ ‌drained:‌ ‌‌“Development‌ ‌shall‌ ‌not‌ ‌commence,‌ ‌other‌ ‌than‌ ‌works‌ ‌of‌ ‌site‌‌                     
survey‌ ‌and‌ ‌investigation,‌ ‌until‌ ‌full‌ ‌details‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌surface‌ ‌water‌ ‌drainage‌‌                       
scheme‌ ‌have‌ ‌been‌ ‌submitted‌ ‌to‌ ‌and‌ ‌approved‌ ‌in‌ ‌writing‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Planning‌‌                         
Authority.‌ ‌The‌‌design‌‌should‌‌follow‌‌the‌‌hierarchy‌‌of‌‌preference‌‌for‌‌different‌‌types‌‌of‌‌                         
surface‌‌water‌‌drainage‌‌disposal‌‌systems‌‌as‌‌set‌‌out‌‌in‌‌Approved‌‌Document‌‌H‌‌of‌‌the‌‌                           
Building‌ ‌Regulations,‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌recommendations‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌SuDS‌ ‌Manual‌ ‌produced‌ ‌by‌‌                     
CIRIA.‌ ‌Winter‌ ‌groundwater‌ ‌monitoring‌ ‌to‌ ‌establish‌ ‌highest‌ ‌annual‌ ‌ground‌ ‌water‌‌                   
levels‌ ‌and‌ ‌winter‌ ‌infiltration‌ ‌testing‌ ‌to‌ ‌BRE‌ ‌DG365,‌ ‌or‌ ‌similar‌ ‌approved,‌ ‌will‌ ‌be‌‌                         
required‌‌to‌‌support‌‌the‌‌design‌‌of‌‌any‌‌Infiltration‌‌drainage.‌‌No‌‌building‌‌/‌‌No‌‌part‌‌of‌‌the‌‌                               
extended‌ ‌building‌ ‌shall‌ ‌be‌ ‌occupied‌ ‌until‌ ‌the‌ ‌complete‌ ‌surface‌ ‌water‌ ‌drainage‌‌                     
system‌ ‌serving‌ ‌the‌ ‌property‌ ‌has‌ ‌been‌ ‌implemented‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with‌‌the‌‌agreed‌‌                       
details‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌details‌ ‌so‌ ‌agreed‌ ‌shall‌ ‌be‌ ‌maintained‌ ‌in‌ ‌good‌ ‌working‌ ‌order‌ ‌in‌‌                           
perpetuity.‌”‌ ‌ ‌   
‌ 

The‌Tree‌ ‌and‌ ‌Landscape‌ ‌Officer‌ ‌‌initially‌ ‌raised‌ ‌an‌‌objection‌‌commenting‌‌that‌‌the‌‌                       
proposed‌ ‌change‌ ‌in‌ ‌ground‌ ‌levels‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌damaging‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌trees.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

64



‌ 
‌ 

Following‌ ‌the‌ ‌submission‌ ‌of‌‌an‌‌Addendum‌‌to‌‌the‌‌Arboricultural‌‌Impact‌‌Assessment‌‌                     
and‌‌Tree‌‌Protection‌‌and‌‌Retention‌‌Plan‌‌from‌‌the‌‌Applicant’s‌‌Landscape‌‌Consultant,‌‌                     
the‌‌Tree‌‌and‌‌Landscape‌‌Officer‌‌is‌‌now‌‌satisfied‌‌with‌‌the‌‌details‌‌regarding‌‌the‌‌levels‌‌                           
and‌ ‌existing‌ ‌trees,‌ ‌and‌ ‌also‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌tree‌ ‌planting.‌ ‌ ‌   
‌ 

The‌‌ ‌‌Private‌ ‌Sector‌ ‌Housing‌‌ ‌team‌ ‌has‌ ‌no‌ ‌objection.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Representations‌ ‌ 
‌ 

An‌ ‌objection‌‌to‌‌the‌‌initial‌‌submission‌‌was‌‌received‌‌from‌‌a‌‌resident‌‌of‌‌nearby‌‌Ripley‌‌                           
Road‌ ‌commenting:-‌ ‌ 
‌ 

We‌ ‌strongly‌ ‌object‌ ‌to‌ ‌this‌ ‌latest‌ ‌planning‌ ‌application‌ ‌as‌ ‌outlined‌ ‌below:-‌‌ ‌  
1.‌ ‌The‌ ‌previous‌ ‌decisions‌ ‌were‌ ‌based‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌replanting‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌illegally‌ ‌felled‌ ‌TPO‌‌                           
trees.‌‌This‌‌has‌‌not‌‌taken‌‌place‌‌to‌‌date.‌‌By‌‌the‌‌selling‌‌on‌‌and‌‌subsequent‌‌splitting‌‌of‌‌                               
this‌ ‌land‌ ‌to‌ ‌this‌ ‌new‌ ‌developer‌ ‌seems‌ ‌to‌ ‌have‌ ‌allowed‌ ‌the‌ ‌original‌ ‌developer‌ ‌to‌‌                           
relinquish‌‌responsibility‌‌for‌‌the‌‌replanting‌‌of‌‌the‌‌TPO‌‌trees‌‌(16)‌‌and‌‌landscaping,‌‌as‌‌                         
already‌ ‌agreed‌ ‌in‌ ‌planning‌ ‌application‌ ‌AWDM‌ ‌0072/19,‌ ‌which‌ ‌shows‌ ‌it‌ ‌now‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌‌                         
front‌ ‌garden‌ ‌area‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌new‌ ‌development,‌ ‌so‌ ‌where‌ ‌are‌ ‌these‌ ‌16‌ ‌new‌ ‌trees‌ ‌and‌‌                             
landscaping‌ ‌being‌ ‌incorporated?‌ ‌The‌ ‌new‌ ‌developer‌ ‌surely‌ ‌cannot‌ ‌ignore‌ ‌his‌‌                   
responsibilities‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌previously‌‌agreed‌‌tree‌‌works‌‌granted‌‌under‌‌AWDM/1358/17,‌‌                   
by‌ ‌stating‌ ‌"...he‌‌was‌‌not‌‌party‌‌to‌‌the‌‌consent‌‌for‌‌the‌‌tree‌‌works...".‌‌His‌‌ignorance‌‌is‌‌                               
not‌ ‌an‌ ‌excuse.‌ ‌Furthermore,‌ ‌consent‌ ‌was‌ ‌granted‌ ‌on‌ ‌safety‌ ‌grounds‌ ‌in‌‌November‌‌                       
2017‌‌to‌‌fell‌‌nine‌‌horse‌‌chestnut‌‌trees.‌‌This‌‌consent‌‌required‌‌the‌‌replacement‌‌tree‌‌to‌‌                           
be‌‌planted‌‌within‌‌two‌‌years‌‌of‌‌the‌‌date‌‌of‌‌consent‌‌for‌‌each‌‌felled‌‌tree.‌‌This‌‌still‌‌has‌‌                                 
not‌‌taken‌‌place‌‌by‌‌July‌‌2021.‌‌Again‌‌showing‌‌total‌‌disregard‌‌for‌‌the‌‌law‌‌and‌‌Worthing‌‌                             
Planning‌ ‌Department.‌‌ ‌  
2.‌‌Regular‌‌speeding‌‌vehicles‌‌already‌‌makes‌‌this‌‌a‌‌dangerous‌‌road‌‌for‌‌pulling‌‌out‌‌of‌‌                           
side‌ ‌streets,‌ ‌due‌ ‌to‌ ‌parking‌ ‌of‌ ‌vehicles‌ ‌on‌‌pavement‌‌kerb‌‌sides‌‌and‌‌corners‌‌of‌‌the‌‌                             
local‌‌roads,‌‌therefore‌‌not‌‌giving‌‌any‌‌visibility‌‌splay.‌‌With‌‌the‌‌proposed‌‌development‌‌it‌‌                         
shows‌ ‌two‌ ‌footpaths‌ ‌leading‌ ‌directly‌ ‌on‌ ‌to‌ ‌Tarring‌ ‌Road‌ ‌with‌ ‌a‌ ‌tree‌ ‌in‌ ‌between,‌‌                           
stopping‌ ‌safe‌ ‌passage‌ ‌to‌ ‌cross‌ ‌the‌ ‌road.‌ ‌Also‌ ‌the‌ ‌driveway‌ ‌is‌ ‌obscured‌ ‌by‌ ‌TPO‌‌                           
trees‌ ‌both‌ ‌ways.‌‌ ‌  
3.‌ ‌Will‌ ‌be‌ ‌overlooked‌ ‌and‌ ‌loss‌ ‌of‌ ‌privacy‌ ‌by‌ ‌this‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌development.‌‌ ‌  
4.‌ ‌This‌ ‌was‌ ‌a‌ ‌lovely‌‌tree-lined‌‌road‌‌which‌‌has‌‌been‌‌progressively‌‌destroyed‌‌by‌‌the‌‌                           
numerous‌‌developers,‌‌who‌‌flout‌‌the‌‌law,‌‌illegally‌‌felling‌‌TPO‌‌trees‌‌and‌‌not‌‌replanting‌‌                         
them.‌‌ ‌  
5.‌‌Please‌‌refer‌‌to‌‌the‌‌whole‌‌Minutes‌‌of‌‌the‌‌Meeting‌‌dated‌‌17‌‌October‌‌2018‌‌at‌‌18:30‌‌                               
hours,‌ ‌as‌ ‌a‌ ‌refresher‌ ‌to‌ ‌this‌ ‌ongoing‌ ‌planning‌ ‌application,‌ ‌and‌ ‌especially‌ ‌the‌ ‌last‌‌                         
paragraph‌‌on‌‌page‌‌7,‌‌where‌‌due‌‌to‌‌the‌‌illegal‌‌felling‌‌of‌‌TPO‌‌trees,‌‌the‌‌officer‌‌stated‌‌                               
that‌‌".‌..an‌‌extra‌‌condition‌‌to‌‌enforce‌‌planting‌‌of‌‌the‌‌trees‌‌before‌‌further‌‌development‌‌                         
takes‌ ‌place,‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌a‌ ‌positive‌ ‌step‌ ‌and‌ ‌could‌ ‌be‌ ‌overseen‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌ ‌Tree‌ ‌and‌‌                             
Landscape‌ ‌Officer‌".‌ ‌This‌ ‌has‌ ‌clearly‌ ‌not‌ ‌taken‌ ‌place.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Following‌ ‌notification‌ ‌of‌ ‌amended‌ ‌plans‌ ‌a‌ ‌further‌‌objection‌‌has‌‌been‌‌received‌‌from‌‌                       
the‌ ‌resident‌ ‌reiterating‌ ‌all‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌above‌ ‌concerns,‌ ‌plus:-‌ ‌ 
‌ 

6.‌ ‌‌As‌‌the‌‌Forestry‌‌Minister‌‌Lord‌‌Goldsmith‌‌said‌‌".....We‌‌are‌‌going‌‌to‌‌have‌‌to‌‌break‌‌                             
down‌ ‌the‌ ‌barriers‌ ‌to‌ ‌planting‌ ‌trees‌ ‌outside‌ ‌of‌ ‌woodlands‌ ‌if‌ ‌we‌ ‌are‌ ‌to‌ ‌deliver‌ ‌our‌‌                             
ambitious‌‌tree‌‌planting‌‌commitments.‌‌Trees‌‌are‌‌the‌‌backbone‌‌of‌‌our‌‌urban‌‌and‌‌rural‌‌                         

65



‌ 
‌ 

environments,‌ ‌and‌ ‌increasing‌ ‌planting‌ ‌is‌ ‌an‌ ‌effective‌ ‌way‌ ‌both‌ ‌to‌ ‌tackle‌ ‌climate‌‌                       
change‌ ‌and‌ ‌stem‌ ‌the‌ ‌appalling‌ ‌collapse‌ ‌of‌ ‌biodiversity.”‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Relevant‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Policies‌ ‌and‌ ‌Guidance‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Worthing‌ ‌Core‌ ‌Strategy‌ ‌(2011):‌ ‌ 
Policy‌ ‌7‌ ‌Meeting‌ ‌Housing‌ ‌Need‌ ‌ 
Policy‌ ‌8‌ ‌Getting‌ ‌the‌ ‌Right‌ ‌Mix‌ ‌of‌ ‌Homes‌‌ ‌  
Policy‌ ‌13‌ ‌The‌ ‌Natural‌ ‌Environment‌ ‌and‌ ‌Landscape‌ ‌Character‌ ‌ 
Policy‌ ‌15‌ ‌Flood‌ ‌Risk‌ ‌and‌ ‌Sustainable‌ ‌Water‌ ‌Management‌ ‌ 
Policy‌ ‌16‌ ‌Built‌ ‌Environment‌ ‌and‌ ‌Design‌ ‌ 
Policy‌ ‌17‌ ‌Sustainable‌ ‌Construction‌ ‌ 
Policy‌ ‌19‌ ‌Sustainable‌ ‌Travel‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

Worthing‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Plan‌ ‌(WBC‌ ‌2003)‌ ‌(saved‌ ‌policies‌ ‌H18,‌ ‌RES7,‌ ‌TR9t)‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Supplementary‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Document‌ ‌‘Space‌ ‌Standards’‌ ‌(WBC‌ ‌2012)‌ ‌ 
Supplementary‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Document‌ ‌‘A‌ ‌Guide‌ ‌to‌ ‌Residential‌ ‌Development’‌ ‌(WBC,‌‌                 
2013)‌ ‌ 
Community‌ ‌Infrastructure‌ ‌Levy‌ ‌Revised‌ ‌Charging‌ ‌Schedule‌ ‌(WBC‌ ‌2021)‌ ‌ 
WSCC‌ ‌Guidance‌ ‌on‌ ‌Parking‌ ‌in‌ ‌New‌ ‌Development‌ ‌(WSCC‌ ‌2019)‌ ‌ 
Revised‌ ‌National‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Policy‌ ‌Framework‌ ‌(HCLG‌ ‌2021)‌ ‌ 
National‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Practice‌ ‌Guidance‌ ‌(HCLG)‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Submission‌ ‌Draft‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Plan‌ ‌(2021):‌ ‌ 
Policy‌ ‌SP1‌ ‌Presumption‌ ‌in‌ ‌Favour‌ ‌of‌ ‌Sustainable‌ ‌Development‌ ‌ 
Policy‌ ‌DM1‌ ‌Housing‌ ‌Mix‌ ‌ 
Policy‌ ‌DM2‌ ‌Density‌ ‌ 
Policy‌ ‌DM5‌ ‌Quality‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Built‌ ‌Environment‌ ‌ 
Policy‌ ‌DM6‌ ‌Public‌ ‌Realm‌ ‌ 
Policy‌ ‌DM15‌ ‌Sustainable‌ ‌Travel‌ ‌and‌ ‌Active‌ ‌Travel‌ ‌ 
Policy‌ ‌DM16‌ ‌Sustainable‌ ‌Design‌ ‌ 
Policy‌ ‌DM20‌ ‌Flood‌ ‌Risk‌ ‌and‌ ‌Sustainable‌ ‌Drainage‌ 
‌ 

Relevant‌ ‌Legislation‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌Committee‌ ‌should‌ ‌consider‌ ‌the‌ ‌planning‌ ‌application‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Section‌ ‌70‌‌of‌‌the‌‌Town‌‌and‌‌Country‌‌Planning‌‌Act‌‌1990‌‌(as‌‌amended)‌‌provides‌‌that‌‌                           
the‌ ‌application‌ ‌may‌ ‌be‌ ‌granted‌ ‌either‌ ‌unconditionally‌ ‌or‌ ‌subject‌ ‌to‌ ‌relevant‌‌                     
conditions,‌‌or‌‌refused.‌ ‌Regard‌‌shall‌‌be‌‌given‌‌to‌‌relevant‌‌development‌‌plan‌‌policies,‌‌                       
any‌ ‌relevant‌ ‌local‌ ‌finance‌ ‌considerations,‌ ‌and‌ ‌other‌ ‌material‌ ‌considerations‌ ‌ 
‌ 

And‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Section‌ ‌38(6)‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌and‌ ‌Compulsory‌ ‌Purchase‌ ‌Act‌ ‌2004‌ ‌that‌ ‌requires‌ ‌the‌‌                     
decision‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌made‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌development‌ ‌plan‌ ‌unless‌ ‌material‌‌                       
considerations‌ ‌indicate‌ ‌otherwise.‌ ‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

66



‌ 
‌ 

Planning‌ ‌Assessment‌ ‌ 

Policy‌ ‌Background‌ ‌and‌ ‌Principle‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌policy‌ ‌context‌ ‌comprises‌ ‌the‌ ‌National‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Policy‌ ‌Framework‌‌(NPPF)‌‌and‌‌                     
the‌ ‌local‌ ‌development‌ ‌plan‌ ‌which‌ ‌consists‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌saved‌ ‌policies‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Worthing‌‌                         
Local‌ ‌Plan,‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌Core‌ ‌Strategy‌ ‌and‌ ‌accompanying‌ ‌Supplementary‌ ‌Planning‌‌                 
Documents‌ ‌(SPDs).‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌NPPF‌ ‌has‌ ‌considerable‌‌status‌‌as‌‌a‌‌material‌‌consideration‌‌which‌‌can‌‌outweigh‌‌                       
development‌‌plan‌‌provisions‌‌if‌‌policies‌‌are‌‌out‌‌of‌‌date‌‌or‌‌silent‌‌on‌‌a‌‌relevant‌‌matter.‌‌                             
In‌‌such‌‌circumstances‌‌paragraph‌‌11‌‌of‌‌the‌‌NPPF‌‌states‌‌that‌‌development‌‌should‌‌be‌‌                         
approved‌ ‌unless‌ ‌it‌ ‌would‌ ‌cause‌ ‌adverse‌ ‌impacts‌ ‌which‌ ‌significantly‌ ‌and‌‌                   
demonstrably‌ ‌outweigh‌ ‌benefits‌ ‌when‌ ‌assessed‌ ‌against‌ ‌the‌ ‌NPPF‌ ‌policies‌ ‌overall,‌‌                   
or‌ ‌if‌ ‌the‌ ‌NPPF‌ ‌affords‌ ‌particular‌ ‌protection‌ ‌to‌ ‌assets‌ ‌or‌ ‌areas‌ ‌of‌ ‌importance.‌ ‌ 

Worthing‌ ‌Core‌ ‌Strategy‌ ‌Policy‌ ‌7‌ ‌aims‌ ‌to‌ ‌ensure‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌right‌ ‌mix‌ ‌and‌ ‌type‌ ‌of‌‌                             
housing‌ ‌is‌ ‌delivered‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌right‌ ‌places‌ ‌to‌ ‌meet‌ ‌identified‌ ‌demand‌ ‌and‌ ‌that‌‌                         
appropriate‌ ‌infrastructure‌ ‌is‌ ‌delivered.‌ ‌ 

Worthing‌‌Core‌‌Strategy‌‌Policy‌‌8‌‌seeks‌‌to‌‌deliver‌‌a‌‌wide‌‌choice‌‌of‌‌high‌‌quality‌‌homes‌‌                             
to‌‌address‌‌the‌‌needs‌‌of‌‌the‌‌community‌‌with‌‌higher‌‌density‌‌housing‌‌(including‌‌homes‌‌                         
suitable‌ ‌for‌ ‌family‌ ‌occupation)‌ ‌in‌ ‌and‌ ‌around‌ ‌the‌ ‌town‌ ‌centre‌ ‌and‌ ‌within‌ ‌suburban‌‌                         
areas‌ ‌outside‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌town,‌ ‌only‌ ‌limited‌ ‌infilling‌ ‌which‌ ‌will‌ ‌predominantly‌ ‌consist‌ ‌of‌‌                         
family‌ ‌housing.‌ ‌The‌ ‌approach‌ ‌is‌ ‌one‌ ‌that‌ ‌seeks‌ ‌to‌ ‌increase‌ ‌the‌ ‌stock‌ ‌of‌ ‌family‌‌                           
homes‌ ‌through‌ ‌new‌ ‌development‌ ‌and‌ ‌to‌ ‌protect‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌stock.‌ ‌ 

A‌‌key‌‌objective‌‌of‌‌the‌‌Core‌‌Strategy‌‌is‌‌to‌‌ensure‌‌that‌‌the‌‌right‌‌mix‌‌and‌‌type‌‌of‌‌homes‌‌                                   
are‌‌delivered‌‌in‌‌the‌‌right‌‌places‌‌to‌‌meet‌‌the‌‌identified‌‌local‌‌need.‌‌Good‌‌design‌‌is‌‌vital‌‌                               
to‌ ‌ensure‌ ‌that‌ ‌Worthing’s‌ ‌built‌ ‌environment‌ ‌is‌ ‌not‌ ‌compromised.‌ ‌The‌ ‌‘Guide‌ ‌for‌‌                       
residential‌ ‌Development’‌ ‌SPD‌ ‌October‌ ‌2013‌ ‌seeks‌ ‌to‌ ‌outline‌ ‌the‌ ‌key‌ ‌elements‌ ‌for‌‌                       
achieving‌ ‌these‌ ‌objectives‌ ‌when‌ ‌considering‌ ‌all‌ ‌new‌ ‌residential‌ ‌developments‌ ‌in‌‌                   
Worthing.‌ ‌The‌‌aim‌‌of‌‌this‌‌SPD‌‌is‌‌to‌‌interpret‌‌policy‌‌as‌‌well‌‌as‌‌to‌‌provide‌‌design-led‌‌                               
good‌ ‌practice‌ ‌guidance.‌ ‌ 

A‌ ‌new‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Plan,‌ ‌the‌ ‌Submission‌ ‌Draft‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Plan‌ ‌(SDWLP)‌ ‌has‌ ‌‌been‌‌                         
submitted‌‌to‌‌the‌‌Secretary‌‌of‌‌State‌‌for‌‌Housing‌‌Communities‌‌and‌‌Local‌‌Government‌‌                       
and‌ ‌is‌ ‌currently‌ ‌undergoing‌ ‌for‌ ‌‌examination.‌ ‌The‌ ‌relevant‌ ‌policies‌ ‌set‌ ‌out‌ ‌above‌‌                       
have‌ ‌some‌ ‌materiality‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌determination‌ ‌of‌ ‌planning‌ ‌applications.‌‌ ‌  

Paragraph‌‌74‌‌of‌‌the‌‌revised‌‌NPPF‌‌requires‌‌local‌‌planning‌‌authorities‌‌to‌‌identify‌‌and‌‌                         
update‌‌annually‌‌a‌‌supply‌‌of‌‌specific‌‌deliverable‌‌sites‌‌sufficient‌‌to‌‌provide‌‌a‌‌minimum‌‌                         
5‌ ‌years’‌ ‌worth‌ ‌of‌ ‌housing‌ ‌against‌ ‌their‌ ‌housing‌ ‌requirement‌ ‌set‌ ‌out‌ ‌in‌ ‌adopted‌‌                         
strategic‌ ‌policies,‌ ‌or‌ ‌against‌ ‌objectively‌ ‌assessed‌ ‌local‌ ‌housing‌ ‌need‌ ‌where‌ ‌the‌‌                     
strategic‌ ‌policies‌ ‌are‌ ‌more‌ ‌than‌ ‌five‌ ‌years‌ ‌old.‌ ‌It‌ ‌is‌ ‌acknowledged‌ ‌that‌ ‌a‌ ‌5‌ ‌year‌‌                             
supply‌‌of‌‌housing‌‌in‌‌relation‌‌to‌‌such‌‌need‌‌cannot‌‌currently‌‌be‌‌demonstrated,‌‌but‌‌this‌                           
has‌ ‌been‌ ‌addressed‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌new‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Plan‌ ‌by‌ ‌a‌ ‌robust‌ ‌assessment‌ ‌of‌ ‌all‌‌                           
potential‌ ‌opportunities‌ ‌to‌ ‌deliver‌ ‌new‌ ‌homes.‌‌ ‌  

With‌ ‌regards‌ ‌Para‌ ‌11(d)‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌NPPF‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌so-called‌ ‌‘tilted‌ ‌balance’,‌ ‌the‌ ‌recent‌‌                           
Court‌ ‌of‌ ‌Appeal‌ ‌case‌ ‌(‌Gladman‌ ‌Developments‌ ‌Limited‌ ‌v‌ ‌Secretary‌ ‌of‌ ‌State‌ ‌for‌‌                       

67



‌ 
‌ 

Housing,‌ ‌Communities‌ ‌and‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Government‌ ‌&‌ ‌Ors.‌ ‌Case‌ ‌Number:‌‌                 
C1/2020/0542/QBACF)‌‌‌found‌‌that‌‌the‌‌NPPF‌‌presumption‌‌is‌‌“‌policy,‌‌not‌‌statute‌”‌‌and‌‌                     
“‌does‌ ‌not‌ ‌change‌ ‌the‌ ‌status‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌development‌ ‌plan‌ ‌as‌ ‌the‌ ‌starting‌ ‌point‌ ‌for‌‌                           
decision‌ ‌making‌”.‌‌ ‌  

The‌‌proposed‌‌site‌‌is‌‌sustainably‌‌located‌‌within‌‌an‌‌established‌‌residential‌‌area‌‌within‌‌                       
the‌‌designated‌‌built‌‌up‌‌area‌‌and‌‌within‌‌walking‌‌distance‌‌of‌‌local‌‌schools,‌‌shops‌‌and‌‌                           
services‌‌and‌‌is‌‌accessible‌‌by‌‌public‌‌transport.‌‌There‌‌is‌‌no‌‌objection‌‌in‌‌principle‌‌to‌‌a‌‌                             
residential‌‌infill‌‌development‌‌that‌‌makes‌‌a‌‌more‌‌efficient‌‌use‌‌of‌‌land‌‌subject‌‌to‌‌there‌‌                           
being‌ ‌no‌ ‌adverse‌ ‌impacts‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌character‌ ‌and‌ ‌appearance‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌area,‌ ‌the‌‌                         
residential‌‌amenities‌‌of‌‌future‌‌and‌‌neighbouring‌‌occupiers,‌‌and‌‌parking‌‌and‌‌highway‌‌                     
safety‌ ‌matters,‌ ‌which‌ ‌are‌ ‌considered‌ ‌below.‌ ‌ 

Character‌ ‌and‌ ‌Appearance‌ ‌ ‌   

The‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌dwelling‌‌would‌‌be‌‌of‌‌a‌‌similar‌‌contemporary‌‌architectural‌‌style‌‌to‌‌the‌‌                         
recently‌‌built‌‌dwellings‌‌further‌‌to‌‌the‌‌east‌‌on‌‌this‌‌side‌‌of‌‌the‌‌road‌‌(and‌‌approved‌‌on‌‌                               
the‌ ‌adjoining‌ ‌vacant‌ ‌site‌ ‌under‌ ‌AWDM/0072/19),‌ ‌but‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌smaller‌ ‌in‌ ‌scale‌ ‌at‌‌                         
2-storeys.‌ ‌The‌ ‌existing‌ ‌(and‌ ‌approved)‌ ‌dwellings‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌east‌ ‌are‌ ‌not‌‌all‌‌identical‌‌in‌‌                           
appearance‌ ‌but‌ ‌have‌ ‌a‌ ‌clear‌ ‌identity‌ ‌and‌ ‌coherence‌ ‌which‌ ‌derives‌ ‌from‌ ‌their‌ ‌part‌‌                         
pitched‌ ‌part‌ ‌flat‌‌roof‌‌forms,‌‌squared‌‌bays,‌‌distinctive‌‌fenestration‌‌style‌‌and‌‌external‌‌                       
finishes.‌ ‌The‌ ‌‘treed’‌ ‌setting‌ ‌fronting‌ ‌Tarring‌ ‌Road‌ ‌also‌ ‌contributes‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌‌distinctive‌‌                       
character‌ ‌of‌ ‌these‌ ‌houses‌ ‌(although‌ ‌less‌ ‌so‌ ‌the‌ ‌westernmost‌ ‌detached‌ ‌dwelling,‌‌                     
No.318).‌ ‌ ‌   

The‌‌elongated‌‌form‌‌and‌‌layout‌‌of‌‌the‌‌proposed‌‌dwelling‌‌is‌‌primarily‌‌influenced‌‌by‌‌the‌‌                           
constraints‌ ‌of‌ ‌this‌ ‌narrow‌ ‌linear‌ ‌site.‌ ‌It‌ ‌is‌ ‌not‌ ‌unattractive‌ ‌in‌ ‌itself‌ ‌and‌ ‌has‌ ‌been‌‌                             
deliberately‌‌designed‌‌‘with‌‌a‌‌nod’‌‌to‌‌the‌‌design‌‌of‌‌the‌‌existing‌‌houses‌‌on‌‌this‌‌side‌‌of‌‌                               
the‌ ‌road,‌ ‌incorporating‌ ‌some‌ ‌similar‌ ‌features‌ ‌including‌ ‌the‌ ‌squared‌ ‌bay‌ ‌window,‌‌                     
generously‌‌proportioned‌‌windows‌‌to‌‌the‌‌front‌‌elevation‌‌and‌‌the‌‌chamfered‌‌treatment‌‌                     
of‌ ‌the‌‌first-floor‌‌front‌‌elevation,‌‌which‌‌picks‌‌up‌‌on‌‌the‌‌sloping‌‌roof‌‌detail‌‌on‌‌the‌‌rear‌‌                               
of‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌‌houses.‌‌The‌‌dwelling‌‌would‌‌be‌‌constructed‌‌using‌‌a‌‌palette‌‌of‌‌similar‌‌                           
external‌ ‌materials‌ ‌and‌ ‌finishes.‌ ‌ ‌   

In‌ ‌dismissing‌ ‌the‌ ‌earlier‌ ‌appeal‌ ‌in‌ ‌relation‌ ‌to‌ ‌refusal‌ ‌of‌ ‌a‌ ‌semi-detached‌ ‌pair‌ ‌of‌‌                           
3-bedroom‌‌houses‌‌over‌‌3‌‌storeys,‌‌the‌‌Inspector‌‌commented:‌‌“‌The‌‌erection‌‌of‌‌a‌‌pair‌‌                         
of‌‌dwellings‌‌at‌‌this‌‌location,‌‌which‌‌would‌‌be‌‌two‌‌storey‌‌in‌‌height‌‌and‌‌of‌‌a‌‌significant‌‌                               
scale‌ ‌and‌ ‌mass,‌ ‌would‌ ‌involve‌ ‌physically‌ ‌cramming‌ ‌the‌ ‌built‌ ‌development‌ ‌into‌ ‌the‌‌                       
site‌ ‌and‌‌would‌‌disrupt‌‌the‌‌general‌‌sense‌‌of‌‌unforned‌‌development‌‌that‌‌has‌‌thus‌‌far‌‌                           
been‌‌established‌‌within‌‌this‌‌modest‌‌ribbon‌‌of‌‌land.‌‌The‌‌coherent,‌‌rather‌‌regimented‌‌                       
pattern‌ ‌of‌ ‌development‌‌that‌‌has‌‌so‌‌far‌‌been‌‌erected‌‌along‌‌the‌‌length‌‌of‌‌this‌‌side‌‌of‌‌                               
the‌ ‌road‌ ‌has‌ ‌in‌ ‌itself‌ ‌established‌ ‌an‌ ‌interesting‌ ‌and‌ ‌novel‌ ‌character.‌ ‌Due‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌‌                           
layout‌‌and‌‌siting‌‌of‌‌the‌‌proposed‌‌built‌‌form,‌‌sitting‌‌forward‌‌of‌‌the‌‌general‌‌building‌‌line‌‌                             
in‌ ‌a‌ ‌dominant‌ ‌and‌‌aggressive‌‌manner‌‌the‌‌scheme‌‌would‌‌be‌‌significantly‌‌harmful‌‌to‌‌                         
the‌‌immediate‌‌street‌‌scene‌‌and‌‌would‌‌not‌‌conform‌‌to,‌‌enhance‌‌or‌‌respect‌‌this‌‌recent‌‌                           
otter‌ ‌of‌ ‌development.‌ ‌Nor‌ ‌would‌ ‌it‌ ‌reflect‌ ‌the‌ ‌wider‌ ‌character‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌area.”‌‌ ‌  

The‌ ‌provision‌ ‌of‌ ‌only‌ ‌one‌‌dwelling‌‌compared‌‌to‌‌the‌‌2no‌‌previously‌‌proposed‌‌under‌‌                         
AWDM/0106/21‌‌and‌‌AWDM/1149/19‌‌goes‌‌some‌‌way‌‌to‌‌relieving‌‌concerns‌‌about‌‌the‌‌                     
overly‌‌cramped‌‌layout‌‌of‌‌the‌‌development.‌ ‌The‌‌proposed‌‌dwelling‌‌would‌‌be‌‌sited‌‌on‌‌                         
the‌ ‌same‌ ‌angle‌ ‌of‌ ‌alignment,‌ ‌but‌ ‌with‌ ‌its‌ ‌main‌ ‌front‌ ‌wall‌ ‌be‌ ‌positioned‌ ‌some‌ ‌2‌‌                             

68



‌ 
‌ 

metres‌ ‌behind‌ ‌the‌ ‌front‌ ‌building‌ ‌line‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌pair‌ ‌of‌ ‌houses‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌adjoining‌‌                           
development‌ ‌site‌ ‌approved‌ ‌under‌ ‌AWDM/0072/19.‌ ‌ ‌   

The‌ ‌chamfered‌ ‌or‌ ‌angled‌ ‌form‌ ‌and‌ ‌contrasting‌ ‌zinc-clad‌ ‌finish‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌first-floor‌‌                       
element‌ ‌helps‌ ‌to‌ ‌break-up‌ ‌the‌ ‌massing‌ ‌and‌ ‌alleviate‌ ‌the‌ ‌assertiveness‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌built‌‌                         
form‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌street‌ ‌scene.‌ ‌   

All‌ ‌in‌ ‌all,‌ ‌the‌ ‌reduction‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌amount‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌development‌ ‌on‌ ‌this‌ ‌narrow‌ ‌site‌‌                             
combined‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌reduced‌ ‌scale‌ ‌and‌ ‌massing‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌built‌ ‌form‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌‌                           
dwelling,‌ ‌plus‌ ‌a‌ ‌more‌ ‌dynamic‌ ‌elevation‌ ‌treatment,‌ ‌is‌ ‌considered‌ ‌to‌ ‌satisfactorily‌‌                     
address‌‌the‌‌appeal‌‌Inspector's‌‌previous‌‌concerns,‌‌and‌‌would‌‌not‌‌appear‌‌‘crammed’‌‌                     
or‌ ‌unduly‌ ‌dominant‌ ‌and‌ ‌would‌ ‌integrate‌ ‌sympathetically‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌context‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌                       
established‌ ‌pattern‌ ‌of‌ ‌recent‌ ‌development‌ ‌on‌ ‌this‌ ‌side‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌road.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

Impact‌ ‌on‌ ‌Trees‌ ‌ 

There‌ ‌was‌ ‌previously‌ ‌a‌ ‌line‌ ‌of‌ ‌mature‌ ‌horse‌ ‌chestnut‌ ‌trees‌ ‌growing‌ ‌along‌ ‌the‌‌                         
frontage‌‌of‌‌this‌‌part‌‌of‌‌the‌‌application‌‌site‌‌and‌‌the‌‌adjoining‌‌development‌‌site‌‌to‌‌the‌‌                             
east.‌ ‌The‌ ‌trees,‌ ‌which‌‌were‌‌subject‌‌to‌‌TPOs,‌‌made‌‌a‌‌positive‌‌contribution‌‌to‌‌visual‌‌                           
amenity,‌ ‌screening‌ ‌the‌ ‌railway‌ ‌line‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌rear‌ ‌of‌ ‌buildings‌ ‌on‌ ‌its‌ ‌opposite‌ ‌side.‌‌                           
Consent‌‌was‌‌granted‌‌on‌‌safety‌‌grounds‌‌in‌‌November‌‌2017‌‌under‌‌AWDM/1358/17‌‌to‌‌                       
fell‌ ‌9‌ ‌horse‌ ‌chestnut‌ ‌trees‌ ‌and‌ ‌to‌ ‌undertake‌ ‌reduction‌ ‌works‌ ‌to‌ ‌4‌ ‌other‌ ‌trees.‌ ‌The‌‌                             
consent‌ ‌required‌ ‌a‌ ‌replacement‌ ‌tree‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌planted‌ ‌within‌ ‌2‌ ‌years‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌date‌ ‌of‌‌                             
consent‌ ‌for‌ ‌each‌ ‌felled‌ ‌tree.‌ ‌The‌ ‌tree‌ ‌felling‌ ‌was‌ ‌subsequently‌ ‌carried‌ ‌out‌ ‌but,‌ ‌as‌‌                           
noted‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌comments‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌third‌ ‌party,‌ ‌no‌ ‌replacements‌ ‌have‌ ‌been‌ ‌planted.‌ ‌ 

A‌ ‌further‌ ‌2‌ ‌horse‌ ‌chestnut‌ ‌trees‌ ‌were‌ ‌subsequently‌ ‌felled‌ ‌without‌ ‌consent‌ ‌and‌ ‌1‌‌                         
other‌ ‌tree‌ ‌damaged‌ ‌apparently‌ ‌without‌ ‌the‌ ‌knowledge‌ ‌or‌ ‌consent‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌then‌‌                       
landowner.‌ ‌Given‌ ‌the‌ ‌circumstances‌ ‌it‌ ‌was‌ ‌not‌ ‌considered‌ ‌expedient‌ ‌to‌ ‌pursue‌‌                     
enforcement‌ ‌action‌ ‌in‌ ‌respect‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌unauthorised‌ ‌works.‌ ‌However,‌ ‌the‌ ‌tree‌ ‌loss‌‌                       
was‌‌subsequently‌‌addressed‌‌in‌‌the‌‌development‌‌scheme‌‌allowed‌‌in‌‌March‌‌2019‌‌on‌‌                       
appeal‌ ‌under‌ ‌AWDM/0728/18‌ ‌which‌ ‌included‌ ‌the‌ ‌current‌ ‌application‌ ‌site‌ ‌within‌ ‌its‌‌                     
‘red‌ ‌lined’‌ ‌site‌ ‌area.‌ ‌Condition‌ ‌3‌ ‌of‌ ‌that‌ ‌extant‌ ‌planning‌ ‌permission‌ ‌requires‌ ‌a‌‌                         
landscaping‌ ‌scheme‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌agreed‌ ‌and‌ ‌implemented‌ ‌including‌ ‌the‌ ‌planting‌ ‌of‌ ‌16‌‌                       
trees‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌site.‌ ‌A‌ ‌similar‌ ‌condition‌‌(condition‌‌7)‌‌was‌‌attached‌‌to‌‌the‌‌subsequent‌‌                           
permission‌‌for‌‌a‌‌pair‌‌of‌‌semi-detached‌‌houses‌‌granted‌‌under‌‌AWDM/0072/19‌‌which‌‌                     
included‌ ‌the‌ ‌current‌ ‌application‌ ‌site‌ ‌as‌ ‌land‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌applicant’s‌ ‌control‌ ‌(i.e.‌ ‌land‌‌                         
outlined‌ ‌in‌ ‌‘blue’‌ ‌rather‌ ‌than‌ ‌red).‌ ‌The‌ ‌landscaping‌ ‌strategy‌ ‌approved‌ ‌under‌                     
AWDM/0072/19‌ ‌shows‌ ‌new‌ ‌tree-planting‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌carried‌ ‌out‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌‘red‌ ‌lined’‌‌                       
development‌‌site‌‌area‌‌‌and‌‌the‌‌current‌‌application‌‌site.‌‌The‌‌respective‌‌pieces‌‌of‌‌land‌‌                         
making‌ ‌up‌ ‌the‌ ‌‘red’‌ ‌and‌ ‌‘blue’‌ ‌lined‌ ‌land‌ ‌under‌ ‌AWDM/00728/19‌ ‌are‌ ‌now‌ ‌in‌ ‌2‌‌                           
different‌ ‌ownerships.‌ ‌However,‌ ‌as‌ ‌part‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌current‌ ‌application,‌ ‌the‌ ‌initiative‌ ‌has‌‌                       
been‌‌taken‌‌by‌‌the‌‌applicant‌‌to‌‌liaise‌‌with‌‌the‌‌developer‌‌of‌‌the‌‌adjoining‌‌development‌‌                           
site‌ ‌to‌ ‌formulate‌ ‌a‌ ‌unified‌ ‌strategy‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌replacement‌ ‌tree‌ ‌planting‌‌                       
required‌ ‌by‌ ‌condition‌ ‌7‌ ‌of‌ ‌AWDM/0072/19‌ ‌and‌ ‌to‌ ‌mitigate‌ ‌the‌ ‌tree‌ ‌removal‌‌initially‌‌                         
agreed‌ ‌under‌ ‌AWDM/1358/17.‌ ‌The‌ ‌submitted‌ ‌Tree‌ ‌Plan‌ ‌shows‌ ‌12no‌ ‌trees‌‌planted‌‌                     
within‌ ‌the‌ ‌current‌ ‌application‌ ‌site‌ ‌(and‌ ‌4no‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌adjoining‌ ‌development‌ ‌site).‌‌ ‌  

The‌ ‌Council’s‌ ‌Engineer‌ ‌has‌ ‌questioned‌ ‌the‌ ‌compatibility‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌tree‌‌                     
planting‌ ‌with‌ ‌drainage‌ ‌infrastructure‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌easement‌ ‌zone‌ ‌required‌ ‌by‌ ‌Network‌‌                     
Rail.‌ ‌An‌‌updated‌‌plan‌‌has‌‌been‌‌provided‌‌showing‌‌the‌‌proposed‌‌tree‌‌planting‌‌within‌‌                         

69



‌ 
‌ 

the‌ ‌context‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌‘easement’‌ ‌zones‌ ‌required‌ ‌by‌ ‌Network‌ ‌Rail‌ ‌(to‌ ‌the‌ ‌north)‌ ‌and‌‌                           
Southern‌ ‌Water‌ ‌(to‌ ‌the‌ ‌South)‌ ‌where‌ ‌restrictions‌ ‌over‌ ‌tree‌ ‌planting‌ ‌will‌ ‌apply.‌ ‌The‌‌                         
12no‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌trees‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌application‌ ‌site‌ ‌consist‌ ‌of‌ ‌a‌ ‌mix‌ ‌of‌ ‌Crataegus‌‌                         
laevigata‌ ‌‘Plena’‌ ‌(Hawthorn),‌ ‌Prunus‌ ‌Padus‌ ‌(Bird‌ ‌Cherry),‌ ‌Malus‌ ‌Sylvestris‌ ‌(Crab‌‌                   
Apple),‌ ‌Sorbus‌ ‌Aria‌ ‌‘Lutescens’‌ ‌(Whitebeam)‌ ‌and‌ ‌Malus‌ ‌Domestica‌ ‌M26‌ ‌(dwarf‌‌                   
apple‌‌tree).‌‌All‌‌are‌‌native‌‌small‌‌to‌‌medium‌‌trees‌‌varying‌‌in‌‌height‌‌between‌‌4.5‌‌-‌‌6.0‌‌                               
metres,‌‌except‌‌the‌‌Malus‌‌Domestica‌‌M26‌‌which‌‌would‌‌grow‌‌to‌‌a‌‌maximum‌‌height‌‌of‌‌                           
approximately‌ ‌3.0‌ ‌metres.‌ ‌A‌ ‌Statement‌ ‌and‌ ‌Root‌ ‌Barrier‌ ‌Plan‌ ‌provided‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌‌                       
applicant’s‌ ‌landscape‌ ‌consultant‌ ‌explains‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌Malus‌ ‌Domestica‌ ‌M26‌ ‌shown‌‌                   
along‌‌the‌‌site‌‌frontage‌‌has‌‌a‌‌limited‌‌root‌‌stock‌‌which‌‌could‌‌be‌‌suitably‌‌contained‌‌by‌‌                             
a‌‌properly‌‌installed‌‌root‌‌barrier‌‌without‌‌detriment‌‌to‌‌the‌‌health‌‌of‌‌the‌‌trees.‌‌Although‌‌                           
the‌‌proposed‌‌replacements‌‌would‌‌not‌‌have‌‌the‌‌stature‌‌of‌‌the‌‌former‌‌horse‌‌chestnut‌‌                         
trees‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌site,‌ ‌they‌ ‌would‌ ‌contribute‌ ‌toward‌ ‌biodiversity,‌ ‌providing‌ ‌a‌ ‌source‌ ‌of‌‌                         
pollen‌ ‌and‌ ‌nectar‌ ‌for‌ ‌insects‌ ‌and‌ ‌food‌ ‌and‌ ‌shelter‌ ‌for‌‌a‌‌range‌‌of‌‌birds/wildlife.‌‌The‌‌                             
Council’s‌ ‌Tree‌ ‌and‌ ‌Landscape‌ ‌Officer‌ ‌has‌ ‌raised‌ ‌no‌ ‌objection‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌‌                       
replacement‌ ‌tree‌ ‌planting.‌ ‌However,‌ ‌it‌‌is‌‌considered‌‌important‌‌that‌‌the‌‌area‌‌of‌‌land‌‌                         
at‌ ‌the‌ ‌far‌ ‌western‌ ‌end‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌ ‌is‌ ‌retained‌ ‌as‌ ‌an‌ ‌informal‌ ‌soft‌ ‌landscaped‌ ‌area,‌‌                               
separate‌ ‌from‌ ‌amenity‌ ‌gardens‌ ‌to‌ ‌maximise‌ ‌the‌ ‌biodiversity‌ ‌benefits.‌ ‌ ‌   

Although‌ ‌located‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌adjoining‌ ‌highway‌ ‌land‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌south,‌ ‌the‌ ‌4no‌ ‌existing‌‌                         
TPO‌‌trees‌‌have‌‌root‌‌protection‌‌areas‌‌(RPAs)‌‌and‌‌canopy‌‌encroaching‌‌the‌‌site.‌‌The‌‌                         
submitted‌ ‌Arboricultural‌ ‌Impact‌ ‌Assessment‌ ‌identifies‌ ‌the‌ ‌trees‌ ‌immediately‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌‌                   
south‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌dwelling‌ ‌(T03‌ ‌Sycamore‌ ‌and‌ ‌T04‌ ‌Sycamore)‌ ‌as‌ ‌potentially‌‌                       
being‌‌affected‌‌by‌‌the‌‌development‌‌through‌‌disturbance‌‌to‌‌RPAs‌‌during‌‌construction‌‌                     
or‌‌post‌‌development‌‌pressure‌‌to‌‌prune‌‌or‌‌remove.‌‌Whilst‌‌the‌‌extent‌‌of‌‌incursion‌‌into‌‌                           
the‌‌RPAs‌‌in‌‌no‌‌case‌‌exceeds‌‌the‌‌20%‌‌RPA‌‌limit‌‌of‌‌existing‌‌unmade‌‌land‌‌specified‌‌in‌‌                               
BS5837:2012‌‌for‌‌individual‌‌trees,‌‌the‌‌Assessment‌‌makes‌‌clear‌‌that‌‌excavation‌‌of‌‌the‌‌                       
foundations‌‌and‌‌construction‌‌of‌‌the‌‌footpath‌‌within‌‌the‌‌RPA‌‌of‌‌T03‌‌and‌‌T04‌‌will‌‌need‌‌                             
to‌ ‌be‌ ‌executed‌ ‌with‌ ‌care‌ ‌using‌ ‌manual‌ ‌methods‌ ‌and‌ ‌handheld‌ ‌tools‌ ‌under‌‌                       
arboricultural‌‌supervision,‌‌and‌‌utilising‌‌a‌‌no-dig‌‌construction‌‌method‌‌for‌‌the‌‌footpath,‌‌                     
to‌ ‌minimise‌‌impacts.‌‌The‌‌Assessment‌‌concludes‌‌that‌‌provided‌‌protection‌‌measures‌‌                   
are‌ ‌implemented‌ ‌no‌ ‌significant‌ ‌impacts‌ ‌upon‌ ‌the‌ ‌trees‌ ‌are‌ ‌anticipated.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

The‌ ‌extent‌ ‌of‌ ‌works‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌trees‌ ‌necessary‌ ‌to‌ ‌facilitate‌ ‌the‌ ‌development‌‌                         
would‌ ‌be‌ ‌limited‌ ‌to‌ ‌removal‌ ‌of‌ ‌a‌ ‌broken‌ ‌branch‌ ‌(T02),‌‌removal‌‌of‌‌deadwood‌‌(T03)‌‌                           
and‌ ‌removal‌ ‌of‌ ‌a‌‌dead‌‌stem‌‌(T04)‌‌although‌‌the‌‌frequency‌‌of‌‌tree‌‌works‌‌required‌‌in‌‌                             
the‌ ‌future‌ ‌would‌ ‌likely‌ ‌increase‌ ‌as‌ ‌a‌ ‌result‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌development.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

The‌‌Council’s‌‌Tree‌‌and‌‌Landscape‌‌Officer‌‌initially‌‌raised‌‌concerns‌‌about‌‌the‌‌effect‌‌of‌‌                         
excavations‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌trees,‌ ‌with‌ ‌ground‌ ‌levels‌ ‌lowered‌ ‌across‌ ‌the‌ ‌site.‌ ‌The‌‌                         
latest‌‌Tree‌‌Retention‌‌and‌‌Protection‌‌Plan‌‌shows‌‌the‌‌base‌‌of‌‌the‌‌existing‌‌tree‌‌T04‌‌at‌‌                             
8.17AOD‌ ‌with‌ ‌a‌ ‌1:60‌ ‌gradient‌ ‌applied‌ ‌from‌ ‌this‌ ‌position‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌edge‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌                           
ground-floor‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌dwelling‌ ‌shown‌ ‌as‌ ‌having‌ ‌a‌ ‌finished‌ ‌floor‌ ‌level‌ ‌of‌‌                         
8.46AOD.‌ ‌The‌ ‌Council's‌ ‌Tree‌ ‌and‌ ‌Landscape‌ ‌Officer‌ ‌has‌ ‌since‌ ‌removed‌ ‌his‌‌                     
objection‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌basis‌ ‌of‌ ‌this‌ ‌further‌ ‌information‌ ‌and‌ ‌subject‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌development‌‌                         
being‌ ‌implemented‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌measures‌ ‌shown‌‌on‌‌the‌‌Tree‌‌Retention‌‌                       
and‌‌Protection‌‌Plan‌‌and‌‌described‌‌in‌‌the‌‌Arboricultural‌‌Method‌‌Statement‌‌set‌‌out‌‌in‌‌                         
the‌ ‌Arboricultural‌ ‌Impact‌ ‌Assessment.‌‌ ‌  

‌ 
‌ 

70



‌ 
‌ 

Residential‌ ‌amenity‌ ‌–‌ ‌for‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌dwelling‌ ‌ ‌   

Noise‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌development‌ ‌is‌ ‌close‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌railway‌ ‌track‌ ‌and‌ ‌potential‌ ‌exists‌ ‌for‌ ‌noise‌ ‌and‌‌                           
vibration‌ ‌to‌ ‌affect‌ ‌the‌ ‌amenities‌ ‌of‌ ‌future‌ ‌occupiers.‌ ‌A‌ ‌Transportation‌ ‌Noise‌‌                     
Assessment‌ ‌submitted‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌application‌ ‌assesses‌ ‌the‌ ‌impact‌ ‌of‌ ‌rail‌ ‌noise‌ ‌and‌‌                       
also‌ ‌considers‌ ‌noise‌ ‌levels‌ ‌from‌ ‌Tarring‌ ‌Road.‌ ‌The‌ ‌assessment‌ ‌is‌ ‌based‌ ‌on‌‌                       
reworked‌ ‌rail‌ ‌noise‌ ‌data‌ ‌from‌ ‌an‌ ‌earlier‌ ‌acoustic‌ ‌survey‌ ‌carried‌ ‌out‌ ‌in‌ ‌2010‌ ‌(to‌‌                           
support‌ ‌the‌ ‌applications‌ ‌for‌ ‌development‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌houses‌ ‌on‌ ‌this‌ ‌side‌ ‌of‌‌                         
Tarring‌ ‌Road)‌ ‌together‌ ‌with‌ ‌supplementary‌ ‌noise‌ ‌surveys‌ ‌undertaken‌ ‌in‌ ‌2020‌ ‌and‌‌                     
2021‌ ‌of‌ ‌road‌ ‌traffic‌ ‌and‌ ‌train‌ ‌pass-by‌ ‌events‌ ‌at‌ ‌the‌ ‌site.‌ ‌ ‌   

Calculations‌ ‌show‌ ‌that‌ ‌on‌ ‌all‌ ‌facades‌ ‌(North,‌ ‌East/West‌ ‌and‌ ‌South)‌ ‌daytime‌ ‌and‌‌                       
night‌ ‌time‌ ‌sound‌ ‌levels‌ ‌(dBA)‌ ‌will‌ ‌considerably‌ ‌exceed‌ ‌the‌ ‌internal‌ ‌ambient‌ ‌noise‌‌                       
level‌‌criteria‌‌of‌‌BS8233‌‌for‌‌daytime‌‌(35dB)‌‌and‌‌night‌‌time‌‌(30dB)‌‌periods.‌ ‌However,‌‌                         
the‌ ‌report‌ ‌goes‌ ‌on‌ ‌to‌ ‌conclude‌ ‌that‌ ‌planning‌ ‌permission‌ ‌can‌ ‌be‌ ‌granted‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌‌                           
residential‌ ‌development‌ ‌on‌ ‌noise‌ ‌grounds‌ ‌subject‌ ‌to‌ ‌implementation‌ ‌of‌‌                 
recommended‌ ‌noise‌ ‌mitigation‌ ‌measures‌ ‌including:-‌ ‌ 

● Glazing‌ ‌specifications‌ ‌with‌ ‌sound‌‌reduction‌‌performance‌‌appropriate‌‌to‌‌each‌‌                 
of‌ ‌the‌ ‌facades‌ ‌(North,‌ ‌East/West‌ ‌and‌ ‌South);‌ ‌ 

● Ceilings‌ ‌to‌ ‌top‌ ‌floor‌ ‌rooms‌ ‌particularly‌ ‌bedrooms‌ ‌lined‌ ‌with‌ ‌2‌ ‌x‌ ‌12.5mm‌‌ 
soundbloc‌ ‌board‌ ‌in‌ ‌order‌ ‌to‌ ‌ensure‌ ‌that‌ ‌sound‌ ‌transferring‌ ‌from‌ ‌outside‌ ‌via‌‌ 
the‌ ‌roof/ceiling‌ ‌is‌ ‌attenuated‌ ‌to‌ ‌provide‌ ‌satisfactory‌ ‌internal‌ ‌levels;‌ ‌ 

● Acoustic‌ ‌trickle‌ ‌ventilators‌ ‌which‌ ‌are‌ ‌rated‌ ‌at‌ ‌least‌ ‌DnEW=38dB‌ ‌are‌ ‌fitted‌ ‌to‌‌ 
the‌ ‌worst‌ ‌affected‌ ‌windows‌ ‌(or‌ ‌an‌ ‌attenuated‌ ‌ventilator‌ ‌fitted‌ ‌through‌ ‌the‌‌ 
external‌ ‌wall‌ ‌DnEW‌ ‌also‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌at‌ ‌least‌ ‌38dB).‌ ‌This‌ ‌could‌ ‌be‌ ‌combined‌ ‌with‌‌ 
the‌ ‌use‌ ‌of‌ ‌a‌ ‌mechanical‌ ‌extract‌ ‌system‌ ‌serving‌ ‌the‌ ‌habitable‌ ‌rooms‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌‌ 
make-up‌ ‌air‌ ‌being‌ ‌drawn‌ ‌through‌ ‌the‌ ‌attenuated‌ ‌ventilators‌ ‌so‌ ‌that‌‌ 
background‌ ‌ventilation‌ ‌could‌ ‌be‌ ‌provided‌ ‌without‌ ‌allowing‌ ‌the‌ ‌ingress‌ ‌of‌‌ 
excessive‌ ‌transportation‌ ‌noise‌ ‌levels.‌ ‌An‌ ‌open‌ ‌window‌ ‌would‌ ‌allow‌ ‌for‌ ‌pure‌‌ 
ventilation‌ ‌at‌ ‌the‌ ‌discretion‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌occupant‌ ‌(with‌ ‌knowledge‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌sound‌‌ 
levels‌ ‌would‌ ‌increase‌ ‌beyond‌ ‌the‌ ‌guideline‌ ‌criteria).‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌World‌ ‌Health‌ ‌Organisation‌ ‌(WHO)‌ ‌states‌ ‌with‌ ‌regard‌ ‌to‌ ‌outdoor‌ ‌amenity‌ ‌areas‌‌ 
that‌ ‌to‌ ‌protect‌ ‌the‌ ‌majority‌ ‌of‌ ‌people‌ ‌from‌ ‌being‌ ‌‘seriously‌ ‌annoyed’‌ ‌during‌ ‌the‌‌ 
daytime,‌ ‌the‌ ‌outdoor‌ ‌sound‌ ‌level‌ ‌from‌ ‌steady,‌ ‌continuous‌ ‌noise‌ ‌should‌ ‌not‌ ‌exceed‌‌ 
55dB(A)‌ ‌on‌ ‌balconies,‌ ‌terraces‌ ‌and‌ ‌in‌ ‌outdoor‌ ‌living‌ ‌areas;‌ ‌and‌ ‌to‌ ‌protect‌ ‌the‌‌ 
majority‌ ‌of‌ ‌people‌ ‌from‌ ‌being‌ ‌‘moderately‌ ‌annoyed’‌ ‌should‌ ‌not‌ ‌exceed‌ ‌50dB(A).‌‌ 
Without‌ ‌a‌ ‌noise‌ ‌fence‌ ‌the‌ ‌data‌ ‌shows‌ ‌the‌ ‌rail‌ ‌noise‌ ‌level‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌gardens‌ ‌will‌ ‌be‌ ‌up‌ ‌to‌‌ 
Leq,16hrs‌ ‌61dB(A)‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌daytime‌ ‌period,‌ ‌but‌ ‌noise‌ ‌levels‌ ‌will‌ ‌be‌ ‌reduced‌ ‌by‌ ‌5-10dB‌‌ 
if‌ ‌a‌ ‌2‌ ‌metre‌ ‌high‌ ‌noise‌ ‌fence‌ ‌is‌ ‌built‌ ‌close‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌noise‌ ‌source‌ ‌and‌ ‌receiver.‌‌ ‌  

The‌‌Council’s‌‌EHO‌‌made‌‌a‌‌number‌‌of‌‌detailed‌‌comments‌‌on‌‌the‌‌methodology‌‌of‌‌the‌‌                           
assessment‌ ‌and‌ ‌conclusions‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌submitted‌ ‌report‌ ‌to‌ ‌which‌ ‌the‌ ‌Applicant’s‌‌                     
acoustician‌‌has‌‌responded.‌‌Specifically,‌‌the‌‌acoustician‌‌has‌‌responded‌‌to‌‌state‌‌that‌‌                     
although‌‌the‌‌assessment‌‌was‌‌carried‌‌out‌‌during‌‌the‌‌COVID‌‌pandemic‌‌the‌‌number‌‌of‌‌                         
trains‌ ‌was‌ ‌no‌‌longer‌‌limited‌‌at‌‌this‌‌time‌‌because‌‌of‌‌Key‌‌Worker‌‌travel.‌‌The‌‌number‌‌                             
of‌‌trains‌‌exceeded‌‌those‌‌in‌‌the‌‌timetable‌‌used‌‌for‌‌the‌‌2018‌‌transport‌‌assessment‌‌in‌‌                           
relation‌‌to‌‌the‌‌adjoining‌‌development‌‌site‌‌and‌‌reported‌‌sound‌‌levels‌‌to‌‌be‌‌equivalent‌‌                         

71



‌ 
‌ 

(and‌ ‌3dB‌ ‌higher‌ ‌at‌ ‌the‌ ‌façade‌ ‌of‌‌the‌‌proposed‌‌new‌‌development).‌‌It‌‌is‌‌argued‌‌that‌‌                             
noise‌ ‌modelling‌ ‌is‌ ‌not‌ ‌normally‌ ‌required‌ ‌for‌ ‌small‌ ‌and‌‌simple‌‌sites‌‌where‌‌data‌‌can‌‌                           
be‌‌easily‌‌calculated‌‌using‌‌basic‌‌acoustic‌‌principles‌‌of‌‌distance‌‌attenuation‌‌and‌‌angle‌‌                       
or‌ ‌view‌ ‌correction,‌ ‌plus‌ ‌summing‌ ‌of‌ ‌sound‌ ‌sources‌ ‌from‌ ‌road‌ ‌and‌ ‌rail.‌ ‌It‌ ‌is‌ ‌stated‌‌                             
that‌ ‌this‌ ‌site‌ ‌is‌ ‌‘practically‌ ‌the‌ ‌same’‌ ‌as‌ ‌the‌ ‌adjacent‌ ‌site‌ ‌which‌ ‌received‌ ‌planning‌‌                           
permission‌ ‌and‌ ‌where‌ ‌no‌ ‌noise‌ ‌modelling‌ ‌was‌ ‌needed.‌ ‌Further‌ ‌justification‌ ‌is‌‌                     
provided‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌use‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Shortened-Form‌ ‌measurement‌ ‌of‌ ‌road‌ ‌traffic‌ ‌noise‌‌                       
(CRTN)‌ ‌as‌ ‌it‌ ‌supplements‌ ‌other‌ ‌data‌ ‌provided‌ ‌for‌ ‌adjacent‌ ‌sites.‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌applicant’s‌ ‌acoustician‌ ‌remains‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌view‌ ‌that‌ ‌MVHR‌ ‌is‌ ‌not‌ ‌required‌‌                       
commenting‌ ‌that‌ ‌acoustic‌ ‌trickle‌ ‌vents‌ ‌have‌ ‌improved‌ ‌dramatically‌ ‌in‌ ‌recent‌ ‌years‌‌                     
and‌ ‌that‌ ‌this‌‌type‌‌of‌‌natural‌‌ventilation,‌‌or‌‌the‌‌alternative‌‌of‌‌attenuated‌‌through-wall‌‌                         
ventilators,‌ ‌also‌ ‌a‌ ‌form‌ ‌of‌ ‌natural‌ ‌ventilation,‌ ‌is‌ ‌appropriate‌ ‌for‌ ‌this‌ ‌site.‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌Council’s‌ ‌EHO‌ ‌has‌ ‌accepted‌ ‌the‌ ‌further‌ ‌explanation‌ ‌and‌ ‌comments‌ ‌of‌‌                     
applicant’s‌ ‌acoustician‌ ‌and‌ ‌has‌ ‌raised‌ ‌no‌ ‌objection‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposals,‌ ‌subject‌ ‌to‌‌                       
conditions‌ ‌requiring‌ ‌the‌ ‌recommendations‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Transport‌ ‌Noise‌ ‌Report‌ ‌being‌‌                   
implemented‌‌and‌‌details‌‌of‌‌the‌‌mechanical‌‌extract‌‌ventilation‌‌system‌‌and‌‌attenuated‌‌                     
through-wall‌ ‌ventilators‌ ‌being‌ ‌submitted‌ ‌for‌ ‌approval.‌ ‌The‌ ‌wording‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌                   
recommended‌‌conditions‌‌also‌‌requires‌‌that‌‌a‌‌test‌‌be‌‌carried‌‌out‌‌following‌‌completion‌‌                       
to‌ ‌demonstrate‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌attenuation‌ ‌measures‌ ‌are‌ ‌effective‌ ‌in‌ ‌protecting‌ ‌the‌ ‌new‌‌                       
dwelling‌ ‌from‌ ‌noise.‌ ‌ ‌   

Internal‌ ‌and‌ ‌External‌ ‌Space‌ ‌Standards‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌dwelling‌ ‌would‌ ‌have‌ ‌a‌ ‌gross‌ ‌internal‌ ‌floor‌ ‌area‌ ‌of‌ ‌115sqm‌ ‌which‌ ‌exceeds‌ ‌the‌‌                           
Council’s‌ ‌adopted‌ ‌minimum‌ ‌standard‌ ‌of‌ ‌93sqm‌ ‌for‌ ‌a‌ ‌3-bedroom‌ ‌house.‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌submitted‌ ‌drawings‌ ‌show‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌dwelling‌ ‌with‌‌garden‌‌areas‌‌to‌‌the‌‌east‌ ‌                         
(approximately‌‌12‌‌metres‌‌long‌‌by‌‌4.7‌‌metres‌‌wide)‌‌and‌‌west‌‌(21‌‌metres‌‌long‌‌by‌‌4.5‌‌                             
metres‌ ‌wide)‌ ‌totaling‌ ‌146sqm‌ ‌(not‌ ‌including‌ ‌the‌ ‌westernmost‌ ‌area‌ ‌retained‌ ‌for‌‌                     
informal‌‌landscaping)‌‌which‌‌exceeds‌‌the‌‌Council’s‌‌minimum‌‌standard‌‌of‌‌100sqm‌‌for‌‌                     
a‌ ‌detached‌ ‌3-bedroom‌ ‌dwelling.‌ ‌However,‌ ‌an‌ ‌acoustic‌ ‌fence‌ ‌built‌ ‌around‌ ‌the‌‌                     
gardens‌ ‌as‌ ‌specified‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌Transport‌ ‌Noise‌ ‌report‌ ‌will‌ ‌be‌ ‌essential‌ ‌to‌ ‌ensure‌‌                         
satisfactory‌ ‌standard‌ ‌of‌ ‌amenity‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌garden‌ ‌areas.‌ ‌ 

Residential‌ ‌amenity‌ ‌–‌ ‌effect‌ ‌on‌ ‌existing‌ ‌dwellings‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌most‌ ‌affected‌ ‌neighbour‌ ‌is‌ ‌98‌ ‌Ripley‌ ‌Road,‌ ‌an‌ ‌end-of-terrace‌ ‌infill‌ ‌dwelling‌‌                       
dating‌ ‌from‌ ‌c.2010‌ ‌occupying‌ ‌a‌ ‌corner‌ ‌plot‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌opposite‌ ‌(south)‌ ‌side‌ ‌of‌ ‌Tarring‌‌                           
Road.‌‌The‌‌dwelling‌‌is‌‌sited‌‌at‌‌an‌‌angle‌‌to‌‌Tarring‌‌Road‌‌with‌‌its‌‌main‌‌front‌‌elevation‌‌                               
facing‌ ‌north-west.‌ ‌Ground‌ ‌and‌ ‌first-floor‌ ‌windows‌ ‌(and‌ ‌the‌ ‌balcony)‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌main‌‌                       
south‌ ‌elevation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌dwelling‌ ‌would‌ ‌face‌ ‌toward‌ ‌the‌ ‌front‌ ‌and‌ ‌side‌‌                         
elevations‌ ‌of‌ ‌No.98‌ ‌at‌ ‌a‌ ‌minimum‌ ‌distance‌ ‌of‌ ‌15‌ ‌metres‌ ‌across‌ ‌Tarring‌ ‌Road.‌‌                         
Planning‌ ‌records‌ ‌indicate‌ ‌the‌ ‌ground-floor‌ ‌of‌ ‌No.98‌ ‌consists‌ ‌of‌ ‌an‌ ‌integral‌ ‌garage‌‌                       
with‌ ‌living/kitchen‌ ‌area‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌first-floor‌ ‌and‌ ‌bedroom‌ ‌accommodation‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌‌                     
roofspace.‌ ‌The‌ ‌main‌ ‌living‌ ‌room‌ ‌window‌ ‌faces‌ ‌northwest‌ ‌onto‌ ‌Ripley‌ ‌Road‌ ‌with‌‌                       
secondary‌‌windows‌‌in‌‌the‌‌first-floor‌‌side‌‌elevation‌‌(north-east).‌‌Taking‌‌account‌‌of‌‌the‌‌                       
angled‌ ‌siting‌ ‌of‌ ‌No.98‌ ‌in‌‌relation‌‌to‌‌the‌‌front‌‌of‌‌the‌‌proposed‌‌dwelling‌‌it‌‌considered‌‌                             
the‌ ‌impact‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌amenities‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌occupier‌ ‌in‌ ‌terms‌ ‌of‌ ‌overlooking‌ ‌would‌ ‌not‌ ‌be‌‌                             
unacceptably‌ ‌intrusive.‌‌ ‌  

72



‌ 
‌ 

Accessibility‌ ‌and‌ ‌parking‌ ‌ 

The‌‌plans‌‌show‌‌the‌‌provision‌‌of‌‌a‌‌new‌‌5.5m‌‌wide‌‌vehicle‌‌access‌‌at‌‌the‌‌eastern‌‌end‌‌                               
of‌‌the‌‌site,‌‌with‌‌2‌‌open‌‌parking‌‌bays.‌‌A‌‌pedestrian‌‌access‌‌from‌‌Tarring‌‌Road‌‌aligns‌‌                             
with‌‌the‌‌main‌‌front‌‌entrance‌‌with‌‌a‌‌further‌‌pathway‌‌running‌‌parallel‌‌to‌‌the‌‌front‌‌of‌‌the‌‌                               
house‌‌linking‌‌the‌‌parking‌‌spaces‌‌and‌‌side‌‌gardens.‌ ‌A‌‌new‌‌section‌‌of‌‌tactile‌‌paving‌‌                           
is‌ ‌shown‌ ‌in‌ ‌front‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌pedestrian‌‌access‌‌within‌‌the‌‌highway‌‌land‌‌on‌‌both‌‌sides‌‌of‌‌                               
Tarring‌ ‌Road.‌‌ ‌  

Although‌ ‌the‌ ‌parking‌ ‌demand‌ ‌calculator‌ ‌indicates‌ ‌provision‌ ‌for‌ ‌3‌ ‌on-site‌ ‌parking‌‌                     
spaces‌ ‌to‌‌serve‌‌the‌‌proposed‌‌3-bedroom‌‌dwellings‌‌no‌‌objection‌‌to‌‌the‌‌shortfall‌‌has‌‌                         
been‌‌raised‌‌by‌‌the‌‌LHA‌‌on‌‌highway‌‌safety‌‌grounds.‌‌There‌‌is‌‌capacity‌‌for‌‌visitors‌‌to‌‌                             
park‌ ‌on-street‌ ‌in‌ ‌nearby‌ ‌residential‌ ‌roads.‌‌ ‌  

The‌ ‌site‌ ‌is‌ ‌within‌ ‌a‌ ‌highly‌ ‌sustainable‌ ‌location‌ ‌within‌ ‌walking‌ ‌distance‌ ‌of‌ ‌West‌‌                         
Worthing‌ ‌rail‌ ‌station‌ ‌and‌ ‌bus‌ ‌routes‌ ‌further‌ ‌east‌ ‌along‌ ‌Tarring‌ ‌Road‌ ‌and‌ ‌South‌‌                         
Street,‌ ‌and‌ ‌is‌ ‌accessible‌ ‌to‌ ‌a‌ ‌range‌ ‌of‌ ‌shops‌ ‌and‌ ‌local‌ ‌facilities/services‌ ‌within‌‌                         
Tarring‌ ‌Road‌ ‌Neighbourhood‌ ‌shopping‌ ‌centre.‌‌ ‌  

Provision‌ ‌for‌ ‌secure,‌ ‌covered‌ ‌cycle‌ ‌storage‌ ‌is‌ ‌shown‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌eastern‌ ‌side‌ ‌garden.‌ ‌ 

Although‌ ‌the‌ ‌latest‌ ‌plans‌‌still‌‌do‌‌not‌‌show‌‌the‌‌visibility‌‌splay‌‌at‌‌the‌‌new‌‌vehicle‌‌site‌‌                               
access‌ ‌the‌ ‌LHA‌ ‌has‌ ‌not‌ ‌raised‌ ‌any‌ ‌objection,‌ ‌commenting‌ ‌that‌ ‌Tarring‌ ‌Road‌ ‌has‌‌                         
good‌ ‌visibility‌‌in‌‌both‌‌directions‌‌that‌‌would‌‌allow‌‌oncoming‌‌drivers‌‌in‌‌both‌‌directions‌‌                         
to‌ ‌see‌ ‌a‌ ‌vehicle‌ ‌waiting‌ ‌to‌ ‌exit‌ ‌the‌ ‌driveway.‌ ‌On‌ ‌the‌ ‌specific‌ ‌issue‌ ‌of‌ ‌whether‌ ‌the‌‌                               
position‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌trees‌ ‌T03‌ ‌and‌ ‌T04‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌highway‌ ‌land‌ ‌would‌ ‌impact‌‌                           
visibility‌ ‌at‌ ‌the‌‌access,‌‌the‌‌Highway‌‌Officer‌‌does‌‌not‌‌consider‌‌the‌‌trees‌‌would‌‌need‌‌                           
to‌‌be‌‌removed,‌‌commenting:‌‌“‌....the‌‌trees‌‌do‌‌fall‌‌within‌‌the‌‌splay,‌‌but‌‌it‌‌does‌‌appear‌‌                             
that‌‌a‌‌driver‌‌would‌‌be‌‌able‌‌to‌‌see‌‌both‌‌behind‌‌and‌‌between‌‌the‌‌two‌‌trees.‌‌Manual‌‌for‌‌                                 
Streets‌ ‌paragraph‌ ‌7.8.6‌ ‌states‌ ‌that‌ ‌‌‘The‌ ‌impact‌ ‌of‌ ‌other‌ ‌obstacles,‌ ‌such‌ ‌as‌ ‌street‌‌                         
trees‌‌and‌‌street‌‌lighting‌‌columns,‌‌should‌‌be‌‌assessed‌‌in‌‌terms‌‌of‌‌their‌‌impact‌‌on‌‌the‌‌                             
overall‌‌envelope‌‌of‌‌visibility.‌‌In‌‌general,‌‌occasional‌‌obstacles‌‌to‌‌visibility‌‌that‌‌are‌‌not‌‌                         
large‌ ‌enough‌ ‌to‌ ‌fully‌ ‌obscure‌ ‌a‌ ‌whole‌ ‌vehicle‌ ‌or‌ ‌a‌ ‌pedestrian,‌ ‌including‌ ‌a‌ ‌child‌ ‌or‌‌                             
wheelchair‌ ‌user,‌ ‌will‌ ‌not‌ ‌have‌ ‌a‌ ‌significant‌ ‌impact‌ ‌on‌ ‌road‌ ‌safety”.‌‌ ‌  

Sustainability‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

The‌ ‌main‌ ‌sustainability‌ ‌features‌ ‌include‌ ‌a‌ ‌planted‌ ‌green‌ ‌‘meadow‌ ‌roof’‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌‌                       
primary‌‌roof‌‌to‌‌assist‌‌with‌‌rainwater‌‌run-off‌‌rates‌‌and‌‌also‌‌to‌‌encourage‌‌biodiversity.‌‌                         
Other‌ ‌biodiversity‌ ‌measures‌ ‌(in‌ ‌addition‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌tree‌ ‌planting‌ ‌described‌ ‌above)‌ ‌to‌‌                       
include‌ ‌provision‌ ‌of‌ ‌bat‌ ‌and‌ ‌bird‌ ‌boxes/bricks‌ ‌can‌ ‌be‌ ‌secured‌ ‌as‌ ‌a‌ ‌condition‌ ‌of‌‌                           
planning‌ ‌permission.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

The‌ ‌Design‌ ‌&‌ ‌Access‌ ‌Statement‌ ‌states‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌dwelling‌ ‌will‌ ‌have‌ ‌a‌ ‌condensing‌‌                         
combination‌‌boiler‌‌together‌‌with‌‌‘high‌‌insulation‌‌standards’.‌‌As‌‌no‌‌details‌‌have‌‌been‌‌                       
provided‌ ‌it‌ ‌can‌ ‌be‌ ‌assumed‌ ‌that‌ ‌this‌ ‌would‌ ‌not‌ ‌be‌ ‌to‌ ‌a‌‌higher‌‌specification‌‌than‌‌is‌‌                               
required‌ ‌by‌ ‌current‌ ‌building‌ ‌regulations.‌ ‌It‌ ‌is‌ ‌stated‌ ‌that‌ ‌dual‌‌flush‌‌toilets‌‌and‌‌flow‌‌                           
restrictor‌ ‌taps‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌provided‌ ‌to‌ ‌bathroom‌ ‌areas.‌ ‌ ‌   
‌ 

73



‌ 
‌ 

The‌‌Applicant‌‌has‌‌agreed‌‌to‌‌provide‌‌an‌‌EV‌‌charger‌‌positioned‌‌centrally‌‌between‌‌the‌‌                         
2‌ ‌parking‌ ‌bays‌ ‌which‌ ‌would‌‌enable‌‌them‌‌both‌‌to‌‌be‌‌active‌‌EV‌‌spaces.‌‌The‌‌precise‌‌                             
details‌ ‌can‌ ‌be‌ ‌secured‌ ‌as‌ ‌a‌ ‌condition‌ ‌of‌ ‌planning‌ ‌permission.‌ ‌ ‌   
‌ 

CIL‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌development‌ ‌is‌ ‌eligible‌ ‌for‌ ‌CIL‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌revised‌‌                       
charging‌ ‌rate.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Conclusion‌ 
‌ 

It‌ ‌is‌ ‌considered‌ ‌that‌ ‌these‌ ‌revised‌ ‌proposals‌ ‌involving‌ ‌a‌ ‌reduction‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌overall‌‌                         
amount‌‌of‌‌development‌‌on‌‌this‌‌site,‌‌together‌‌with‌‌revisions‌‌to‌‌the‌‌form,‌‌massing‌‌and‌‌                           
detailed‌ ‌design‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌dwelling,‌ ‌and‌ ‌a‌ ‌comprehensive‌‌assessment‌‌of‌‌the‌                       
impacts‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposals‌ ‌on‌ ‌existing‌ ‌trees‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌feasibility‌ ‌of‌ ‌replacement‌ ‌tree‌‌                         
planting‌ ‌on‌ ‌this‌ ‌site‌ ‌(and‌ ‌the‌‌neighbouring‌‌development‌‌site‌‌to‌‌the‌‌east)‌‌necessary‌‌                         
to‌ ‌mitigate‌ ‌the‌ ‌previous‌ ‌tree‌ ‌removal;‌ ‌has‌ ‌satisfactorily‌ ‌addressed‌ ‌the‌ ‌reasons‌ ‌for‌‌                       
refusing‌ ‌the‌ ‌earlier‌ ‌proposals‌ ‌for‌ ‌2no‌ ‌dwellings‌ ‌on‌ ‌this‌ ‌site‌ ‌(under‌ ‌AWDM/0106/21‌‌                       
and‌ ‌AWDM/1149/19)‌ ‌and‌ ‌would‌ ‌make‌ ‌a‌ ‌welcome‌ ‌addition‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌supply‌ ‌of‌ ‌family‌‌                         
housing.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

Recommendation‌ ‌ 
‌ 

It‌‌is‌‌recommended‌‌that‌‌planning‌‌permission‌‌be‌‌APPROVED‌,‌‌subject‌‌to‌‌the‌‌following‌‌                       
conditions:-‌ ‌ 

‌ ‌   
1. Approved‌ ‌plans‌ ‌ 
2. Standard‌ ‌3yr‌ ‌time‌ ‌limit‌ ‌ 
3.  ‌‌Agree‌ ‌material‌ ‌schedule‌ ‌and‌ ‌samples‌ ‌(including‌ ‌windows‌ ‌and‌ ‌doors)‌ ‌ 
4.  ‌‌Agree‌ ‌hard‌ ‌surfacing‌ ‌details.‌ ‌ 
5. Implement‌ ‌tree‌ ‌protection‌ ‌measures‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌Arboriculture‌‌                 

Method‌ ‌Statement‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌submitted‌ ‌Arboricultural‌ ‌Impact‌ ‌Assessment‌‌               
Report‌ ‌LLD2181-ARB-REP-001‌ ‌Rev‌ ‌01)‌ ‌and‌ ‌shown‌ ‌on‌ ‌Tree‌ ‌Retention‌ ‌and‌‌                   
Protection‌ ‌Plan‌ ‌LLD2473-ARB-DWG-002‌ ‌Rev‌ ‌01‌ ‌with‌ ‌Arboricultural‌‌             
Supervision‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌ ‌excavations.‌‌ ‌  

6. Agree‌‌and‌‌implement‌‌a‌‌soft‌‌landscaping‌‌scheme‌‌to‌‌include‌‌new‌‌tree‌‌planting‌‌                       
within‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌ ‌shown‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌Tree‌ ‌Layout‌ ‌Plan‌ ‌LLD2473-LAN-SKE-001‌ ‌and‌‌                     
the‌ ‌westernmost‌ ‌part‌ ‌of‌ ‌site‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌retained‌ ‌as‌ ‌an‌ ‌informally‌ ‌landscaped‌ ‌area.‌ ‌ 

7. Construction‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌development‌ ‌shall‌ ‌not‌ ‌commence‌ ‌until‌ ‌details‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌                     
proposed‌ ‌means‌ ‌of‌ ‌foul‌ ‌water‌ ‌sewerage‌ ‌and‌ ‌surface‌ ‌water‌ ‌disposal‌ ‌have‌‌                     
been‌‌submitted‌‌to,‌‌and‌‌approved‌‌in‌‌writing‌‌by,‌‌the‌‌Local‌‌Planning‌‌Authority‌‌in‌‌                         
consultation‌ ‌with‌ ‌Southern‌ ‌Water.‌ ‌ 

8. Development‌‌works‌‌shall‌‌not‌‌commence,‌‌other‌‌than‌‌works‌‌of‌‌site‌‌survey‌‌and‌‌                       
investigation,‌‌until‌‌full‌‌details‌‌of‌‌the‌‌proposed‌‌surface‌‌water‌‌drainage‌‌scheme‌‌                     
have‌ ‌been‌ ‌submitted‌ ‌to‌ ‌and‌ ‌approved‌ ‌in‌ ‌writing‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Planning‌‌                       
Authority‌ ‌in‌ ‌consultation‌ ‌with‌ ‌Southern‌ ‌Water.‌ ‌The‌ ‌design‌ ‌should‌ ‌follow‌ ‌the‌‌                     
hierarchy‌ ‌of‌ ‌preference‌ ‌for‌‌different‌‌types‌‌of‌‌surface‌‌water‌‌drainage‌‌disposal‌‌                     
systems‌‌as‌‌set‌‌out‌‌in‌‌Approved‌‌Document‌‌H‌‌of‌‌the‌‌Building‌‌Regulations,‌‌and‌‌                         
the‌ ‌recommendations‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌SuDS‌ ‌Manual‌ ‌produced‌ ‌by‌ ‌CIRIA.‌ ‌Winter‌‌                   
groundwater‌ ‌monitoring‌ ‌to‌ ‌establish‌ ‌highest‌ ‌annual‌ ‌ground‌ ‌water‌ ‌levels‌‌and‌‌                   

74



‌ 
‌ 

winter‌ ‌infiltration‌ ‌testing‌ ‌to‌‌BRE‌‌DG365,‌‌or‌‌similar‌‌approved,‌‌will‌‌be‌‌required‌‌                       
to‌ ‌support‌ ‌the‌‌design‌‌of‌‌any‌‌Infiltration‌‌drainage.‌‌No‌‌building‌‌/‌‌No‌‌part‌‌of‌‌the‌‌                             
extended‌‌building‌‌shall‌‌be‌‌occupied‌‌until‌‌the‌‌complete‌‌surface‌‌water‌‌drainage‌‌                     
system‌ ‌serving‌ ‌the‌ ‌property‌ ‌has‌ ‌been‌ ‌implemented‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌‌                     
agreed‌‌details‌‌and‌‌the‌‌details‌‌so‌‌agreed‌‌shall‌‌be‌‌maintained‌‌in‌‌good‌‌working‌‌                         
order‌ ‌in‌ ‌perpetuity.‌ ‌ 

9. The‌‌development‌‌hereby‌‌permitted‌‌shall‌‌be‌‌carried‌‌out‌‌in‌‌full‌‌accordance‌‌with‌‌                       
the‌ ‌recommendations‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌‌Transportation‌ ‌Noise‌ ‌Assessment‌ ‌(Residential‌‌               
Development)‌‌(Date:‌‌16‌‌August‌‌2021‌‌–‌‌Issue‌‌2‌‌Project:‌‌J3076)‌‌‌and‌‌all‌‌works‌‌                         
which‌ ‌form‌ ‌part‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌approved‌ ‌scheme‌ ‌shall‌ ‌be‌ ‌completed‌ ‌before‌ ‌the‌‌                       
permitted‌ ‌dwelling‌ ‌is‌ ‌occupied.‌ ‌Following‌ ‌completion‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌scheme,‌ ‌a‌ ‌test‌‌                     
shall‌ ‌be‌ ‌undertaken‌ ‌to‌ ‌demonstrate‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌‌attenuation‌‌measures‌‌proposed‌‌                   
in‌ ‌the‌ ‌scheme‌ ‌are‌ ‌effective‌ ‌and‌ ‌protect‌ ‌the‌ ‌residential‌ ‌unit‌ ‌from‌ ‌noise.‌ ‌ 

10. No‌‌dwelling‌‌shall‌‌be‌‌occupied‌‌unless‌‌and‌‌until‌‌the‌‌acoustic‌‌fence‌‌specified‌‌in‌‌                         
section‌ ‌7.6‌ ‌of‌ ‌Transportation‌ ‌Noise‌ ‌Assessment‌ ‌(Residential‌ ‌Development)‌‌               
(Date:‌‌16‌‌August‌‌2021‌‌–‌‌Issue‌‌2‌‌Project:‌‌J3076)‌‌has‌‌been‌‌erected‌‌around‌‌the‌‌                           
gardens‌ ‌and‌ ‌amenity‌ ‌area‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌development‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌‌with‌‌                     
details‌‌of‌‌its‌‌siting‌‌to‌‌be‌‌submitted‌‌and‌‌agreed‌‌in‌‌writing‌‌by‌‌the‌‌Local‌‌Planning‌‌                             
Authority.‌ ‌ 

11. Construction‌ ‌work‌ ‌shall‌ ‌not‌‌commence‌‌until‌‌details‌‌(including‌‌a‌‌location‌‌plan‌‌                     
of‌ ‌ductwork‌ ‌and‌‌ventilators)‌‌of‌‌the‌‌mechanical‌‌extract‌‌ventilation‌‌system‌‌and‌‌                     
attenuated‌ ‌through‌ ‌wall‌ ‌ventilators‌ ‌have‌ ‌been‌ ‌submitted‌ ‌and‌ ‌approved.‌ ‌The‌‌                   
mechanical‌ ‌extract‌ ‌ventilation‌‌should‌‌have‌‌a‌‌boost‌‌function,‌‌ductwork‌‌should‌‌                   
be‌‌fitted‌‌on‌‌anti-vibration‌‌mounts‌‌and‌‌internal‌‌noise‌‌levels‌‌of‌‌the‌‌system‌‌when‌‌                         
in‌ ‌operation‌ ‌should‌ ‌not‌ ‌exceed‌ ‌guidelines‌ ‌levels‌ ‌specified‌ ‌in‌ ‌BS8233:2014.‌‌ ‌  

12. No‌ ‌part‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌development‌ ‌shall‌ ‌be‌ ‌first‌ ‌occupied‌ ‌until‌ ‌covered‌ ‌and‌‌secure‌‌                         
cycle‌ ‌parking‌ ‌spaces‌ ‌have‌ ‌been‌ ‌provided‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌approved‌‌                     
plan.‌ ‌ 

13. No‌ ‌part‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌development‌ ‌shall‌ ‌be‌ ‌first‌ ‌occupied‌ ‌until‌ ‌such‌ ‌time‌ ‌as‌ ‌the‌‌                           
vehicular‌ ‌and‌ ‌pedestrian‌ ‌accesses‌ ‌serving‌ ‌the‌ ‌development‌ ‌have‌ ‌been‌‌                 
constructed‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌details‌ ‌shown‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌drawing‌ ‌titled‌ ‌Site‌‌                       
Plan‌ ‌and‌ ‌Location‌ ‌Plan‌ ‌numbered‌ ‌010‌ ‌Rev‌ ‌B.‌ ‌ 

14. No‌ ‌part‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌development‌ ‌shall‌ ‌be‌ ‌first‌ ‌occupied‌ ‌until‌ ‌the‌ ‌car‌ ‌parking‌ ‌has‌‌                           
been‌ ‌constructed‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌approved‌ ‌Site‌ ‌Plan.‌ ‌These‌‌spaces‌‌                     
shall‌ ‌thereafter‌ ‌be‌ ‌retained‌ ‌at‌ ‌all‌ ‌times‌ ‌for‌ ‌their‌ ‌designated‌ ‌purpose.‌ ‌ 

15. Development‌ ‌works‌ ‌shall‌ ‌not‌ ‌commence‌ ‌unless‌ ‌and‌ ‌until‌ ‌a‌ ‌Construction‌‌                   
Method‌ ‌Statement‌ ‌and‌ ‌Plan‌ ‌(including‌ ‌dust‌ ‌protection‌ ‌measures)‌ ‌has‌ ‌been‌‌                   
agreed‌ ‌and‌ ‌implemented‌ ‌ 

16. Development‌ ‌works‌ ‌shall‌ ‌not‌ ‌commence‌ ‌unless‌ ‌and‌ ‌until‌ ‌potential‌ ‌site‌‌                   
contamination‌ ‌has‌ ‌been‌ ‌investigated‌ ‌and‌ ‌remediated.‌ ‌ 

17. Control‌‌hours‌‌of‌‌construction‌‌Monday‌‌-‌‌Friday‌‌08:00‌‌-‌‌18:00‌‌Hours;‌‌Saturdays‌‌                       
09:00‌ ‌-‌ ‌13:00‌ ‌Hours;‌ ‌No‌ ‌work‌ ‌permitted‌ ‌on‌ ‌Sundays,‌ ‌Public‌ ‌or‌ ‌Bank‌ ‌Holidays.‌ ‌ 

18. No‌ ‌part‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌development‌ ‌shall‌ ‌be‌ ‌first‌ ‌occupied‌ ‌until‌ ‌the‌ ‌Electric‌ ‌Vehicle‌‌                         
parking‌ ‌spaces‌ ‌have‌ ‌been‌ ‌provided‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with‌ ‌plans‌ ‌and‌ ‌details‌‌to‌‌                       
be‌ ‌submitted‌ ‌to‌ ‌and‌ ‌approved‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌ ‌local‌ ‌planning‌ ‌authority.‌ ‌ 

19. Development‌ ‌works‌ ‌shall‌‌not‌‌commence‌‌unless‌‌and‌‌unit‌‌construction‌‌design‌‌                   
details‌‌of‌‌the‌‌proposed‌‌parapet‌‌walls,‌‌‘meadow‌‌roof’,‌‌balcony‌‌balustrade‌‌and‌‌                     
fixings,‌ ‌dormer‌ ‌windows,‌ ‌cantilevered‌ ‌porch,‌ ‌brick‌ ‌soldier‌ ‌course,‌ ‌window‌‌                 
reveals‌ ‌and‌ ‌rainwater‌ ‌goods‌ ‌have‌ ‌been‌ ‌submitted‌ ‌and‌ ‌agreed‌ 

20. Glazing‌ ‌within‌ ‌windows‌ ‌on‌ ‌North‌ ‌elevation‌ ‌fixed‌ ‌shut‌ ‌ 

75



‌ 
‌ 

21. Agree‌‌and‌‌implement‌‌boundary‌‌treatment‌‌(other‌‌than‌‌acoustic‌‌fence‌‌referred‌‌                   
to‌ ‌in‌ ‌Condition‌ ‌10‌ ‌of‌ ‌this‌ ‌permission)‌ ‌ ‌   

22. Remove‌ ‌‘permitted‌ ‌development’‌ ‌entitlements‌ ‌for‌ ‌external‌ ‌alteration,‌‌             
extensions‌ ‌and‌ ‌enlargements,‌ ‌incidental‌ ‌outbuildings‌ ‌larger‌ ‌than‌ ‌5‌ ‌cubic‌‌                 
metres‌ ‌and‌ ‌walls,‌ ‌fences‌ ‌and‌ ‌other‌ ‌means‌ ‌of‌ ‌enclosure‌ ‌forward‌ ‌of‌‌the‌‌front‌‌                         
elevation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌dwelling.‌ ‌ 

23. Agree‌ ‌and‌ ‌implement‌ ‌biodiversity‌ ‌enhancements‌ ‌ ‌   
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

76



‌ 
‌ 

4‌ ‌ 
‌ 

‌ 

‌ 
Not‌ ‌to‌ ‌Scale‌ ‌ ‌   

Reproduced‌ ‌from‌ ‌OS‌ ‌Mapping‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌permission‌ ‌of‌ ‌HMSO‌ ‌©‌ ‌Crown‌ ‌Copyright‌ ‌Licence‌ ‌number‌ ‌LA100024321‌ ‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

Application‌ ‌Number:‌ ‌  AWDM/1591/21‌ ‌  Recommendation‌ ‌-‌ ‌Approve‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Site:‌ ‌  42‌ ‌Alfriston‌ ‌Road,‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Proposal:‌ ‌  Construction‌ ‌of‌ ‌rear‌ ‌Workshop‌ ‌/‌ ‌Store‌ ‌Outbuilding‌‌ 
(part‌ ‌retrospective).‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Applicant:‌ ‌  Mr‌ ‌&‌ ‌Mrs‌ ‌Sharp‌ ‌  Ward:‌ ‌Gaisford‌ ‌ 
Agent:‌ ‌  Mr‌ ‌Kenny‌ ‌Foxwell‌‌ ‌  
Case‌ ‌Officer:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Rebekah‌ ‌Hincke‌ ‌ 

77



‌ 
‌ 

This‌‌application‌‌has‌‌been‌‌brought‌‌to‌‌the‌‌Planning‌‌Committee‌‌at‌‌the‌‌request‌‌of‌‌                         
Councillor‌ ‌John‌ ‌Turley.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Proposal,‌ ‌Site‌ ‌and‌ ‌Surroundings‌ ‌ 

‌ 
The‌‌application‌‌site‌‌relates‌‌to‌‌a‌‌semi-detached‌‌bungalow‌‌located‌‌on‌‌the‌‌east‌‌side‌‌of‌‌                           
Alfriston‌ ‌Road‌ ‌within‌ ‌a‌ ‌residential‌ ‌suburb‌ ‌of‌ ‌Worthing.‌ ‌The‌ ‌bungalow‌ ‌is‌ ‌set‌ ‌back‌‌                         
from‌ ‌the‌ ‌road‌ ‌with‌ ‌a‌ ‌garden‌ ‌and‌ ‌driveway‌ ‌to‌ ‌its‌ ‌frontage.‌ ‌Its‌ ‌design‌ ‌and‌ ‌form‌ ‌is‌‌                               
similar‌ ‌to‌ ‌other‌ ‌bungalows‌ ‌on‌ ‌this‌ ‌side‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌street‌ ‌with‌ ‌a‌ ‌T-shaped‌ ‌footprint‌ ‌and‌‌                             
hipped‌ ‌roof‌ ‌front‌ ‌and‌ ‌rear‌ ‌projection,‌ ‌mirrored‌‌by‌‌the‌‌attached‌‌neighbour.‌‌It‌‌has‌‌an‌‌                           
enclosed‌ ‌rear‌ ‌garden‌ ‌where‌ ‌several‌ ‌structures,‌ ‌including‌ ‌a‌ ‌detached‌ ‌garage‌‌                   
building,‌ ‌have‌ ‌recently‌ ‌been‌‌removed.‌‌To‌‌the‌‌east‌‌of‌‌the‌‌site,‌‌is‌‌an‌‌unadopted‌‌lane‌‌                             
providing‌‌access‌‌to‌‌the‌‌rear‌‌of‌‌the‌‌terraced‌‌housing‌‌that‌‌lies‌‌to‌‌the‌‌east‌‌in‌‌Cranleigh‌‌                               
Road,‌ ‌where‌ ‌several‌ ‌of‌ ‌which‌ ‌have‌ ‌garage‌ ‌structures‌ ‌sited‌ ‌along‌ ‌the‌ ‌edge‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌                           
lane.‌ ‌The‌ ‌property‌‌is‌‌not‌‌within‌‌a‌‌conservation‌‌area‌‌nor‌‌is‌‌it‌‌listed‌‌and‌‌there‌‌are‌‌no‌‌                                 
protected‌ ‌trees‌ ‌on‌ ‌site.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Permission‌ ‌is‌ ‌sought‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌construction‌ ‌of‌ ‌a‌ ‌rear‌ ‌workshop/store‌ ‌building‌ ‌sited‌‌                       
adjacent‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌rear‌ ‌(east)‌ ‌and‌ ‌side‌ ‌(north)‌ ‌boundaries.‌ ‌Works‌ ‌have‌ ‌commenced‌‌                       
and‌ ‌the‌ ‌building‌ ‌has‌ ‌been‌ ‌partially‌ ‌constructed‌ ‌up‌ ‌to‌‌eaves‌‌level‌‌at‌‌the‌‌time‌‌of‌‌the‌‌                               
site‌‌visit.‌‌The‌‌building‌‌has‌‌an‌‌‘L’-shaped‌‌form‌‌that‌‌would‌‌measure‌‌approximately‌‌7.7‌‌                         
metres‌ ‌in‌ ‌depth‌ ‌along‌ ‌the‌ ‌northern‌ ‌side‌ ‌wall‌‌and‌‌7.7‌‌metres‌‌in‌‌width‌‌along‌‌its‌‌east‌‌                               
rear‌ ‌wall.‌ ‌The‌‌application‌‌proposes‌‌a‌‌3.8‌‌metre‌‌high‌‌pitched‌‌roof‌‌to‌‌the‌‌rear‌‌(7.7m‌‌                             
by‌ ‌3.7m)‌ ‌section‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌building,‌ ‌with‌‌an‌‌eaves‌‌height‌‌of‌‌approximately‌‌2.4‌‌metres.‌‌                           
This‌‌rear‌‌section‌‌would‌‌form‌‌the‌‌workshop‌‌area.‌ ‌The‌‌western‌‌storage‌‌section‌‌of‌‌the‌‌                           
building‌‌would‌‌have‌‌a‌‌flat‌‌roof‌‌up‌‌to‌‌2.6‌‌metres‌‌in‌‌height.‌ ‌The‌‌applicant‌‌proposes‌‌to‌‌                               
finish‌ ‌the‌ ‌building‌ ‌using‌‌fibre‌‌cement‌‌weatherboard‌‌cladding‌‌and‌‌with‌‌concrete‌‌roof‌‌                       
tiles.‌ ‌The‌‌eastern‌‌rear‌‌wall‌‌of‌‌the‌‌building‌‌would‌‌form‌‌the‌‌boundary‌‌enclosure‌‌to‌‌this‌‌                             
part‌ ‌fronting‌ ‌the‌ ‌rear‌ ‌lane,‌ ‌and‌ ‌with‌ ‌2‌ ‌metre‌ ‌high‌ ‌close-boarded‌ ‌timber‌ ‌fencing‌‌                         
proposed‌ ‌to‌ ‌infill‌ ‌between‌ ‌the‌ ‌south-east‌ ‌corner‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌building‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌southern‌                         
boundary.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Relevant‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌History‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

AWDM/1341/20‌ ‌SIngle‌ ‌storey‌ ‌rear‌ ‌extension.‌ ‌Removal‌ ‌of‌ ‌existing‌ ‌shed‌ ‌and‌‌                   
workshop,‌ ‌construction‌ ‌of‌ ‌replacement‌ ‌workshop‌ ‌building.‌  ‌Approved‌ ‌28.10.2020‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

Consultations‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

None‌ ‌relevant‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Representations‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Eighteen‌ ‌representations‌ ‌have‌ ‌been‌ ‌received‌ ‌from‌ ‌residents/owners‌ ‌in‌ ‌Cranleigh‌                 
Road‌ ‌following‌‌the‌‌original‌‌consultation‌‌(five‌‌of‌‌which‌‌follow‌‌consultation‌‌on‌‌revised‌‌                       
plans‌‌that‌‌include‌‌corrections‌‌to‌‌the‌‌window‌‌positions‌‌and‌‌delete‌‌the‌‌entrance‌‌gates‌‌                         
on‌ ‌the‌ ‌boundary)‌ ‌objecting‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposals‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌following‌ ‌grounds:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

● Rear‌ ‌access‌ ‌gates‌ ‌-‌ ‌rear‌ ‌access‌ ‌is‌ ‌owned/maintained‌ ‌by‌ ‌Cranleigh‌ ‌Road‌‌                     
property‌ ‌owners‌ ‌for‌ ‌access,‌ ‌no‌ ‌access‌ ‌allowed‌ ‌from‌ ‌Alfriston‌ ‌Road,‌‌                   

78



‌ 
‌ 

unnecessary‌‌access‌‌gates‌‌proposed,‌‌may‌‌set‌‌precedent‌‌for‌‌others‌‌in‌‌Alfriston‌‌                     
Road,‌ ‌hazard‌ ‌to‌ ‌children‌ ‌playing‌ ‌in‌ ‌lane.‌ ‌ 

● Close‌ ‌proximity‌ ‌to‌ ‌rear‌ ‌boundary‌ ‌and‌ ‌encroachment‌ ‌with‌‌               
roof/drainage/guttering‌ ‌ 

● Inaccuracies‌ ‌in‌ ‌forms‌ ‌ 
● Unnecessarily‌ ‌large‌ ‌building‌ ‌ 
● Querying‌ ‌use‌ ‌of‌ ‌building‌ ‌ 
● Loss‌ ‌of‌ ‌light‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Five‌ ‌further‌ ‌representations‌ ‌have‌ ‌been‌ ‌received‌ ‌following‌ ‌consultation‌ ‌on‌ ‌revised‌‌                   
plans,‌‌that‌‌include‌‌corrections‌‌to‌‌the‌‌window‌‌positions‌‌and‌‌delete‌‌the‌‌entrance‌‌gates‌‌                         
on‌ ‌the‌ ‌boundary‌ ‌with‌ ‌a‌ ‌fence‌ ‌now‌ ‌proposed.‌ ‌ ‌   
‌ 

The‌‌further‌‌comments‌‌reiterate‌‌objections‌‌and‌‌the‌‌original‌‌concerns‌‌raised‌‌in‌‌relation‌‌                       
to‌ ‌a‌ ‌potential‌ ‌access‌ ‌onto‌ ‌the‌ ‌private‌ ‌rear‌ ‌lane‌ ‌including‌ ‌issues‌ ‌of‌ ‌encroachment,‌‌                         
safety‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌lane,‌ ‌requesting‌ ‌a‌ ‌boundary‌ ‌wall‌ ‌be‌ ‌replaced,‌ ‌ensuring‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌‌                         
proposed‌‌fence‌‌is‌‌a‌‌permanent‌‌fixture,‌‌and‌‌raising‌‌concerns‌‌over‌‌the‌‌accuracy‌‌of‌‌the‌‌                           
drawings‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌visual‌ ‌impact‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌pitched‌ ‌roof.‌‌ ‌  

‌ 
Relevant‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Policies‌ ‌and‌ ‌Guidance‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Worthing‌ ‌Core‌ ‌Strategy‌ ‌(2011):Policy‌ ‌16‌ ‌Built‌ ‌Environment‌ ‌and‌ ‌Design‌ ‌ ‌   
Worthing‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Plan‌ ‌(WBC‌ ‌2003):‌ ‌Saved‌ ‌policies‌ ‌H16‌ ‌and‌ ‌H18‌ ‌ 
National‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Policy‌ ‌Framework‌ ‌(HCLG‌ ‌2021)‌‌ ‌  
National‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Practice‌ ‌Guidance‌ ‌(CLG)‌ ‌ 
Submission‌ ‌Draft‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Plan‌ ‌2020-2036:‌ ‌SP1,‌ ‌DM5‌ ‌ 
SPG‌ ‌‘Extending‌ ‌or‌ ‌Altering‌ ‌Your‌ ‌Home’‌ ‌(WBC)‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Relevant‌ ‌Legislation‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌Committee‌ ‌should‌ ‌consider‌ ‌the‌ ‌planning‌ ‌application‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Section‌ ‌70‌‌of‌‌the‌‌Town‌‌and‌‌Country‌‌Planning‌‌Act‌‌1990‌‌(as‌‌amended)‌‌that‌‌provides‌‌                           
the‌ ‌application‌ ‌may‌ ‌be‌ ‌granted‌ ‌either‌ ‌unconditionally‌ ‌or‌ ‌subject‌ ‌to‌ ‌relevant‌‌                     
conditions,‌‌or‌‌refused.‌ ‌Regard‌‌shall‌‌be‌‌given‌‌to‌‌relevant‌‌development‌‌plan‌‌policies,‌‌                       
any‌ ‌relevant‌ ‌local‌ ‌finance‌ ‌considerations,‌ ‌and‌ ‌other‌ ‌material‌ ‌considerations‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Planning‌ ‌Assessment‌ ‌ 
‌ 

There‌ ‌is‌ ‌no‌ ‌objection‌ ‌in‌ ‌principle‌ ‌to‌ ‌extensions‌ ‌and‌ ‌alterations‌ ‌to‌ ‌residential‌‌                       
dwellings‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌built-up‌ ‌area.‌ ‌The‌ ‌key‌ ‌issues‌ ‌are‌ ‌the‌ ‌effect‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌residential‌‌                           
and‌ ‌visual‌ ‌amenities‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌locality.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
‌ 

Visual‌ ‌amenity‌ ‌ ‌   
‌ 

This‌ ‌application‌ ‌needs‌ ‌to‌‌be‌‌considered‌‌in‌‌the‌‌context‌‌of‌‌the‌‌previous‌‌decision‌‌that‌‌                           
allowed‌ ‌a‌ ‌replacement‌ ‌pitched‌ ‌roof‌ ‌workshop‌ ‌building‌ ‌adjacent‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌eastern‌‌                     
boundary‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌ ‌as‌ ‌part‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌application‌ ‌AWDM/1341/20.‌ ‌The‌ ‌approved‌‌                       
workshop,‌ ‌if‌ ‌built,‌ ‌would‌ ‌measure‌ ‌3.4‌ ‌metres‌ ‌in‌ ‌depth‌ ‌and‌ ‌6.3‌ ‌metres‌ ‌in‌ ‌width.‌ ‌ 

79



‌ 
‌ 

‌ 
Whilst‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌workshop‌‌and‌‌store‌‌would‌‌be‌‌larger‌‌than‌‌previously‌‌proposed,‌‌                       
the‌‌workshop‌‌element‌‌at‌‌the‌‌rear‌‌where‌‌it‌‌would‌‌be‌‌visible‌‌from‌‌the‌‌rear‌‌lane‌‌would‌‌                               
be‌ ‌approximately‌ ‌1.4‌ ‌metres‌ ‌wider‌ ‌than‌ ‌previously‌ ‌approved.‌ ‌However,‌ ‌the‌‌                   
alignment‌‌of‌‌the‌‌building‌‌as‌‌now‌‌proposed‌‌has‌‌been‌‌brought‌‌closer‌‌to‌‌the‌‌boundary‌‌                           
with‌‌the‌‌rear‌‌lane‌‌as‌‌opposed‌‌to‌‌the‌‌previous‌‌approval‌‌that‌‌set‌‌the‌‌structure‌‌in‌‌from‌‌                               
the‌ ‌boundary.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

Having‌ ‌regard‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌positioning‌ ‌at‌ ‌the‌‌rear‌‌of‌‌the‌‌bungalow,‌‌where‌‌it‌‌would‌‌not‌‌be‌‌                               
readily‌‌visible‌‌in‌‌the‌‌street‌‌frontage,‌‌the‌‌full‌‌scale‌‌of‌‌the‌‌building‌‌with‌‌the‌‌added‌‌store‌‌                               
structure‌‌would‌‌not‌‌be‌‌apparent.‌‌Although‌‌the‌‌former‌‌garage‌‌door‌‌is‌‌being‌‌reused‌‌on‌‌                           
the‌ ‌west‌ ‌elevation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌store,‌ ‌there‌ ‌are‌ ‌no‌ ‌proposals‌ ‌to‌ ‌extend‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌‌                           
driveway‌ ‌to‌ ‌this‌ ‌point‌ ‌for‌ ‌any‌ ‌vehicular‌ ‌access‌ ‌with‌ ‌no‌ ‌alterations‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌Alfriston‌‌                           
Road‌ ‌frontage.‌ ‌Views‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌rear‌ ‌would‌ ‌only‌ ‌be‌ ‌possible‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌private‌ ‌rear‌‌                           
lane‌ ‌which‌ ‌itself‌ ‌has‌ ‌a‌ ‌number‌ ‌of‌ ‌garage/store‌ ‌buildings‌ ‌sited‌ ‌similarly‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌‌                         
proposals‌‌and‌‌of‌‌varying‌‌design‌‌and‌‌with‌‌some‌‌variation‌‌in‌‌boundary‌‌treatments‌‌with‌‌                         
a‌ ‌mix‌ ‌of‌ ‌walls‌ ‌and‌ ‌fences‌ ‌of‌ ‌varied‌ ‌heights.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

Although‌ ‌the‌‌structure‌‌proposed‌‌at‌‌No.42‌‌would‌‌be‌‌larger‌‌than‌‌most‌‌others‌‌fronting‌‌                         
the‌ ‌lane,‌ ‌due‌ ‌to‌ ‌its‌ ‌orientation‌ ‌and‌ ‌pitched‌ ‌roof‌ ‌design,‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposals‌ ‌represent‌ ‌a‌‌                           
relatively‌ ‌modest‌ ‌increase‌ ‌in‌ ‌width‌ ‌and‌ ‌proximity‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌rear‌ ‌boundary‌ ‌when‌‌                       
compared‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌approved‌ ‌scheme.‌ ‌Having‌ ‌regard‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌character‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌lane,‌‌                         
and‌‌that‌‌permitted‌‌development‌‌allowances‌‌would‌‌allow‌‌a‌‌building‌‌of‌‌similar‌‌footprint‌‌                       
and‌ ‌alignment‌ ‌but‌ ‌with‌ ‌a‌ ‌flat/lower‌ ‌roof,‌ ‌it‌ ‌is‌ ‌considered‌ ‌that‌ ‌a‌ ‌refusal‌ ‌on‌ ‌visual‌‌                             
amenity‌‌grounds‌‌would‌‌not‌‌be‌‌justified.‌ ‌It‌‌is‌‌considered‌‌that‌‌the‌‌use‌‌of‌‌weatherboard‌‌                           
cladding‌‌would‌‌give‌‌a‌‌satisfactory‌‌appearance‌‌for‌‌a‌‌storage‌‌building/workshop‌‌and‌‌a‌‌                       
condition‌ ‌is‌ ‌recommended‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌roof‌ ‌tiles‌ ‌to‌ ‌match‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌bungalow.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Residential‌ ‌amenity‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

The‌‌main‌‌impact‌‌as‌‌a‌‌result‌‌of‌‌the‌‌structure‌‌would‌‌be‌‌to‌‌the‌‌immediate‌‌neighbouring‌‌                             
occupiers‌‌to‌‌the‌‌north‌‌and‌‌south‌‌of‌‌the‌‌application‌‌site‌‌at‌‌no.‌‌44‌‌and‌‌No.40‌‌Alfriston‌‌                               
Road.‌ ‌In‌ ‌terms‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌effect‌ ‌on‌ ‌occupiers‌ ‌in‌ ‌Cranleigh‌ ‌Road‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌east,‌ ‌the‌‌                             
separation‌‌to‌‌the‌‌rear‌‌of‌‌more‌‌than‌‌15‌‌metres‌‌to‌‌neighbouring‌‌dwelling‌‌in‌‌Cranleigh‌‌                           
Road‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌intervening‌ ‌lane‌ ‌would‌ ‌ensure‌ ‌that‌ ‌no‌ ‌significant‌ ‌impact‌ ‌to‌ ‌amenity‌‌                         
would‌ ‌be‌ ‌caused‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌ ‌building.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

The‌‌points‌‌raised‌‌in‌‌the‌‌representations‌‌are‌‌noted‌‌in‌‌relation‌‌to‌‌the‌‌access‌‌onto/use‌‌                           
of‌ ‌the‌ ‌lane‌ ‌and‌‌possible‌‌encroachment,‌‌and‌‌whilst‌‌this‌‌is‌‌a‌‌private‌‌legal‌‌matter,‌‌the‌‌                             
applicant‌ ‌has‌ ‌since‌ ‌sought‌ ‌to‌ ‌demonstrate‌ ‌a‌ ‌190-200mm‌ ‌setback‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌rear‌‌                       
boundary‌ ‌to‌ ‌allow‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌roof/drainage‌ ‌etc‌ ‌and‌ ‌has‌ ‌provided‌ ‌amended‌ ‌plans‌ ‌that‌‌                         
delete‌‌the‌‌entrance‌‌gates‌‌that‌‌were‌‌originally‌‌included‌‌in‌‌the‌‌application,‌‌and‌‌instead‌‌                         
a‌‌close‌‌boarded‌‌fence‌‌is‌‌now‌‌proposed.‌‌A‌‌signed‌‌Certificate‌‌A‌‌ownership‌‌certificate‌‌                         
has‌ ‌been‌ ‌provided‌ ‌certifying‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌development‌ ‌is‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌applicants’‌ ‌land.‌‌                       
Boundary‌ ‌disputes‌ ‌are‌ ‌not‌ ‌a‌ ‌planning‌ ‌consideration.‌ ‌The‌ ‌suggestion‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌‌                     
representations‌ ‌of‌ ‌a‌ ‌replacement‌ ‌boundary‌ ‌wall‌ ‌is‌ ‌noted‌ ‌but‌ ‌this‌ ‌would‌ ‌only‌ ‌be‌‌                         
considered‌ ‌if‌ ‌there‌ ‌were‌ ‌significant‌ ‌visual/amenity‌ ‌issues‌ ‌to‌ ‌rectify‌ ‌and‌ ‌given‌ ‌the‌‌                       
variety‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌appearance‌‌of‌‌boundary‌‌treatments‌‌in‌‌the‌‌rear‌‌lane‌‌this‌‌would‌‌not‌‌be‌‌                             
justified‌ ‌in‌ ‌this‌ ‌instance.‌ ‌ ‌   
‌ 

80



‌ 
‌ 

To‌ ‌the‌ ‌north,‌ ‌the‌ ‌building‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌sited‌ ‌close‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌boundary‌ ‌with‌ ‌No.44‌ ‌but‌ ‌its‌‌                               
position‌‌is‌‌set‌‌to‌‌the‌‌rear‌‌of‌‌the‌‌the‌‌neighbours’‌‌own‌‌rear‌‌garage,‌‌and‌‌with‌‌the‌‌height‌‌                                 
of‌ ‌the‌ ‌building‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌at‌ ‌2.6‌ ‌metres‌ ‌to‌ ‌its‌ ‌western‌ ‌section‌ ‌and‌ ‌stepped‌ ‌in,‌ ‌it‌ ‌is‌‌                               
considered‌ ‌that‌ ‌there‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌no‌ ‌significant‌ ‌threat‌‌to‌‌the‌‌amenities‌‌of‌‌No.‌‌44.‌ ‌To‌‌                             
the‌ ‌south‌ ‌side,‌ ‌there‌ ‌would‌ ‌also‌ ‌be‌ ‌sufficient‌ ‌separation‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌boundary‌ ‌and‌‌                         
neighbouring‌ ‌dwelling‌ ‌to‌ ‌ensure‌ ‌no‌ ‌significant‌ ‌loss‌ ‌of‌ ‌light‌ ‌or‌ ‌outlook.‌ ‌Amended‌‌                       
plans‌ ‌propose‌ ‌a‌ ‌side‌ ‌window‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌south‌ ‌side‌ ‌wall,‌ ‌but‌ ‌given‌ ‌the‌ ‌position‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌                               
building‌‌at‌‌the‌‌rear‌‌of‌‌the‌‌site,‌‌the‌‌separation‌‌and‌‌existence‌‌of‌‌boundary‌‌fencing‌‌and‌‌                             
vegetation‌ ‌forming‌ ‌a‌ ‌screen,‌ ‌there‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌no‌ ‌significant‌ ‌loss‌ ‌of‌ ‌privacy.‌ ‌ ‌   
‌ ‌  
The‌ ‌applicant's‌ ‌agent‌ ‌has‌ ‌confirmed‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌use‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌building‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌‌                             
occupier's‌ ‌own‌ ‌personal‌ ‌use‌ ‌for‌ ‌hobbies‌ ‌and‌ ‌storage‌ ‌purposes‌ ‌with‌ ‌examples‌ ‌of‌‌                       
woodwork,‌ ‌crafts‌ ‌and‌ ‌DIY‌ ‌given‌ ‌and‌ ‌storage‌ ‌of‌ ‌household‌ ‌items.‌ ‌A‌ ‌condition‌ ‌is‌‌                         
recommended‌ ‌to‌ ‌ensure‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌use‌ ‌would‌ ‌remain‌ ‌incidental‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌use‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌                           
dwelling‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌interests‌ ‌of‌ ‌protecting‌ ‌residential‌ ‌amenity,‌ ‌as‌ ‌well‌ ‌as‌ ‌a‌ ‌condition‌‌                         
removing‌‌permitted‌‌development‌‌rights‌‌for‌‌any‌‌alterations‌‌to‌‌form‌‌additional‌‌windows‌‌                     
or‌ ‌doors.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

Recommendation‌ ‌ 
‌ 

It‌‌is‌‌recommended‌‌that‌‌planning‌‌permission‌‌be‌‌APPROVED‌,‌‌subject‌‌to‌‌the‌‌following‌‌                       
conditions:-‌ ‌ 

‌ ‌   
1. Approved‌ ‌Plans‌ ‌ 
2. Materials‌ ‌as‌ ‌indicated‌ ‌and‌ ‌matching‌ ‌roof‌ ‌tiles.‌ ‌ 
3. Use‌ ‌of‌ ‌building‌ ‌for‌ ‌incidental‌ ‌purposes‌ ‌only‌ ‌ 
4. Removal‌ ‌of‌ ‌permitted‌ ‌development‌ ‌rights‌ ‌for‌ ‌further‌ ‌windows‌ ‌or‌ ‌doors‌ ‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

81



‌ 
‌ 

5‌ ‌ 
‌ 

‌ 

‌ 
Not‌ ‌to‌ ‌Scale‌ ‌ ‌   

Reproduced‌ ‌from‌ ‌OS‌ ‌Mapping‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌permission‌ ‌of‌ ‌HMSO‌ ‌©‌ ‌Crown‌ ‌Copyright‌ ‌Licence‌ ‌number‌ ‌LA100024321‌ ‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

Application‌ ‌Number:‌ ‌  AWDM/1422/21‌ ‌  Recommendation‌ ‌-‌ ‌Temporary‌‌ 
Approval‌ ‌-‌ ‌12‌ ‌months‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Site:‌ ‌  24‌ ‌Vale‌ ‌Drive,‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Proposal:‌ ‌  Use‌ ‌of‌ ‌part‌ ‌of‌ ‌front‌ ‌driveway/hardstanding‌ ‌to‌ ‌station‌ ‌a‌‌ 
non-static‌ ‌vehicle‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌sale‌ ‌of‌ ‌refreshments‌‌ 
(specification‌ ‌not‌ ‌exceeding‌ ‌4m‌ ‌in‌ ‌length,‌ ‌2m‌ ‌width‌‌ 
and‌ ‌2.5m‌ ‌high).‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Applicant:‌ ‌  Wayne‌ ‌Prangnell‌‌ ‌   Ward:Offington‌ ‌ 
Agent:‌ ‌  ‌ 
Case‌ ‌Officer:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Rebekah‌ ‌Hincke‌ ‌ 

82



‌ 
‌ 

Site‌ ‌and‌ ‌Surroundings‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌‌site‌‌relates‌‌to‌‌a‌‌semi-detached‌‌bungalow‌‌on‌‌the‌‌north‌‌side‌‌of‌‌Vale‌‌Drive,‌‌on‌‌the‌‌                               
corner‌‌at‌‌its‌‌junction‌‌with‌‌Vale‌‌Avenue.‌‌No.24‌‌is‌‌setback‌‌from‌‌the‌‌street‌‌frontage‌‌with‌‌                             
a‌ ‌relatively‌ ‌large‌ ‌area‌ ‌of‌ ‌hardstanding‌ ‌for‌ ‌parking‌ ‌within‌ ‌its‌ ‌front‌ ‌garden‌ ‌with‌‌                         
vehicular‌ ‌access‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌south‌ ‌side‌ ‌in‌ ‌Vale‌ ‌Drive.‌ ‌The‌ ‌bungalow‌ ‌has‌ ‌been‌‌                         
extended‌ ‌to‌ ‌its‌ ‌west‌ ‌side‌ ‌with‌ ‌a‌ ‌hipped‌ ‌roof‌ ‌addition.‌ ‌A‌ ‌low‌ ‌brick‌ ‌wall‌ ‌forms‌ ‌the‌‌                               
boundary‌ ‌surrounding‌ ‌the‌ ‌front‌ ‌garden‌ ‌and‌ ‌hardstanding‌ ‌with‌ ‌separate‌ ‌pedestrian‌‌                   
and‌‌vehicular‌‌access‌‌points.‌ ‌The‌‌rear‌‌garden‌‌is‌‌enclosed‌‌with‌‌close-boarded‌‌timber‌‌                       
fencing‌‌and‌‌there‌‌are‌‌gates‌‌providing‌‌access‌‌to‌‌a‌‌rear‌‌garage/store‌‌building‌‌sited‌‌at‌‌                           
the‌ ‌north‌ ‌end‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌rear‌ ‌garden.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

This‌ ‌is‌ ‌a‌ ‌predominantly‌ ‌residential‌ ‌area‌‌with‌‌other‌‌similarly‌‌designed‌‌detached‌‌and‌‌                       
semi-detached‌ ‌bungalows‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌vicinity.‌ ‌On‌ ‌the‌ ‌opposite‌ ‌side‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌road,‌ ‌Vale‌‌                         
Avenue‌ ‌continues‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌south‌ ‌with‌ ‌access‌ ‌to‌ ‌Vale‌ ‌School,‌ ‌the‌ ‌primary‌ ‌school‌‌                         
located‌‌to‌‌the‌‌south‌‌of‌‌the‌‌site.‌ ‌Further‌‌to‌‌the‌‌west,‌‌at‌‌the‌‌end‌‌of‌‌Vale‌‌Drive,‌‌there‌‌is‌‌                                     
pedestrian‌‌access‌‌to‌‌The‌‌Gallops‌‌open‌‌space‌‌and‌‌recreation‌‌area‌‌which‌‌is‌‌within‌‌the‌‌                           
South‌ ‌Down‌ ‌National‌ ‌Park.‌ ‌Vale‌ ‌Avenue‌ ‌is‌ ‌a‌ ‌non-classified‌ ‌road‌ ‌with‌ ‌a‌ ‌30mph‌‌                         
speed‌‌limit.‌ ‌There‌‌are‌‌double‌‌yellow‌‌line‌‌restrictions‌‌at‌‌the‌‌crossroads‌‌junction‌‌with‌‌                         
Vale‌ ‌Avenue‌ ‌and‌ ‌with‌ ‌on-street‌ ‌parking‌ ‌available‌ ‌elsewhere.‌ ‌ ‌   
‌ 

Proposal‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

The‌ ‌application‌ ‌proposes‌ ‌the‌ ‌siting‌ ‌of‌ ‌a‌ ‌non-static‌ ‌vehicle‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌sale‌ ‌of‌‌                         
refreshments‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌located‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌hardstanding‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌front‌ ‌garden‌ ‌of‌‌                         
No.24.‌ ‌Although‌ ‌the‌ ‌specific‌ ‌vehicle‌ ‌has‌ ‌not‌ ‌been‌‌given,‌‌its‌‌size‌‌would‌‌be‌‌up‌‌to‌‌4‌‌                               
metres‌‌in‌‌length,‌‌2‌‌metres‌‌in‌‌width‌‌and‌‌2.5‌‌metres‌‌in‌‌height,‌‌to‌‌be‌‌sited‌‌towards‌‌the‌‌                                 
north‌ ‌west‌ ‌corner‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌ ‌frontage.‌ ‌ ‌   
‌ 

No‌ ‌cooking‌ ‌or‌ ‌preparation‌ ‌of‌ ‌hot‌ ‌food‌ ‌would‌ ‌take‌ ‌place‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌vehicle‌ ‌or‌ ‌dwelling,‌‌                             
with‌‌pre-packaged‌‌confectionery,‌‌ice‌‌cream‌‌and‌‌hot‌‌and‌‌cold‌‌drinks‌‌offered‌‌for‌‌sale.‌‌                         
Bins‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌provided‌ ‌on‌ ‌site‌ ‌for‌ ‌waste‌ ‌and‌ ‌recycling.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

As‌‌originally‌‌proposed,‌‌hours‌‌of‌‌operation‌‌have‌‌been‌‌indicated‌‌to‌‌between‌‌07:00‌‌and‌‌                         
17:00‌ ‌on‌ ‌Monday‌ ‌to‌ ‌Friday‌ ‌and‌ ‌between‌ ‌09:00‌ ‌and‌ ‌16:00‌ ‌on‌ ‌Saturdays‌ ‌and‌‌                         
Sundays.‌ ‌However‌ ‌the‌ ‌applicant‌ ‌has‌ ‌since‌ ‌clarified‌ ‌the‌ ‌intention‌ ‌to‌ ‌close‌ ‌trading‌‌                       
between‌ ‌peak‌ ‌hours‌ ‌(closing‌ ‌between‌ ‌10am‌ ‌and‌ ‌1.30pm)‌ ‌on‌ ‌Mondays‌ ‌to‌ ‌Fridays‌‌                       
and‌ ‌that‌ ‌it‌ ‌is‌ ‌their‌ ‌intention‌ ‌to‌ ‌open‌ ‌on‌ ‌occasional‌ ‌weekends‌ ‌only‌ ‌to‌ ‌coincide‌ ‌with‌‌                             
events‌ ‌at‌ ‌the‌ ‌school‌ ‌or‌ ‌The‌ ‌Gallops.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

The‌‌applicant‌‌would‌‌be‌‌operating‌‌the‌‌business‌‌from‌‌home,‌‌but‌‌states‌‌that‌‌they‌‌may‌‌                           
employ‌ ‌a‌ ‌nearby‌ ‌resident‌ ‌who‌ ‌has‌ ‌shown‌ ‌interest.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌vehicle‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌electrically‌ ‌powered‌ ‌directly‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌main‌ ‌supply‌ ‌at‌ ‌the‌‌                         
applicants‌ ‌property‌ ‌at‌ ‌No.24‌ ‌with‌ ‌no‌ ‌generator‌ ‌or‌ ‌vehicle‌ ‌engine‌ ‌required.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Consultations‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

West‌ ‌Sussex‌ ‌County‌ ‌Council:‌ ‌‌The‌ ‌‌Highway‌ ‌Authority‌ ‌has‌ ‌raised‌ ‌no‌ ‌objections‌‌                     
and‌ ‌comments‌ ‌as‌ ‌follows:‌ ‌ 

83



‌ 
‌ 

‌ 
Summary‌ ‌ 
This‌‌proposal‌‌is‌‌for‌‌the‌‌stationing‌‌of‌‌a‌‌trailer‌‌for‌‌the‌‌selling‌‌of‌‌refreshments.‌‌The‌‌site‌‌                               
is‌ ‌located‌ ‌on‌ ‌Vale‌ ‌Drive,‌ ‌an‌ ‌unclassified‌ ‌road‌ ‌subject‌ ‌to‌ ‌a‌ ‌speed‌ ‌restriction‌ ‌of‌ ‌30‌‌                             
mph‌ ‌in‌ ‌this‌ ‌location.‌ ‌WSCC‌ ‌in‌ ‌its‌ ‌role‌ ‌as‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Highway‌ ‌Authority‌‌(LHA)‌‌raises‌‌no‌‌                             
highway‌ ‌safety‌ ‌concerns‌ ‌for‌ ‌this‌ ‌application.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Content‌ ‌ 
The‌‌applicant‌‌proposes‌‌to‌‌station‌‌a‌‌trailer‌‌on‌‌existing‌‌hardstanding,‌‌for‌‌the‌‌selling‌‌of‌‌                           
hot‌‌drinks‌‌and‌‌ice‌‌cream.‌‌Whilst‌‌the‌‌proposal‌‌may‌‌bring‌‌some‌‌additional‌‌movements‌‌                         
to‌ ‌the‌ ‌site,‌ ‌the‌ ‌LHA‌ ‌does‌ ‌not‌ ‌anticipate‌ ‌that‌ ‌this‌ ‌would‌ ‌give‌ ‌rise‌ ‌to‌ ‌a‌ ‌significant‌‌                               
highway‌‌safety‌‌concern.‌‌It‌‌is‌‌anticipated‌‌that‌‌due‌‌to‌‌the‌‌local‌‌nature‌‌of‌‌the‌‌proposal,‌‌                             
a‌ ‌number‌ ‌of‌ ‌visitors‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌use‌ ‌would‌‌be‌‌associated‌‌with‌‌existing‌‌trips‌‌to‌‌                             
the‌ ‌nearby‌ ‌school‌ ‌or‌ ‌park,‌ ‌classed‌ ‌as‌ ‌‘pass‌ ‌by’‌ ‌trips.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Vehicular‌ ‌parking‌ ‌would‌ ‌have‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌accommodated‌ ‌on-street.‌ ‌There‌ ‌are‌‌                   
comprehensive‌ ‌parking‌ ‌restrictions‌ ‌in‌‌place‌‌on‌‌Vale‌‌Drive,‌‌preventing‌‌vehicles‌‌from‌‌                     
parking‌ ‌in‌ ‌places‌‌that‌‌would‌‌be‌‌a‌‌detriment‌‌to‌‌highway‌‌safety.‌‌Whilst‌‌the‌‌LHA‌‌does‌‌                             
not‌‌anticipate‌‌that‌‌parking‌‌on-street‌‌would‌‌give‌‌rise‌‌to‌‌a‌‌highway‌‌safety‌‌concern,‌‌the‌‌                           
LPA‌ ‌is‌ ‌advised‌ ‌to‌ ‌consider‌ ‌the‌ ‌potential‌ ‌impacts‌ ‌on‌ ‌on-street‌ ‌parking‌ ‌from‌ ‌an‌‌                         
amenity‌ ‌point‌ ‌of‌ ‌view.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

An‌‌inspection‌‌of‌‌collision‌‌data‌‌provided‌‌to‌‌WSCC‌‌by‌‌Sussex‌‌Police‌‌from‌‌a‌‌period‌‌of‌‌                             
the‌‌last‌‌five‌‌years‌‌reveals‌‌no‌‌recorded‌‌injury‌‌accidents‌‌within‌‌the‌‌vicinity‌‌of‌‌the‌‌site.‌‌                             
Therefore,‌ ‌there‌ ‌is‌ ‌no‌ ‌evidence‌ ‌to‌ ‌suggest‌ ‌the‌ ‌nearby‌ ‌road‌ ‌network‌ ‌is‌ ‌operating‌‌                         
unsafely‌ ‌or‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposal‌ ‌would‌ ‌exacerbate‌ ‌an‌ ‌existing‌ ‌safety‌ ‌concern.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Conclusion‌ ‌ 
The‌‌LHA‌‌does‌‌not‌‌consider‌‌that‌‌this‌‌proposal‌‌would‌‌have‌‌an‌‌unacceptable‌‌impact‌‌on‌‌                           
highway‌ ‌safety‌ ‌or‌ ‌result‌ ‌in‌ ‌‘severe’‌ ‌cumulative‌ ‌impacts‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌operation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌                         
highway‌ ‌network,‌ ‌therefore‌ ‌is‌ ‌not‌ ‌contrary‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌National‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Policy‌‌                     
Framework‌ ‌(paragraph‌ ‌111),‌ ‌and‌ ‌that‌ ‌there‌ ‌are‌ ‌no‌ ‌transport‌ ‌grounds‌ ‌to‌ ‌resist‌ ‌the‌‌                         
proposal.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Adur‌ ‌&‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌Councils:‌ ‌ ‌   
‌ 

The‌ Environmental‌ ‌Health‌ ‌officer‌ ‌has‌ ‌requested‌ ‌additional‌ ‌information‌ ‌on‌ ‌what‌‌                   
consumables‌‌are‌‌intended‌‌for‌‌sale‌‌with‌‌any‌‌hot‌‌food‌‌or‌‌drinks,‌‌what‌‌means‌‌of‌‌power‌‌                             
for‌ ‌any‌ ‌equipment‌ ‌or‌ ‌lighting,‌ ‌and‌ ‌how‌ ‌waste‌ ‌and‌ ‌littering‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌managed.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌applicant‌ ‌has‌ ‌since‌ ‌provided‌ ‌a‌ ‌supporting‌ ‌statement‌ ‌to‌ ‌address‌ ‌these‌ ‌points‌‌                       
and‌ ‌the‌ ‌Environmental‌ ‌Health‌‌Officer‌‌has‌‌commented‌‌that‌‌the‌‌responses‌‌regarding‌‌                     
odour,‌ ‌noise‌ ‌and‌ ‌litter‌ ‌impacts‌ ‌appear‌‌satisfactory‌‌with‌‌conditions‌‌recommended‌‌to‌‌                     
limit‌ ‌the‌ ‌operation‌ ‌practices‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌business‌ ‌as‌ ‌stated‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌ ‌applicant‌ ‌with‌ ‌no‌‌hot‌‌                             
food‌ ‌preparation,‌ ‌power‌ ‌supplied‌ ‌by‌ ‌mains‌ ‌electricity,‌‌and‌‌a‌‌‘keep‌‌waste’‌‌operating‌‌                       
system‌ ‌with‌ ‌bins‌ ‌provided‌ ‌for‌ ‌customer‌ ‌use.‌ ‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

84



‌ 
‌ 

Representations‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Eighteen‌‌representations‌‌have‌‌been‌‌received‌‌from‌‌nearby‌‌residents‌‌objecting‌‌to‌‌the‌‌                     
proposals‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌following‌ ‌grounds:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

● Inappropriate‌ ‌commercial‌ ‌use/appearance‌ ‌in‌ ‌residential‌ ‌road/front‌ ‌garden‌ ‌ 
● Visual‌ ‌impact/out‌ ‌of‌ ‌character‌ ‌ ‌   
● Impact‌ ‌on‌ ‌parking‌ ‌and‌ ‌traffic/highway‌ ‌safety‌ ‌-‌ ‌school‌ ‌already‌ ‌causes‌‌                   

congestion‌ ‌on‌ ‌weekdays,‌ ‌and‌ ‌parking‌ ‌for‌ ‌The‌ ‌Gallops.‌ ‌Proposal‌ ‌would‌ ‌add‌‌                     
further‌ ‌congestion‌ ‌7‌ ‌days‌ ‌per‌ ‌week.‌ ‌Sometimes‌ ‌an‌ ‌ice‌ ‌cream‌ ‌van‌ ‌parks‌ ‌at‌‌                         
school‌ ‌gate‌ ‌and‌ ‌causes‌ ‌congestion‌ ‌where‌‌cars‌‌stay‌‌longer.‌‌Danger/highway‌‌                   
safety‌ ‌issues,‌ ‌adequacy‌ ‌of‌ ‌parking/turning/loading,‌ ‌access‌ ‌for‌ ‌emergency‌‌               
vehicles,‌ ‌adds‌ ‌to‌ ‌degradation‌ ‌of‌ ‌road‌ ‌surface‌‌ ‌  

● Impact‌ ‌to‌ ‌neighbours‌ ‌-‌ ‌noise,‌ ‌weekends‌ ‌can‌ ‌be‌ ‌quiet‌ ‌and‌ ‌use‌ ‌would‌ ‌cause‌‌                         
disturbance‌ ‌in‌ ‌early‌ ‌hours/weekends,‌ ‌odours/food‌ ‌smells/pollution,‌ ‌concern‌‌             
that‌ ‌the‌ ‌use‌ ‌may‌ ‌expand‌ ‌further/longer,‌‌loitering,‌‌overlooking/loss‌‌of‌‌privacy,‌‌                   
loss‌ ‌of‌ ‌light‌ ‌ 

● No‌ ‌need‌ ‌for‌ ‌proposals.‌ ‌Already‌ ‌cafes‌ ‌and‌ ‌refreshments‌ ‌available‌ ‌nearby‌ ‌in‌‌                     
Findon‌ ‌Road,‌ ‌potential‌ ‌loss‌ ‌of‌ ‌trade‌ ‌to‌ ‌other‌ ‌businesses‌‌ ‌  

● Increase‌ ‌in‌ ‌litter‌ ‌ 
● Contrary‌ ‌to‌ ‌planning‌ ‌policies‌ ‌ 

‌ 
One‌ ‌representation‌ ‌received‌ ‌from‌ ‌Councillor‌ ‌Louise‌ ‌Murphy‌ ‌stating‌ ‌that‌ ‌whilst‌ ‌she‌‌                     
supports‌ ‌the‌ ‌ambition‌ ‌to‌ ‌start‌ ‌a‌ ‌small‌ ‌business,‌ ‌the‌ ‌location‌ ‌is‌ ‌inappropriate,‌ ‌and‌‌                         
objects‌‌to‌‌the‌‌proposal‌‌on‌‌the‌‌grounds‌‌of‌‌it‌‌exacerbating‌‌issues‌‌of‌‌congestion‌‌and‌‌air‌‌                             
quality‌‌surrounding‌‌the‌‌Vale‌‌School,‌‌impact‌‌on‌‌the‌‌the‌‌peace‌‌and‌‌quiet‌‌enjoyment‌‌of‌‌                           
residents‌ ‌homes,‌‌and‌‌that‌‌commercial‌‌activity‌‌should‌‌be‌‌concentrated‌‌in‌‌population‌‌                     
centres‌ ‌or‌‌commercial‌‌locations‌‌and‌‌would‌‌not‌‌be‌‌in‌‌keeping‌‌in‌‌the‌‌local‌‌residential‌‌                           
area.‌ ‌ ‌   
‌ 

Relevant‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Policies‌ ‌and‌ ‌Guidance‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Saved‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Plan‌ ‌policies‌ ‌(WBC‌ ‌2003):‌ ‌H16,‌ ‌H18,‌ ‌TR9,‌ ‌RES7‌‌ ‌  
Worthing‌ ‌Core‌ ‌Strategy‌ ‌(WBC‌ ‌2011):‌ ‌Policy‌ ‌3,‌ ‌6,‌ ‌16,‌ ‌17,‌ ‌18‌ ‌and‌ ‌19‌‌ ‌  
Submission‌ ‌Draft‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Plan‌ ‌2020-2036:‌ ‌DM5,‌ ‌DM13‌‌ ‌  
National‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Policy‌ ‌Framework‌ ‌(HCLG‌ ‌2021)‌‌ ‌  
National‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Practice‌ ‌Guidance‌ ‌(CLG)‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Relevant‌ ‌Legislation‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌Committee‌ ‌should‌ ‌consider‌ ‌the‌ ‌planning‌ ‌application‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Section‌ ‌70‌‌of‌‌the‌‌Town‌‌and‌‌Country‌‌Planning‌‌Act‌‌1990‌‌(as‌‌amended)‌‌provides‌‌that‌‌                           
the‌ ‌application‌ ‌may‌ ‌be‌ ‌granted‌ ‌either‌ ‌unconditionally‌ ‌or‌ ‌subject‌ ‌to‌ ‌relevant‌‌                     
conditions,‌‌or‌‌refused.‌ ‌Regard‌‌shall‌‌be‌‌given‌‌to‌‌relevant‌‌development‌‌plan‌‌policies,‌‌                       
any‌ ‌relevant‌ ‌local‌ ‌finance‌ ‌considerations,‌ ‌and‌ ‌other‌ ‌material‌ ‌considerations‌ ‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

85



‌ 
‌ 

Planning‌ ‌Assessment‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌determining‌ ‌issues‌ ‌in‌ ‌this‌ ‌case‌ ‌relate‌ ‌to:‌ ‌the‌ ‌principle‌‌of‌‌the‌‌use‌‌of‌‌part‌‌of‌‌the‌‌                                 
site‌ ‌for‌ ‌a‌ ‌refreshments‌ ‌vehicle;‌ ‌the‌ ‌suitability‌‌of‌‌the‌‌site‌‌and‌‌visual‌‌amenity;‌‌impact‌‌                           
on‌ ‌the‌ ‌amenities‌ ‌of‌ ‌residential‌ ‌occupiers;‌ ‌access‌ ‌and‌ ‌parking.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Principle‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌National‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Policy‌ ‌Framework‌ ‌supports‌ ‌economic‌ ‌development,‌ ‌and‌‌                 
seeks‌ ‌to‌ ‌ensure‌ ‌the‌ ‌vitality‌‌of‌‌town‌‌centres,‌‌emphasising‌‌that‌‌planning‌‌policies‌‌and‌‌                         
decisions‌ ‌should‌ ‌support‌ ‌the‌ ‌role‌ ‌that‌ ‌town‌ ‌centres‌ ‌play‌ ‌at‌ ‌the‌ ‌heart‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌                           
community.‌‌Local‌‌planning‌‌authorities‌‌should‌‌pursue‌‌policies‌‌to‌‌define‌‌a‌‌network‌‌and‌‌                       
hierarchy‌ ‌of‌ ‌town‌ ‌centres‌ ‌and‌ ‌promote‌ ‌their‌ ‌long-term‌ ‌vitality‌ ‌and‌ ‌viability‌‌allowing‌‌                       
them‌ ‌to‌ ‌grow‌ ‌and‌ ‌diversify‌ ‌in‌ ‌a‌‌way‌‌that‌‌can‌‌respond‌‌to‌‌rapid‌‌changes‌‌in‌‌the‌‌retail‌‌                                 
and‌ ‌leisure‌ ‌industries.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

Policy‌‌6‌‌of‌‌the‌‌Worthing‌‌Core‌‌Strategy‌‌identifies‌‌a‌‌hierarchy‌‌of‌‌vital‌‌and‌‌viable‌‌town,‌‌                             
district‌ ‌and‌ ‌local‌ ‌centres‌ ‌and‌ ‌this‌ ‌is‌ ‌echoed‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌SDWLP.‌ ‌Whilst‌ ‌the‌ ‌application‌‌                           
site‌ ‌is‌ ‌situated‌ ‌outside‌ ‌any‌ ‌recognised‌ ‌centre,‌ ‌the‌ ‌nearest‌ ‌local‌ ‌shops‌ ‌being‌ ‌on‌‌                         
Findon‌‌Roa‌d,‌‌the‌‌proposal‌‌is‌‌unique‌‌in‌‌its‌‌scale‌‌and‌‌location‌‌and‌‌as‌‌such‌‌would‌‌not‌‌                               
detract‌‌from‌‌the‌‌vitality‌‌and‌‌viability‌‌of‌‌the‌‌town‌‌or‌‌local‌‌centres,‌‌and‌‌attracting‌‌much‌‌                             
of‌‌its‌‌trade‌‌from‌‌existing‌‌visitors‌‌to‌‌the‌‌vicinity‌‌due‌‌to‌‌its‌‌location‌‌close‌‌to‌‌the‌‌school‌‌                                 
and‌ ‌The‌ ‌Gallops.‌ ‌The‌ ‌proposal‌ ‌would‌ ‌provide‌ ‌a‌ ‌local‌ ‌facility‌ ‌primarily‌ ‌for‌ ‌these‌‌                         
existing‌ ‌visitors.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Members‌ ‌may‌ ‌recall‌ ‌similar‌ ‌proposals‌ ‌have‌ ‌come‌ ‌forward‌ ‌over‌ ‌recent‌ ‌years‌ ‌at‌‌                       
Homefield‌‌Park‌‌and‌‌at‌‌The‌‌Manor‌‌Ground‌‌where‌‌existing‌‌residential‌‌properties‌‌have‌‌                       
been‌ ‌used‌ ‌to‌ ‌provide‌ ‌refreshments.‌ ‌However,‌ ‌both‌ ‌these‌ ‌cases‌ ‌fronted‌ ‌access‌‌                     
points/roads‌ ‌into‌ ‌large‌ ‌parks.‌ ‌ 
‌ ‌  
The‌ ‌suitability‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌ ‌and‌ ‌visual‌ ‌amenity‌ ‌ ‌   
‌ 

The‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌use‌‌is‌‌unusual‌‌in‌‌a‌‌residential‌‌setting‌‌but‌‌in‌‌terms‌‌of‌‌the‌‌siting‌‌of‌‌the‌‌                                 
vehicle‌ ‌itself,‌ ‌it‌ ‌is‌ ‌acknowledged‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌driveway‌ ‌could‌ ‌accommodate‌ ‌a‌‌                       
similarly‌‌sized‌‌vehicle/s‌‌for‌‌parking‌‌without‌‌requiring‌‌planning‌‌permission,‌‌and‌‌in‌‌this‌‌                       
regard‌ ‌a‌ ‌refusal‌ ‌on‌ ‌visual‌ ‌amenity‌ ‌grounds‌ ‌is‌ ‌not‌ ‌considered‌ ‌ju‌stified.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

Other‌ ‌elements‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposal‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌relatively‌ ‌low‌ ‌key‌ ‌in‌ ‌terms‌ ‌of‌ ‌their‌‌visual‌‌                             
impact.‌ ‌The‌ ‌applicant‌ ‌has‌ ‌indicated‌ ‌that‌ ‌two‌ ‌‘A’‌ ‌boards‌‌would‌‌be‌‌used‌‌to‌‌advertise‌‌                           
the‌ ‌facility‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌displayed‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌the‌ ‌applicants‌ ‌driveway‌ ‌when‌ ‌trading‌ ‌and‌ ‌no‌‌                           
tables‌ ‌or‌ ‌chairs‌ ‌are‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌provided,‌ ‌with‌ ‌takeaway‌ ‌refreshments‌ ‌only,‌ ‌which‌‌would‌‌                         
assist‌ ‌in‌ ‌limiting‌ ‌its‌ ‌presence.‌ ‌The‌ ‌applicant‌ ‌has‌ ‌also‌ ‌indicated‌ ‌that‌ ‌at‌ ‌the‌ ‌end‌ ‌of‌‌                             
trading‌‌hours‌‌and‌‌overnight,‌‌the‌‌vehicle‌‌would‌‌be‌‌stored‌‌within‌‌the‌‌gated‌‌driveway‌‌at‌‌                           
the‌ ‌rear‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌ ‌which‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌less‌ ‌prominent‌ ‌than‌ ‌at‌ ‌the‌ ‌frontage.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

If‌‌approved,‌‌suitable‌‌planning‌‌controls‌‌could‌‌be‌‌imposed‌‌in‌‌this‌‌case‌‌with‌‌conditions‌‌                         
to‌ ‌ensure‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌use‌ ‌is‌ ‌limited‌ ‌as‌ ‌described‌ ‌with‌ ‌out‌ ‌of‌ ‌hours‌‌storage‌‌in‌‌the‌‌rear‌‌                                 
gated‌ ‌driveway‌ ‌and‌ ‌no‌ ‌tables‌ ‌and‌ ‌chairs‌ ‌provided.‌ ‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

86



‌ 
‌ 

Impact‌ ‌on‌ ‌residential‌ ‌amenity‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌‌siting‌‌of‌‌the‌‌vehicle‌‌towards‌‌the‌‌north/west‌‌corner‌‌of‌‌the‌‌site‌‌frontage,‌‌set‌‌back‌‌                             
and‌‌away‌‌from‌‌the‌‌adjoining‌‌dwelling‌‌would‌‌help‌‌minimise‌‌its‌‌physical‌‌impact‌‌on‌‌the‌‌                           
immediate‌ ‌neighbours,‌ ‌sited‌ ‌away‌ ‌from‌ ‌any‌ ‌boundaries‌ ‌with‌ ‌neighbouring‌ ‌dwellings.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌points‌ ‌raised‌‌in‌‌the‌‌representations‌‌concerning‌‌the‌‌level‌‌of‌‌activity,‌‌congestion,‌‌                       
residential‌ ‌setting,‌ ‌and‌ ‌additional‌ ‌noise‌ ‌and‌ ‌disturbance‌ ‌are‌ ‌acknowledged.‌ ‌ ‌   
‌ 

The‌ ‌applicant‌ ‌proposes‌ ‌to‌ ‌trade‌ ‌primarily‌ ‌during‌ ‌school‌ ‌drop-off‌ ‌and‌ ‌pick‌ ‌up‌‌times‌‌                         
when‌ ‌parents/carers‌ ‌of‌ ‌children‌ ‌attending‌ ‌the‌ ‌school‌ ‌will‌ ‌already‌ ‌be‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌vicinity,‌‌                         
and‌ ‌has‌ ‌further‌‌clarified‌‌that‌‌he‌‌intends‌‌that‌‌the‌‌business‌‌would‌‌be‌‌closed‌‌between‌‌                           
10am‌ ‌and‌ ‌1.30pm.‌ ‌In‌‌this‌‌respect‌‌and‌‌given‌‌the‌‌nature‌‌of‌‌the‌‌use,‌‌it‌‌is‌‌considered‌‌                               
that‌‌it‌‌is‌‌unlikely‌‌to‌‌attract‌‌a‌‌significant‌‌number‌‌of‌‌customers‌‌from‌‌elsewhere‌‌with‌‌the‌‌                             
majority‌ ‌of‌ ‌customers‌ ‌being‌ ‌from‌ ‌‘passing‌ ‌trade’‌ ‌from‌ ‌either‌ ‌the‌ ‌school‌‌or‌‌users‌‌of‌‌                           
The‌ ‌Gallops‌ ‌that‌ ‌would‌ ‌already‌ ‌be‌ ‌present.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌applicant‌ ‌has‌ ‌provided‌ ‌further‌ ‌clarification‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌nature‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌use‌ ‌with‌ ‌food‌‌                           
limited‌ ‌to‌ ‌pre-packaged‌ ‌confectionery‌ ‌and‌ ‌ice‌ ‌lollies,‌ ‌soft‌ ‌serve‌ ‌ice‌ ‌cream‌ ‌that‌‌                       
requires‌‌loose‌‌ingredients‌‌to‌‌be‌‌mixed‌‌in‌‌a‌‌machine,‌‌and‌‌hot‌‌and‌‌cold‌‌drinks.‌‌No‌‌hot‌‌                               
food‌‌preparation‌‌is‌‌required.‌‌The‌‌Environmental‌‌Health‌‌Officer‌‌is‌‌satisfied‌‌that‌‌there‌‌                       
would‌‌be‌‌no‌‌significant‌‌impact‌‌in‌‌terms‌‌of‌‌odour,‌‌noise‌‌or‌‌litter‌‌subject‌‌to‌‌limiting‌‌the‌‌                               
use‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌operational‌ ‌practices‌ ‌as‌ ‌stated‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌ ‌applicant,‌ ‌namely‌ ‌no‌ ‌hot‌ ‌food,‌‌                           
power‌ ‌to‌‌be‌‌supplied‌‌by‌‌mains‌‌electricity,‌‌and‌‌a‌‌‘keep‌‌waste’‌‌operating‌‌system‌‌with‌‌                           
bins‌ ‌provided‌ ‌on‌ ‌site‌ ‌for‌ ‌customer‌ ‌use.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

In‌‌the‌‌absence‌‌of‌‌any‌‌objection‌‌from‌‌the‌‌Environmental‌‌Health‌‌Officer,‌‌in‌‌the‌‌specific‌‌                           
circumstances‌ ‌of‌ ‌this‌ ‌site‌ ‌it‌ ‌is‌ ‌considered‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌intensity‌‌of‌‌the‌‌use‌‌is‌‌unlikely‌‌to‌‌                               
cause‌ ‌any‌ ‌significant‌ ‌detrimental‌ ‌impact‌ ‌to‌‌neighbouring‌‌residents‌‌in‌‌the‌‌context‌‌of‌‌                       
the‌ ‌level‌ ‌of‌ ‌activity‌ ‌already‌ ‌associated‌ ‌with‌‌the‌‌school‌‌during‌‌these‌‌times‌‌and‌‌from‌‌                           
visitors‌‌to‌‌The‌‌Gallops.‌ ‌However,‌‌given‌‌residents’‌‌objections‌‌and‌‌that‌‌the‌‌proposed‌‌                       
morning‌ ‌trading‌ ‌from‌ ‌7am‌ ‌is‌ ‌considered‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌at‌ ‌a‌ ‌time‌ ‌when‌ ‌residents‌ ‌would‌‌                           
otherwise‌ ‌reasonably‌ ‌expect‌ ‌quiet‌ ‌and‌ ‌when‌ ‌activity‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌school‌ ‌is‌ ‌limited,‌ ‌it‌‌                         
would‌ ‌be‌ ‌appropriate‌ ‌to‌ ‌restrict‌ ‌hours‌ ‌to‌ ‌between‌ ‌8.30am‌ ‌and‌ ‌10am‌ ‌and‌ ‌between‌‌                         
1.30pm‌ ‌to‌ ‌4.30‌ ‌pm‌ ‌on‌ ‌Mondays‌ ‌to‌‌Fridays.‌‌Outside‌‌of‌‌these‌‌hours‌‌some‌‌weekend‌‌                           
use‌ ‌is‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌but‌‌it‌‌is‌‌not‌‌anticipated‌‌that‌‌the‌‌use‌‌would‌‌attract‌‌a‌‌level‌‌of‌‌activity‌‌                                 
that‌ ‌would‌ ‌cause‌ ‌any‌ ‌significant‌ ‌noise‌ ‌or‌ ‌disturbance‌ ‌to‌ ‌neighbouring‌ ‌occupiers.‌‌                     
Hours‌ ‌of‌ ‌operation‌ ‌can‌ ‌be‌ ‌limited‌ ‌to‌ ‌between‌ ‌9.00am‌ ‌and‌ ‌4pm‌ ‌on‌ ‌Saturdays‌ ‌and‌‌                           
Sundays.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

A‌ ‌‌temporary‌ ‌permission‌ ‌would‌ ‌allow‌ ‌these‌‌factors‌‌to‌‌be‌‌monitored‌‌and‌‌reviewed‌‌in‌‌                         
the‌ ‌interests‌ ‌of‌ ‌protecting‌ ‌residential‌ ‌amenity‌‌and‌‌it‌‌is‌‌proposed‌‌that‌‌a‌‌period‌‌of‌‌12‌‌                             
months‌‌would‌‌be‌‌appropriate.‌‌Conditions‌‌preventing‌‌customer‌‌seating‌‌areas,‌‌and‌‌no‌‌                     
customer‌ ‌parking‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌provided‌ ‌on‌ ‌site‌ ‌are‌ ‌also‌ ‌recommended‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌interests‌ ‌of‌‌                           
limiting‌ ‌the‌ ‌level‌ ‌of‌ ‌activity‌ ‌on‌ ‌site.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

Parking‌ ‌and‌ ‌Access‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌use‌ ‌is‌ ‌relatively‌ ‌modest‌ ‌in‌ ‌scale,‌ ‌with‌ ‌customers‌ ‌anticipated‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌‌                         
primarily‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌passing‌ ‌trade‌ ‌generated‌ ‌by‌‌existing‌‌users‌‌of‌‌the‌‌school‌‌and‌‌The‌‌                           

87



‌ 
‌ 

Gallops.‌ ‌Given‌ ‌the‌ ‌nature‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌use‌ ‌it‌ ‌is‌ ‌unlikely‌ ‌to‌ ‌attract‌ ‌a‌ ‌significant‌ ‌level‌ ‌of‌‌                               
further‌‌trade‌‌from‌‌the‌‌wider‌‌area,‌‌with‌‌this‌‌demand‌‌already‌‌catered‌‌for‌‌in‌‌businesses‌‌                           
in‌‌Findon‌‌Road.‌ ‌Parking‌‌and‌‌access‌‌issues‌‌are‌‌unlikely‌‌to‌‌be‌‌materially‌‌worsened‌‌                         
by‌‌the‌‌proposal.‌‌Residential‌‌parking‌‌for‌‌the‌‌occupiers‌‌of‌‌No.24‌‌would‌‌remain‌‌on‌‌the‌‌                           
frontage‌‌or‌‌on‌‌the‌‌rear‌‌driveway.‌ ‌The‌‌Highway‌‌Authority‌‌has‌‌raised‌‌no‌‌objection‌‌to‌‌                           
the‌ ‌proposal.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Sustainability‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

The‌ ‌use‌ ‌would‌ ‌primarily‌ ‌provide‌ ‌a‌ ‌facility‌ ‌for‌ ‌existing‌ ‌school‌ ‌visitors‌ ‌and‌ ‌children,‌‌                         
and‌ ‌for‌ ‌users‌ ‌of‌‌The‌‌Gallops‌‌already‌‌visiting‌‌the‌‌site.‌‌The‌‌proposal‌‌would‌‌allow‌‌the‌‌                             
applicant‌ ‌to‌ ‌work‌ ‌from‌ ‌home.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Conclusion‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌application‌ ‌is‌ ‌an‌ ‌entrepreneurial‌ ‌attempt‌ ‌to‌ ‌provide‌ ‌takeaway‌ ‌drinks‌ ‌and‌‌                     
refreshments‌ ‌primarily‌ ‌for‌ ‌existing‌ ‌visitors‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌school‌ ‌and‌ ‌The‌ ‌Gallops‌ ‌and‌‌                       
although‌ ‌it‌ ‌is‌ ‌unusual‌ ‌in‌ ‌its‌ ‌circumstances‌ ‌and‌ ‌residential‌ ‌setting,‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌specific‌‌                         
circumstances‌ ‌of‌ ‌this‌ ‌proposal‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌ ‌it‌ ‌is‌ ‌unlikely‌ ‌to‌ ‌cause‌ ‌any‌ ‌detrimental‌‌                           
impact‌‌on‌‌the‌‌amenity‌‌of‌‌local‌‌residents‌‌or‌‌the‌‌area‌‌generally‌‌subject‌‌to‌‌appropriate‌‌                           
conditions‌ ‌and,‌‌on‌‌balance,‌‌can‌‌be‌‌supported‌‌on‌‌a‌‌temporary‌‌basis‌‌to‌‌allow‌‌its‌‌use‌‌                             
to‌ ‌be‌ ‌monitored.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Recommendation‌ ‌ 

‌ 
It‌‌is‌‌recommended‌‌that‌‌planning‌‌permission‌‌be‌‌APPROVED‌,‌‌subject‌‌to‌‌the‌‌following‌‌                       
conditions:-‌ ‌ 

‌ ‌   
1. Approved‌ ‌Plans‌ ‌ 
2. Temporary‌ ‌permission‌ ‌-‌ ‌12‌ ‌months‌ ‌ 
3. Trading‌ ‌hours‌ ‌from‌ ‌8.30am‌ ‌to‌ ‌10.00am‌ ‌and‌ ‌1.30pm‌ ‌to‌ ‌4.30pm‌ ‌Monday‌ ‌to‌‌                       

Friday‌ ‌and‌ ‌9.00am‌ ‌to‌ ‌4.00pm‌ ‌on‌ ‌Saturdays‌ ‌and‌ ‌Sundays.‌ ‌ 
4. No‌ ‌hot‌ ‌food‌ ‌preparation‌ ‌on‌ ‌or‌ ‌sales‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌premises‌ ‌ 
5. No‌ ‌customer‌ ‌seating‌ ‌(tables/chairs)‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌provided‌ ‌at‌ ‌the‌ ‌site‌ ‌ 
6. Power‌ ‌supply‌ ‌by‌ ‌mains‌ ‌electricity‌ ‌supply‌ ‌only‌ ‌ 
7. Storage‌‌of‌‌vehicle‌‌on‌‌rear‌‌gated‌‌driveway‌‌at‌‌the‌‌end‌‌of‌‌trading‌‌and‌‌overnight‌‌                           

each‌ ‌day‌ ‌ 
8. ‘Keep‌ ‌waste’‌ ‌policy‌ ‌to‌ ‌implemented‌ ‌with‌ ‌details‌ ‌of‌ ‌customer‌ ‌litter‌ ‌bins‌ ‌to‌‌be‌‌                         

agreed,‌ ‌and‌ ‌provided‌ ‌on‌ ‌site‌ ‌when‌ ‌use‌ ‌is‌ ‌in‌ ‌operation‌ ‌ 
9. No‌ ‌customer‌ ‌parking‌ ‌is‌ ‌permitted‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌residential‌ ‌curtilage‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌site.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

88



‌ 
‌ 

6‌ ‌ 
‌ 

‌ 

‌ 
Not‌ ‌to‌ ‌Scale‌ ‌ ‌   

Reproduced‌ ‌from‌ ‌OS‌ ‌Mapping‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌permission‌ ‌of‌ ‌HMSO‌ ‌©‌ ‌Crown‌ ‌Copyright‌ ‌Licence‌ ‌number‌ ‌LA100024321‌ ‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

Application‌ ‌Number:‌ ‌  AWDM/1746/21‌ ‌  Recommendation‌ ‌-‌ ‌APPROVE‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Site:‌ ‌  Central‌ ‌Pavilion,‌ ‌Beach‌ ‌House‌ ‌Park,‌ ‌Lyndhurst‌ ‌Road,‌‌ 
Worthing‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Proposal:‌ ‌  Change‌ ‌of‌ ‌use‌ ‌from‌ ‌clubhouse‌ ‌to‌ ‌restaurant/cafe‌ ‌(Use‌‌ 

Class‌ ‌A3)‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌ground‌ ‌floor‌ ‌with‌ ‌associated‌ ‌function‌‌ 
space‌ ‌at‌ ‌first‌ ‌floor‌ ‌(application‌ ‌to‌ ‌Vary‌ ‌Condition‌ ‌4‌ ‌of‌‌ 
previously‌ ‌approved‌ ‌AWDM/0624/15‌ ‌to‌ ‌allow‌‌ 
occasional‌ ‌wedding‌ ‌ceremonies).‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Applicant:‌ ‌  Mr‌ ‌Seamus‌ ‌Kirk‌ ‌  Ward:‌ ‌Central‌ ‌ 
Agent:‌ ‌  N/A‌ ‌ 
Case‌ ‌Officer:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Gary‌ ‌Peck‌ ‌ 

89



‌ 
‌ 

Proposal,‌ ‌Site‌ ‌and‌ ‌Surroundings‌ ‌ ‌   
‌ 

This‌ ‌application‌ ‌is‌ ‌brought‌ ‌before‌ ‌the‌ ‌Committee‌ ‌as‌ ‌the‌ ‌Council‌ ‌is‌ ‌the‌ ‌landowner.‌ ‌ ‌   
‌ 

This‌ ‌application‌ ‌seeks‌ ‌permission‌ ‌to‌ ‌vary‌ ‌condition‌ ‌4‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌permission‌ ‌granted‌‌                       
under‌‌reference‌‌AWDM/0624/15.‌‌The‌‌previous‌‌permission‌‌granted‌‌a‌‌‌Change‌‌of‌‌use‌‌                     
from‌ ‌clubhouse‌ ‌to‌ ‌restaurant/cafe‌ ‌(Use‌ ‌Class‌ ‌A3)‌ ‌on‌ ‌the‌ ‌ground‌ ‌floor‌ ‌with‌‌                       
associated‌ ‌function‌ ‌space‌ ‌at‌ ‌first‌ ‌floor‌ ‌‌and‌ ‌condition‌ ‌4‌ ‌stated:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌‌building‌‌shall‌‌be‌‌used‌‌only‌‌as‌‌a‌‌cafe/restaurant‌‌(Use‌‌Class‌‌A3)‌‌with‌‌associated‌‌                           
function‌ ‌room‌ ‌and‌ ‌for‌ ‌no‌ ‌other‌ ‌purpose.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

This‌ ‌application‌ ‌seeks‌ ‌to‌ ‌vary‌ ‌the‌ ‌condition‌ ‌to‌ ‌allow‌ ‌the‌ ‌occasional‌ ‌use‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌                           
building‌ ‌for‌ ‌wedding‌ ‌ceremonies.‌ ‌ 

The‌‌application‌‌site‌‌comprises‌‌the‌‌pavilion‌‌in‌‌Beach‌‌House‌‌Park‌‌which‌‌was‌‌originally‌‌                         
constructed‌ ‌in‌ ‌1925‌ ‌as‌ ‌a‌ ‌clubhouse‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌Bowling‌ ‌Club.‌ ‌It‌ ‌has‌ ‌previously‌ ‌been‌‌                           
used‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌ ‌Council’s‌ ‌Parks‌ ‌section‌ ‌as‌ ‌a‌ ‌base‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌Park‌ ‌Attendant‌ ‌and‌ ‌as‌ ‌an‌‌                               
occasional‌‌venue‌‌for‌‌meetings‌‌prior‌‌to‌‌the‌‌implementation‌‌of‌‌the‌‌planning‌‌permission‌‌                       
granted‌ ‌in‌ ‌2015.‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌site‌ ‌is‌ ‌centrally‌ ‌positioned‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌park‌ ‌between‌ ‌the‌ ‌bowling‌ ‌greens‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌‌                           
north‌ ‌and‌ ‌south.‌ ‌It‌ ‌is‌‌equidistant‌‌between‌‌properties‌‌in‌‌Madeira‌‌Avenue‌‌to‌‌the‌‌east‌‌                           
and‌‌Park‌‌Road‌‌to‌‌the‌‌west.‌‌The‌‌building‌‌has‌‌two‌‌floors.‌‌Although‌‌not‌‌listed‌‌or‌‌within‌‌                               
the‌ ‌Conservation‌ ‌Area,‌ ‌the‌ ‌building‌ ‌has‌ ‌been‌ ‌identified‌ ‌formally‌ ‌as‌ ‌a‌ ‌Building‌ ‌of‌‌                         
Local‌ ‌Interest.‌ ‌ 

Relevant‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌History‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

AWDM/0624/15:‌ ‌Change‌ ‌of‌ ‌use‌ ‌from‌ ‌clubhouse‌ ‌to‌ ‌restaurant/cafe‌ ‌(Use‌ ‌Class‌ ‌A3)‌‌                     
on‌‌the‌‌ground‌‌floor‌‌with‌‌associated‌‌function‌‌space‌‌at‌‌first‌‌floor.‌ ‌New‌‌raised‌‌decking‌‌                           
for‌ ‌use‌ ‌as‌ ‌an‌ ‌external‌ ‌seating‌ ‌area‌ ‌to‌ ‌front.‌ ‌-‌ ‌Approved‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Subsequent‌ ‌permissions‌ ‌were‌ ‌granted‌ ‌in‌ ‌2019‌ ‌for‌ ‌changes‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌doors‌ ‌and‌‌                       
windows‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌building.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Consultations‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

West‌ ‌Sussex‌ ‌Highways:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

No‌‌letter‌‌or‌‌planning‌‌statement‌‌has‌‌been‌‌supplied‌‌with‌‌the‌‌application‌‌indicating‌‌any‌‌                         
idea‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌number‌‌of‌‌events‌‌per‌‌year‌‌or‌‌the‌‌level‌‌of‌‌numbers‌‌each‌‌event‌‌will‌‌cater‌‌                                 
for.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

However,‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Highway‌ ‌Authority’s‌‌point‌‌of‌‌view‌‌the‌‌property‌‌is‌‌not‌‌large‌‌                           
and‌ ‌there‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌no‌ ‌concerns‌ ‌with‌ ‌access‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌highway‌ ‌into‌ ‌the‌ ‌car‌ ‌park.‌‌                             
There‌‌is‌‌a‌‌large‌‌public‌‌car‌‌park‌‌to‌‌the‌‌front‌‌also‌‌which‌‌could‌‌be‌‌used‌‌for‌‌parking,‌‌as‌‌                                   
the‌ ‌site‌ ‌itself‌ ‌appears‌ ‌to‌ ‌have‌ ‌no‌ ‌private‌ ‌parking.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

90



‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Highway‌ ‌Authority‌ ‌does‌ ‌not‌ ‌consider‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposal‌ ‌would‌ ‌have‌ ‌an‌‌                         
unacceptable‌ ‌impact‌ ‌on‌ ‌highway‌ ‌safety‌ ‌or‌ ‌result‌ ‌in‌ ‌‘severe’‌ ‌cumulative‌‌impacts‌‌on‌‌                       
the‌ ‌operation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌highway‌ ‌network,‌ ‌therefore‌ ‌is‌ ‌not‌ ‌contrary‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌National‌‌                         
Planning‌‌Policy‌‌Framework‌‌(paragraph‌‌111),‌‌and‌‌that‌‌there‌‌are‌‌no‌‌transport‌‌grounds‌‌                       
to‌ ‌resist‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposal.‌‌  
‌ 

Environmental‌ ‌Health‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Original‌ ‌comment:‌ ‌‌With‌ ‌reference‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌above‌ ‌application‌ ‌to‌ ‌vary‌ ‌condition‌ ‌4‌ ‌to‌‌                         
allow‌ ‌occasional‌ ‌wedding‌ ‌ceremonies.‌ ‌Please‌ ‌could‌ ‌the‌ ‌applicant‌ ‌provide‌ ‌more‌‌                   
detail‌‌about‌‌exactly‌‌what‌‌is‌‌being‌‌proposed?‌‌Is‌‌it‌‌just‌‌the‌‌wedding‌‌ceremony‌‌or‌‌is‌‌it‌‌                               
both‌ ‌the‌ ‌ceremony‌ ‌and‌ ‌wedding‌ ‌reception‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌applicant‌ ‌is‌ ‌proposing‌ ‌at‌ ‌this‌ ‌site?‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌applicant‌ ‌responded:‌ ‌we‌ ‌already‌ ‌cater‌ ‌for‌ ‌wedding‌ ‌receptions.‌ ‌It's‌ ‌the‌‌                     
application‌‌for‌‌the‌‌palm‌‌court‌‌to‌‌be‌‌licensed‌‌to‌‌carry‌‌civil‌‌partnerships‌‌in‌‌the‌‌first‌‌floor‌‌                               
room.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Further‌ ‌comment:‌ ‌Thank‌‌you‌‌for‌‌providing‌‌clarification‌‌concerning‌‌this‌‌application.‌‌I‌‌                     
can‌ ‌confirm‌ ‌that‌ ‌I‌ ‌have‌ ‌no‌ ‌adverse‌ ‌comments.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Representations‌ ‌ 
‌ 

None‌ ‌received‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Relevant‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Policies‌ ‌and‌ ‌Guidance‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Worthing‌ ‌Core‌ ‌Strategy‌ ‌(2011):‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Policy‌ ‌3‌ ‌Providing‌ ‌for‌ ‌a‌ ‌Diverse‌ ‌and‌ ‌Sustainable‌ ‌Economy,‌ ‌Policy‌ ‌5‌ ‌The‌ ‌Visitor‌‌                         
Economy,‌‌Policy‌‌11‌‌Protecting‌‌and‌‌Enhancing‌‌Recreation‌‌and‌‌Community‌‌Uses‌‌and‌‌                     
Policy‌ ‌16‌ ‌Built‌ ‌Environment‌ ‌and‌ ‌Design‌ ‌ ‌   
‌ 

Supplementary‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Document‌ ‌‘Sustainable‌ ‌Economy’‌ ‌(WBC‌ ‌2012)‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Relevant‌ ‌Legislation‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌Committee‌ ‌should‌ ‌consider‌ ‌the‌ ‌planning‌ ‌application‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Section‌ ‌70‌‌of‌‌the‌‌Town‌‌and‌‌Country‌‌Planning‌‌Act‌‌1990‌‌(as‌‌amended)‌‌provides‌‌that‌‌                           
the‌ ‌application‌ ‌may‌ ‌be‌ ‌granted‌ ‌either‌ ‌unconditionally‌ ‌or‌ ‌subject‌ ‌to‌ ‌relevant‌‌                     
conditions,‌‌or‌‌refused.‌ ‌Regard‌‌shall‌‌be‌‌given‌‌to‌‌relevant‌‌development‌‌plan‌‌policies,‌‌                       
any‌ ‌relevant‌ ‌local‌ ‌finance‌ ‌considerations,‌ ‌and‌ ‌other‌ ‌material‌ ‌considerations‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Planning‌ ‌Assessment‌ ‌ 

‌ 
The‌ ‌main‌ ‌issue‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌determination‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌application‌ ‌is‌ ‌the‌ ‌effect‌ ‌of‌‌the‌‌proposal‌‌                             
upon‌ ‌the‌ ‌character‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌area.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌‌building‌‌already‌‌has‌‌a‌‌function‌‌room‌‌which‌‌is‌‌permitted‌‌under‌‌the‌‌2015‌‌consent.‌‌                           
This‌ ‌allows‌ ‌for‌ ‌wedding‌ ‌receptions‌ ‌and‌ ‌it‌ ‌is‌ ‌understood‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌room‌ ‌is‌ ‌used‌ ‌for‌‌                             

91



‌ 
‌ 

such‌ ‌purposes.‌ ‌The‌ ‌applicant‌ ‌is‌ ‌seeking‌ ‌a‌ ‌license‌ ‌to‌ ‌hold‌ ‌the‌ ‌wedding‌ ‌ceremony‌‌                         
itself‌ ‌and‌ ‌as‌ ‌such‌ ‌would‌ ‌require‌ ‌a‌ ‌variation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌condition.‌‌Given‌‌that‌‌there‌‌is‌‌an‌‌                               
existing‌ ‌function‌ ‌room,‌ ‌your‌ ‌officers‌ ‌consider‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌ability‌ ‌to‌ ‌hold‌ ‌a‌ ‌wedding‌‌                         
ceremony‌‌within‌‌it‌‌would‌‌have‌‌little‌‌effect‌‌on‌‌the‌‌wider‌‌character‌‌of‌‌the‌‌area.‌‌The‌‌site‌‌                               
is‌‌sufficiently‌‌distant‌‌from‌‌the‌‌nearest‌‌residential‌‌properties‌‌and‌‌it‌‌is‌‌considered‌‌that‌‌                         
the‌‌use‌‌of‌‌the‌‌building‌‌would‌‌have‌‌little‌‌material‌‌impact‌‌upon‌‌the‌‌amenities‌‌of‌‌those‌‌                             
properties.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌proposal‌ ‌is‌ ‌therefore‌ ‌considered‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌acceptable.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Recommendation‌ ‌ 
‌ 

It‌‌is‌‌recommended‌‌that‌‌planning‌‌permission‌‌be‌‌APPROVED‌,‌‌subject‌‌to‌‌the‌‌following‌‌                       
conditions:-‌ ‌ 

‌ ‌   
1. Approved‌ ‌Plans‌ ‌ 
2. The‌ ‌building‌ ‌shall‌ ‌be‌ ‌used‌ ‌only‌ ‌as‌ ‌a‌ ‌cafe/restaurant‌ ‌(Use‌ ‌Class‌ ‌A3)‌ ‌with‌‌                         
associated‌ ‌function‌ ‌room‌ ‌(including‌ ‌use‌ ‌for‌ ‌wedding‌ ‌ceremonies)‌ ‌and‌ ‌for‌ ‌no‌ ‌other‌‌                       
purpose.‌ ‌ 
‌ 
Reason‌:‌ ‌‌In‌ ‌the‌ ‌interests‌ ‌of‌ ‌amenity‌ ‌having‌ ‌regard‌ ‌to‌ ‌saved‌ ‌policy‌ ‌H18‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌                           
Worthing‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Plan.‌ ‌ 
‌ 
3. The‌ ‌premises‌ ‌shall‌ ‌not‌ ‌be‌ ‌open‌ ‌for‌ ‌trade,‌ ‌business‌ ‌or‌ ‌private‌ ‌functions‌‌                       
other‌‌than‌‌between‌‌the‌‌hours‌‌of‌‌8am‌‌and‌‌11pm‌‌Monday-Sunday‌‌and‌‌there‌‌shall‌‌                         
be‌ ‌no‌ ‌outside‌ ‌activities‌ ‌or‌ ‌use‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌terrace‌ ‌before‌ ‌8am‌ ‌or‌‌after‌‌10pm‌‌on‌‌any‌‌                               
day.‌ ‌All‌ ‌activity‌ ‌associated‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌restaurant‌ ‌shall‌ ‌cease‌ ‌within‌‌30‌‌minutes‌‌of‌‌                         
closing‌ ‌time‌ ‌(i.e.‌ ‌by‌ ‌11.30pm‌ ‌Monday-Sunday).‌ ‌ 
‌ 
Reason‌:‌ ‌‌In‌‌the‌‌interests‌‌of‌‌amenity‌‌having‌‌regard‌‌to‌‌saved‌‌policies‌‌RES7‌‌and‌‌                         
H18‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Plan.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

4.‌ The‌‌level‌‌of‌‌music‌‌played‌‌at‌‌the‌‌premises‌‌shall‌‌not‌‌exceed‌‌a‌‌level‌‌of‌‌55dB‌‌                             
LAeq,‌ ‌measured‌ ‌at‌ ‌a‌ ‌height‌ ‌of‌ ‌1.5m‌ ‌at‌ ‌any‌ ‌position‌‌on‌‌the‌‌boundary‌‌of‌‌Beach‌‌                             
House‌‌Park,‌‌Lyndhurst‌‌Road.‌‌No‌‌music‌‌shall‌‌be‌‌played‌‌outside‌‌of‌‌the‌‌pavilion‌‌or‌‌                           
relayed‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌outside‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌pavilion.‌ ‌ 

‌ ‌  
Reason‌:‌ ‌To‌ ‌safeguard‌ ‌the‌ ‌amenities‌ ‌of‌ ‌nearby‌ ‌properties‌ ‌having‌ ‌regard‌ ‌to‌‌                       
saved‌ ‌policies‌ ‌RES7‌ ‌and‌ ‌H18‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Plan.‌ ‌ 

‌ ‌  
5.‌ No‌ ‌deliveries‌ ‌to‌ ‌or‌ ‌collections‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌premises‌ ‌shall‌ ‌take‌ ‌place‌ ‌other‌‌                       
than‌ ‌between‌ ‌07:30‌ ‌to‌ ‌20:00‌ ‌hours‌ ‌Monday‌ ‌to‌ ‌Saturday‌ ‌and‌ ‌10:00‌ ‌to‌ ‌18:00‌‌                         
hours‌ ‌on‌ ‌Sundays‌ ‌and‌ ‌Public‌ ‌Holidays‌ ‌ 

‌ ‌  
Reason‌:‌ ‌To‌ ‌safeguard‌ ‌the‌ ‌amenities‌ ‌of‌ ‌nearby‌ ‌properties‌ ‌having‌ ‌regard‌ ‌to‌‌                     
saved‌ ‌policies‌ ‌RES7‌ ‌and‌ ‌H18‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Plan.‌ ‌ 

‌ ‌  
6.‌ No‌ ‌bottles‌ ‌shall‌ ‌be‌‌placed‌‌into‌‌any‌‌outside‌‌receptacles‌‌after‌‌22:00‌‌hours‌‌                       
or‌ ‌before‌ ‌07:30‌ ‌hours‌ ‌on‌ ‌any‌ ‌day.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

92



‌ 
‌ 

Reason‌:‌ ‌To‌ ‌safeguard‌ ‌the‌ ‌amenities‌ ‌of‌ ‌nearby‌ ‌properties‌ ‌having‌ ‌regard‌ ‌to‌‌                     
saved‌ ‌policies‌ ‌RES7‌ ‌and‌ ‌H18‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Plan.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

93



‌ 
‌ 

7‌ ‌ 
‌ 

‌ 

‌ 
Not‌ ‌to‌ ‌Scale‌ ‌ ‌   

Reproduced‌ ‌from‌ ‌OS‌ ‌Mapping‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌permission‌ ‌of‌ ‌HMSO‌ ‌©‌ ‌Crown‌ ‌Copyright‌ ‌Licence‌ ‌number‌ ‌LA100024321‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Application‌ ‌Number:‌ ‌  AWDM/1843/21‌ ‌  Recommendation‌ ‌-‌‌ 
APPROVE‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Site:‌ ‌  Brooklands‌ ‌Pleasure‌ ‌Park,‌ ‌Brighton‌ ‌Road,‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Proposal:‌ ‌  Demolition‌ ‌of‌ ‌existing‌ ‌toilet‌ ‌block‌ ‌and‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌new‌               

cafe‌ ‌and‌ ‌public‌ ‌toilets,‌ ‌plant‌ ‌and‌ ‌refuse‌ ‌room,‌               
accessible‌‌play‌‌area,‌‌with‌‌associated‌‌landscaping‌‌and‌             
bike‌ ‌storage‌ ‌‌(application‌ ‌to‌ ‌vary‌ ‌condition‌ ‌No.‌ ‌1‌ ‌of‌                 
previous‌ ‌approval‌ ‌‌AWDM/0266/20‌ ‌‌-‌ ‌amending‌ ‌the‌           
approved‌ ‌plans‌ ‌relating‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌design‌ ‌and‌ ‌size‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌                   
approved‌ ‌cafe‌ ‌and‌ ‌toilet‌ ‌building).‌ ‌ 

Applicant:‌ ‌  Ruth‌ ‌Miller,‌‌ ‌  
Worthing‌ ‌Borough‌ ‌Council‌ ‌ 

Ward:‌ ‌Selden‌ ‌ 

Agent:‌ ‌  Mr‌ ‌Johnathan‌ ‌Puplett,‌ ‌Whaleback‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌and‌ ‌Design‌ ‌ 
Case‌ ‌Officer:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Gary‌ ‌Peck‌ ‌ 

94

https://planning.adur-worthing.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?keyVal=Q5NB6UCB05900&activeTab=summary
https://planning.adur-worthing.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?keyVal=Q5NB6UCB05900&activeTab=summary
https://planning.adur-worthing.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?keyVal=Q5NB6UCB05900&activeTab=summary
https://planning.adur-worthing.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?keyVal=Q5NB6UCB05900&activeTab=summary
https://planning.adur-worthing.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?keyVal=Q5NB6UCB05900&activeTab=summary
https://planning.adur-worthing.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?keyVal=Q5NB6UCB05900&activeTab=summary


‌ 
‌ 

Proposal,‌ ‌Site‌ ‌and‌ ‌Surroundings‌ ‌ ‌   
‌ 

This‌‌application‌‌seeks‌‌a‌‌variation‌‌of‌‌a‌‌permission‌‌granted‌‌last‌‌year‌‌for‌‌the‌‌demolition‌‌                           
of‌ ‌a‌ ‌toilet‌ ‌block,‌ ‌erection‌ ‌of‌ ‌cafe‌ ‌and‌ ‌new‌ ‌toilets,‌ ‌play‌ ‌area‌ ‌and‌ ‌bike‌ ‌storage.‌ ‌The‌‌                               
revised‌‌design‌‌of‌‌the‌‌cafe‌‌building‌‌comprises‌‌a‌‌flat‌‌roofed‌‌timber‌‌clad‌‌building,‌‌with‌‌                           
grey‌‌framed‌‌glazed‌‌doors‌‌and‌‌a‌‌pergola‌‌sheltered‌‌external‌‌timber‌‌deck‌‌seating‌‌area‌‌                         
and‌ ‌would‌ ‌contain‌ ‌three‌ ‌public‌ ‌toilets‌ ‌(one‌ ‌fully‌ ‌accessible),‌ ‌a‌ ‌main‌‌space‌‌for‌‌café‌‌                           
seating,‌ ‌and‌ ‌a‌ ‌kitchen‌ ‌and‌ ‌store.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

As‌ ‌per‌ ‌the‌ ‌previous‌ ‌approval,‌ ‌the‌ ‌three‌‌trees‌‌alongside‌‌the‌‌existing‌‌toilet‌‌block‌‌are‌‌                           
required‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌removed‌ ‌to‌ ‌facilitate‌ ‌the‌ ‌development‌ ‌with‌‌mitigation‌‌to‌‌be‌‌provided‌‌                         
by‌ ‌a‌ ‌significant‌ ‌level‌ ‌of‌‌new‌‌tree‌‌planting‌‌around‌‌the‌‌proposed‌‌café‌‌building‌‌and‌‌to‌‌                             
the‌ ‌wider‌ ‌car‌ ‌park‌ ‌area.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌café‌ ‌building‌ ‌is‌ ‌smaller‌‌than‌‌that‌‌previously‌‌approved‌‌(reduced‌‌by‌‌just‌‌over‌‌50‌‌                           
square‌ ‌metres‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌original‌ ‌size‌ ‌of‌ ‌365‌ ‌square‌ ‌metres).‌ ‌The‌ ‌previous‌ ‌scheme‌‌                         
was‌ ‌described‌ ‌as‌ ‌a‌ ‌long‌ ‌building‌ ‌with‌ ‌curved‌ ‌ends,‌ ‌split‌ ‌centrally‌ ‌to‌ ‌delineate‌ ‌the‌‌                           
division‌ ‌between‌ ‌the‌ ‌public‌ ‌toilets‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌café.‌ ‌The‌ ‌design‌‌now‌‌proposed‌‌is‌‌a‌‌flat‌‌                             
roofed‌ ‌timber‌ ‌clad‌ ‌building,‌ ‌with‌ ‌grey‌ ‌framed‌‌glazed‌‌doors‌‌and‌‌a‌‌pergola‌‌sheltered‌‌                         
external‌ ‌timber‌ ‌deck‌ ‌seating‌ ‌area.‌ ‌The‌ ‌play‌ ‌area‌ ‌works‌ ‌previously‌ ‌approved‌ ‌are‌‌                       
unaffected.‌ ‌ 

The‌ ‌application‌ ‌site‌ ‌is‌ ‌owned‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌ ‌Council‌ ‌and‌ ‌measures‌ ‌approximately‌ ‌22ha‌‌in‌‌                         
total.‌‌The‌‌site‌‌area‌‌is‌‌given‌‌as‌‌0.57‌‌hectares‌‌and‌‌is‌‌situated‌‌within‌‌the‌‌north‌‌eastern‌‌                               
corner‌‌of‌‌the‌‌park‌‌bounded‌‌by‌‌Western‌‌Road‌‌to‌‌the‌‌east.‌‌The‌‌site‌‌is‌‌also‌‌covered‌‌by‌‌                                 
parkland/grassed‌ ‌areas‌ ‌and‌ ‌mature‌ ‌trees.‌ ‌ 

Relevant‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌History‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

Planning‌ ‌permission‌ ‌was‌ ‌granted‌ ‌in‌ ‌May‌ ‌2020‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌Demolition‌ ‌of‌ ‌existing‌ ‌toilet‌‌                         
block‌ ‌and‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌new‌ ‌cafe‌ ‌and‌ ‌public‌ ‌toilets,‌ ‌plant‌ ‌and‌‌refuse‌‌room,‌‌accessible‌‌                         
play‌ ‌area,‌ ‌with‌ ‌associated‌ ‌landscaping‌ ‌and‌ ‌bike‌ ‌storage‌ ‌(AWDM/0266/20).‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Consultations‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

Arboricultural‌ ‌Officer‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Tree‌ ‌protection‌ ‌plans‌ ‌are‌ ‌considered‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌acceptable.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Environmental‌ ‌Health‌ ‌ 
‌ 

No‌ ‌objection‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Southern‌ ‌Water‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Comments‌ ‌for‌ ‌previous‌ ‌application‌ ‌still‌ ‌apply‌ ‌(no‌ ‌objection‌ ‌subject‌ ‌to‌ ‌conditions)‌ ‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

95



‌ 
‌ 

Technical‌ ‌Services‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌drainage‌ ‌conditions‌ ‌imposed‌ ‌under‌ ‌the‌ ‌previous‌ ‌permission‌ ‌will‌ ‌need‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌‌                       
discharged‌ ‌again.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

West‌ ‌Sussex‌ ‌Highways‌ ‌ 
‌ 

This‌ ‌proposal‌ ‌seeks‌ ‌the‌ ‌variation‌ ‌of‌ ‌Condition‌ ‌1‌‌of‌‌previously‌‌approved‌‌application‌‌                       
AWDM/0266/20,‌ ‌to‌ ‌allow‌ ‌for‌ ‌amendments‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌approved‌ ‌café/toilet‌ ‌building.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

The‌ ‌site‌ ‌is‌ ‌located‌ ‌off‌ ‌Western‌ ‌Road,‌ ‌a‌ ‌C-classified‌ ‌road‌ ‌subject‌ ‌to‌ ‌a‌ ‌speed‌‌                           
restriction‌ ‌of‌ ‌30‌ ‌mph.‌ ‌WSCC‌ ‌in‌ ‌its‌ ‌role‌‌as‌‌Local‌‌Highway‌‌Authority‌‌(LHA)‌‌provided‌‌                           
consultation‌ ‌advice‌ ‌for‌ ‌this‌ ‌site‌ ‌for‌ ‌application‌ ‌AWDM/0266/20,‌ ‌raising‌ ‌no‌ ‌highway‌‌                     
safety‌ ‌concerns.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

For‌ ‌the‌ ‌current‌ ‌application,‌ ‌from‌ ‌inspection‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌plans,‌ ‌the‌ ‌amended‌ ‌design‌‌                       
represents‌‌a‌‌café‌‌that‌‌is‌‌not‌‌too‌‌dissimilar‌‌in‌‌scale‌‌than‌‌that‌‌of‌‌the‌‌approved‌‌design.‌‌                               
No‌ ‌objections‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌raised‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌amendments.‌ ‌The‌ ‌Planning‌‌                     
Statement‌ ‌states‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposals‌ ‌now‌ ‌include‌‌the‌‌provision‌‌of‌‌12‌‌Sheffield‌‌cycle‌‌                         
stands,‌ ‌providing‌ ‌24‌ ‌cycle‌ ‌parking‌ ‌spaces.‌ ‌This‌ ‌is‌ ‌an‌ ‌increase‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌‌previously‌‌                         
approved‌‌16‌‌cycle‌‌parking‌‌spaces,‌‌providing‌‌increased‌‌opportunities‌‌for‌‌sustainable‌‌                   
travel‌ ‌to‌ ‌and‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌site.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

In‌ ‌conclusion,‌ ‌the‌ ‌LHA‌ ‌does‌ ‌not‌ ‌consider‌ ‌that‌ ‌this‌ ‌proposal‌ ‌would‌ ‌have‌ ‌an‌‌                         
unacceptable‌ ‌impact‌ ‌on‌ ‌highway‌ ‌safety‌ ‌or‌ ‌result‌ ‌in‌ ‌‘severe’‌ ‌cumulative‌‌impacts‌‌on‌‌                       
the‌ ‌operation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌highway‌ ‌network,‌ ‌therefore‌ ‌is‌ ‌not‌ ‌contrary‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌National‌‌                         
Planning‌‌Policy‌‌Framework‌‌(paragraph‌‌111),‌‌and‌‌that‌‌there‌‌are‌‌no‌‌transport‌‌grounds‌‌                       
to‌ ‌resist‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposal.‌‌  
‌ 

Representations‌ ‌ 
‌ 

None‌ ‌received‌‌  ‌ 
‌ 

Relevant‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Policies‌ ‌and‌ ‌Guidance‌ ‌ 

Saved‌‌policy‌‌LR4‌‌of‌‌the‌‌Worthing‌‌Local‌‌Plan‌‌2003‌‌relates‌‌specifically‌‌to‌‌Brooklands‌‌                         
and‌‌‌sets‌‌out‌‌criteria‌‌for‌‌where‌‌development‌‌within‌‌the‌‌Park‌‌will‌‌be‌‌acceptable‌‌stating‌‌                           
development‌ ‌will‌ ‌not‌ ‌be‌ ‌permitted‌ ‌unless‌ ‌it‌ ‌is‌ ‌for‌ ‌“recreational‌ ‌and/or‌ ‌landscape‌‌                       
enhancement‌ ‌purposes.”‌ ‌ 

Worthing‌ ‌Core‌ ‌Strategy‌ ‌(WBC‌ ‌2011):‌ ‌ 

Policy‌ ‌5‌ ‌The‌ ‌Visitor‌ ‌Economy,‌ ‌11‌ ‌Protecting‌ ‌and‌ ‌Enhancing‌ ‌Recreation‌ ‌and‌‌                     
Community‌ ‌Uses,‌ ‌Policy‌ ‌12‌ ‌New‌‌Infrastructure,‌‌Policy‌‌13‌‌The‌‌Natural‌‌Environment‌‌                     
and‌ ‌Landscape‌ ‌Character,‌ ‌Policy‌ ‌15‌ ‌Flood‌ ‌Risk‌ ‌and‌ ‌Sustainable‌ ‌Management,‌‌                   
Policy‌ ‌16‌ ‌Built‌ ‌Environment‌ ‌and‌ ‌Design‌ ‌and‌ ‌Policy‌ ‌17‌ ‌Sustainable‌ ‌Construction.‌ ‌ 

National‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Policy‌ ‌Framework‌ ‌(CLG‌ ‌2019).‌ ‌ 

Planning‌ ‌Practice‌ ‌Guidance‌ ‌(CLG‌ ‌2014).‌ ‌ 
‌ 

96



‌ 
‌ 

Relevant‌ ‌Legislation‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌Committee‌ ‌should‌ ‌consider‌ ‌the‌ ‌planning‌ ‌application‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Section‌ ‌70‌‌of‌‌the‌‌Town‌‌and‌‌Country‌‌Planning‌‌Act‌‌1990‌‌(as‌‌amended)‌‌provides‌‌that‌‌                           
the‌ ‌application‌ ‌may‌ ‌be‌ ‌granted‌ ‌either‌ ‌unconditionally‌ ‌or‌ ‌subject‌ ‌to‌ ‌relevant‌‌                     
conditions,‌‌or‌‌refused.‌ ‌Regard‌‌shall‌‌be‌‌given‌‌to‌‌relevant‌‌development‌‌plan‌‌policies,‌‌                       
any‌ ‌relevant‌ ‌local‌ ‌finance‌ ‌considerations,‌ ‌and‌ ‌other‌ ‌material‌ ‌considerations‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Planning‌ ‌Assessment‌ ‌ 
‌ 

As‌ ‌the‌ ‌principle‌ ‌of‌ ‌development‌ ‌has‌ ‌been‌ ‌established‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌ ‌previous‌ ‌permission,‌‌                       
which‌‌is‌‌still‌‌extant,‌‌the‌‌main‌‌issue‌‌in‌‌the‌‌determination‌‌of‌‌the‌‌application‌‌is‌‌the‌‌effect‌‌                               
of‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌alterations‌ ‌upon‌ ‌the‌ ‌character‌ ‌and‌ ‌appearance‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌area.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌previous‌ ‌committee‌ ‌report‌ ‌outlined‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌cafe‌ ‌was‌ ‌a‌ ‌key‌ ‌part‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌‌                           
Brooklands‌ ‌Masterplan‌ ‌developed‌‌last‌‌year‌‌and‌‌that‌‌the‌‌proposal‌‌offered‌‌the‌‌ability‌‌                       
to‌ ‌provide‌ ‌a‌ ‌far‌ ‌more‌ ‌attractive‌ ‌gateway‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌western‌ ‌entrance‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌park.‌ ‌The‌‌                             
previous‌ ‌permission‌ ‌comprised‌ ‌a‌ ‌larger‌ ‌timber‌ ‌building‌ ‌clad‌‌in‌‌dark‌‌timber‌‌with‌‌the‌‌                         
building‌ ‌effectively‌ ‌divided‌ ‌into‌ ‌3‌ ‌parts,‌ ‌a‌ ‌central‌ ‌covered‌ ‌walkway‌ ‌linking‌ ‌the‌‌                       
component‌ ‌parts‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌building.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

This‌ ‌revised‌ ‌proposal‌ ‌would‌ ‌be‌ ‌smaller‌ ‌and‌ ‌more‌ ‌low‌ ‌key‌ ‌‌due‌ ‌to‌ ‌its‌ ‌scale‌ ‌and‌‌                             
natural‌‌timber‌‌finish.‌‌Your‌‌Officers‌‌consider‌‌that‌‌this‌‌would‌‌remain‌‌appropriate‌‌to‌‌the‌‌                         
park‌ ‌setting,‌ ‌but‌ ‌would‌ ‌still‌ ‌attract‌ ‌users‌ ‌into‌ ‌the‌ ‌park‌ ‌and‌ ‌it‌ ‌is‌ ‌noted‌ ‌that‌ ‌a‌ ‌large‌‌                                 
outdoor‌ ‌seating‌ ‌area‌ ‌remains‌ ‌which‌ ‌allow‌ ‌all‌ ‌round‌ ‌use‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌building.‌ ‌Given‌ ‌its‌‌                           
smaller‌ ‌size,‌ ‌therefore‌ ‌it‌ ‌is‌ ‌not‌ ‌considered‌ ‌that‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposal‌‌would‌‌have‌‌a‌‌material‌‌                           
effect‌ ‌upon‌ ‌the‌ ‌character‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌area‌ ‌when‌ ‌compared‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌previous‌ ‌permission.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

During‌‌the‌‌previous‌‌application,‌‌detailed‌‌consideration‌‌was‌‌given‌‌to‌‌matters‌‌relating‌‌                     
to‌ ‌flood‌ ‌risk,‌ ‌tree‌‌protection,‌‌sustainability‌‌and‌‌parking‌‌and‌‌highways‌‌issues.‌‌These‌‌                       
matters‌ ‌were‌ ‌all‌ ‌resolved‌ ‌during‌ ‌the‌ ‌determination‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌previous‌ ‌application‌ ‌with‌‌                       
appropriate‌‌conditions‌‌imposed‌‌where‌‌required.‌‌Since‌‌the‌‌revised‌‌application‌‌relates‌‌                   
to‌‌design‌‌changes‌‌to‌‌the‌‌main‌‌buildings,‌‌it‌‌is‌‌considered‌‌sufficient‌‌for‌‌the‌‌conditions‌‌                           
to‌ ‌be‌ ‌reimposed‌ ‌as‌ ‌part‌ ‌of‌ ‌this‌ ‌permission.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌application‌ ‌is‌ ‌therefore‌ ‌considered‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌acceptable.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Recommendation‌ ‌ 
‌ 

It‌‌is‌‌recommended‌‌that‌‌planning‌‌permission‌‌be‌‌APPROVED‌,‌‌subject‌‌to‌‌the‌‌following‌‌                       
conditions:-‌ ‌ 

‌ ‌   
1. Approved‌ ‌Plans‌ ‌ 
2. The‌‌development‌‌hereby‌‌permitted‌‌shall‌‌be‌‌begun‌‌before‌‌the‌‌expiration‌‌                   
of‌ ‌3‌ ‌years‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌date‌ ‌of‌ ‌this‌ ‌permission.‌ ‌ 

‌  ‌ 
Reason‌:‌ ‌‌To‌ ‌comply‌ ‌with‌ ‌Section‌ ‌91‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Town‌ ‌and‌ ‌Country‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Act‌‌                         

1990.‌ ‌ 
‌ ‌  

97



‌ 
‌ 

3. Development‌ ‌shall‌ ‌not‌ ‌commence,‌ ‌other‌ ‌than‌ ‌works‌ ‌of‌ ‌site‌‌survey‌‌and‌‌                     
investigation,‌ ‌until‌ ‌full‌ ‌details‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌surface‌ ‌water‌‌drainage‌‌scheme‌‌                     
have‌‌been‌‌submitted‌‌to‌‌and‌‌approved‌‌in‌‌writing‌‌by‌‌the‌‌Local‌‌Planning‌‌Authority.‌‌                         
The‌ ‌design‌ ‌should‌ ‌follow‌ ‌the‌ ‌principles‌ ‌set‌ ‌out‌ ‌in‌‌                 
3568-BROO-ICS-XX-RP-C-07.001_Rev‌ ‌A_Brooklands‌ ‌Park‌ ‌-‌ ‌FRA.‌ ‌Adequate‌‌           
pollution‌ ‌mitigation‌ ‌shall‌ ‌be‌ ‌provided‌ ‌in‌ ‌design‌ ‌to‌ ‌mitigate‌ ‌pollution‌ ‌hazard‌‌                     
indices‌ ‌associated‌ ‌with‌ ‌medium‌ ‌pollution‌ ‌hazard‌ ‌areas,‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with‌‌                   
Chapter‌ ‌26‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌SuDS‌ ‌manual.‌ ‌No‌ ‌building‌ ‌shall‌ ‌be‌ ‌occupied‌ ‌until‌ ‌the‌‌                         
complete‌ ‌surface‌ ‌water‌ ‌drainage‌ ‌system‌ ‌serving‌ ‌the‌ ‌property‌ ‌has‌ ‌been‌‌                   
implemented‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌agreed‌ ‌details‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌details‌‌so‌‌agreed‌‌                       
shall‌ ‌be‌ ‌maintained‌ ‌in‌ ‌good‌ ‌working‌ ‌order‌ ‌in‌ ‌perpetuity.‌ ‌ 
‌ 
Reason:‌ ‌‌To‌ ‌ensure‌ ‌the‌ ‌provision‌ ‌of‌ ‌an‌ ‌acceptable‌ ‌surface‌ ‌water‌ ‌drainage‌‌                     

system‌ ‌ 
‌ ‌  
4.‌ ‌  Development‌ ‌shall‌ ‌not‌ ‌commence‌ ‌until‌ ‌full‌ ‌details‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌maintenance‌‌                   
and‌ ‌management‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌surface‌ ‌water‌ ‌drainage‌ ‌system‌ ‌is‌ ‌set‌ ‌out‌ ‌in‌ ‌a‌‌                         
site-specific‌‌maintenance‌‌manual‌‌and‌‌submitted‌‌to,‌‌and‌‌approved‌‌in‌‌writing,‌‌by‌‌                     
the‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Authority.‌ ‌The‌ ‌maintenance‌ ‌manual‌ ‌provided‌ ‌within‌                 
3568-BROO-ICS-XX-RP-C-07.001_Rev‌ ‌A_Brooklands‌ ‌Park‌ ‌-‌ ‌FRA‌ ‌shall‌ ‌be‌‌             
used‌ ‌as‌ ‌the‌ ‌basis‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌final‌ ‌maintenance‌ ‌manual,‌ ‌and‌ ‌shall‌ ‌be‌ ‌updated‌ ‌to‌‌                           
appropriately‌ ‌address‌ ‌any‌ ‌changes‌‌to‌‌design.‌‌Upon‌‌completed‌‌construction‌‌of‌‌                   
the‌ ‌surface‌ ‌water‌ ‌drainage‌ ‌system,‌ ‌the‌ ‌owner‌ ‌shall‌ ‌strictly‌ ‌adhere‌ ‌to‌ ‌and‌‌                       
implement‌ ‌the‌ ‌recommendations‌ ‌contained‌ ‌within‌ ‌the‌ ‌manual.‌ ‌ 
‌ 
Reason:‌ ‌‌To‌ ‌ensure‌ ‌suitable‌ ‌maintenance‌ ‌and‌ ‌management‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌surface‌‌                   
water‌ ‌drainage‌ ‌system‌ ‌ 

‌ ‌  
5.‌ ‌  Immediately‌ ‌following‌ ‌implementation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌approved‌ ‌surface‌ ‌water‌‌               
drainage‌ ‌system‌ ‌and‌ ‌prior‌ ‌to‌ ‌occupation‌ ‌of‌ ‌any‌ ‌part‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌development,‌ ‌the‌‌                         
developer/applicant‌ ‌shall‌ ‌provide‌ ‌the‌ ‌local‌ ‌planning‌ ‌authority‌ ‌with‌ ‌as-built‌‌                 
drawings‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌implemented‌ ‌scheme‌ ‌together‌ ‌with‌ ‌a‌ ‌completion‌ ‌report‌‌                   
prepared‌ ‌by‌ ‌an‌ ‌independent‌ ‌engineer‌ ‌that‌‌confirms‌‌that‌‌the‌‌scheme‌‌was‌‌built‌‌                       
in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with‌‌the‌‌approved‌‌drawing/s‌‌and‌‌is‌‌fit‌‌for‌‌purpose.‌‌The‌‌scheme‌‌                         
shall‌ ‌thereafter‌ ‌be‌ ‌maintained‌ ‌in‌ ‌perpetuity.‌ ‌ 

‌  ‌ 
  ‌‌Reason:‌‌  ‌‌To‌ ‌ensure‌ ‌compliance‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌approved‌ ‌details‌ ‌ 
‌ ‌  
6.‌ ‌  No‌ ‌part‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌development‌ ‌shall‌ ‌be‌ ‌first‌ ‌occupied‌ ‌until‌‌the‌‌car‌‌parking‌‌                         
has‌‌been‌‌constructed‌‌in‌‌accordance‌‌with‌‌the‌‌approved‌‌site‌‌plan.‌‌These‌‌spaces‌‌                       
shall‌ ‌thereafter‌ ‌be‌ ‌retained‌ ‌at‌ ‌all‌ ‌times‌ ‌for‌ ‌their‌ ‌designated‌ ‌purpose.‌ ‌ 

‌  ‌ 
Reason:‌‌  ‌‌To‌ ‌provide‌ ‌car-parking‌ ‌space‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌use‌ ‌ 

‌ ‌  
7.‌ ‌  No‌ ‌part‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌development‌ ‌shall‌ ‌be‌ ‌first‌ ‌occupied‌ ‌until‌ ‌covered‌ ‌and‌‌                       
secure‌‌cycle‌‌parking‌‌spaces‌‌have‌‌been‌‌provided‌‌in‌‌accordance‌‌with‌‌plans‌‌and‌‌                       
details‌ ‌submitted‌ ‌to‌ ‌and‌ ‌approved‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Authority.‌ ‌ 

‌  ‌ 
Reason:‌ ‌‌To‌ ‌provide‌ ‌alternative‌ ‌travel‌ ‌options‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌use‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌car‌ ‌in‌‌                         
accordance‌ ‌with‌ ‌current‌ ‌sustainable‌ ‌transport‌ ‌policies.‌ ‌ 

98



‌ 
‌ 

‌ ‌  
8.‌ ‌  If,‌‌during‌‌development,‌‌any‌‌visibly‌‌contaminated‌‌or‌‌odorous‌‌material‌‌(for‌‌                   
example‌ ‌asbestos-containing‌‌material,‌‌stained‌‌soil,‌‌petrol/diesel/solvent‌‌odour,‌‌             
underground‌‌tanks‌‌or‌‌associated‌‌pipework)‌‌not‌‌previously‌‌identified‌‌is‌‌found‌‌to‌‌                     
be‌ ‌present‌ ‌at‌ ‌the‌ ‌site,‌ ‌then,‌ ‌unless‌ ‌otherwise‌ ‌agreed‌ ‌in‌‌writing‌‌with‌‌the‌‌Local‌‌                           
Planning‌‌Authority,‌‌no‌‌further‌‌development‌‌shall‌‌be‌‌carried‌‌out‌‌until‌‌it‌‌has‌‌been‌‌                         
investigated‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌ ‌developer.‌ ‌The‌ ‌Local‌‌Planning‌‌Authority‌‌must‌‌be‌‌informed‌‌                     
immediately‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌nature‌ ‌and‌ ‌degree‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌contamination‌ ‌present‌ ‌and‌ ‌a‌‌                       
method‌‌statement‌‌detailing‌‌how‌‌the‌‌unsuspected‌‌contamination‌‌is‌‌proposed‌‌to‌‌                   
be‌ ‌dealt‌ ‌with‌ ‌shall‌ ‌be‌ ‌submitted‌ ‌to‌ ‌and‌ ‌approved‌ ‌in‌ ‌writing‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌ ‌Local‌‌                           
Planning‌ ‌Authority‌ ‌and‌ ‌shall‌ ‌then‌ ‌be‌ ‌implemented‌ ‌as‌ ‌approved‌ ‌within‌ ‌an‌‌                     
approved‌ ‌time‌ ‌period‌ ‌contained‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌method‌ ‌statement.‌ ‌ 

‌  ‌ 
Reason:‌ ‌‌To‌ ‌prevent‌ ‌pollution‌ ‌of‌ ‌groundwater‌ ‌and‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌interests‌ ‌of‌‌                     
environmental‌ ‌protection‌ ‌and‌ ‌public‌ ‌health‌ ‌and‌ ‌safety,‌ ‌in‌ ‌compliance‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌‌                     
National‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Policy‌ ‌Framework‌ ‌and‌ ‌saved‌ ‌policy‌ ‌RES9‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Worthing‌‌                     
Local‌ ‌Plan.‌ ‌ 

‌ ‌  
9.‌ ‌  Construction‌‌of‌‌the‌‌development‌‌shall‌‌not‌‌commence‌‌until‌‌details‌‌of‌‌the‌‌                     
proposed‌ ‌means‌ ‌of‌ ‌foul‌ ‌and‌ ‌surface‌ ‌water‌ ‌sewerage‌ ‌disposal‌ ‌have‌ ‌been‌‌                     
submitted‌ ‌to,‌ ‌and‌ ‌approved‌ ‌in‌ ‌writing‌ ‌by,‌ ‌the‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Authority‌ ‌in‌‌                       
consultation‌ ‌with‌ ‌Southern‌ ‌Water.‌ ‌ 

‌  ‌ 
Reason:‌ ‌‌To‌ ‌ensure‌ ‌a‌ ‌satisfactory‌‌means‌‌of‌‌foul‌‌and‌‌surface‌‌water‌‌sewerage‌‌                       
disposal‌ ‌ 

‌ ‌  
10.‌ ‌  Prior‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌first‌ ‌occupation‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌cafe‌ ‌hereby‌ ‌approved,‌ ‌details‌ ‌of‌ ‌a‌‌                         
scheme‌ ‌to‌ ‌provide‌ ‌12‌ ‌active‌ ‌and‌ ‌46‌ ‌passive‌ ‌EV‌ ‌parking‌ ‌spaces‌ ‌shall‌ ‌be‌‌                         
submitted‌ ‌to‌ ‌and‌ ‌approved‌ ‌by‌ ‌the‌ ‌Local‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Authority‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌‌approved‌‌                       
details‌ ‌maintained‌ ‌thereafter‌ ‌unless‌ ‌otherwise‌ ‌subsequently‌ ‌agreed‌ ‌in‌ ‌writing.‌ ‌ 

‌  ‌ 
Reason:‌‌  ‌‌To‌ ‌ensure‌ ‌adequate‌ ‌provision‌ ‌of‌ ‌EV‌ ‌charging‌ ‌points‌ ‌ 

‌ ‌  
11.‌ ‌  No‌ ‌development‌ ‌shall‌ ‌be‌ ‌carried‌ ‌out‌ ‌unless‌ ‌and‌ ‌until‌ ‌a‌ ‌schedule‌ ‌of‌‌                       
materials‌‌and‌‌finishes‌‌to‌‌be‌‌used‌‌for‌‌the‌‌external‌‌walls‌‌(including‌‌windows‌‌and‌‌                         
doors)‌ ‌and‌ ‌roof‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌cafe‌ ‌building‌ ‌has‌ ‌been‌ ‌submitted‌ ‌to‌ ‌and‌‌                         
approved‌ ‌in‌ ‌writing‌ ‌by‌‌the‌‌Local‌‌Planning‌‌Authority‌‌and‌‌the‌‌development‌‌shall‌‌                       
be‌ ‌completed‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌approved‌ ‌schedule.‌ ‌ 

‌  ‌ 
Reason‌:‌ ‌In‌‌the‌‌interests‌‌of‌‌visual‌‌amenity‌‌and‌‌to‌‌comply‌‌with‌‌policy‌‌16‌‌of‌‌the‌‌                               
Worthing‌ ‌Core‌ ‌Strategy.‌ ‌ 

‌  ‌ 
12.‌ ‌  No‌ ‌development‌ ‌shall‌ ‌take‌ ‌place‌ ‌until‌ ‌full‌ ‌details‌ ‌of‌ ‌both‌ ‌hard‌ ‌and‌ ‌soft‌‌                         
landscape‌ ‌works‌‌have‌‌been‌‌submitted‌‌to‌‌and‌‌approved‌‌in‌‌writing‌‌by‌‌the‌‌Local‌‌                         
Planning‌ ‌Authority‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Soft‌‌landscape‌‌works‌‌shall‌‌include‌‌detailed‌‌proposals‌‌for‌‌the‌‌planting‌‌of‌‌4‌‌new‌‌                         
trees‌ ‌between‌ ‌the‌ ‌new‌ ‌cafe‌ ‌building‌ ‌and‌ ‌Western‌ ‌Road,‌ ‌taking‌ ‌into‌ ‌account‌‌                       
any‌ ‌proposals‌ ‌for‌ ‌a‌ ‌new‌ ‌cycleway‌ ‌and‌ ‌for‌ ‌the‌ ‌remainder‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌site,‌ ‌planting‌‌                           
plans;‌ ‌written‌ ‌specifications;‌ ‌schedules‌ ‌of‌ ‌plants‌ ‌stating‌ ‌species,‌ ‌sizes‌ ‌and‌‌                   

99



‌ 
‌ 

numbers/densities;‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌implementation‌ ‌programme.‌ ‌All‌ ‌hard‌ ‌and‌ ‌soft‌‌                 
landscape‌ ‌works‌ ‌shall‌ ‌be‌ ‌carried‌‌out‌‌in‌‌accordance‌‌with‌‌the‌‌approved‌‌details.‌ ‌                       
The‌ ‌works‌ ‌shall‌ ‌be‌‌completed‌‌before‌‌any‌‌part‌‌of‌‌the‌‌development‌‌is‌‌occupied‌‌                         
or‌‌in‌‌accordance‌‌with‌‌the‌‌implementation‌‌programme‌‌approved‌‌in‌‌writing‌‌by‌‌the‌‌                       
Local‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Authority.‌ ‌ 
‌  ‌ 

Reason‌:‌ ‌‌In‌‌the‌‌interests‌‌of‌‌visual‌‌amenity‌‌and‌‌the‌‌environment‌‌and‌‌to‌‌comply‌‌                         
with‌ ‌policy‌ ‌16‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌Core‌ ‌Strategy.‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

100



‌ 
‌ 

8‌ ‌ 
‌ 

‌ 

‌ 
‌ 

Not‌ ‌to‌ ‌Scale‌ ‌ ‌   
Reproduced‌ ‌from‌ ‌OS‌ ‌Mapping‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌permission‌ ‌of‌ ‌HMSO‌ ‌©‌ ‌Crown‌ ‌Copyright‌ ‌Licence‌ ‌number‌ ‌LA100024321‌ ‌ 

‌ 
‌ 

Application‌ ‌Number:‌ ‌  AWDM/1806/21‌ ‌  Recommendation‌ ‌-APPROVE‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Site:‌ ‌  Portland‌ ‌House,‌ ‌44‌ ‌Richmond‌ ‌Road,‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Proposal:‌ ‌  Replacement‌ ‌of‌ ‌white‌ ‌UPVC‌ ‌windows‌ ‌and‌ ‌doors‌ ‌to‌‌ 
composite‌ ‌white‌ ‌polyester‌ ‌powder‌ ‌coated‌‌ 
aluminium/timber‌ ‌framed‌ ‌triple‌ ‌glazed‌ ‌windows‌ ‌and‌‌ 
doors.‌ ‌ 

‌ 

Applicant:‌ ‌  Worthing‌ ‌Borough‌‌ 
Council‌ ‌ 

Ward:Central‌ ‌ 

Agent:‌ ‌  Mr‌ ‌Tavis‌ ‌Russell‌ ‌ 
Case‌ ‌Officer:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Jacqueline‌ ‌Fox‌ ‌ 

101



‌ 
‌ 

Site‌ ‌and‌ ‌Surroundings‌ ‌ ‌   
‌ 

Portland‌‌House‌‌comprises‌‌a‌‌three‌‌storey‌‌early‌‌1990s‌‌office‌‌building‌‌on‌‌the‌‌northside‌‌                         
of‌‌Richmond‌‌Road.‌‌The‌‌building‌‌is‌‌u‌‌shaped‌‌with‌‌a‌‌central‌‌doorway‌‌set‌‌back‌‌behind‌‌                             
a‌ ‌partly‌ ‌enclosed‌  ‌concrete‌ ‌forecourt.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

The‌ ‌building‌ ‌is‌ ‌constructed‌ ‌in‌ ‌a‌ ‌red‌ ‌multi‌ ‌facing‌ ‌brick‌ ‌with‌ ‌feature‌ ‌balconies‌‌to‌‌the‌‌                             
forward‌ ‌projecting‌ ‌corners.‌ ‌It‌ ‌has‌ ‌deep‌ ‌white‌ ‌framed‌ ‌windows‌ ‌and‌ ‌doors,‌ ‌some‌ ‌of‌‌                         
which‌ ‌have‌ ‌white‌ ‌infill‌ ‌panel‌ ‌surrounds.‌‌ ‌  
‌ ‌  
The‌ ‌building‌ ‌is‌ ‌currently‌ ‌occupied‌ ‌by‌ ‌Adur‌ ‌and‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌Council.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌‌site‌‌lies‌‌within‌‌Worthing‌‌Town‌‌Centre‌‌surrounded‌‌by‌‌commercial‌‌and‌‌community‌‌                       
uses.‌ ‌The‌ ‌site‌ ‌lies‌ ‌adjacent‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌Chapel‌ ‌Road‌ ‌Conservation‌ ‌Area.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Proposal‌ ‌ 
‌ ‌  
Planning‌ ‌permission‌ ‌is‌ ‌sought‌ ‌to‌ ‌remove‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌white‌ ‌uPVC‌ ‌framed‌‌                     
double-glazed‌ ‌windows‌ ‌and‌ ‌external‌ ‌doors‌ ‌and‌ ‌replace‌ ‌them‌ ‌with‌ ‌new‌ ‌white‌‌                     
polyester‌‌powder-coated‌‌aluminium‌‌/‌‌timber‌‌composite‌‌framed‌‌triple-glazed‌‌windows‌‌                 
and‌ ‌external‌ ‌doors.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌proposal‌ ‌is‌ ‌to‌ ‌change‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌uPVC‌ ‌frames‌ ‌to‌ ‌composite‌ ‌frames‌ ‌with‌‌                         
powder-coated‌ ‌aluminium‌ ‌externally‌ ‌and‌ ‌timber‌ ‌finish‌ ‌internally.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌frame‌ ‌size‌ ‌and‌ ‌external‌ ‌colour‌ ‌will‌ ‌be‌ ‌to‌ ‌match‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌as‌ ‌closely‌ ‌as‌‌                             
possible.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌proposals‌ ‌will‌ ‌match‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌structural‌ ‌opening‌ ‌sizes‌ ‌with‌ ‌just‌ ‌three‌‌                       
windows‌ ‌changing‌ ‌their‌ ‌appearance‌ ‌to‌ ‌suit‌ ‌the‌ ‌current‌ ‌internal‌ ‌layout‌ ‌arrangements.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌two‌ ‌large‌ ‌windows‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌main‌ ‌reception‌ ‌foyer‌ ‌will‌ ‌be‌ ‌changed‌ ‌to‌ ‌have‌ ‌a‌ ‌cill‌‌                               
height‌ ‌matching‌ ‌the‌ ‌adjacent‌ ‌windows‌‌with‌‌the‌‌low-level‌‌section‌‌featuring‌‌insulated‌‌                     
infill‌ ‌panels‌ ‌with‌ ‌a‌ ‌white‌ ‌finish.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌large‌ ‌sliding‌ ‌door‌ ‌to‌ ‌the‌ ‌right‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌main‌ ‌entrance‌ ‌will‌ ‌also‌ ‌be‌ ‌changed‌ ‌to‌ ‌a‌‌                                 
window‌ ‌as‌ ‌the‌ ‌door‌ ‌is‌ ‌no‌ ‌longer‌ ‌used‌ ‌for‌ ‌access‌ ‌or‌ ‌egress.‌‌The‌‌new‌‌windows‌‌will‌‌                               
aim‌ ‌to‌ ‌match‌ ‌adjacent‌ ‌windows,‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌low-level‌ ‌section‌ ‌featuring‌ ‌infill‌ ‌panels.‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

Relevant‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌History‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

None‌ ‌relevant‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Consultations‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

The‌ ‌Councils‌ ‌Conservation‌ ‌Design‌ ‌Architect‌ ‌has‌ ‌not‌ ‌raised‌ ‌any‌ ‌concerns‌ ‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

102



‌ 
‌ 

Representations‌ ‌ 
‌ 

None‌ ‌received‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Relevant‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Policies‌ ‌and‌ ‌Guidance‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Worthing‌ ‌Core‌ ‌Strategy‌ ‌(WBC‌ ‌2011):‌ ‌Policy‌ ‌16‌ ‌ ‌   
National‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Policy‌ ‌Framework‌ ‌(HCLG‌ ‌2021)‌ ‌ 
National‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Practice‌ ‌Guidance‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Submission‌ ‌Draft‌ ‌Worthing‌ ‌Local‌ ‌plan‌ ‌ 
‌ 

DM5‌ ‌-‌ ‌QUALITY‌ ‌OF‌ ‌THE‌ ‌BUILT‌ ‌ENVIRONMENT‌ ‌ 
DM16‌ ‌-‌ ‌SUSTAINABLE‌ ‌DESIGN‌ ‌ 
DM24‌ ‌-‌ ‌THE‌ ‌HISTORIC‌ ‌ENVIRONMENT‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Relevant‌ ‌Legislation‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌Committee‌ ‌should‌ ‌consider‌ ‌the‌ ‌planning‌ ‌application‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Section‌ ‌70‌‌of‌‌the‌‌Town‌‌and‌‌Country‌‌Planning‌‌Act‌‌1990‌‌(as‌‌amended)‌‌provides‌‌that‌‌                           
the‌ ‌application‌ ‌may‌ ‌be‌ ‌granted‌ ‌either‌ ‌unconditionally‌ ‌or‌ ‌subject‌ ‌to‌ ‌relevant‌‌                     
conditions,‌‌or‌‌refused.‌ ‌Regard‌‌shall‌‌be‌‌given‌‌to‌‌relevant‌‌development‌‌plan‌‌policies,‌‌                       
any‌ ‌relevant‌ ‌local‌ ‌finance‌ ‌considerations,‌ ‌and‌ ‌other‌ ‌material‌ ‌considerations‌ ‌ 
‌ 

For‌ ‌Listed‌ ‌Building‌ ‌/‌ ‌Conservation‌ ‌Area‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Section‌ ‌73A‌ ‌and‌ ‌also‌ ‌Section‌ ‌72‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌(Listed‌ ‌Building‌ ‌&‌ ‌Conservation‌ ‌Areas)‌‌                       
Act‌‌1990‌‌which‌‌require‌‌the‌‌Local‌‌Planning‌‌Authority‌‌(LPA)‌‌to‌‌pay‌‌special‌‌attention‌‌to‌‌                           
the‌ ‌desirability‌ ‌of‌ ‌preserving‌ ‌or‌ ‌enhancing‌ ‌the‌ ‌appearance‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌Conservation‌ ‌Area.‌ ‌ ‌   
‌ 

Section‌ ‌38(6)‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌and‌ ‌Compulsory‌ ‌Purchase‌ ‌Act‌ ‌2004‌ ‌that‌ ‌requires‌ ‌the‌‌                     
decision‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌made‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌development‌ ‌plan‌ ‌unless‌ ‌material‌‌                       
considerations‌ ‌indicate‌ ‌otherwise.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Planning‌ ‌Assessment‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌‌main‌‌issues‌‌in‌‌the‌‌determination‌‌of‌‌the‌‌application‌‌are‌‌the‌‌effect‌‌of‌‌the‌‌proposal‌                             
upon‌ ‌the‌ ‌character‌ ‌and‌ ‌appearance‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌area‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌surrounding‌‌Conservation‌‌                       
Area‌ ‌ 

‌ 
The‌‌building‌‌comprises‌‌a‌‌1990s‌‌office‌‌building.‌‌The‌‌proposed‌‌replacement‌‌windows‌ ‌                      
will‌ ‌largely‌ ‌be‌ ‌to‌ ‌match‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌windows,‌ ‌so‌ ‌as‌ ‌to‌ ‌minimise‌ ‌impact‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌‌                             
proposed‌ ‌manufacturer‌ ‌has‌ ‌been‌ ‌chosen‌ ‌to‌ ‌provide‌ ‌a‌ ‌contemporary‌ ‌low‌‌                   
maintenance‌ ‌frame‌ ‌whilst‌ ‌maintaining‌ ‌the‌ ‌overall‌ ‌character‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌building.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌only‌ ‌changes‌ ‌from‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌building‌ ‌are‌ ‌at‌ ‌ground‌ ‌floor‌ ‌level‌ ‌to‌ ‌existing‌‌                           
windows‌‌close‌‌to‌‌the‌‌main‌‌front‌‌entrance‌‌and‌‌to‌‌replace‌‌an‌‌existing‌‌door‌‌with‌‌similar‌‌                             
windows.‌‌The‌‌new‌‌windows‌‌would‌‌not‌‌be‌‌prominent‌‌and‌‌would‌‌be‌‌in‌‌character‌‌with‌‌                           
existing‌ ‌replacement‌ ‌windows‌ ‌ 

103



‌ 
‌ 

The‌‌change‌‌in‌‌materials‌‌to‌‌the‌‌proposed‌‌replacement‌‌windows‌‌would‌‌not‌‌impact‌‌on‌‌                         
the‌ ‌character‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌building‌ ‌or‌ ‌the‌ ‌area‌ ‌in‌ ‌general‌ ‌which‌ ‌abuts‌ ‌the‌ ‌Chapel‌ ‌Road‌‌                             
Conservation‌ ‌Area.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Sustainabilty‌ ‌ 
‌ 

The‌ ‌proposed‌ ‌works‌ ‌are‌ ‌intended‌ ‌to‌ ‌improve‌ ‌the‌ ‌thermal‌ ‌efficiency‌ ‌of‌ ‌the‌ ‌building‌‌                         
and‌ ‌reduce‌‌energy‌‌consumption‌‌to‌‌meet‌‌the‌‌Council’s‌‌environmental‌‌targets‌‌and‌‌to‌‌                       
make‌ ‌the‌ ‌existing‌ ‌offices‌ ‌more‌ ‌comfortable‌ ‌for‌ ‌both‌ ‌building‌ ‌occupants‌ ‌and‌ ‌visitors.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
Recommendation‌ ‌ 
‌ 

It‌‌is‌‌recommended‌‌that‌‌planning‌‌permission‌‌be‌‌‌APPROVED,‌‌‌subject‌‌to‌‌the‌‌following‌‌                       
conditions:-‌ ‌ ‌   
‌ 

1. Approved‌ ‌Plans‌ ‌ 
2. Standard‌ ‌3‌ ‌year‌ ‌time‌ ‌limit‌ ‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

‌ 
‌ 

‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

104



‌ 
‌ 

24‌ ‌November‌ ‌2021‌ ‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

Local‌ ‌Government‌ ‌Act‌ ‌1972‌‌ ‌  
Background‌ ‌Papers:‌ ‌ 

‌ 
As‌ ‌referred‌ ‌to‌ ‌in‌ ‌individual‌ ‌application‌ ‌reports‌ ‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

Contact‌ ‌Officers:‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Gary‌ ‌Peck‌ ‌ 
Planning‌ ‌Services‌ ‌Manager‌ ‌(Development‌ ‌Management)‌ ‌ 
Portland‌ ‌House‌ ‌ 
01903‌ ‌221406‌ ‌ 
gary.peck@adur-worthing.gov.uk‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Jo‌ ‌Morin‌ ‌ 
Principal‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Officer‌ ‌ 
Portland‌ ‌House‌ ‌ 
01903‌ ‌221350‌ ‌ 
jo.morin@adur-worthing.gov.uk‌ ‌ 
‌ 

Jackie‌ ‌Fox‌ ‌ 
Senior‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Officer‌ ‌ 
Portland‌ ‌House‌ ‌ 
01903‌ ‌2213120‌ ‌ 
jacqueline.fox@adur-worthing.gov.uk‌ ‌ ‌   

105

mailto:gary.peck@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:gary.peck@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:gary.peck@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:peter.barnett@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:jo.morin@adur-worthing.gov.uk
mailto:peter.barnett@adur-worthing.gov.uk


‌ 
‌ 

‌ 
Schedule‌ ‌of‌ ‌other‌ ‌matters‌ ‌ 

‌ 
‌ 

1.0‌ Council‌ ‌Priority‌ ‌ 
‌ 

1.1‌ As‌ ‌referred‌ ‌to‌ ‌in‌ ‌individual‌ ‌application‌ ‌reports,‌ ‌the‌ ‌priorities‌ ‌being:-‌ ‌ 
-‌ ‌to‌ ‌protect‌ ‌front‌ ‌line‌ ‌services‌ ‌ 
-‌ ‌to‌ ‌promote‌ ‌a‌ ‌clean,‌ ‌green‌ ‌and‌ ‌sustainable‌ ‌environment‌ ‌ 
-‌ ‌to‌ ‌support‌ ‌and‌ ‌improve‌ ‌the‌ ‌local‌ ‌economy‌ ‌ 
-‌ ‌to‌ ‌work‌ ‌in‌ ‌partnerships‌ ‌to‌ ‌promote‌ ‌health‌ ‌and‌ ‌wellbeing‌ ‌in‌ ‌our‌ ‌communities‌ ‌ 
-‌ ‌to‌ ‌ensure‌ ‌value‌ ‌for‌ ‌money‌ ‌and‌ ‌low‌ ‌Council‌ ‌Tax‌ ‌ 

‌ 
2.0‌ Specific‌ ‌Action‌ ‌Plans‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

2.1‌ As‌ ‌referred‌ ‌to‌ ‌in‌ ‌individual‌ ‌application‌ ‌reports.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

3.0‌ Sustainability‌ ‌Issues‌ ‌ 
‌ 

3.1‌ As‌ ‌referred‌ ‌to‌ ‌in‌ ‌individual‌ ‌application‌ ‌reports.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

4.0‌ Equality‌ ‌Issues‌ ‌ 
‌ 

4.1‌ As‌ ‌referred‌ ‌to‌ ‌in‌ ‌individual‌ ‌application‌ ‌reports.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

5.0‌ Community‌ ‌Safety‌ ‌Issues‌ ‌(Section‌ ‌17)‌ ‌ 
‌ 

5.1‌ As‌ ‌referred‌ ‌to‌ ‌in‌ ‌individual‌ ‌application‌ ‌reports.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

6.0‌ Human‌ ‌Rights‌ ‌Issues‌ ‌ 
‌ 

6.1‌ Article‌‌8‌‌of‌‌the‌‌European‌‌Convention‌‌safeguards‌‌respect‌‌for‌‌family‌‌life‌‌                     
and‌‌home,‌‌whilst‌‌Article‌‌1‌‌of‌‌the‌‌First‌‌Protocol‌‌concerns‌‌non-interference‌‌with‌                       
peaceful‌ ‌enjoyment‌ ‌of‌ ‌private‌ ‌property.‌ ‌Both‌ ‌rights‌ ‌are‌ ‌not‌ ‌absolute‌ ‌and‌‌                     
interference‌ ‌may‌ ‌be‌ ‌permitted‌ ‌if‌ ‌the‌ ‌need‌ ‌to‌ ‌do‌ ‌so‌ ‌is‌ ‌proportionate,‌ ‌having‌‌                         
regard‌ ‌to‌ ‌public‌ ‌interests.‌ ‌The‌ ‌interests‌ ‌of‌ ‌those‌ ‌affected‌ ‌by‌ ‌proposed‌‌                     
developments‌ ‌and‌ ‌the‌ ‌relevant‌ ‌considerations‌ ‌which‌‌may‌‌justify‌‌interference‌‌                 
with‌ ‌human‌ ‌rights‌ ‌have‌ ‌been‌ ‌considered‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌planning‌ ‌assessments‌‌                   
contained‌ ‌in‌ ‌individual‌ ‌application‌ ‌reports.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
7.0‌ Reputation‌ ‌ 
‌ 

7.1‌ Decisions‌ ‌are‌ ‌required‌ ‌to‌ ‌be‌ ‌made‌ ‌in‌ ‌accordance‌ ‌with‌ ‌the‌ ‌Town‌ ‌&‌‌                       
Country‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Act‌ ‌1990‌ ‌and‌ ‌associated‌ ‌legislation‌ ‌and‌ ‌subordinate‌‌                 
legislation‌ ‌taking‌ ‌into‌ ‌account‌‌Government‌‌policy‌‌and‌‌guidance‌‌(and‌‌see‌‌6.1‌‌                     
above‌ ‌and‌ ‌14.1‌ ‌below).‌ ‌ 

‌ 

106



‌ 
‌ 

8.0‌ Consultations‌ ‌ 
‌ 

8.1‌ As‌ ‌referred‌ ‌to‌ ‌in‌ ‌individual‌ ‌application‌ ‌reports,‌ ‌comprising‌ ‌both‌‌                 
statutory‌ ‌and‌ ‌non-statutory‌ ‌consultees.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
9.0‌ Risk‌ ‌Assessment‌ ‌ 
‌ 

9.1‌ As‌ ‌referred‌ ‌to‌ ‌in‌ ‌individual‌ ‌application‌ ‌reports.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

10.0‌ Health‌ ‌&‌ ‌Safety‌ ‌Issues‌ ‌ 
‌ 

10.1‌ As‌ ‌referred‌ ‌to‌ ‌in‌ ‌individual‌ ‌application‌ ‌reports.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

11.0‌ Procurement‌ ‌Strategy‌ ‌ 
‌ 

11.1‌ Matter‌ ‌considered‌ ‌and‌ ‌no‌ ‌issues‌ ‌identified.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

12.0‌ Partnership‌ ‌Working‌ ‌ 
‌ 

12.1‌ Matter‌ ‌considered‌ ‌and‌ ‌no‌ ‌issues‌ ‌identified.‌ ‌ 
‌ 

13.0‌ Legal‌‌ ‌  
‌ 

13.1‌ Powers‌ ‌and‌ ‌duties‌ ‌contained‌ ‌in‌ ‌the‌ ‌Town‌ ‌and‌ ‌Country‌ ‌Planning‌ ‌Act‌‌                     
1990‌ ‌(as‌ ‌amended)‌ ‌and‌ ‌associated‌ ‌legislation‌ ‌and‌ ‌statutory‌ ‌instruments.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
14.0‌ Financial‌ ‌implications‌ ‌ 
‌ 

14.1‌ Decisions‌‌made‌‌(or‌‌conditions‌‌imposed)‌‌which‌‌cannot‌‌be‌‌substantiated‌‌                 
or‌ ‌which‌ ‌are‌ ‌otherwise‌ ‌unreasonable‌ ‌having‌ ‌regard‌ ‌to‌ ‌valid‌ ‌planning‌‌                   
considerations‌ ‌can‌ ‌result‌ ‌in‌ ‌an‌ ‌award‌ ‌of‌ ‌costs‌ ‌against‌ ‌the‌ ‌Council‌ ‌if‌ ‌the‌‌                         
applicant‌ ‌is‌ ‌aggrieved‌ ‌and‌ ‌lodges‌ ‌an‌ ‌appeal.‌ ‌Decisions‌ ‌made‌ ‌which‌ ‌fail‌ ‌to‌‌                       
take‌ ‌into‌ ‌account‌ ‌relevant‌ ‌planning‌ ‌considerations‌ ‌or‌‌which‌‌are‌‌partly‌‌based‌‌                     
on‌‌irrelevant‌‌considerations‌‌can‌‌be‌‌subject‌‌to‌‌judicial‌‌review‌‌in‌‌the‌‌High‌‌Court‌‌                         
with‌ ‌resultant‌ ‌costs‌ ‌implications.‌ ‌ 

‌ 
‌ 

‌ 

‌ 

‌ 
‌ 
‌ 
‌ 

107



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Planning Applications

